
Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 
Business Committee Conference Room - 2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

March 1, 2023 
9:00 a.m.  

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda

II. Minutes to be Approved
1. February 15, 2023 LOC Meeting Minutes (pg. 2)

III. Current Business
1. Emergency Management Law Amendments (pg. 4)
2. Election Law Emergency Amendments (pg. 39)
3. Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments (pg. 80)

IV. New Submissions
1. Petition: L. Dallas – Alcohol and Drug Addiction Treatment Assistance (pg. 392)
2. Petition: L. Dallas – FY 2023 Budget (pg. 394)
3. Petition: L. Dallas – GTC Directive for OBC to Stay Out of Day to Day Business (pg. 396)
4. Petition: L. Zeise – Uncap All Employee Wages (pg. 398)

V. Additions

VI. Administrative Updates

VII. Executive Session

VIII. Recess/Adjourn

1 of 400

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of February 15, 2023 
Page 1 of 2 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Oneida Business Committee Conference Room-2nd Floor Norbert Hill Center 

February 15, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

Present: David P. Jordan, Marie Cornelius, Daniel Guzman King, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer 
Webster 
Others Present: Clorissa N. Leeman, Carolyn Salutz, Grace Elliott, Brooke Doxtator, Keith 
Doxtator, Ray Skenandore, Tina Jorgenson (Microsoft Teams), Todd VandenHeuvel (Microsoft 
Teams), Justin Nishimoto (Microsoft Teams), Mark Powless (Microsoft Teams), Rhiannon 
Metoxen (Microsoft Teams), Kristal Hill (Microsoft Teams), Peggy Van Gheem (Microsoft Teams) 

I. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda
David P. Jordan called the February 15, 2023, Legislative Operating Committee meeting
to order at 9:00 a.m.

Motion by Marie Cornelius to adopt the agenda as is; seconded by Daniel Guzman King.
Motion carried unanimously.

II. Minutes to be Approved
1. February 1, 2023 LOC Meeting Minutes
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the February 1, 2023, LOC meeting minutes and
forward to the Oneida Business Committee; seconded by Marie Cornelius. Kirby Metoxen
abstained. Motion carried.

III. Current Business
1. Back Pay Law Amendments
Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the updated public comment review memorandum;
seconded by Marie Cornelius. Motion carried unanimously.

IV. New Submissions
1. Election Law Emergency Amendments
Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Election law emergency amendments to the Active
Files List with Kirby Metoxen as the sponsor; seconded by Marie Cornelius. Motion
carried unanimously.

V. Additions

 

2 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

r'\ mooao 
ONEIDA 

~ 
ONEIDA 



Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of February 15, 2023   
  Page 2 of 2  
 

VI. Administrative Items 
VII.  
VIII. Executive Session 
 
IX. Adjourn 

Motion by Marie Cornelius to adjourn at 9:09 a.m.; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

3 of 400



Page 1 of 3 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
March 1, 2023 

Emergency Management Law 
Amendments 

Submission Date: 7/6/22 Public Meeting: 12/13/22 
LOC Sponsor:   Marie Cornelius Emergency Enacted: 9/14/22 

Summary:  During the June 24, 2022, Storm Emergency Debrief session between the Oneida Business
Committee and the Emergency Management Director it was identified that amendments would be needed 
to the Emergency Management law to address the composition of the Oneida Emergency Planning 
Committee. Some of the positions identified in the ONEPC Bylaws are direct reports to the Oneida 
Business Committee or General Manager, or are employees of the Nation’s Internal Audit Department, 
Finance Administration, Law Office, Business Committee Support Office, or Intergovernmental Affairs 
and Communications. Currently, section 105.15-3 of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law 
provides that direct reports to the Oneida Business Committee or General Manager, or are employees of 
the Nation’s Internal Audit Department, Finance Administration, Law Office, Business Committee Support 
Office, or Intergovernmental Affairs and Communications are ineligible to serve on an appointed or 
elected boards, committee, or commission of the Nation. An exemption to this prohibition needs to be 
included for the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee since it is essential that direct reports 
and employees of those designated areas participate on this committee. The Oneida Business Committee 
adopted emergency amendments to the Emergency Management law on September 14, 2022, through the 
adoption of resolution BC-09-14-22-B. These emergency amendments will expire on March 14, 2023. 

7/6/22 LOC: Motion by Daniel Guzman King to add the Emergency Management law emergency 
amendments to the Active Files List with Marie Summers as the sponsor; seconded by Marie 
Summers. Motion carried unanimously. 

7/18/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Clorissa N. Santiago, Lisa Summers, Brooke 
Doxtator, Mark Powless, Kaylynn Gresham. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft 
Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss a plan for addressing amendments 
to the Emergency Management law and the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee 
Bylaws. 

8/2/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Clorissa N. Santiago, Lisa Summers, Brooke 
Doxtator, Mark Powless, Kaylynn Gresham. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft 
Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss policy issues that need to be 
addressed in the amendments to the Emergency Management law and the Oneida Nation 
Emergency Planning Committee bylaws amendments. 

8/25/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Clorissa N. Santiago, Lisa Summers, Brooke 
Doxtator, Mark Powless, Kaylynn Gresham, Carolyn Salutz, Grace Elliot. This was a work 
meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss the 
draft of proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law and accompanying 
resolution. 

4 of 400

"' =DODDOO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
8/25/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Marie Summers, Daniel Guzman 

King, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carolyn Salutz, Grace Elliot. This was a work meeting held 
through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss the draft of 
proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law. 

 
8/30/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Marie Summers, Daniel Guzman 

King, Kirby Metoxen, Clorissa N. Santiago, Rhiannon Metoxen, Kristal Hill, Grace Elliot, 
Kaylynn Gresham. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of 
this work meeting was to review and discuss the draft of proposed amendments to the 
Emergency Management law. 

 
9/7/22 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the Emergency Management law emergency 

amendments adoption packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for 
consideration; seconded by Marie Summers. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
9/14/22 OBC: Motion by Lisa Liggins to adopt resolution entitled 09-14-22-B Emergency Amendments to 

the Emergency Management Law, seconded by Marie Cornelius. Motion carried. 
 
10/4/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Clorissa N. Leeman, Louise Cornelius, Mark 

Powless, Melissa Alvarado, Derrick King, Kaylynn Gresham. This was a work meeting held 
through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to begin discussion on the 
development of the Emergency Management Operations Team SOP as required by resolution 
BC-09-14-22-B. 

 
10/5/22 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the draft of the proposed amendments to the 

Emergency Management law and direct that a legislative analysis be completed; seconded by 
Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
10/19/22 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the legislative analysis of the Emergency Management 

law; seconded by Marie Cornelius. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
11/2/22 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the public meeting packet and forward the Emergency 

Management law amendments to a public meeting to be held on December 13, 2022; seconded 
by Marie Cornelius. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
11/4/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Clorissa N. Leeman, Louise Cornelius, Mark 

Powless, Kaylynn Gresham, Debra Powless, Chad Fuss, Lucy Neville, Lawrence Barton. This 
was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to 
review and discuss the draft of the Emergency Management Operations Team SOP. 

 
12/13/22: Public Meeting Held. Present: Kirby Metoxen, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carolyn Salutz, Brooke 

Doxtator, David P. Jordan (Microsoft Teams), Carrie Lindsey (Microsoft Teams), Joy 
Salzwedel (Microsoft Teams), Justin Nishimoto (Microsoft Teams), Rachel Fitzpatrick 
(Microsoft Teams), Tina Jorgensen (Microsoft Teams), Melanie Burkhart (Microsoft Teams), 
Grace Elliot (Microsoft Teams), Brenda Haen (Microsoft Teams), Debra Santiago (Microsoft 
Teams), Kristal Hill (Microsoft Teams), Matt Denny (Microsoft Teams), Ronald Vanschyndel 
(Microsoft Teams), Wendy Alvarez (Microsoft Teams), Stefanie Reinke (Microsoft Teams), 
Jay Kennard (Microsoft Teams), Sidney White (Microsoft Teams). The public meeting for the 
Emergency Management law amendments was held in person in the Norbert Hill Center and 
on Microsoft Teams. No individuals provided public comment during the public meeting. 

 
 

5 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

12/14/22 OBC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the Oneida Nation Standard Operating Procedure 
(SOP) entitled Emergency Management Law – Emergency Management Operations Team 
with the addition of Chief Information Officer under 3.1 of the SOP, seconded by David P. 
Jordan. Motion carried. 

 
12/20/22: Public Comment Period Closed.  No submissions of written comments were received during 

the public comment period. 
 
1/4/23 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the public comment review memorandum identifying 

no public comments were received; seconded by Marie Cornelius. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
1/18/23 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the draft, legislative analysis, and fiscal impact 

statement review memorandum, and forward to the Finance Department directing that a fiscal 
impact statement be prepared and submitted to the LOC by February 15, 2023; seconded by 
Marie Cornelius. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
Next Steps: 
 Approve the adoption packet for the Emergency Management law amendments and forward 

to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration. 

6 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



7 of 400

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov 

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

TO: Oneida Business Committee ~ ~ 
FROM: David P. Jordan, LOC Chairperson 
DATE: March 8, 2023 
RE: Adoption of Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 

Please find the following attached backup documentation for your consideration of the adoption 
of amendments to the Emergency Management law: 

1. Resolution: Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 
2. Statement of Effect: Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 
3. Emergency Management Law Amendments Legislative Analysis 
4. Emergency Management Law Amendments Draft (Redline) 
5. Emergency Management Law Amendments Draft (Clean) 
6. Emergency Management Law Amendments Fiscal Impact Statement 

Overview 

The Oneida Business Committee adopted emergency amendments to the Emergency Management 
law on September 14, 2022, through the adoption of resolution BC-09-14-22-B. The emergency 
amendments to the Emergency Management law will expire on March 14, 2023. Amendments to 
the Emergency Management law is now ready to be considered for permanent adoption. 

Amendments to the Emergency Management law are being sought to address the Nation's 
emergency response. The Emergency Management law provides for the development and 
execution of plans for the protection of residents, property, and the environment in an emergency 
or disaster; to provide for the direction of emergency management, response, and recovery on the 
Reservation; as well as coordination with other agencies, victims, businesses, and organizations; 
to establish the use of the National Incident Management System (NIMS); and to designate 
authority and responsibilities for public health preparedness. [3 0. C. 3 02.1-1]. 

The proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law will: 
■ 

■ 

■ 

Eliminate the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee and replace it with an 
Emergency Management Operations Team. [3 O.C. 302.5-1}; 
Provide that members of the Emergency Management Operations Team shall attend meetings, 
or send a designee in their absence, and comply with any training requirements set forth by the 
Emergency Management Director. [3 O.C. 302.5-3}; 
Require that within forty-eight (48) hours of an emergency, the Emergency Management 
Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an 
emergency briefing to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee regarding the status of 
the emergency, actions taken to address the emergency, and the activation of the Emergency 
Response Plan. [3 O.C. 302.8-4]; 

Page 1 of 2 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



8 of 400

■ Allow the Oneida Business Committee to direct the Emergency Management Director to 
provide additional emergency briefings to the Oneida Business Committee. [3 O.C. 302.8-4}; 

■ Require that within thirty (30) days of an emergency subsiding, unless additional time is 
granted by the Oneida Business Committee, the Emergency Management Director shall 
prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, a preliminary 
emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee, any interested 
entity, and the public. [3 O.C. 302.8-5]; 

■ Extend the amount of time for the Emergency Management Director to prepare and present an 
after-action report to the Oneida Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public, 
from sixty (60) days to ninety (90) days. [3 O.C. 302.8-6]. 

The Legislative Operating Committee developed the proposed amendments to the Emergency 
Management law through collaboration with representatives from the Emergency Management 
Department, General Manager, and the Government Administrative Office. The Legislative 
Operating Committee held seven (7) work meetings on the development of the Emergency 
Management law. 

The development of the amendments to the Emergency Management law complies with all 
processes and procedures required by the Legislative Procedures Act, including the development 
of a legislative analysis, a fiscal analysis, and the opportunity for public review during a public 
meeting and public comment period. [1 0. C. 109. 6, 109. 7, 109. 8}. 

A public meeting on the proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law was held on 
December 13, 2022. No oral comments were provided during the public meeting. The public 
comment period was then held open until December 20, 2022. No submissions of written 
comments were received during the public comment period. 

Requested Action 
Adopt the Resolution: Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 

Page 2 of 2 A good mind. A good heart A strong fire. 

~ 
=OOOOQD: 

ONEIDA 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Phone: (920)869-2214                                       Oneida, WI 54155 

Oneida Nation 
Post Office Box 365 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

BC Resolution # 1 
Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 2 

 3 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe 4 

recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and 5 
 6 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and 7 
 8 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1, 9 

of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and 10 
 11 
WHEREAS,  the Emergency Management law (“the Law”) was adopted by the Oneida Business 12 

Committee through resolution BC-07-15-98-A and amended by resolutions BC-12-20-06-13 
G, BC-05-13-09-F, and BC-03-10-21-A; and  14 

 15 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Law is to provide for the development and execution of plans for the 16 

protection of residents, property, and the environment in an emergency or disaster;  provide 17 
for the direction of emergency management, response, and recovery on the Reservation, 18 
as well as coordination with other agencies, victims, businesses, and organizations; 19 
establish the use of the National Incident Management System; and designate authority 20 
and responsibilities for public health preparedness; and 21 

 22 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee recently adopted emergency amendments to the Law on 23 

September 14, 2022, through the adoption of resolution BC-09-14-22-B in accordance with 24 
the emergency adoption process set forth by the Legislative Procedures Act; and 25 

 26 
WHEREAS, the emergency amendments to the Law are set to expire on March 14, 2023; and  27 
 28 
WHEREAS,  the Legislative Operating Committee has developed permanent amendments to the Law 29 

for consideration by the Oneida Business Committee; and  30 
 31 
WHEREAS,  the amendments to the Law eliminate the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee 32 

and replace it with an Emergency Management Operations Team, clarifying that this Team 33 
exists not as a board, committee, or commission of the Nation, but instead as a network of 34 
different employee positions throughout the Nation that all have a responsibility to aid in 35 
the Nation’s response to emergencies; and  36 

 37 
WHEREAS,  the amendments to the Law provide that members of the Emergency Management 38 

Operations Team shall attend meetings, or send a designee in their absence, and comply 39 
with any training requirements set forth by the Emergency Management Director; and  40 

 41 
WHEREAS,  the amendments to the Law require that within forty-eight (48) hours of an emergency, the 42 

Emergency Management Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the 43 
appropriate entity to prepare, an emergency briefing to be presented to the Oneida 44 
Business Committee regarding the status of the emergency, actions taken to address the 45 
emergency, and the activation of the Emergency Response Plan; and  46 

 47 

9 of 400



BC Resolution _____________ 
Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

WHEREAS,  the amendments to the Law allow the Oneida Business Committee to direct the Emergency 48 
Management Director to provide additional emergency briefings to the Oneida Business 49 
Committee; and  50 

 51 
WHEREAS,  the amendments to the Law require that within thirty (30) days of an emergency subsiding, 52 

unless additional time is granted by the Oneida Business Committee, the Emergency 53 
Management Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity 54 
to prepare, a preliminary emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida 55 
Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public; and  56 

 57 
WHEREAS,  the amendments to the Law extend the amount of time for the Emergency Management 58 

Director to prepare and present an after-action report to the Oneida Business Committee, 59 
any interested entity, and the public, from sixty (60) days to ninety (90) days; and  60 

 61 
WHEREAS, the Legislative Operating Committee developed the proposed amendments to the Law 62 

through collaboration with representatives from the Emergency Management Department, 63 
General Manager, and the Government Administrative Office; and  64 

 65 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Legislative Procedures Act a legislative analysis and fiscal impact 66 

statement were completed for the proposed amendments to the Law; and  67 
 68 
WHEREAS, a public meeting for the proposed amendments to this Law was held on December 13, 69 

2022, and the public comment period for the amendments to this Law was held open until 70 
December 20, 2022; and  71 

 72 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Oneida Business Committee hereby adopts the amendments 73 
to the Emergency Management law which shall become effective on March 14, 2023.  74 

10 of 400



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov   
 
 
 

Statement of Effect 
Amendments to the Emergency Management Law 

 
Summary 

This resolution adopts amendments to the Emergency Management law to improve the Nation’s 
responses to emergencies. 
 
Submitted by: Clorissa N. Leeman, Senior Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office 
Date: January 26, 2023 
 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 
This resolution adopts amendments to the Emergency Management law. The Emergency 
Management law provides for the development and execution of plans for the protection of 
residents, property, and the environment in an emergency or disaster; to provide for the direction 
of emergency management, response, and recovery on the Reservation; as well as coordination 
with other agencies, victims, businesses, and organizations; to establish the use of the National 
Incident Management System (NIMS); and to designate authority and responsibilities for public 
health preparedness. [3 O.C. 302.1-1]. The amendments to the Emergency Management law will: 
 Eliminate the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee and replace it with an 

Emergency Management Operations Team. [3 O.C. 302.5-1]; 
 Provide that members of the Emergency Management Operations Team shall attend 

meetings, or send a designee in their absence, and comply with any training requirements 
set forth by the Emergency Management Director. [3 O.C. 302.5-3]; 

 Require that within forty-eight (48) hours of an emergency, the Emergency Management 
Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, 
an emergency briefing to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee regarding the 
status of the emergency, actions taken to address the emergency, and the activation of the 
Emergency Response Plan. [3 O.C. 302.8-4]; 

 Allow the Oneida Business Committee to direct the Emergency Management Director to 
provide additional emergency briefings to the Oneida Business Committee. [3 O.C. 302.8-
4]; 

 Require that within thirty (30) days of an emergency subsiding, unless additional time is 
granted by the Oneida Business Committee, the Emergency Management Director shall 
prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, a preliminary 
emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee, any 
interested entity, and the public. [3 O.C. 302.8-5]; 

 Extend the amount of time for the Emergency Management Director to prepare and present 
an after-action report to the Oneida Business Committee, any interested entity, and the 
public, from sixty (60) days to ninety (90) days. [3 O.C. 302.8-6]. 

 
Adoption of any legislation is required to comply with the Legislative Procedures Act (“the LPA”), 
which was adopted by the General Tribal Council through resolution GTC-01-07-13-A for the 

11 of 400

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

purpose of providing a standardized process for the adoption of laws of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-
1]. The Emergency Management law amendments complied with all processes and procedures 
required by the LPA, including the development of a legislative analysis, a fiscal analysis, and the 
opportunity for public review during a public meeting and public comment period. [1 O.C. 109.6, 
109.7, 109.8]. 
 
A public meeting on the proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law was held on 
December 13, 2022. The public comment period was then held open until December 20, 2022. No 
public comments were received during the public meeting or public comment period. 
 
The proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law will become effective on March 
14, 2023. 
 

Conclusion 
Adoption of this resolution would not conflict with any of the Nation’s laws. 

12 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 

   EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT LAW   
AMENDMENTS  

LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 
 

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 

Intent of the  
Proposed Amendments 

 Eliminate the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee and replace 
it with an Emergency Management Operations Team. [3 O.C. 302.5-1]; 

 Provide that members of the Emergency Management Operations Team 
shall attend meetings, or send a designee in their absence, and comply 
with any training requirements set forth by the Emergency Management 
Director. [3 O.C. 302.5-3]; 

 Require that within forty-eight (48) hours of an emergency, the 
Emergency Management Director shall prepare, or shall work in 
conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an emergency briefing 
to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee regarding the status of 
the emergency, actions taken to address the emergency, and the activation 
of the Emergency Response Plan. [3 O.C. 302.8-4]; 

 Allow the Oneida Business Committee to direct the Emergency 
Management Director to provide additional emergency briefings to the 
Oneida Business Committee. [3 O.C. 302.8-4]; 

 Require that within thirty (30) days of an emergency subsiding, unless 
additional time is granted by the Oneida Business Committee, the 
Emergency Management Director shall prepare, or shall work in 
conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, a preliminary 
emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida Business 
Committee, any interested entity, and the public. [3 O.C. 302.8-5]; 

 Extend the amount of time for the Emergency Management Director to 
prepare and present an after-action report to the Oneida Business 
Committee, any interested entity, and the public, from sixty (60) days to 
ninety (90) days. [3 O.C. 302.8-6]. 

Purpose To provide for the development and execution of plans for the protection of 
residents, property, and the environment in an emergency or disaster; to 
provide for the direction of emergency management, response, and recovery 
on the Reservation; as well as coordination with other agencies, victims, 
businesses, and organizations; to establish the use of the National Incident 
Management System (NIMS); and to designate authority and responsibilities 
for public health preparedness. [3 O.C. 302.1-1] 

Affected Entities  Emergency Management Operations Team, Emergency Management 
Director, Oneida Business Committee 

Public Meeting A public meeting was held on December 13, 2022. The public comment 
period was held open until December 20, 2022.  

Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement was provided by the Finance Administration on 
February 15, 2023. 

Expiration of Emergency 
Legislation 

Emergency legislation expires six (6) months after adoption and may be 
renewed for an additional six (6) month period. The emergency amendments 
to this law will expire on March 14, 2022. 

13 of 400



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 
A. Background.  The Emergency Management law (“the Law”) was first adopted by the Oneida Business 2 

Committee on July 15, 1998,(formally known as the Emergency Management and Homeland Security 3 
law) and most recently amended on March 10, 2021. The Law provides for the development and 4 
execution of plans for the protection of residents, property, and the environment in an emergency or 5 
disaster; to provide for the direction of emergency management, response, and recovery on the 6 
Reservation; as well as coordination with other agencies, victims, businesses, and organizations; to 7 
establish the use of the National Incident Management System (NIMS); and to designate authority and 8 
responsibilities for public health preparedness. [3 O.C. 302.1-1]. 9 

B. Adoption of Emergency Amendments.  On June 15, 2022, the Oneida Nation and surrounding areas 10 
experienced a severe thunderstorm, high winds and tornados affecting power, damaging homes and 11 
businesses, and impacting access through downed trees causing multiple buildings and much of the 12 
programs and services of the Nation to be negatively impacted through damage to buildings, lack of 13 
power and utilities, and inability of employees to come to work as a result of the same impact on their 14 
homes. The Oneida Business Committee declared an emergency resulting from the damages caused by 15 
the June 15, 2022, severe weather through the adoption of resolution BC-06-20-22-A, Declaration of 16 
Emergency Resulting from the Damages Caused by the June 15, 2022, Severe Weather and Tornado. 17 
On June 24, 2022, the Oneida Business Committee storm held an emergency debrief session with the 18 
Emergency Management Director, and in that meeting it was identified that amendments to the 19 
Emergency Management law would be needed to address the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning 20 
Committee, and the difficulties of composing this Team to meet the needs of the Nation for an 21 
emergency response. The Legislative Operating Committee added these amendments to its Active Files 22 
List on July 6, 2022, and determined that these amendments should be pursued on an emergency basis. 23 
 The Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee assists the Emergency Management Director 24 

in drafting and maintaining the Emergency Response Plan, and at the request of the Emergency 25 
Management Director, the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee shall  provide assistance 26 
to the Emergency Management Director in the implementation of the provisions of this law or any 27 
plan issued thereunder. The Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee shall consist of 28 
representatives from  entities and a community representative as identified in the Oneida Nation 29 
Emergency Planning Committee bylaws. 30 

 Some of the positions identified in the Bylaws are direct reports to the Oneida Business Committee 31 
or General Manager, or are employees of the Nation’s Internal Audit Department, Finance 32 
Administration, Law Office, Business Committee Support Office, or Intergovernmental Affairs and 33 
Communications. Currently, section 105.15-3 of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law 34 
provides that direct reports to the Oneida Business Committee or General Manager, or are 35 
employees of the Nation’s Internal Audit Department, Finance Administration, Law Office, 36 
Business Committee Support Office, or Intergovernmental Affairs and Communications are 37 
ineligible to serve on an appointed or elected boards, committee, or commission of the Nation. 38 
Amendments to the Law are being sought to address the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning 39 
Committee since it is essential that direct reports and employees of those designated areas 40 
participate on this committee in order to achieve the best emergency response for the Nation. 41 

 The emergency adoption of amendments to this Law were necessary for the preservation of the 42 
safety and general welfare of the Reservation population in order to ensure that the Nation can 43 

14 of 400



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 3 of 7 
 

adequately respond to emergencies that occur by ensuring that there is an Emergency Management 44 
Operations Team that can assist the Emergency Management Director in drafting and maintaining 45 
the Emergency Response Plan., as well as assist the Emergency Management Director in the 46 
implementation of the provisions of this law or any plan issued thereunder. 47 

 Observance of the requirements under the Legislative Procedures Act for adoption of the 48 
emergency amendments to this Law were contrary to public interest since the process and 49 
requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act cannot be completed in time to ensure that the 50 
Emergency Management Operations Team can be established and prepared to aid in the emergency 51 
response prior to the next emergency occurring within the Nation. 52 

 The Oneida Business Committee adopted emergency amendments to the Emergency Management 53 
law on September 14, 2022, through the adoption of resolution BC-09-14-22-B. The emergency 54 
amendments to the Emergency Management law will expire on March 14, 2023. 55 

 56 
SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 57 
A. Representatives from the following departments or entities participated in the development of the 58 

emergency amendments to this Law and legislative analysis:  59 
 Emergency Management Department; 60 
 General Manager; and  61 
 Government Administrative Office. 62 

B. The following laws were reviewed in the drafting of this analysis: 63 
 Emergency Management law; and  64 
 Boards, Committees, and Commissions law. 65 

 66 

SECTION 4. PROCESS 67 
A. The development of the  proposed amendments to the Emergency Management law complies with the 68 

process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA).  69 
 On July 6, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee added the Law to its Active Files List. 70 
 On September 7, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee approved the Emergency 71 

Management law emergency amendments adoption packet and forward these materials to the 72 
Oneida Business Committee for consideration. 73 

 On September 14, 2022, the Oneida Business Committee adopted resolution BC-09-14-22-B 74 
entitled, Emergency Amendments to the Emergency Management Law. 75 

 On October 5, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee approved the draft of the proposed 76 
amendments to the Emergency Management law and directed that a legislative analysis be 77 
completed. 78 

 On October 19, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee approved the legislative analysis. 79 
 On November 2, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee approved the public meeting packet 80 

and forwarded the Emergency Management law amendments to a public meeting to be held on 81 
December 13, 2022. 82 

 On December 13, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee held a public meeting on the 83 
proposed amendments to the Law in the Norbert Hill Center’s Executive Conference room as well 84 
as on Microsoft Teams. No one provided public comments during the public meeting. The public 85 

15 of 400



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 4 of 7 
 

comment period was held open until December 20, 2022. No written submissions of public 86 
comments were received during the public comment period. 87 

 On January 4, 2023, the Legislative Operating Committee accepted the public comment review 88 
memorandum identifying no public comments were received. 89 

 On January 18, 2023, the Legislative Operating Committee approved the draft, legislative analysis, 90 
and fiscal impact statement review memorandum, and forwarded these materials to the Finance 91 
Department directing that a fiscal impact statement be prepared and submitted to the LOC by 92 
February 15, 2023. 93 

 On February 15, 2023, the Finance Administration provided the fiscal impact statement.  94 
B. The Legislative Operating Committee has held the following work meetings specific to the proposed 95 

emergency amendments to this Law: 96 
 July 18, 2022: Work Session with Governmental Administrative Office, General Manager, and 97 

Emergency Management Department. 98 
 August 2, 2022: Work Session with Governmental Administrative Office, General Manager, and 99 

Emergency Management Department. 100 
 August 25, 2022: Work Session with Governmental Administrative Office, General Manager, and 101 

Emergency Management Department. 102 
 August 25, 2022: LOC work session. 103 
 August 30, 2022: LOC work session with the Emergency Management Department. 104 
 October 4, 2022: Work Session with Gaming General Manager and Staff, General Manager, 105 

Finance Administration, and the Emergency Management Director. 106 
 November 4, 2022: Work session with Finance Administration, Gaming General Manager, Gaming 107 

Management, General Manager, Retail General Manager, Emergency Management Director. 108 
 109 

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION  110 
A. Emergency Management Operations Team.  Previously the Law provided that there be an Oneida 111 

Nation Emergency Planning Committee which consisted of representatives from entities and a 112 
community representative as identified in the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee bylaws 113 
as approved by the Oneida Business. The proposed amendments to the Law eliminate the Oneida Nation 114 
Emergency Planning Committee and replace it with an Emergency Management Operations Team. [3 115 
O.C. 302.5-1]. The Emergency Management Operations Team consists of representatives from entities 116 
as identified by the Emergency Management Director. Id. The purpose of the Emergency Management 117 
Operations Team remains the same as the purpose of the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning 118 
Committee, which is to assist the Emergency Management Director in drafting and maintaining the 119 
Emergency Response Plan, as well as to assist the Emergency Management Director in the 120 
implementation of any provision of the Law or any plan issued thereunder. [3 O.C. 302.5-2]. 121 
Additionally, a new provision added to the Law sets expectations for the Emergency Management 122 
Operations Team by providing the requirement that members attend meetings, or send a designee in 123 
their absence, and comply with any training requirements set forth by the Emergency Management 124 
Director. [3 O.C. 302.5-3]. 125 
 Effect.  The proposed amendments to the Law replace the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning 126 

Committee with the Emergency Management Operations Team. This revision demonstrates 127 
that the Nation is better suited with the Emergency Management Operations Team which exists 128 
not as a board, committee, or commission of the Nation, but instead as a network of different 129 

16 of 400



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 5 of 7 
 

employee positions throughout the Nation that all have a responsibility to aid in the Nation’s 130 
response to emergencies. This eliminates the previous difficulty in composing this Team to 131 
meet the needs of the Nation for an emergency response since a conflict with section 105.15-3 132 
of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law no longer exists, and the direct reports and 133 
employees of those designated areas can now participate on this Emergency Management 134 
Operations Team to achieve the best emergency response for the Nation. 135 

B. Emergency Briefings.  A new provision was added to the Law which requires that within forty-eight 136 
(48) hours of an emergency, the Emergency Management Director shall prepare, or shall work in 137 
conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an emergency briefing to be presented to the Oneida 138 
Business Committee regarding the status of the emergency, actions taken to address the emergency, 139 
and the activation of the Emergency Response Plan. [3 O.C. 302.8-4]. The Oneida Business Committee 140 
may then direct the Director to provide additional emergency briefings. Id.  141 
 Effect.  The new provision ensures that the Emergency Management Director is briefing the 142 

Oneida Business Committee on the status of the emergency, actions taken to address the 143 
emergency, and the activation of the Emergency Response Plan so that the Oneida Business 144 
Committee stays informed on an emergency occurring within the Nation in an effort to make 145 
better policy decisions and provide greater communication to the community. 146 

C. Preliminary Emergency Assessment Report.  A new provision was added to the Law which requires 147 
that after an emergency has subsided, the Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the 148 
appropriate entity to prepare, a preliminary emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida 149 
Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public. [3 O.C. 302.8-5]. This report is required to 150 
be presented to the parties no later than thirty (30) days after the emergency has subsided, unless an 151 
extension is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. 152 
 Effect.  The new provision to the Law ensures the Emergency Management Director is 153 

providing the Oneida Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public with a 154 
preliminary report that reviews the Nation’s response to an emergency and identifies any areas 155 
in which the response could have been improved. Providing this information in a preliminary 156 
emergency assessment report allows the Nation to be best prepared in how to improve 157 
emergency response, in case an additional emergency occurs before the full analysis of a 158 
particular emergency response can be provided in the after-action report.  159 

D. Extension of the Timeframe for an After-Action Report.  Previously, the Law provided that after an 160 
emergency has subsided, the Emergency Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the 161 
appropriate entity to prepare, an after-action report to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee, 162 
any interested entity, and the public no later than sixty (60) days after the emergency has subsided, 163 
unless an extension is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. The amendments to the Law extend 164 
the timeframe for when an after-action report is required to be presented from sixty (60) days to ninety 165 
(90) days. [3 O.C. 302.8-6]. 166 
 Effect.  The amendments to the Law provide the Emergency Management Director additional 167 

time to prepare an after-action report to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee, any 168 
interested entity, and the public. The Emergency Management Director informed the 169 
Legislative Operating Committee that sixty (60) days is not a sufficient time allowance to 170 
complete this report, especially when there are times that information needs to be collected 171 
from other agencies to be included in the report. 172 

17 of 400



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 173 
SECTION 6. EXISTING LEGISLATION  174 
A. Related Legislation. The following laws of the Nation are related to the emergency amendments to this 175 

Law: 176 
 Legislative Procedures Act.  The Legislative Procedures Act was adopted by the General Tribal 177 

Council on January 7, 2013, for the purpose of providing a standard process for the adoption 178 
of laws of the Nation which includes taking into account comments from members of the 179 
Nation and input from agencies of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-1, 109.1-2]. 180 

 The Legislative Procedures Act provides a process for the adoption of emergency 181 
legislation when the legislation is necessary for the immediate preservation of the 182 
public health, safety, or general welfare of the Reservation population and the 183 
enactment or amendment of legislation is required sooner than would be possible under 184 
this law. [1 O.C. 109.9-5]. 185 
 The Legislative Operating Committee is responsible for first reviewing the 186 

emergency legislation and for forwarding the legislation to the Oneida 187 
Business Committee for consideration. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 188 

 The proposed emergency legislation is required to have a legislative analysis 189 
completed and attached prior to being sent to the Oneida Business Committee 190 
for consideration. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 191 

a. A legislative analysis is a plain language analysis describing the 192 
important features of the legislation being considered and factual 193 
information to enable the Legislative Operating Committee to make 194 
informed decisions regarding legislation. A legislative analysis 195 
includes a statement of the legislation’s terms and substance; intent of 196 
the legislation; a description of the subject(s) involved, including any 197 
conflicts with Oneida or other law, key issues, potential impacts of the 198 
legislation and policy considerations. [1 O.C. 109.3-1(g)]. 199 

 Emergency legislation does not require a fiscal impact statement to be 200 
completed or a public comment period to be held. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 201 

 Upon the determination that an emergency exists the Oneida Business 202 
Committee can adopt emergency legislation. The emergency legislation 203 
becomes effective immediately upon its approval by the Oneida Business 204 
Committee. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 205 

 Emergency legislation remains in effect for a period of up to six (6) months, 206 
with an opportunity for a one-time emergency law extension of up to six (6) 207 
months. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 208 

 Adoption of these proposed emergency amendments conform with the requirements of 209 
the Legislative Procedures Act. 210 

 Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law.  The Boards Committees and Commissions law 211 
governs boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation, including the procedures 212 
regarding the appointment and election of persons to boards, committees and commissions, 213 
creation of bylaws, maintenance of official records, compensation, and other items related to 214 
boards, committees and commissions. [1 O.C. 105.1-1]. 215 

18 of 400



   Analysis to Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 The Boards, Committees, and Commissions law provides that direct reports to the 216 
Oneida Business Committee or General Manager, or are employees of the Nation’s 217 
Internal Audit Department, Finance Administration, Law Office, Business Committee 218 
Support Office, or Intergovernmental Affairs and Communications are ineligible to 219 
serve on an appointed or elected boards, committee, or commission of the Nation. [1 220 
O.C. 105.15-3]. 221 
 The proposed amendments to the Law replace the Oneida Nation Emergency Planning 222 

Committee with the Emergency Management Operations Team to eliminate any 223 
conflict with section 105.15-3 of the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law. 224 
 225 

SECTION 7. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  226 
A. Deadline for Permanent Adoption of Legislation. The emergency amendments to the Law will expire 227 

on March 14, 2022. The emergency legislation may be renewed for an additional six (6) month period.  228 
 Conclusion: The Legislative Operating Committee will need to determine if the adoption of these 229 

amendments is necessary on a permanent basis, and if so, develop the permanent amendments to 230 
this Law within the next six (6) to twelve (12) months. 231 

B. Fiscal Impact. Under the Legislative Procedures Act, a fiscal impact statement is required for all 232 
legislation except emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.6-1]. Oneida Business Committee resolution BC-233 
10-28-20-A titled, “Further Interpretation of ‘Fiscal Impact Statement’ in the Legislative Procedures 234 
Act,” provides further clarification on who the Legislative Operating Committee may direct complete 235 
a fiscal impact statement at various stages of the legislative process, as well as timeframes for 236 
completing the fiscal impact statement.  237 
 Conclusion.  The Legislative Operating Committee received a fiscal impact statement from the 238 

Finance Administration on February 15, 2023. 239 
240 

 241 

19 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 1 

Title 3. Health and Public Safety – Chapter 302 
Yotlihokt# Olihw@=ke 

Matters that are concerning immediate attention 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT  

 
302.1.  Purpose and Policy 
302.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts 
302.3.  Definitions 
302.4.  Emergency Management Department 
302.5.  Oneida Nation Emergency Planning CommitteeManagement 
Operations Team  

302.6.  Entity Cooperation 
302.7.  Public Health Emergencies 
302.8.  Proclamation of an Emergency 
302.9.  Emergency Core Decision Making Team 
302.10. Enforcement and Penalties

 1 
 2 

302.1.  Purpose and Policy 3 
302.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to: 4 

(a)  provide for the development and execution of plans for the protection of residents, 5 
property, and the environment in an emergency or disaster;  6 
(b)  provide for the direction of emergency management, response, and recovery on the 7 
Reservation; as well as coordination with other agencies, victims, businesses, and 8 
organizations;  9 
(c)  establish the use of the National Incident Management System (NIMS); and 10 
(d)  designate authority and responsibilities for public health preparedness. 11 

302.1-2.  Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to provide: 12 
(a)  a description of the emergency management network of the Nation;  13 
(b)  authorization for specialized activities to mitigate hazardous conditions and for the 14 
preparation of the Nation’s emergency response plans, as well as to address concerns 15 
related to isolation and/or quarantine orders, emergency care, and mutual aid; and 16 
(c)  for all expenditures made in connection with such emergency management activities 17 
to be deemed specifically for the protection and benefit of the inhabitants, property, and 18 
environment of the Reservation. 19 

 20 
302.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 21 
302.2-1.  This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-07-15-98-A 22 
and, amended by resolution BC-12-20-06-G, BC-05-13-09-F, and BC-03-10-21-A., and BC-__-23 
__-__-__. 24 
302.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee and/or General 25 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act.  26 
302.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 27 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 28 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 29 
302.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 30 
the provisions of this law shall control.   31 
302.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 32 
 33 
302.3.  Definitions 34 
302.3-1.   This section shall govern the definitions of words or phrases as used within this law.  35 
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 36 

(a)  “Biological agent” means an infectious disease or toxin that has the ability to adversely 37 
affect human health in a variety of ways, from mild allergic reactions to serious medical 38 

20 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 2 

conditions, and including death. 39 
(b)  “Communicable disease” means any disease transmitted from one person or animal to 40 
another directly by contact with excreta or other discharges from the body, or indirectly via 41 
substances or inanimate objects that may cause a public health emergency. 42 
(c) “Community/Public Health Officer” means an agent of the Comprehensive Health 43 
Division, or his or her designee(s), who is responsible for taking the appropriate actions in 44 
order to prevent a public health emergency from occurring on the Reservation. 45 
(d)  “Comprehensive Health Division” means the Oneida Comprehensive Health Division, 46 
which is authorized to issue compulsory vaccinations, require isolation, and quarantine 47 
individuals in order to protect the public health. 48 
(e)  “Director” means the Director of the Nation’s Emergency Management Department. 49 
(f)  “Emergency” means a situation that poses an immediate risk to health, life, safety, 50 
property, or environment which requires urgent intervention to prevent further illness, 51 
injury, death, or other worsening of the situation. 52 
(g)  “Emergency Management Network” means the entities, volunteers, consultants, 53 
contractors, outside agencies, and any other resources the Nation may use to facilitate inter-54 
agency collaboration, identify and share resources, and better prepare for local incidents 55 
and large-scale disasters. 56 
(h)  “Emergency Response Plan” means the plan established to coordinate mitigation, 57 
preparedness, response, and recovery activities for all emergency or disaster situations 58 
within the Reservation. 59 
(i)  “Entity” means any agency, board, committee, commission, or department of the 60 
Nation. 61 
(j)  “Fair Market Value” means the everyday cost of a product in an ordinary market, 62 
absent of a disaster. 63 
(k)  “Isolation” means the separation of persons or animals presumably or actually infected 64 
with a communicable disease, or that are disease carriers, for the usual period of 65 
communicability of that disease in such places and under such conditions as will prevent 66 
the direct or indirect transmission of an infectious agent to susceptible people or to those 67 
who may spread the agent to others. 68 
(l)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 69 
(m)  “National Incident Management System” or “NIMS” means the system mandated by 70 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5 (HSPD 5) issued on February 28, 2003, that 71 
provides a consistent nationwide approach for federal, state, local, and tribal governments 72 
to work effectively and efficiently together to prepare for, prevent, respond to, and recover 73 
from domestic incidents, regardless of cause, size, or complexity. 74 
(n)  “Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee” means the committee that assists the 75 
Director in the implementation of this law. 76 
(o(n)  “Proclaim” means to announce officially and publicly. 77 
(po)  “Public Health Emergency” means the occurrence or imminent threat of an illness 78 
or health condition which: 79 

(1)  is a quarantinable disease, or is believed to be caused by bioterrorism or a 80 
biological agent; and 81 
(2)  poses a high probability of any of the following: 82 

(A)  a large number of deaths or serious or long-term disability among 83 

21 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 3 

humans; or 84 
(B)  widespread exposure to a biological, chemical, or radiological agent 85 
that creates a significant risk of substantial future harm to a large number of 86 
people. 87 

(qp)  “Quarantine” means the limitation of freedom of movement of persons or animals 88 
that have been exposed to a communicable disease or chemical, biological, or radiological 89 
agent, for a period of time equal to the longest usual incubation period of the disease or 90 
until there is no risk of spreading the chemical, biological, or radiological agent.  The 91 
limitation of movement shall be in such manner as to prevent the spread of a communicable 92 
disease or chemical, biological, or radiological agent. 93 
(rq) “Reservation” means all land within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation of the 94 
Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and 95 
any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 96 
(sr)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary, which is the 97 
judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-01-98 
07-13-B, and then later authorized to administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities 99 
of the Nation by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-03-19-17-A. 100 
(ts)  “Vital resources” means food, water, equipment, sand, wood, or other materials 101 
obtained for the protection of life, property, and/or the environment during a proclaimed 102 
emergency. 103 

 104 
302.4.  Emergency Management Department 105 
302.4-1. The Emergency Management Department shall be responsible for planning and 106 
coordinating the response to a disaster or emergency that occurs within the boundaries of the 107 
Reservation. 108 
302.4-2.  Authority of the Director.  The Director shall be responsible for coordinating and 109 
planning the operational response to an emergency and is hereby empowered to: 110 

(a)  organize and coordinate efforts of the emergency management network of the Nation; 111 
(b)  implement the Emergency Response Plan as adopted by the Oneida Business 112 
Committee; 113 
(c)  facilitate coordination and cooperation between entities and resolve questions that may 114 
arise among them; 115 
(d)  incorporate the HSPD 5 which requires all federal, state, local, and tribal governments 116 
to administer the best practices contained in the NIMS; 117 
(e)  coordinate the development and implementation of the NIMS within the Nation; 118 
(f)  ensure that the following occurs: 119 

(1)  an Emergency Response Plan is developed and maintained, and includes 120 
training provisions for applicable personnel; 121 
(2)  emergency resources, equipment, and communications systems are developed, 122 
procured, supplied, inventoried, and accounted for; 123 

(g)  establish the line of authority as recorded in the Emergency Response Plan as adopted 124 
by the Oneida Business Committee; and  125 
(h) enter into mutual aid and service agreements with tribal, local, state, and federal 126 
governments, subject to Oneida Business Committee approval. 127 

302.4-3.  Action when an Emergency is Proclaimed. In addition, in the event of a proclamation of 128 
an emergency on the Reservation, the Director is hereby empowered: 129 

22 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 4 

(a)  to obtain vital resources and to bind the Nation for the fair market value thereof, upon 130 
approval of the Emergency Management purchasing agent, who is identified in the 131 
Emergency Response Plan.  If a person or business refuses to provide the resource(s) 132 
required, the Director may commandeer resources for public use and bind the Nation for 133 
the fair market value thereof.  In the event the purchasing agent is unavailable, the chain of 134 
command, as approved by the Oneida Business Committee, shall be followed. 135 
(b)  to require emergency activities of as many members of the Nation and/or employees 136 
as deemed necessary. 137 
(c)  to execute all of the ordinary powers of the Director, all of the special powers conferred 138 
by this law or by resolution adopted pursuant thereto, all powers conferred on the Director 139 
by any agreement approved by the Oneida Business Committee, and to exercise complete 140 
emergency authority over the Reservation. 141 
(d)  to coordinate with tribal, federal, state, and local authorities. 142 

 143 
302.5.  Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee Management Operations Team 144 
302.5-1.  The Oneida Nation Establishment and Composition.  There is hereby established an 145 
Emergency Planning CommitteeManagement Operations Team which shall consist of 146 
representatives from entities and a community representative of the Nation as identified in the 147 
Oneida Nation Emergency Planning Committee bylaws as approved by the Oneida Business 148 
Committee.Director.  149 
302.5-2.  Purpose.  The Oneida Nation Emergency Planning CommitteeManagement Operations 150 
Team shall meet as necessary to, as determined by the Director, for the following purposes: 151 

(a)  assist the Director in drafting and maintaining the Emergency Response Plan.; and 152 
(b)  assist the Director in 302.5-3.  At the request of the Director, the Oneida Nation 153 
Emergency Planning Committee shall provide assistance to the Director in the 154 
implementation of the provisions of this law or any plan issued thereunder. 155 

302.5-3.  Expectations.  Members of the Emergency Management Operations Team shall attend 156 
meetings, or send a designee in their absence, and comply with any training requirements set forth 157 
by the Director. 158 
 159 
302.6.  Entity Cooperation 160 
302.6-1.  All entities shall comply with reasonable requests from the Director relating to 161 
emergency planning, emergency operations, and federal mandate compliance. 162 
302.6-2.  The Nation may implement more strict policies or requirements than those issued by the 163 
Community/Public Health Officer. 164 
 165 
302.7.  Public Health Emergencies 166 
302.7-1.  In order to prevent a public health emergency, the Director and the Community/Public 167 
Health Officer shall take action to limit the spread of any communicable disease, in accordance 168 
with this law. 169 
302.7-2.  Investigation of Communicable Disease.  If the Community/Public Health Officer 170 
suspects or is informed of the existence of any communicable disease, the Community/Public 171 
Health Officer shall investigate and make or cause examinations to be made, as are deemed 172 
necessary. 173 
302.7-3.  Quarantinable Diseases.  The Community/Public Health Officer shall provide a list of 174 
quarantinable diseases specified in a resolution to be adopted by the Oneida Business Committee. 175 

23 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 5 

302.7-4.  Authority of the Community/Public Health Officer. The Community/Public Health 176 
Officer shall act as necessary to protect the public including, but not limited to, the following 177 
actions: 178 

(a)  Request the Director to take the necessary steps to have a public health emergency 179 
proclaimed; 180 
(b) Quarantine, isolate, or take other communicable disease control measures upon an 181 
individual(s); and  182 
(c)  Issue any mandate, order, and/or require restrictions which may limit the spread of any 183 
communicable disease to any individual, business, or the general population of the 184 
Reservation. 185 

302.7-5.  Quarantine and Isolation.  The Community/Public Health Officer shall immediately 186 
quarantine, isolate, and/or take other communicable disease control measures upon an individual 187 
if the Community/Public Health Officer receives a diagnostic report from a physician or a written 188 
or verbal notification from an individual or his or her parent or caretaker that gives the 189 
Community/Public Health Officer a reasonable belief that the individual has a communicable 190 
disease that is likely to cause a public health emergency. 191 

(a)  If an individual is infected with a communicable disease and the Community/Public 192 
Health Officer determines it is necessary to limit contact with the individual, all persons 193 
may be forbidden from being in direct contact with the infected individual, except for those 194 
persons having a special written permit from the Community/Public Health Officer. 195 
(b)  Any individual, including an authorized individual, who enters an isolation or 196 
quarantine premises may be subject to isolation or quarantine under this law. 197 
(c)  When the Community/Public Health Officer deems it necessary that an individual be 198 
quarantined, isolated, or otherwise restricted in a separate place, the Community/Public 199 
Health Officer shall have that individual removed to such a designated place, if it can be 200 
done without danger to the individual’s health. 201 

302.7-6.  Action when a Public Health Emergency is Proclaimed.  In addition, when a public health 202 
emergency is proclaimed, the Community/Public Health Officer may do all of the following, as 203 
necessary: 204 

(a)  organize the vaccination of individuals; 205 
(1)  The following types of individuals shall not be subject to a vaccination: 206 

(A)  an individual who the vaccination is reasonably likely to lead to serious 207 
harm to the individual; and 208 
(B)  an individual, for reason of religion or conscience, refuses to obtain the 209 
vaccination. 210 

(b)  isolate or quarantine individuals, including those who are unable or unwilling to receive 211 
a vaccination; and 212 
(c)  prevent any individual, except for those individuals authorized by the 213 
Community/Public Health Officer, from entering an isolation or quarantine premises. 214 

302.7-7. The Oneida Police Department shall take enforcement action when necessary and work 215 
with the Community/Public Health Officer to execute the Community/Public Health Officer’s 216 
orders and properly guard any place if quarantine, isolation, or other restrictions on communicable 217 
disease are violated or intent to violate becomes apparent. 218 
302.7-8.  Expenses for necessary medical care, food, and other articles needed for an infected 219 
individual shall be charged against the individual or whoever is liable for the individual’s care and 220 
support.   221 

24 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 6 

 222 
302.8.  Proclamation of an Emergency 223 
302.8-1.  Proclamation of an Emergency.  The Oneida Business Committee shall be responsible 224 
for proclaiming or ratifying the existence of an emergency and for requesting a gubernatorial or 225 
presidential declaration. 226 

(a)  The Director may request that the Oneida Business Committee proclaim the existence 227 
of an emergency. The Oneida Business Committee may proclaim the existence of an 228 
emergency without a request from the Director, if warranted. 229 
(b)  In the event the Oneida Business Committee is unable to proclaim or ratify the 230 
existence of an emergency, the Director may proclaim an emergency which shall be in 231 
effect until such time the Oneida Business Committee can officially ratify this declaration.  232 

302.8-2.  No proclamation of an emergency by the Oneida Business Committee or the Director 233 
may last for longer than sixty (60) days, unless the proclamation of emergency is extended by the 234 
Oneida Business Committee.  235 
302.8-3.  Management Network.  The emergency management network of the Reservation shall 236 
be as specified in the Emergency Response Plan, as adopted by the Oneida Business Committee. 237 
302.8-4.  Emergency Briefings.  Within forty-eight (48) hours of an emergency, the Director shall 238 
prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an emergency briefing 239 
to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee regarding the status of the emergency, actions 240 
taken to address the emergency, and the activation of the Emergency Response Plan. The Oneida 241 
Business Committee may direct the Director to provide additional emergency briefings. 242 
302.8-5.After-Action  Preliminary Emergency Assessment Report.  After an emergency has 243 
subsided, the Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to 244 
prepare, an after-actiona preliminary emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida 245 
Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public. This report shall be presented to the 246 
required parties no later than sixty (60thirty (30) days after the emergency has subsided, unless an 247 
extension is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. 248 
302.8-6.  After-Action Report.  After an emergency has subsided, the Director shall prepare, or 249 
shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an after-action report to be 250 
presented to the Oneida Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public. This report 251 
shall be presented to the required parties no later than ninety (90) days after the emergency has 252 
subsided, unless an extension is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. 253 
302.8-7.302.8-5.  During a proclaimed emergency, the Conservation Department shall be 254 
responsible for the care, disposal, and sheltering of all abandoned domestic animals and livestock. 255 
The Conservation Department may delegate this responsibility to a contracted agency.  256 
 257 
302.9.  Emergency Core Decision Making Team 258 
302.9-1.  Emergency Core Decision Making Team.  Upon the proclamation of an emergency under 259 
this law, the Oneida Business Committee may establish an Emergency Core Decision Making 260 
Team through the adoption of a motion. The motion shall identify the positions of the Nation which 261 
shall make up the members of the Emergency Core Decision Making Team based on the type and 262 
severity of emergency the Nation is experiencing. 263 
302.9-2.  Delegation of Authority. The Emergency Core Decision Making Team shall have 264 
emergency authority to take the following actions: 265 

(a) Notwithstanding any requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act, declare 266 
exceptions to the Nation’s laws during the emergency period which will be of immediate 267 

25 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 7 

impact for the purposes of protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of the Nation’s 268 
community, members, and employees; and 269 
(b) Notwithstanding any requirements in any policy, procedure, regulation, or standard 270 
operating procedures, declare exceptions to any policy, procedure, regulation, or standard 271 
operating procedure during the emergency period which will be of immediate impact for 272 
the purposes of protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of the Nation’s 273 
community, members, and employees. 274 

302.9-3.  Declarations.  All declarations made by the Emergency Core Decision Making Team 275 
shall: 276 

(a)  be written on the Nation’s letterhead; 277 
(b)  provide the date the declaration was issued;  278 
(c)  contain a clear statement of the directives; 279 
(d)  provide the date the directive shall go into effect; 280 
(e) be signed by the Oneida Business Committee Chairperson, or Vice Chairperson in the 281 
Chairperson’s absence; and  282 
(f)  be posted on the Nation’s website. 283 

302.9-4.  Duration of Authority for Exceptions Declared by the Emergency Core Decision Making 284 
Team.  Any declaration made under the authority granted in this section shall be effective upon 285 
the date declared by the Emergency Core Decision Making Team and shall be effective for the 286 
duration of any proclaimed emergency, or for a shorter time period if identified.  287 
302.9-5.  Notification to the Oneida Business Committee. Within twenty-four (24) hours of a 288 
declaration being made, the Emergency Core Decision Making Team shall provide notification of 289 
the declaration to the Oneida Business Committee.  290 
302.9-6.  The Oneida Business Committee may modify, extend, or repeal any declaration or 291 
emergency action taken by the Emergency Core Decision Making Team.  292 
 293 
302.10.  Enforcement and Penalties 294 
302.10-1.  It shall be a violation of this law for any person to not comply with or willfully obstruct, 295 
hinder, or delay the implementation or enforcement of the provisions of this law or any plan issued 296 
thereunder, whether or not an emergency has been proclaimed. 297 
302.10-2.  Citations.  An Oneida Police Department officer may issue a citation to any person who 298 
violates a provision of this law. 299 

(a)  A citation for a violation of this law shall be processed in accordance with the procedure 300 
contained in the Nation’s laws and policies governing citations. 301 
(b)  The Oneida Business Committee shall adopt through resolution a citation schedule 302 
which sets forth specific fine amounts for violations of this law. 303 
(c)  The Trial Court shall have jurisdiction over any action brought under this law. 304 

302.10-3.  Disciplinary Action.  An employee of the Nation who violates this law during their work 305 
hours or who refuses to follow the Emergency Response Plan may be subject to disciplinary action 306 
in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment. 307 

(a)  An employee of the Nation who is disciplined under this law may appeal the 308 
disciplinary action in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing 309 
employment.  310 

 311 
End. 312 
 313 

26 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 8 

Adopted - BC-07-15-98-A 314 
Amended - BC-12-20-06-G 315 
Emergency Amended – BC-04-30-09-A (Influenza A (H1N1)) 316 
Amended - BC-05-13-09-F 317 
Emergency Amended – BC-03-17-20-E (COVID-19) 318 
Extension of Emergency – BC-08-26-20-A 319 
Amended – BC-03-10-21-A 320 
Emergency Amended – BC-09-14-22-B 321 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 322 

27 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 1 

Title 3. Health and Public Safety – Chapter 302 
Yotlihokt# Olihw@=ke 

Matters that are concerning immediate attention 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT  

 
302.1.  Purpose and Policy 
302.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Conflicts 
302.3.  Definitions 
302.4.  Emergency Management Department 
302.5.  Emergency Management Operations Team  

302.6.  Entity Cooperation 
302.7.  Public Health Emergencies 
302.8.  Proclamation of an Emergency 
302.9.  Emergency Core Decision Making Team 
302.10. Enforcement and Penalties

 1 
 2 

302.1.  Purpose and Policy 3 
302.1-1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this law is to: 4 

(a)  provide for the development and execution of plans for the protection of residents, 5 
property, and the environment in an emergency or disaster;  6 
(b)  provide for the direction of emergency management, response, and recovery on the 7 
Reservation; as well as coordination with other agencies, victims, businesses, and 8 
organizations;  9 
(c)  establish the use of the National Incident Management System (NIMS); and 10 
(d)  designate authority and responsibilities for public health preparedness. 11 

302.1-2.  Policy.  It is the policy of the Nation to provide: 12 
(a)  a description of the emergency management network of the Nation;  13 
(b)  authorization for specialized activities to mitigate hazardous conditions and for the 14 
preparation of the Nation’s emergency response plans, as well as to address concerns 15 
related to isolation and/or quarantine orders, emergency care, and mutual aid; and 16 
(c)  for all expenditures made in connection with such emergency management activities 17 
to be deemed specifically for the protection and benefit of the inhabitants, property, and 18 
environment of the Reservation. 19 

 20 
302.2.  Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 21 
302.2-1.  This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-07-15-98-A, 22 
amended by resolution BC-12-20-06-G, BC-05-13-09-F, BC-03-10-21-A, and BC-__-__-__-__. 23 
302.2-2.  This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Committee or General 24 
Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act.  25 
302.2-3.  Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 26 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 27 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 28 
302.2-4.  In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 29 
the provisions of this law shall control.   30 
302.2-5.  This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 31 
 32 
302.3.  Definitions 33 
302.3-1.   This section shall govern the definitions of words or phrases as used within this law.  34 
All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 35 

(a)  “Biological agent” means an infectious disease or toxin that has the ability to adversely 36 
affect human health in a variety of ways, from mild allergic reactions to serious medical 37 
conditions, and including death. 38 

28 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 2 

(b)  “Communicable disease” means any disease transmitted from one person or animal to 39 
another directly by contact with excreta or other discharges from the body, or indirectly via 40 
substances or inanimate objects that may cause a public health emergency. 41 
(c) “Community/Public Health Officer” means an agent of the Comprehensive Health 42 
Division, or his or her designee(s), who is responsible for taking the appropriate actions in 43 
order to prevent a public health emergency from occurring on the Reservation. 44 
(d)  “Comprehensive Health Division” means the Oneida Comprehensive Health Division, 45 
which is authorized to issue compulsory vaccinations, require isolation, and quarantine 46 
individuals in order to protect the public health. 47 
(e)  “Director” means the Director of the Nation’s Emergency Management Department. 48 
(f)  “Emergency” means a situation that poses an immediate risk to health, life, safety, 49 
property, or environment which requires urgent intervention to prevent further illness, 50 
injury, death, or other worsening of the situation. 51 
(g)  “Emergency Management Network” means the entities, volunteers, consultants, 52 
contractors, outside agencies, and any other resources the Nation may use to facilitate inter-53 
agency collaboration, identify and share resources, and better prepare for local incidents 54 
and large-scale disasters. 55 
(h)  “Emergency Response Plan” means the plan established to coordinate mitigation, 56 
preparedness, response, and recovery activities for all emergency or disaster situations 57 
within the Reservation. 58 
(i)  “Entity” means any agency, board, committee, commission, or department of the 59 
Nation. 60 
(j)  “Fair Market Value” means the everyday cost of a product in an ordinary market, 61 
absent of a disaster. 62 
(k)  “Isolation” means the separation of persons or animals presumably or actually infected 63 
with a communicable disease, or that are disease carriers, for the usual period of 64 
communicability of that disease in such places and under such conditions as will prevent 65 
the direct or indirect transmission of an infectious agent to susceptible people or to those 66 
who may spread the agent to others. 67 
(l)  “Nation” means the Oneida Nation. 68 
(m)  “National Incident Management System” or “NIMS” means the system mandated by 69 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5 (HSPD 5) issued on February 28, 2003, that 70 
provides a consistent nationwide approach for federal, state, local, and tribal governments 71 
to work effectively and efficiently together to prepare for, prevent, respond to, and recover 72 
from domestic incidents, regardless of cause, size, or complexity. 73 
(n)  “Proclaim” means to announce officially and publicly. 74 
(o)  “Public Health Emergency” means the occurrence or imminent threat of an illness or 75 
health condition which: 76 

(1)  is a quarantinable disease, or is believed to be caused by bioterrorism or a 77 
biological agent; and 78 
(2)  poses a high probability of any of the following: 79 

(A)  a large number of deaths or serious or long-term disability among 80 
humans; or 81 
(B)  widespread exposure to a biological, chemical, or radiological agent 82 
that creates a significant risk of substantial future harm to a large number of 83 

29 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 3 

people. 84 
(p)  “Quarantine” means the limitation of freedom of movement of persons or animals that 85 
have been exposed to a communicable disease or chemical, biological, or radiological 86 
agent, for a period of time equal to the longest usual incubation period of the disease or 87 
until there is no risk of spreading the chemical, biological, or radiological agent.  The 88 
limitation of movement shall be in such manner as to prevent the spread of a communicable 89 
disease or chemical, biological, or radiological agent. 90 
(q)  “Reservation” means all land within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation of the 91 
Oneida Nation, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and 92 
any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law. 93 
(r)  “Trial Court” means the Trial Court of the Oneida Nation Judiciary, which is the 94 
judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-01-95 
07-13-B, and then later authorized to administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities 96 
of the Nation by Oneida General Tribal Council resolution GTC-03-19-17-A. 97 
(s)  “Vital resources” means food, water, equipment, sand, wood, or other materials 98 
obtained for the protection of life, property, and/or the environment during a proclaimed 99 
emergency. 100 

 101 
302.4.  Emergency Management Department 102 
302.4-1. The Emergency Management Department shall be responsible for planning and 103 
coordinating the response to a disaster or emergency that occurs within the boundaries of the 104 
Reservation. 105 
302.4-2.  Authority of the Director.  The Director shall be responsible for coordinating and 106 
planning the operational response to an emergency and is hereby empowered to: 107 

(a)  organize and coordinate efforts of the emergency management network of the Nation; 108 
(b)  implement the Emergency Response Plan as adopted by the Oneida Business 109 
Committee; 110 
(c)  facilitate coordination and cooperation between entities and resolve questions that may 111 
arise among them; 112 
(d)  incorporate the HSPD 5 which requires all federal, state, local, and tribal governments 113 
to administer the best practices contained in the NIMS; 114 
(e)  coordinate the development and implementation of the NIMS within the Nation; 115 
(f)  ensure that the following occurs: 116 

(1)  an Emergency Response Plan is developed and maintained, and includes 117 
training provisions for applicable personnel; 118 
(2)  emergency resources, equipment, and communications systems are developed, 119 
procured, supplied, inventoried, and accounted for; 120 

(g)  establish the line of authority as recorded in the Emergency Response Plan as adopted 121 
by the Oneida Business Committee; and  122 
(h) enter into mutual aid and service agreements with tribal, local, state, and federal 123 
governments, subject to Oneida Business Committee approval. 124 

302.4-3.  Action when an Emergency is Proclaimed. In addition, in the event of a proclamation of 125 
an emergency on the Reservation, the Director is hereby empowered: 126 

(a)  to obtain vital resources and to bind the Nation for the fair market value thereof, upon 127 
approval of the Emergency Management purchasing agent, who is identified in the 128 
Emergency Response Plan.  If a person or business refuses to provide the resource(s) 129 

30 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 4 

required, the Director may commandeer resources for public use and bind the Nation for 130 
the fair market value thereof.  In the event the purchasing agent is unavailable, the chain of 131 
command, as approved by the Oneida Business Committee, shall be followed. 132 
(b)  to require emergency activities of as many members of the Nation and/or employees 133 
as deemed necessary. 134 
(c)  to execute all of the ordinary powers of the Director, all of the special powers conferred 135 
by this law or by resolution adopted pursuant thereto, all powers conferred on the Director 136 
by any agreement approved by the Oneida Business Committee, and to exercise complete 137 
emergency authority over the Reservation. 138 
(d)  to coordinate with tribal, federal, state, and local authorities. 139 

 140 
302.5.  Emergency Management Operations Team 141 
302.5-1.  Establishment and Composition.  There is hereby established an Emergency Management 142 
Operations Team which shall consist of representatives from entities of the Nation as identified by 143 
the Director.  144 
302.5-2.  Purpose.  The Emergency Management Operations Team shall meet as necessary, as 145 
determined by the Director, for the following purposes: 146 

(a)  assist the Director in drafting and maintaining the Emergency Response Plan; and 147 
(b)  assist the Director in the implementation of the provisions of this law or any plan issued 148 
thereunder. 149 

302.5-3.  Expectations.  Members of the Emergency Management Operations Team shall attend 150 
meetings, or send a designee in their absence, and comply with any training requirements set forth 151 
by the Director. 152 
 153 
302.6.  Entity Cooperation 154 
302.6-1.  All entities shall comply with reasonable requests from the Director relating to 155 
emergency planning, emergency operations, and federal mandate compliance. 156 
302.6-2.  The Nation may implement more strict policies or requirements than those issued by the 157 
Community/Public Health Officer. 158 
 159 
302.7.  Public Health Emergencies 160 
302.7-1.  In order to prevent a public health emergency, the Director and the Community/Public 161 
Health Officer shall take action to limit the spread of any communicable disease, in accordance 162 
with this law. 163 
302.7-2.  Investigation of Communicable Disease.  If the Community/Public Health Officer 164 
suspects or is informed of the existence of any communicable disease, the Community/Public 165 
Health Officer shall investigate and make or cause examinations to be made, as are deemed 166 
necessary. 167 
302.7-3.  Quarantinable Diseases.  The Community/Public Health Officer shall provide a list of 168 
quarantinable diseases specified in a resolution to be adopted by the Oneida Business Committee. 169 
302.7-4.  Authority of the Community/Public Health Officer. The Community/Public Health 170 
Officer shall act as necessary to protect the public including, but not limited to, the following 171 
actions: 172 

(a)  Request the Director to take the necessary steps to have a public health emergency 173 
proclaimed; 174 

31 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 5 

(b) Quarantine, isolate, or take other communicable disease control measures upon an 175 
individual(s); and  176 
(c)  Issue any mandate, order, and/or require restrictions which may limit the spread of any 177 
communicable disease to any individual, business, or the general population of the 178 
Reservation. 179 

302.7-5.  Quarantine and Isolation.  The Community/Public Health Officer shall immediately 180 
quarantine, isolate, and/or take other communicable disease control measures upon an individual 181 
if the Community/Public Health Officer receives a diagnostic report from a physician or a written 182 
or verbal notification from an individual or his or her parent or caretaker that gives the 183 
Community/Public Health Officer a reasonable belief that the individual has a communicable 184 
disease that is likely to cause a public health emergency. 185 

(a)  If an individual is infected with a communicable disease and the Community/Public 186 
Health Officer determines it is necessary to limit contact with the individual, all persons 187 
may be forbidden from being in direct contact with the infected individual, except for those 188 
persons having a special written permit from the Community/Public Health Officer. 189 
(b)  Any individual, including an authorized individual, who enters an isolation or 190 
quarantine premises may be subject to isolation or quarantine under this law. 191 
(c)  When the Community/Public Health Officer deems it necessary that an individual be 192 
quarantined, isolated, or otherwise restricted in a separate place, the Community/Public 193 
Health Officer shall have that individual removed to such a designated place, if it can be 194 
done without danger to the individual’s health. 195 

302.7-6.  Action when a Public Health Emergency is Proclaimed.  In addition, when a public health 196 
emergency is proclaimed, the Community/Public Health Officer may do all of the following, as 197 
necessary: 198 

(a)  organize the vaccination of individuals; 199 
(1)  The following types of individuals shall not be subject to a vaccination: 200 

(A)  an individual who the vaccination is reasonably likely to lead to serious 201 
harm to the individual; and 202 
(B)  an individual, for reason of religion or conscience, refuses to obtain the 203 
vaccination. 204 

(b)  isolate or quarantine individuals, including those who are unable or unwilling to receive 205 
a vaccination; and 206 
(c)  prevent any individual, except for those individuals authorized by the 207 
Community/Public Health Officer, from entering an isolation or quarantine premises. 208 

302.7-7. The Oneida Police Department shall take enforcement action when necessary and work 209 
with the Community/Public Health Officer to execute the Community/Public Health Officer’s 210 
orders and properly guard any place if quarantine, isolation, or other restrictions on communicable 211 
disease are violated or intent to violate becomes apparent. 212 
302.7-8.  Expenses for necessary medical care, food, and other articles needed for an infected 213 
individual shall be charged against the individual or whoever is liable for the individual’s care and 214 
support.   215 
 216 
302.8.  Proclamation of an Emergency 217 
302.8-1.  Proclamation of an Emergency.  The Oneida Business Committee shall be responsible 218 
for proclaiming or ratifying the existence of an emergency and for requesting a gubernatorial or 219 
presidential declaration. 220 

32 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 6 

(a)  The Director may request that the Oneida Business Committee proclaim the existence 221 
of an emergency. The Oneida Business Committee may proclaim the existence of an 222 
emergency without a request from the Director, if warranted. 223 
(b)  In the event the Oneida Business Committee is unable to proclaim or ratify the 224 
existence of an emergency, the Director may proclaim an emergency which shall be in 225 
effect until such time the Oneida Business Committee can officially ratify this declaration.  226 

302.8-2.  No proclamation of an emergency by the Oneida Business Committee or the Director 227 
may last for longer than sixty (60) days, unless the proclamation of emergency is extended by the 228 
Oneida Business Committee.  229 
302.8-3.  Management Network.  The emergency management network of the Reservation shall 230 
be as specified in the Emergency Response Plan, as adopted by the Oneida Business Committee. 231 
302.8-4.  Emergency Briefings.  Within forty-eight (48) hours of an emergency, the Director shall 232 
prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an emergency briefing 233 
to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee regarding the status of the emergency, actions 234 
taken to address the emergency, and the activation of the Emergency Response Plan. The Oneida 235 
Business Committee may direct the Director to provide additional emergency briefings. 236 
302.8-5.  Preliminary Emergency Assessment Report.  After an emergency has subsided, the 237 
Director shall prepare, or shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, a 238 
preliminary emergency assessment report to be presented to the Oneida Business Committee, any 239 
interested entity, and the public. This report shall be presented to the required parties no later than 240 
thirty (30) days after the emergency has subsided, unless an extension is granted by the Oneida 241 
Business Committee. 242 
302.8-6.  After-Action Report.  After an emergency has subsided, the Director shall prepare, or 243 
shall work in conjunction with the appropriate entity to prepare, an after-action report to be 244 
presented to the Oneida Business Committee, any interested entity, and the public. This report 245 
shall be presented to the required parties no later than ninety (90) days after the emergency has 246 
subsided, unless an extension is granted by the Oneida Business Committee. 247 
302.8-7.  During a proclaimed emergency, the Conservation Department shall be responsible for 248 
the care, disposal, and sheltering of all abandoned domestic animals and livestock. The 249 
Conservation Department may delegate this responsibility to a contracted agency.  250 
 251 
302.9.  Emergency Core Decision Making Team 252 
302.9-1.  Emergency Core Decision Making Team.  Upon the proclamation of an emergency under 253 
this law, the Oneida Business Committee may establish an Emergency Core Decision Making 254 
Team through the adoption of a motion. The motion shall identify the positions of the Nation which 255 
shall make up the members of the Emergency Core Decision Making Team based on the type and 256 
severity of emergency the Nation is experiencing. 257 
302.9-2.  Delegation of Authority. The Emergency Core Decision Making Team shall have 258 
emergency authority to take the following actions: 259 

(a) Notwithstanding any requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act, declare 260 
exceptions to the Nation’s laws during the emergency period which will be of immediate 261 
impact for the purposes of protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of the Nation’s 262 
community, members, and employees; and 263 
(b) Notwithstanding any requirements in any policy, procedure, regulation, or standard 264 
operating procedures, declare exceptions to any policy, procedure, regulation, or standard 265 
operating procedure during the emergency period which will be of immediate impact for 266 

33 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 7 

the purposes of protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of the Nation’s 267 
community, members, and employees. 268 

302.9-3.  Declarations.  All declarations made by the Emergency Core Decision Making Team 269 
shall: 270 

(a)  be written on the Nation’s letterhead; 271 
(b)  provide the date the declaration was issued;  272 
(c)  contain a clear statement of the directives; 273 
(d)  provide the date the directive shall go into effect; 274 
(e) be signed by the Oneida Business Committee Chairperson, or Vice Chairperson in the 275 
Chairperson’s absence; and  276 
(f)  be posted on the Nation’s website. 277 

302.9-4.  Duration of Authority for Exceptions Declared by the Emergency Core Decision Making 278 
Team.  Any declaration made under the authority granted in this section shall be effective upon 279 
the date declared by the Emergency Core Decision Making Team and shall be effective for the 280 
duration of any proclaimed emergency, or for a shorter time period if identified.  281 
302.9-5.  Notification to the Oneida Business Committee. Within twenty-four (24) hours of a 282 
declaration being made, the Emergency Core Decision Making Team shall provide notification of 283 
the declaration to the Oneida Business Committee.  284 
302.9-6.  The Oneida Business Committee may modify, extend, or repeal any declaration or 285 
emergency action taken by the Emergency Core Decision Making Team.  286 
 287 
302.10.  Enforcement and Penalties 288 
302.10-1.  It shall be a violation of this law for any person to not comply with or willfully obstruct, 289 
hinder, or delay the implementation or enforcement of the provisions of this law or any plan issued 290 
thereunder, whether or not an emergency has been proclaimed. 291 
302.10-2.  Citations.  An Oneida Police Department officer may issue a citation to any person who 292 
violates a provision of this law. 293 

(a)  A citation for a violation of this law shall be processed in accordance with the procedure 294 
contained in the Nation’s laws and policies governing citations. 295 
(b)  The Oneida Business Committee shall adopt through resolution a citation schedule 296 
which sets forth specific fine amounts for violations of this law. 297 
(c)  The Trial Court shall have jurisdiction over any action brought under this law. 298 

302.10-3.  Disciplinary Action.  An employee of the Nation who violates this law during their work 299 
hours or who refuses to follow the Emergency Response Plan may be subject to disciplinary action 300 
in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment. 301 

(a)  An employee of the Nation who is disciplined under this law may appeal the 302 
disciplinary action in accordance with the Nation’s laws and policies governing 303 
employment.  304 

 305 
End. 306 
 307 
Adopted - BC-07-15-98-A 308 
Amended - BC-12-20-06-G 309 
Emergency Amended – BC-04-30-09-A (Influenza A (H1N1)) 310 
Amended - BC-05-13-09-F 311 
Emergency Amended – BC-03-17-20-E (COVID-19) 312 
Extension of Emergency – BC-08-26-20-A 313 

34 of 400



Draft 1 for OBC Consideration 
2022 03 08 

3 O.C. 302 – Page 8 

Amended – BC-03-10-21-A 314 
Emergency Amended – BC-09-14-22-B 315 
Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 316 

35 of 400



 

P.O. Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155 
oneida-nsn.gov 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: David Jordan, LOC Chairman 
From: Keith Doxtator, CFO 
Date: February 7th, 2023 
RE: Emergency Management Law Amendments 
 

I. Estimated Fiscal Impact Summary: 
 

Law: Emergency Management 
 

Implementing Agency Emergency Management Department 

 
Estimated Time to 

Comply Upon adoption of the law 

Estimated Impact Current Fiscal Year Ten Year Estimate 
Total Estimated 

Fiscal Impact 
  

 
 

II. Background: 
The amendments to the Emergency Management law eliminates the Emergency 
Planning Committee and replaces it with an Emergency Management Operations 
Team. Additionally, these amendments detail Emergency Briefings and After-Action 
Reports assigning these responsibilities to the Director the of the Emergency 
Management Department. 

 
III. Methodology and Assumptions: 

A “Fiscal Impact Statement” means an estimate of the total identifiable fiscal year 
financial effects associated with legislation and includes startup costs, personnel, 
office costs, documentation costs, as well as an estimate of the amount of time 
necessary for an agency to comply with the Law after implementation.  
 
This fiscal impact statement will review only the impact of the amendments, not the 
law in its entirety. 

 
IV. Financial Impact: 

FINANCE ADMINISTRATION 
Fiscal Impact Statement 

 
 

36 of 400

r°'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 

Neither change presented, the Committee to Team, nor the reporting requirements 
present financial considerations. I have confirmed with the Emergency Management 
Director that no staff would need to be hired to fill out the Team, and that reporting 
requirements will fall wither current job duties. 

 
V. Recommendation: 

Finance Department can confirm these amendments do not produce a fiscal impact, 
and accordingly does not make a recommendation to adopt these amendments or 
not. We hope these disclosure help provide the Oneida Business Committee and 
General Tribal Council the information needed to render their decision. 

 

37 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

38 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



Page 1 of 1 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
March 1, 2023 

Election Law  
Emergency Amendments 

Submission Date: 2/15/23 Public Meeting: N/A 
LOC Sponsor:   Kirby Metoxen Emergency Enacted: N/A 

Summary:  On February 15, 2023, the Legislative Operating Committee received a request from the
Oneida Election Board to consider emergency amendments to the Election law to ensure the 2023 General 
Election can be conducted in an efficient and lawful manner. The Nation’s 2023 General Election is 
scheduled for July 15, 2023. The caucus for the 2023 General Election is scheduled for April 15, 2023. 
Section 102.10-2 of the Election Law requires that at least six (6) Election Board members sign the election 
totals on machine counted ballots. The Oneida Election Board provided that they do not have enough 
Oneida Election Board members to meet the requirement of section 102.10-2. The Oneida Election Board 
therefore made the request to amend the Election law on an emergency basis to reduce the number of 
Oneida Election Board members who are required to sign the election totals on machine counted ballots 
from six (6) to three (3). Then at the February 13, 2023, Oneida Election Board meeting the Election 
Board adopted a motion “that applicants do not turn in a petition with their application, and to request 
an emergency amendment to include that this request is due to the Public Health State of Emergency and 
due to the efficiency of the election process.” 

2/15/23 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Election law emergency amendments to the Active 
Files List with Kirby Metoxen as the sponsor; seconded by Marie Cornelius. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

Next Steps: 
 Approve the Election law emergency amendments adoption packet and forward to the Oneida

Business Committee for consideration.

39 of 400

"' =DODDOO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



40 of 400

TO: 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Onelda-nsn.gov 

~ 
(K}DOOO 

ONEIDA 

FROM: 
Oneida Business Committee (~~ l 
David P. Jordan, LOC Chairperson , \ • ~ 

DATE: March 8, 2023 
RE: Adoption of Emergency Amendments to the Election Law for the 2023 General 

Election 

Please find the following attached backup documentation for your consideration of an emergency 
amendments to the Election law: 

1. Resolution: Emergency Amendments to the Election Law for the 2023 General Election 
2. Statement of Effect: Emergency Amendment to the Election Law for the 2023 General 

Election 
3. Election law Emergency Amendments Legislative Analysis 
4. Election law Emergency Amendments Draft (Redline) 
5. Election law Emergency Amendments (Clean) 

Overview 

Emergency amendments to the Election law are being sought for the 2023 General Election. On 
February 15, 2023, the Legislative Operating Committee received a request from the Oneida 
Election Board to consider emergency amendments to the Election law to ensure the 2023 General 
Election can be conducted in an efficient and lawful manner. The Election law governs the 
procedures for the conduct of orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such 
as caucuses and nominations. [l O.C. 102.1-1]. The emergency amendments to the Election law 
will: 

■ Allow any eligible member of the Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot for an election 
by submitting an official application form to the Nation's Secretary or designated agent, 
instead of requiring an individual to petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten ( 10) 
signatures of qualified voters. [1 0. C. 102. 6-3 ]; and 

■ Reduce the number of Election Board members required to sign the election totals from six 
(6) to three (3). [l O.C. 102.10-2]. 

The Oneida Business Committee can temporarily enact legislation when legislation is necessary 
for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare of the Reservation 
population, and the amendment of the legislation is required sooner than would be possible under 
the Legislative Procedures Act. [l O.C. 109.9-5}. A fiscal impact statement and public meeting 
are not required for emergency legislation. [l 0. C. 109. 9-5 (a)]. 

The emergency amendments to the Election law are necessary for the preservation of the general 
welfare of the Reservation population to ensure that the 2023 General Election can occur in an 
efficient and lawful manner. The 2023 General Election is scheduled for July 15, 2023. The caucus 
for the 2023 General Election is scheduled for April 15, 2023. Allowing an eligible member of the 

Page 1 of 2 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



41 of 400

Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot for an election instead of requiring a person to petition 
to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten (10) signatures of qualified voters creates a more 
efficient and expedient application process, and eliminates the burden of public health and safety 
concerns as a result of a heightened cold, flu, and COVID-19 season. Additionally, the number of 
Election Board members required to sign the election totals is being reduced from six ( 6) to three 
(3) due to the Election Board's concern that there will not be enough Election Board members to 
meet the original requirement for six (6) members. The Election Board has provided that 
applications for the alternate positions have not yet been received, and although the Election Board 
will be reaching out to the people that were alternates for the 2022 Special Election, there are 
tentatively three (3) Election Board members that will have recuse themselves for the 2023 General 
Election. 

Additionally, observance of the requirements under the Legislative Procedures Act for the 
adoption of the amendments to the Election law would be contrary to public interest and the 
process and requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act cannot be completed in time to allow 
the proposed emergency amendments to be adopted and implemented prior to the April 15, 2023, 
caucus and the July 15, 2023, General Election. 

The adoption of the emergency amendments to the Election law will take effect immediately upon 
adoption by the Oneida Business Committee. The emergency amendments to the Election law will 
remain effective for six (6) months. The Legislative Procedures Act provides the possibility to 
extend the emergency amendment for an additional six (6) months, or until the emergency 
amendment expires or is permanently adopted. [l O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 

Requested Action 
Adopt the Resolution: Emergency Amendments to the Election Law for the 2023 General Election 

Page 2 of 2 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Phone: (920)869-2214                                       Oneida, WI 54155 

Oneida Nation 
Post Office Box 365 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
BC Resolution # 

Emergency Amendments to the Election Law for the 2023 General Election 
 

WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe 1 
recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and 2 

 3 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and 4 
 5 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1, 6 

of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and 7 
 8 
WHEREAS,  the Election law (“the Law”) was adopted by the General Tribal Council on June 19, 1993 9 

for the purpose of governing the procedures for the conduct of orderly elections of the 10 
Nation, and was most recently amended by the General Tribal Council through resolution 11 
GTC-04-23-17-A; and 12 

 13 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Election Board has requested emergency amendments to the Election law to 14 

ensure the 2023 General Election and its pre-election activities can be conducted in an 15 
efficient and lawful manner; and 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, the 2023 General Election is scheduled for July 15, 2023, with a caucus date scheduled 18 

for April 15, 2023; and  19 
 20 
WHEREAS, as a result of the COVID-19 virus, in accordance with the authority granted to the OBC 21 

under the Emergency Management law, on March 12, 2020, Chairman Tehassi Hill signed 22 
a Declaration of Public Health State of Emergency which has since been extended to 23 
March 19, 2023, through BC-03-26-20-A, BC-05-06-20-A, BC-06-10-20-A, BC-07-08-20-24 
A, BC-08-06-20-A, BC-09-09-20-A, BC-10-08-20-A, BC-11-10-20-A, BC-12-09-20-D, BC-25 
01-07-21-A, BC-02-10-21-A, BC-03-10-21-D, and BC-05-12-21-A, BC-06-23-21-B, BC-07-26 
28-21-N, BC-09-22-21-A, BC-11-24-21-F, BC-01-12-22-B, BC-03-23-22-A, BC-05-11-22-27 
E, BC-07-13-22-F, BC-09-14-22-C,  and BC-10-26-22-H, and may be extended while the 28 
Nation continues dealing with the effects of the COVID-19 virus; and 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, section 102.6-3 of the Law provides that any eligible member of the Nation not nominated 31 

at the caucus is able to file a petition with no less than ten (10) signatures of qualified voters 32 
to be placed on an election ballot; and  33 

 34 
WHEREAS, the proposed emergency amendments to the Law will allow any eligible member of the 35 

Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot for an election by submitting an official application 36 
form to the Nation’s Secretary or designated agent, instead of requiring an individual to 37 
petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten (10) signatures of qualified voters; and  38 

 39 
WHEREAS, allowing an eligible member of the Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot for an election 40 

instead of requiring a person to petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten (10) 41 
signatures of qualified voters creates a more efficient and expedient application process, 42 
and eliminates the burden of public health and safety concerns as a result of a heightened 43 
cold, flu, and COVID-19 season; and 44 

42 of 400



BC Resolution _____________ 
Emergency Amendments to the Election Law for the 2023 General Election 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 45 
WHEREAS, section 102.10-2 of the Law requires that at least six (6) Oneida Election Board members 46 

sign the election totals of machine counted ballots, which shall include the tape signed by 47 
the members of the Nation before the polls were opened per section 102.9-3(a); and 48 

 49 
WHEREAS, the proposed emergency amendments to the Law will reduce the number of Election Board 50 

members required to sign the election totals from six (6) to three (3); and 51 
 52 
WHEREAS, reducing the number of Election Board members required to sign the election totals 53 

addresses the Election Board’s concerns that they will not have enough Oneida Election 54 
Board members to meet the requirement of section 102.10-2 of the Law; and 55 

 56 
WHEREAS, the Legislative Procedures Act authorizes the Oneida Business Committee to enact 57 

legislation on an emergency basis, to be in effect for a period of six (6) months, renewable 58 
for an additional six (6) months; and  59 

 60 
WHEREAS, emergency adoption of legislation is allowed when legislation is necessary for the 61 

immediate preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare of the Reservation 62 
population, and the amendment of the legislation is required sooner than would be possible 63 
under the Legislative Procedures Act; and 64 

 65 
WHEREAS, the emergency adoption of the amendments to the Law are necessary for the preservation 66 

of the general welfare of the Reservation population to ensure that the 2023 General 67 
Election can occur in an efficient and lawful manner in accordance with the requirements 68 
of the Election law; and  69 

 70 
WHEREAS, observance of the requirements under the Legislative Procedures Act for adoption of these 71 

amendments would be contrary to public interest and the process and requirements of the 72 
Legislative Procedures Act cannot be completed in time to allow the proposed 73 
amendments to be adopted and implemented prior to the April 15, 2023, caucus and the 74 
July 15, 2023 General Election; and 75 

 76 
WHEREAS, the Legislative Procedures Act does not require a public meeting or fiscal impact statement 77 

when considering emergency legislation; and 78 
 79 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Oneida Business Committee hereby adopts the emergency 80 
amendment to the Election Law effective immediately. 81 

43 of 400



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov   
 
 
 

Statement of Effect 
Emergency Amendments to the Election Law for the 2023 General Election 

 
Summary 

This resolution adopts emergency amendments to the Election law ensure the 2023 General 
Election and its pre-election activities can be conducted in an efficient and lawful manner. 
 
Submitted by: Clorissa N. Leeman, Senior Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office 
Date: February 16, 2023 
 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 
This resolution adopts emergency amendments to the Election law. The Election law governs the 
procedures for the conduct of orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such 
as caucuses and nominations. [1 O.C. 102.1-1]. The emergency amendments to the Election law 
will: 
 Allow any eligible member of the Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot for an election 

by submitting an official application form to the Nation’s Secretary or designated agent, 
instead of requiring an individual to petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten (10) 
signatures of qualified voters. [1 O.C. 102.6-3]; and 

 Reduce the number of Election Board members required to sign the election totals from six 
(6) to three (3). [1 O.C. 102.10-2]. 

The Legislative Procedures Act (“the LPA”) was adopted by the General Tribal Council for the 
purpose of providing a process for the adoption or amendment of laws of the Nation. [1 O.C. 
109.1-1]. The LPA allows the Oneida Business Committee to take emergency action where it is 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare of the 
Reservation population and when enactment or amendment of legislation is required sooner than 
would be possible under the LPA. [1 O.C. 109.9-5]. A public meeting and fiscal impact statement 
are not required for emergency legislation. [1 O.C. 109.8-1(b) and 109.9-5(a)]. 
 
The 2023 General Election is scheduled for July 15, 2023, with a caucus scheduled for April 15, 
2023. The Oneida Election Board requested emergency amendments to the Election law to ensure 
that the 2023 General Election can be conducted in an efficient and lawful manner.  
 
Section 102.6-3 of the Law provides that any eligible member of the Nation not nominated at the 
caucus is able to file a petition with no less than ten (10) signatures of qualified voters to be placed 
on an election ballot. Allowing an eligible member of the Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot 
for an election instead of requiring a person to petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten 
(10) signatures of qualified voters to create a more efficient and expedient application process, as 
well as eliminate the burden of public health and safety concerns as a result of a heightened cold, 
flu, and COVID-19 season. As a result of the COVID-19 virus, in accordance with the authority 
granted to the OBC under the Emergency Management law, on March 12, 2020, Chairman Tehassi 

44 of 400

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Hill signed a Declaration of Public Health State of Emergency which set into place the necessary 
authority, should action need to be taken, and allows the Oneida Nation to seek reimbursement of 
emergency management actions that may result in unexpected expenses. [3 O.C. 302.8-1]. The 
Public Health State of Emergency has since been extended to March 19, 2023, through BC-03-26-
20-A, BC-05-06-20-A, BC-06-10-20-A, BC-07-08-20-A, BC-08-06-20-A, BC-09-09-20-A, BC-
10-08-20-A, BC-11-10-20-A, BC-12-09-20-D, BC-01-07-21-A, BC-02-10-21-A, BC-03-10-21-
D, and BC-05-12-21-A, BC-06-23-21-B, BC-07-28-21-N, BC-09-22-21-A, BC-11-24-21-F, BC-
01-12-22-B, BC-03-23-22-A, BC-05-11-22-E, BC-07-13-22-F, BC-09-14-22-C, and BC-10-26-
22-H. [3 O.C. 302.8-2]. This Public Health State of Emergency may be extended while the Nation 
continues dealing with the effects of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
Section 102.10-2 of the Law requires that at least six (6) Oneida Election Board members sign the 
election totals of machine counted ballots, which shall include the tape signed by the members of 
the Nation before the polls were opened per section 102.9-3(a). The reduction of the number of 
Election Board members required to sign the election totals from six (6) to three (3) was made due 
to the Election Board’s concern that there will not be enough Election Board members to meet the 
original requirement for six (6) members.  
 
The resolution provides that the emergency amendment to the Election law is necessary for the 
preservation of the general welfare of the Reservation population to ensure that the 2023 General 
Election can occur in an efficient and lawful manner in accordance with the requirements of the 
Election law. Additionally, observance of the requirements under the LPA for the adoption of the 
amendment to the Election law would be contrary to public interest and the process and 
requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act cannot be completed in time to allow the proposed 
amendments to be adopted and implemented prior to the April 15, 2023, caucus and the July 15, 
2023 General Election. 
 
The adoption of the emergency amendment to the Election law will take effect immediately upon 
adoption by the Oneida Business Committee. The emergency amendment to the Election law will 
remain effective for six (6) months.  The LPA provides the possibility to extend the emergency 
amendment for an additional six (6) months, or until the emergency amendment expires or is 
permanently adopted. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)].  
 

Conclusion 
Adoption of this resolution would not conflict with any of the Nation’s laws. 

45 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



   Analysis to Emergency Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

   ELECTION LAW EMERGENCY AMENDMENTS  
LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS 

 
SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office 
Intent of the  
Proposed Amendments 

 Allow any eligible member of the Nation to apply to be placed on the 
ballot for an election by submitting an official application form to the 
Nation’s Secretary or designated agent, instead of requiring an 
individual to petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten (10) 
signatures of qualified voters. [1 O.C. 102.6-3]; and 

 Reduce the number of Election Board members required to sign the 
election totals of machine counted ballots from six (6) to three (3) 
members. [1 O.C. 102.10-2]. 

Purpose To govern the procedures for the conduct of orderly elections of the Nation, 
including pre-election activities such as caucuses and nominations. [1 O.C. 
102.1-1] 

Affected Entities  Oneida Nation Election Board. 
Public Meeting A public meeting is not required for emergency legislation. [1 O.C. 109.8-

1(b) and 109.9-5(a)].  
Fiscal Impact A fiscal impact statement is not required for emergency legislation. [1 O.C. 

109.9-5(a)].  
Expiration of Emergency 
Legislation 

Emergency legislation expires six (6) months after adoption and may be 
renewed for an additional six (6) month period. 

 
 
SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT 1 
A. Background.  The Election law was first adopted on June 19, 1993, and most recently amended by the 2 

General Tribal Council on April 23, 2017.  The Law governs the procedures for the conduct of orderly 3 
elections of the Nation. [1 O.C. 102.1-1].  4 

B. Request for Emergency Amendments.  On February 15, 2023, the Legislative Operating Committee 5 
received a request from the Oneida Election Board to consider emergency amendments to the Election 6 
law to ensure the 2023 General Election can be conducted in an efficient and lawful manner.  7 
 The Nation’s 2023 General Election is scheduled for July 15, 2023. The caucus for the 2023 8 

General Election is scheduled for April 15, 2023.  9 
 Section 102.10-2 of the Election Law requires that at least six (6) Election Board members sign the 10 

election totals on machine counted ballots. The Oneida Election Board provided that they do not 11 
have enough Oneida Election Board members to meet the requirement of section 102.10-2. The 12 
Oneida Election Board therefore made the request to amend the Election law on an emergency 13 
basis to reduce the number of Oneida Election Board members who are required to sign the election 14 
totals on machine counted ballots from six (6) to three (3). 15 

 Then at the February 13, 2023, Oneida Election Board meeting the Election Board adopted a motion 16 
“that applicants do not turn in a petition with their application, and to request an emergency 17 
amendment to include that this request is due to the Public Health State of Emergency and due to 18 
the efficiency of the election process.” 19 

46 of 400



   Analysis to Emergency Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 The Legislative Operating Committee determined these amendments should be pursued on an 20 
emergency basis for the immediate preservation of the general welfare of the Reservation 21 
population. 22 

 23 
SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH 24 
• Representatives from the following departments or entities participated in the development of this Law 25 

and legislative analysis:  26 
 Oneida Election Board. 27 

 28 
SECTION 4. PROCESS 29 
B. These amendments are being considered on an emergency basis. The Oneida Business Committee may 30 

temporarily enact an emergency legislation where legislation is necessary for the immediate 31 
preservation of public health, safety, or general welfare of the Reservation population and enactment 32 
or amendment of legislation is required sooner than would be possible under this law. [1 O.C. 109.9-33 
5].  34 
 The emergency adoption of amendments to this Law are necessary for the preservation of the 35 

general welfare of the Reservation population in order to ensure that the 2023 General Election can 36 
occur in an efficient and lawful manner. 37 

 Observance of the requirements under the Legislative Procedures Act for adoption of the 38 
emergency amendments to this Law would be contrary to public interest and the process and 39 
requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act cannot be completed in time to allow the proposed 40 
emergency amendments to be adopted and implemented prior to the April 15, 2023, caucus and the 41 
July 15, 2023, General Election. 42 

C. The emergency amendments will expire six (6) months after adoption, with one (1) opportunity for a 43 
six (6) month extension of the emergency amendments. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)].  44 

D. The Legislative Procedures Act does not require a public meeting or fiscal impact statement when 45 
considering emergency legislation. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. However, a public meeting and fiscal impact 46 
statement will eventually be required when considering permanent adoption of this Law.  47 

E. The Legislative Operating Committee added these emergency amendments to the Active Files List on 48 
February 15, 2023.   49 
 50 

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION  51 
A. Application Process to be Placed on Ballot.  In the currently effective version of the Law, any eligible 52 

member of the Nation may petition to be placed on a ballot. [1 O.C. 102.6-3]. Each petitioner not 53 
nominated at the caucus, or an individual nominated at the caucus but not present to accept the 54 
nomination, is required to file a petition form containing the signatures of at least ten (10) qualified 55 
voters as well as the endorsee’s printed name and address, date of birth, Oneida Nation enrollment 56 
number. A qualified voter is an enrolled member of the Nation who is eighteen (18) years of age or 57 
older. [1 O.C. 102.3-20]. The proposed amendments to the Law remove the requirement for an eligible 58 
member of the Nation to petition to be placed on the ballot and obtain signatures, and instead simply 59 
requires that in order to be placed on the ballot an eligible member submits an application form that 60 
consists of information that satisfies the minimum requirements for eligible candidates as described in 61 
section 102.5-2 of the Law. [1 O.C. 102.6-3(a)-(b)]. Obtaining signatures of qualified voters is no 62 

47 of 400



   Analysis to Emergency Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 3 of 4 
 

longer required. The requirement that applications be presented to the Nation’s Secretary, or designated 63 
agent, during normal business hours, 8:00 to 4:30 Monday through Friday, but no later than prior to 64 
close of business five (5) business days after the caucus remains the same as the current deadline for 65 
petitions. [1 O.C. 102.6-3(c)]. The location to drop-off petitions applications shall be identified in the 66 
mailing identifying the caucus date. Id. The proposed emergency amendments provide that the Nation’s 67 
Secretary is then responsible for forwarding all applications to the Election Board Chairperson the next 68 
business day following the close of application submissions, as is currently provided for in the Law for 69 
petitions.  [1 O.C. 102.6-3(d)]. 70 
 Effect.  The caucus for the 2023 General Election is scheduled for April 15, 2023. Allowing an 71 

eligible member of the Nation to apply to be placed on the ballot for an election instead of requiring 72 
a person to petition to be placed on the ballot by obtaining ten (10) signatures of qualified voters 73 
creates a more efficient and expedient application process, as well as eliminates the burden of public 74 
health and safety concerns as a result of a heightened cold, flu, and COVID-19 season. All 75 
applications to be placed on the ballot will be due to the Nation’s Secretary by Friday, April 21, 76 
2023.  77 

 As a result of the COVID-19 virus, in accordance with the authority granted to the OBC under the 78 
Emergency Management law, on March 12, 2020, Chairman Tehassi Hill signed a Declaration of 79 
Public Health State of Emergency which has since been extended to March 19, 2023, through BC-80 
03-26-20-A, BC-05-06-20-A, BC-06-10-20-A, BC-07-08-20-A, BC-08-06-20-A, BC-09-09-20-A, 81 
BC-10-08-20-A, BC-11-10-20-A, BC-12-09-20-D, BC-01-07-21-A, BC-02-10-21-A, BC-03-10-82 
21-D, and BC-05-12-21-A, BC-06-23-21-B, BC-07-28-21-N, BC-09-22-21-A, BC-11-24-21-F, 83 
BC-01-12-22-B, BC-03-23-22-A, BC-05-11-22-E, BC-07-13-22-F, BC-09-14-22-C,  and BC-10-84 
26-22-H, and may be extended while the Nation continues dealing with the effects of the COVID-85 
19 virus 86 

B. Election Board Members Signature on Machine Counted Ballots.  The proposed amendments lower 87 
the number of Oneida Election Board members that are required sign the election totals for machine 88 
counted ballots, which includes the tape signed by the members of the Nation before the polls were 89 
opened, from six (6) to three (3). [1 O.C. 102.10-2]. 90 
 Effect.  This emergency amendment was made to the Law based on the Election Board’s concern 91 

that there will not be enough Election Board members to meet the original requirement of section 92 
102.10-2 for six (6) members to sign the election totals. The Election Board has provided that 93 
applications for the alternate positions have not yet been received, and although the Election Board 94 
will be reaching out to the people that were alternates for the 2022 Special Election, there are 95 
tentatively three (3) Election Board members that will have recuse themselves for the 2023 General 96 
Election. 97 

 98 
SECTION 6. EXISTING LEGISLATION  99 
A. Related Legislation. The following laws of the Nation are related to the emergency amendments to this 100 

Law: 101 
 Legislative Procedures Act.  The Legislative Procedures Act was adopted by the General Tribal 102 

Council on January 7, 2013, for the purpose of providing a standard process for the adoption 103 
of laws of the Nation which includes taking into account comments from members of the 104 
Nation and input from agencies of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-1, 109.1-2]. 105 

48 of 400



   Analysis to Emergency Draft 1 
2023 03 08 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 The Legislative Procedures Act provides a process for the adoption of emergency 106 
legislation when the legislation is necessary for the immediate preservation of the 107 
public health, safety, or general welfare of the Reservation population and the 108 
enactment or amendment of legislation is required sooner than would be possible under 109 
this law. [1 O.C. 109.9-5]. 110 
 The Legislative Operating Committee is responsible for first reviewing the 111 

emergency legislation and for forwarding the legislation to the Oneida 112 
Business Committee for consideration. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 113 

 The proposed emergency legislation is required to have a legislative analysis 114 
completed and attached prior to being sent to the Oneida Business Committee 115 
for consideration. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 116 

a. A legislative analysis is a plain language analysis describing the 117 
important features of the legislation being considered and factual 118 
information to enable the Legislative Operating Committee to make 119 
informed decisions regarding legislation. A legislative analysis 120 
includes a statement of the legislation’s terms and substance; intent of 121 
the legislation; a description of the subject(s) involved, including any 122 
conflicts with Oneida or other law, key issues, potential impacts of the 123 
legislation and policy considerations. [1 O.C. 109.3-1(g)]. 124 

 Emergency legislation does not require a fiscal impact statement to be 125 
completed or a public comment period to be held. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(a)]. 126 

 Upon the determination that an emergency exists the Oneida Business 127 
Committee can adopt emergency legislation. The emergency legislation 128 
becomes effective immediately upon its approval by the Oneida Business 129 
Committee. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 130 

 Emergency legislation remains in effect for a period of up to six (6) months, 131 
with an opportunity for a one-time emergency law extension of up to six (6) 132 
months. [1 O.C. 109.9-5(b)]. 133 

 Adoption of these proposed emergency amendments would conform with the 134 
requirements of the Legislative Procedures Act. 135 
 136 

SECTION 7. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  137 
A. Deadline for Permanent Adoption of Legislation. The adoption of emergency amendments to the Law 138 

expires six (6) months after adoption. The emergency legislation may be renewed for an additional six 139 
(6) month period.  140 
 Conclusion: The Legislative Operating Committee will need to determine if the adoption of these 141 

amendments is necessary on a permanent basis, and if so, develop the permanent amendments to 142 
this Law within the next six (6) to twelve (12) months. 143 

B. Fiscal Impact. A fiscal impact statement is not required for emergency legislation.  144 
 Under the Legislative Procedures Act, a fiscal impact statement is required for all legislation except 145 

emergency legislation [1 O.C. 109.6-1]. 146 
 147 

49 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 1 

Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 102 
ELECTION 

On<yote>a=k@= Tho Ni= Y%t Tsi> <yethiyatal@ko Tsi> Kayanl^hsla 
People of the Standing Stone how it is we will appoint them the kind of laws we have 

 
102.1.   Purpose and Policy 
102.2.   Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
102.3.   Definitions 
102.4.   Election Board 
102.5.   Candidate Eligibility 
102.6.   Selection of Candidates 
102.7.   Notice of Polling Places 

102.8.   Registration of Voters 
102.9.   Election Process 
102.10. Tabulating and Securing Ballots 
102.11. Election Outcome and Ties 
102.12. Elections 
102.13. Oneida Nation Constitution and By-law Amendments 
  

 
102.1. Purpose and Policy 1 
102.1-1. It is the policy of the Nation that this law shall govern the procedures for the conduct of 2 
orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such as caucuses and nominations. 3 
Because of the desire for orderly and easily understood elections, there has not been an allowance 4 
made for write-in candidates on ballots. 5 
102.1-2. This law defines the duties and responsibilities of the Election Board members and other 6 
persons employed by the Oneida Nation in the conduct of elections.  It is intended to govern all 7 
procedures used in the election process. 8 
 9 
102.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 10 
102.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida General Tribal Council by resolution GTC 07-06-11 
98-A and, amended by resolutions GTC-01-04-10-A, BC-02-25-15-C and GTC-04-23-17-A., and 12 
emergency amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__.   13 
102.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to 14 
the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. Actions of the Election Board regarding 15 
amendments to this law and policies adopted regarding implementation of this law are to be 16 
presented to the Business Committee who shall then adopt or forward action(s) to the General 17 
Tribal Council for adoption. 18 
102.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 19 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 20 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 21 
102.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 22 
the provisions of this law shall control.   23 
102.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 24 
 25 
102.3. Definitions 26 
102.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 27 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 28 
102.3-2. “Alternate” shall mean an individual appointed by the Business Committee to serve on 29 
the Election Board during an election and until election results have been certified. 30 
102.3-3. “Applicant” shall mean a potential candidate who has not yet been officially approved for 31 
acceptance on a ballot. 32 
102.3-4. “Business day” shall mean Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., excluding 33 
holidays of the Nation. 34 
102.3-5. “Campaigning” shall mean all efforts designed to influence members of the Nation to 35 
support or reject a particular candidate of the Nation including, without limitation, advertising, 36 
rallying, public speaking, or other communications with members of the Nation. 37 

50 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 2 

102.3-6. “Candidate” shall mean a petitioner or nominee or applicant for an elected position whose 38 
name is placed on the ballot by the Election Board after successful application. 39 
102.3-7. “Clerk” shall mean the election official who identifies proper registration for the purpose 40 
of determining voter eligibility.   41 
102.3-8. “Close of business” shall mean 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. 42 
102.3-9.  “Conflict of Interest” shall mean any interest, whether it be personal, financial, political 43 
or otherwise, in which a Nation elected official, employee, consultant, appointed or elected, 44 
member of any board, committee or commission, or their immediate relatives, friends or 45 
associates, or any other person with whom they have contact, that conflicts with any right of the 46 
Nation to property, information, or any other right to own and operate its enterprises, free from 47 
undisclosed competition or other violation of such rights of the Oneida Nation, or as defined in 48 
any law or policy of the Nation. 49 
102.3-10. “Election” shall mean every primary and election. 50 
102.3-11. “General election” shall mean the election held every three (3) years in July to elect the 51 
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, and the five Council Members of the 52 
Business Committee and may include contests for elected boards, committees and commissions 53 
positions. 54 
102.3-12. “Judge” shall mean the election official who informs and advises the Chairperson of 55 
discrepancies, complaints and controversy regarding voter eligibility.   56 
102.3-13. “Judiciary” means the judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal 57 
Council resolution GTC-01-07-13-B to administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities of 58 
the Nation. 59 
102.3-14. “Lot drawing” shall mean the equal chance method used to select a candidate as the 60 
winner of an elected position, in the case of a tie between two (2) or more candidates. 61 
102.3-15. “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.  62 
102.3-16. “Nation’s newspaper” shall mean the Kalihwisaks, or any other newspaper operated by 63 
the Nation for the benefit of transmitting news to members of the Nation, which is designated by 64 
the Election Board as a source for election related news. 65 
102.3-17. “Oneida Police Officer” shall mean an enrolled member of the Oneida Nation who is a 66 
police officer on any police force.  67 
102.3-18. “Private property” shall mean any lot of land not owned by the Nation, a residential 68 
dwelling or a privately owned business within the boundaries of the Reservation. 69 
102.3-19.  “Prominent locations” shall mean the polling places, main doors of the Norbert Hill 70 
Center, main doors of the Oneida Community Library, Tsyunhehkwa Retail Store, the Oneida 71 
Community Health Center, the SEOTS building and all One-Stop locations. 72 
102.3-20. “Qualified voter” shall mean an enrolled member of the Nation who is eighteen (18) 73 
years of age or older. 74 
102.3-21. “Rejected Ballots” shall mean those ballots which are rejected by the vote tabulating 75 
machine. 76 
102.3-22. “Spoiled Ballot” shall mean a ballot which contains a voter error or is otherwise marred 77 
and is not tabulated. 78 
102.3-23. “Teller” shall mean the election official in charge of collecting and storing of all ballots. 79 
 80 
 81 
102.4. Election Board 82 

51 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 3 

Section A.  Establishment, Composition and Election 83 
102.4-1. An Election Board is hereby created for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this 84 
law and Article III, Sections 2 and 3 of the Oneida Nation Constitution. 85 
102.4-2. The Election Board shall consist of nine (9) elected members.  All members shall be 86 
elected to terms of three (3) years, not to exceed two (2) consecutive terms.   87 
102.4-3. Recusal. An Election Board member shall recuse himself/herself from participating as an 88 
Election Board member in any pre-election, election day, or post-election activities while he or 89 
she is an petitioner, applicant or candidate in any election or there is otherwise a conflict of interest. 90 
102.4-4. Removal. Removal of members shall be pursuant to the Oneida Removal Law.  A member 91 
who is removed from the Election Board shall be ineligible to serve on the Board for three (3) 92 
years from the time he or she is removed from the Election Board. 93 
102.4-5. Vacancies. Any vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled by appointment by the 94 
Business Committee for the balance of the unexpired term.  The filling of a vacancy may be timed 95 
to correspond with the pre-election activities and the needs of the Election Board.   96 
102.4-6.  The Election Board shall identify tellers, judges and clerks in advance of an election. 97 
102.4-7  The Business Committee may appoint or reappoint a sufficient number of alternates to 98 
the Election Board, as recommended by the Election Board, to assist with election day and pre-99 
election activities.   100 
102.4-8.  The Election Board shall choose a Chairperson from amongst themselves as set out in 101 
the By-laws of the Election Board, to preside over the meetings.  This selection shall be carried 102 
out at the first meeting of the Election Board following an election.  The Chairperson shall then 103 
ask the Election Board to select a Vice-Chairperson and Secretary. 104 
 105 
Section B.  Duties of the Election Board 106 
102.4-9. The Election Board shall have the following duties, along with other responsibilities listed 107 
throughout this law. 108 

(a)  The Election Board shall be in charge of all registration and election procedures; and 109 
(b)  Upon completion of an election, the Election Board shall make a final report on the 110 
election results as set out in this law. 111 

 112 
Section C.  Specific Duties of Officers and Election Board Members 113 
102.4-10. Specific duties of the Chairperson and other Election Board members, in addition to 114 
being present at all Election Board meetings and assisting the handicapped through the voting 115 
process, are as set out herein: 116 

(a) Chairperson: Shall preside over meetings of the Election Board; shall select the hearing 117 
body for applicants found to be ineligible in accordance with 102.5-6 in the event of an 118 
appeal; shall oversee the conduct of the election; shall dismiss the alternates and Trust 119 
Enrollment Department personnel when their election day duties are complete; and shall 120 
post and report election results. 121 
(b) Vice-Chairperson:  Shall preside over all meetings in the absence of the Chairperson. 122 
(c) Secretary:  Shall keep a record of the meetings and make them available to the Nation’s 123 
Secretary, other Election Board members and the public as required in the Open Records 124 
and Open Meetings Law. 125 
(d) Clerks:  Shall implement the requirements of identifying and registering all voters and 126 
determining voter eligibility.  Clerks shall work in conjunction with the Trust Enrollment 127 

52 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 4 

Department personnel in the registration process, and assist the Chairperson as directed in 128 
conducting the election.  Clerks cannot be currently employed by the Trust Enrollment 129 
Department. 130 
(e) Tellers:  Shall collect and keep safe all ballots, until the election is complete, as 131 
determined by this law.  Shall assist the Chairperson in conducting the election. 132 
(f) Judges:  Shall inform and advise the Chairperson of all aspects of the election conducted 133 
under this law.  In case of disputes among Election Board members, or between members 134 
of the Nation and Election Board members, or any controversy regarding voter eligibility, 135 
the Judge(s) shall assist the Chairperson in making a determination.  The Judge(s) shall 136 
also ensure that all ballots of voters whose eligibility may be in question, remain 137 
confidential. 138 

 139 
Section D.  Compensation Rates 140 
102.4-11.  Election Board members are to be compensated at an hourly rate when conducting 141 
elections as provided for in the Election Board’s bylaws as approved by the Business Committee.  142 
The Election Board shall have a budget, approved through the Nation’s budgeting process. 143 
102.4-12.  The Trust Enrollment Department personnel and Oneida Police Officer(s) shall be 144 
compensated at their regular rate of pay out of their respective budgets. 145 
 146 
102.5.  Candidate Eligibility 147 
Section A.  Requirements 148 
102.5-1.  In addition to any specific requirements and/or exceptions set out in duly adopted by-149 
laws or other documents, all applicants shall meet the minimum requirements set out in this section 150 
in order to become a candidate. 151 
102.5-2.  Minimum Requirements.  In order to be eligible to be a candidate, applicants shall: 152 

(a)  be an enrolled member of the Nation, as verified by membership rolls of the Nation. 153 
(b)  be a qualified voter on the day of the election. 154 
(c)  provide proof of physical residency as required for the position for which they have 155 
been nominated or for which they have petitionedapplied.  Proof of residency may be 156 
through one (1) or more of the following: 157 

(1)  a valid Wisconsin driver’s license; 158 
(2)  a bill or pay check stub showing name and physical address of the candidate 159 
from the prior or current month; 160 
(3)  another form of proof that identifies the candidate and that the candidate has 161 
physically resided at the address and identifies that address as the primary 162 
residence. 163 

102.5-3.  No applicant may have a conflict of interest with the position for which they are being 164 
considered, provided that any conflict of interest which may be eliminated within thirty (30) 165 
calendar days of being elected shall not be considered as a bar to nomination or election. 166 
102.5-4.  Applications and petitions where the applicant was not nominated during caucus shall be 167 
filed by presenting the information to the Nation’s Secretary, or designated agent, during normal 168 
business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday, within five (5) business days after 169 
the caucus.  No mailed, internal Nation mail delivery, faxed or other delivery method shall be 170 
accepted. 171 
102.5-5.   The names of the candidates and the positions sought shall be a public record and made 172 

53 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 5 

available to the public upon the determination of eligibility by the Election Board or the Board’s 173 
designated agent. 174 
 175 
Section B.  Eligibility Review 176 
102.5-6.  Applicants found to be ineligible shall have two (2) business days to request an appeal.  177 
At least four (4) Election Board members shall constitute a hearing body.  The Chairperson shall 178 
select the hearing body.  The hearing shall be held within two (2) business days of receipt of the 179 
appeal.  The applicant shall be notified by phone of time and place of the hearing.  The decision 180 
of the hearing body shall be sent via certified mail or hand delivery within two (2) business days 181 
of the hearing.  Any appeal from a decision of the Election Board hearing body shall be to the 182 
Judiciary on an accelerated schedule. 183 
102.5-7.  The Election Board shall be responsible for reviewing the qualifications of applicants to 184 
verify eligibility.  Any applicant found to be ineligible for a nominated or petitioned an applied for 185 
position shall be notified by certified mail return receipt requested.  The notice shall provide the 186 
following information: 187 

(a)  Position for which they were considered 188 
(b)  Qualification of the position and citation of the source.  (Copies of source may be 189 
attached.) 190 
(c)  A brief summary explaining why the applicant was found to be ineligible. 191 
(d) That the applicant has two (2) business days from notification to make an appeal.  192 
Appeals must be filed at the location designated on the notice by hand delivery.  The 193 
location designated shall be on the Reservation.  No mailed, internal Nation mail, faxed or 194 
other delivery method will be accepted. 195 

 196 
Section C.  Campaign Financing 197 
102.5-8.  Contributions: 198 

(a)  Solicitation of Contributions by Candidates. 199 
(1)  Candidates shall only accept contributions from individuals who are members 200 
of the Nation or individuals related by blood or marriage to the candidate.  201 
Candidates may not accept contributions from any business, whether sole 202 
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other business entity.  203 
(2)  Candidates shall not solicit or accept contributions in any office or 204 
business/facility of the Nation. 205 

(b)  Fines.  Violation of the contribution restrictions shall result in a fine imposed by the 206 
Election Board in an amount specified in a resolution adopted by the Business Committee. 207 

102.5-9.  Campaign Signs and Campaigning: 208 
(a)  Placement of campaign signs: 209 

(1)  Campaign signs shall not be posted or erected on any property of the Nation 210 
except for private property with the owner/tenant’s permission.  211 
(2)  No campaign sign shall exceed sixteen (16) square feet in area.  A maximum 212 
of seven (7) such signs may be placed on a building or on a lot. 213 
(3)  No campaign sign shall project beyond the property line into the public right 214 
of way. 215 

(b)  Removal of campaign signs.  All campaign signs shall be removed within five (5) 216 
business days after an election. 217 

54 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 6 

(c)  Employees of the Nation shall not engage in campaigning for offices of the Nation 218 
during work hours.  The Nation’s employees shall be subject to disciplinary action under 219 
the personnel policies and procedures for political campaigning during work hours. 220 
(d)  Enforcement.  The Zoning Administrator shall cause to be removed any campaign 221 
signs that are not in compliance with this law, in accordance with the Zoning and Shoreland 222 
Protection Law. 223 
(e)  Fines.  Violation of the campaign sign restrictions shall result in a fine imposed by the 224 
Election Board in an amount specified in a resolution adopted by the Business Committee. 225 

 226 
Section D.  Candidate Withdrawal 227 
102.5-10  Any candidate may withdraw his or her name from a ballot if submitted in writing by 228 
the candidate prior to submission of the ballot for printing to any Election Board member, 229 
excluding alternates. 230 
102.5-11  After printing of the ballot, any candidate may withdraw his or her name from the 231 
election by submitting in writing a statement indicating they are withdrawing from the election 232 
prior to the opening of the polls to any Election Board member, excluding alternates.  This 233 
statement shall be posted alongside any sample ballot printed prior to the election in the newspaper 234 
or any posting at the polling places. 235 
102.5-12.  Candidates withdrawing after opening of the polls shall request, in writing to the 236 
Election Board members in charge of the polling place, to be removed from the ballot.  The written 237 
statement shall be posted next to any posted sample ballot. 238 
102.5-13.  Candidates withdrawing by any method listed herein shall be denied any position from 239 
which they have withdrawn regardless of the number of votes cast for that candidate.  A written 240 
statement shall be considered the only necessary evidence of withdrawal and acceptance of denial 241 
of any position withdrawn from. 242 
102.5-14.  Candidate Withdrawal After Winning an Election. 243 

(a)  In the event a candidate declines an office after winning an election, the Election Board 244 
shall declare the next highest vote recipient the winner.  This procedure shall be repeated 245 
as necessary until a winner is declared. 246 
(b)  If all vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a 247 
Special Election shall be held. 248 

 249 
102.6.  Selection of Candidates 250 
Section A.  Setting of Caucus 251 
102.6-1.  The Election Board shall be responsible for calling a caucus before any election is held.  252 
The caucus for the general election shall be held at least ninety (90) calendar days prior to the 253 
election date.  Caucuses for other elections shall be held at least forty-five (45) calendar days prior 254 
to the election date.  In a general election year, caucuses shall be combined so that candidates for 255 
the Business Committee and elected boards, committees and commissions are nominated at the 256 
same caucus. 257 
102.6-2.  The procedures for the caucus shall be as follows: 258 

(a)  Candidates shall be nominated from the floor. 259 
(b)  Candidates present at the caucus will accept/decline their nomination at the caucus.  260 
Candidates nominated at the caucus, but not present to accept the nomination, shall be 261 
required to follow the petition application process. 262 

55 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 7 

(c)  Nominations shall consist of the following positions:  Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, 263 
Treasurer, Secretary, Council Member and other elected positions as required by by-laws 264 
or creating documents of a board, committee, or commission. 265 

 266 
Section B.  PetitionApplication 267 
102.6-3.  Any eligible member of the Nation may applypetition to be placed on a ballot according 268 
to the following procedures: 269 

(a)  Each petitioner, not nominated at caucus, shall file a petition containing endorsee’s 270 
original signatures; photocopies shall not be acceptedApplicants . 271 
(b)  Petitioners shall use an official petition application form as designated by this law 272 
which may be obtained in the Office of the Nation’s Secretary or from the mailing for 273 
that caucus. 274 
(cb)  The petition application form shall consist of each endorsee’s: 275 

(1)  printed name and address; 276 
(2)  date of birth; 277 
(3)  Oneida Nation Enrollment Number; and 278 
(4)  signature. 279 

(d)  Petitioners shall obtain not less than ten (10) signatures of qualified voters as 280 
defined under this lawinformation that satisfies the minimum requirements for eligible 281 
candidates. as described in section 102.5-2 of this law.. 282 
(ec)  Petitions Applications shall be presented to the Nation’s Secretary, or designated 283 
agent, during normal business hours, 8:00 to 4:30 Monday through Friday, but no later 284 
than prior to close of business five (5) business days after the caucus.  The location to 285 
drop-off petitions applications shall be identified in the mailing identifying the caucus 286 
date. 287 
(fd)  The Nation’s Secretary shall forward all petitions applications to the Election 288 
Board Chairperson the next business day following the close of petition application 289 
submissions.   290 
(g)  The Election Board shall have the Trust Enrollment Department verify all 291 
signatures contained on the petition. 292 

102.6-4.  A person who runs for a position on the Oneida Business Committee, or a position on a 293 
judicial court or commission, shall not run for more than one (1) elective office or seat per election. 294 
 295 
102.7.  Notice of Polling Places 296 
102.7-1.  The Election Board shall post a notice in the prominent locations, stating the location of 297 
the polling places and the time the polls will be open.  This notice shall also be posted in an easily 298 
visible position, close to the entrance of the Nation’s businesses/facilities. 299 
102.7-2.  Polling information shall be posted no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the 300 
election, and shall remain posted until the poll closes on the day of the election. 301 
102.7-3.  Except for a Special Election, notice for the election shall be mailed to all Nation 302 
members, stating the time and place of the election and a sample of the ballot, no less than ten (10) 303 
calendar days prior to the election, through a mass mailing.  The Trust Enrollment Department 304 
shall be notified, by the Election Board Chairperson, no less than twenty (20) calendar days prior 305 
to the requested mailing. 306 
102.7-4.  Notice of the election shall be placed in the Nation’s newspaper. 307 

56 of 400

--



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 8 

 308 
102.8.  Registration of Voters 309 
Section A.  Requirements 310 
102.8-1.  Registration of Voters.  All enrolled members of the Nation, who are eighteen (18) years 311 
of age or over, are qualified voters of such election(s) as defined in Article III, Section 2 of the 312 
Oneida Nation Constitution. 313 
 314 
Section B.  Identification of Voters 315 
102.8-2.  All voters must present one of the following picture identifications in order to be able to 316 
vote: 317 

(a)  Oneida Nation I.D. 318 
(b)  Drivers License. 319 
(c)  Other I.D. with name and photo. 320 

 321 
Section C.  Registration Procedures 322 
102.8-3.  Voters shall physically register, on the day of the election, at the polls. 323 
102.8-4.  Trust Enrollment Department personnel shall be responsible for verifying enrollment 324 
with the Nation.  Conduct of Trust Enrollment Department personnel is governed by the Election 325 
Officials during the voting period. 326 
102.8-5.  Every person who intends to vote must sign his/her name on an official Voter Registration 327 
Form containing the voter’s following information: 328 

(a)  name and maiden name (if any); 329 
(b)  current address; 330 
(c)  date of birth; and 331 
(d)  enrollment number. 332 

 333 
Section D.  Qualification/Verification of Voter Eligibility 334 
102.8-6.  Should a question or dispute arise as to the eligibility of a voter being qualified to vote, 335 
the Judges of the Election Officials appointed by the Election Board Chairperson shall meet with 336 
the Trust Enrollment Department personnel who are registering voters, to decide the voting 337 
member’s eligibility currently being questioned and shall make such decisions from the facts 338 
available, whether the applicant is, in fact, qualified/verifiable under the Oneida Nation 339 
Constitution, Article III Section 2, to vote in the Nation’s elections. 340 
102.8-7.  Any voter denied eligibility shall be allowed to vote, provided that the ballot shall be 341 
placed in an envelope, initialed by two (2) Election Officials, sealed and numbered.  The name of 342 
the voter shall be written next to a numbered list which corresponds to the numbered and sealed 343 
envelope.  The voter shall be required to mail a written appeal to the Election Board at P.O. Box 344 
413, Oneida, Wisconsin, 54155, postmarked within two (2) business days of the election if they 345 
desire to challenge the decision made by the Election Officials.  The Election Board shall make a 346 
final decision, within five (5) business days of receiving the appeal and shall report this decision 347 
in the final report sent to the Oneida Business Committee. 348 
 349 
102.9.  Election Process 350 
Section A.  Polling Places and Times 351 

57 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 9 

102.9-1.  In accordance with Article III, Section 5 of the Oneida Nation Constitution, elections 352 
shall be held in the month of July on a date set by the General Tribal Council.  The General Tribal 353 
Council shall set the election date at the January annual meeting, or at the first GTC meeting held 354 
during a given year.  Special Elections shall be set in accordance with 102.12-6. 355 
102.9-2.  Elections shall be held in an Oneida Nation facility(s) as determined by the Election 356 
Board. 357 
102.9-3.  Voting for elections shall begin at 7:00 a.m. and shall end at 7:00 p.m.  All voters in line 358 
to vote at 7:00 p.m. shall be allowed to vote. 359 

(a)  If a ballot counting machine is used, the ballot counting machine shall be prepared 360 
prior to 7:00 a.m. on the day of the election.  The Judges shall open the polls only after four 361 
(4) members of the Nation verify, through signature on the tape, the ballot box is empty 362 
and the ballot counting machine printer tape has a zero (0) total count.  363 

102.9-4.  At least one (1) Oneida Police Officer shall be present during the time the polls are open, 364 
and until the counting of ballots is completed, and tentative results posted. 365 
102.9-5.  The Election Board shall provide a voting area sufficiently isolated for each voter such 366 
that there is an area with at least two sides and a back enclosure. 367 
102.9-6.  No campaigning of any type shall be conducted within two hundred eighty (280) feet of 368 
the voting area, excluding private property. 369 
102.9-7.  No one causing a disturbance shall be allowed in the voting area. 370 
102.9-8.  Election Board members may restrict the voting area to qualified voters only.  This 371 
restriction is in the interest of maintaining security of the ballots and voting process. 372 
 373 
Section B.  Ballot Box 374 
102.9-9.  All ballots being votes, shall be placed in a receptacle clearly marked "Ballot Box" and 375 
shall be locked until counting at the close of polls.  Provided that, with electronic ballot counting, 376 
the ballots may be placed within the ballot counting machine as they are received. 377 
 378 
Section C.  Spoiled Ballots 379 
102.9-10.  If a voter spoils his/her ballot, he/she shall be given a new ballot. 380 
102.9-11.  The spoiled ballot shall be marked "VOID" and initialed by two (2) Election Officials 381 
and placed in an envelope marked as "Spoiled Ballots." 382 
102.9-12.  The Spoiled Ballot envelopes shall be retained and secured for no less than fifteen (15) 383 
calendar days following finalization of any challenge of the election, at the Records Management 384 
Department. 385 
 386 
Section D.  Rejected Ballots 387 
102.9-13.  Rejected Ballots are to be placed in a specially marked container and sealed. 388 

(a)  Computer rejected ballots shall be reviewed by the Election Officials to verify the 389 
authenticity of the ballot.  Ballots rejected because of mutilation shall be added to the final 390 
computer total, provided that, a new ballot was not received as set out in sections 102.9-10 391 
through 102.9-12. 392 
(b)  Ballots rejected, either during the computer process or during a manual counting, shall 393 
be reviewed by the Election Officials to verify that they are authentic.  If the Election 394 
Officials determine that the ballot is not an official ballot, or that it is an illegal ballot, the 395 
ballot shall be designated ‘void,’ and placed in a sealed container marked “Void Ballots.” 396 

58 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 10 

 397 
102.10.  Tabulating and Securing Ballots 398 
Section A.  Machine Counted Ballots 399 
102.10-1.  When ballots are counted by machine, at the close of polls the Judges shall generate 400 
from the ballot counting machine copies of the election totals from the votes cast. 401 
102.10-2.  At least six (6three (3) Election Board members shall sign the election totals, which 402 
shall include the tape signed by the members of the Nation before the polls were opened per section 403 
102.9-3(a). 404 
 405 
Section B.  Manually Counted Ballots 406 
102.10-3.  When ballots are manually counted, at the close of polls the Judges shall unlock the 407 
ballot box and remove the ballots. 408 
102.10-4.  If the ballots need to be counted at a location other than the polling site, the ballots shall 409 
be secured in a sealed container for transportation to the ballot counting location.  The sealed 410 
ballots shall be transported by an Oneida Police Officer with at least three (3) of the Election 411 
Officials for counting/tallying of ballots. 412 
102.10-5.  The sealed ballots shall be opened at the time of counting by the Election Officials and 413 
witnessed/monitored by an Oneida Police Officer. 414 
102.10-6.  Ballots must be counted by two different Election Officials until two final tallies are 415 
equal in back to back counting.  Final tallies shall be verified by the Election Judges.   416 
 417 
Section C.  Securing Ballots 418 
102.10-7.  The Judges shall place together all ballots counted and secure them together so that they 419 
cannot be untied or tampered with without breaking the seal.  The secured ballots, and the election 420 
totals with the signed tape, if applicable, shall then be secured by the Judges in a sealed container 421 
in such a manner that the container cannot be opened without breaking the seals or locks, or 422 
destroying the container.  The Oneida Police Officer shall then deliver, on the day of the election, 423 
the sealed container to the Records Management Department for retaining. 424 
 425 
102.11.  Election Outcome and Ties 426 
Section A.  Election Results Announcement 427 
102.11-1.  The tentative results of an election shall be announced and posted by the Election Board 428 
within twenty-four (24) hours after the closing of the polls.  Notices of election results shall contain 429 
the following statement: 430 

"The election results posted here are tentative results.  Final election results are forwarded 431 
by the Oneida Election Board to the Oneida Business Committee via a Final Report after 432 
time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all  recounts or challenges 433 
have been completed, whichever is longer” 434 

102.11-2.  The Election Board shall post, in the prominent locations, and publish in the Nation’s 435 
newspaper, the tentative results of an election. 436 
 437 
Section B.  Tie 438 
102.11-3.  In the event of a tie for any office, and where the breaking of a tie is necessary to 439 
determine the outcome of an election, the Election Board shall conduct an automatic recount of 440 

59 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 11 

the votes for each candidate receiving the same number of votes.  Any recount conducted shall be 441 
the only recount allowed for the tied candidates. 442 
102.11-4.  For Business Committee positions, a run-off election between the candidates with the 443 
same number of votes shall be held if there remains a tie after the recount.  Said run-off election 444 
shall be held within twenty one (21) calendar days after the recount.  For all other positions, if 445 
there remains a tie after the recount, the Election Board shall decide the winner of the tied positions 446 
at least two (2) business days after, but no more than five (5) business days after the recount 447 
through a lot drawing, which shall be open to the public. 448 

(a)  The Election Board shall notify each of the tied candidates and the public of the date, 449 
time, and place of the drawing at least one (1) business day before the drawing.  Notice to 450 
the tied candidates shall be in writing.  Notice to the public shall be posted by the Election 451 
Board in the prominent locations. 452 
(b)  On the date and at the time and place the drawing was noticed, the Election Board 453 
Chairperson shall clearly write the name of each tied candidate on separate pieces of paper 454 
in front of any witnesses present.  The pieces of paper shall be the same, or approximately 455 
the same, color, size, and type.  The papers shall be folded in half and placed in a container 456 
selected by the Election Board Chairperson. 457 
(c)  The Election Board Chairperson shall designate an uninterested party to draw a name 458 
from the container.  The candidate whose name is drawn from the container first shall be 459 
declared the winner.  An Election Board member other than the Chairperson shall remove 460 
the remaining pieces of paper from the container and show them to the witnesses present. 461 

 462 
Section C.  Recount Procedures 463 
102.11-5.  A candidate may request the Election Board to complete a recount, provided the margin 464 
between the requesting candidate’s vote total and vote total for the unofficial winner was within 465 
two percent (2%) of the total votes for the office being sought or twenty (20) votes, whichever is 466 
greater.  A candidate requests a recount by hand delivering a written request to the office of the 467 
Nation’s Secretary, or noticed designated agent, within five (5) business days after the election.  468 
Requests shall be limited to one (1) request per candidate.  The Nation’s Secretary shall contact 469 
the Election Board Chairperson by the next business day after the request for recounts. 470 
102.11-6.  The Election Board shall respond by the close of business on the fifth (5th) day after the 471 
request regarding the results of the recount.  Provided that, no recount request need be honored 472 
where there have been two (2) recounts completed as a result of a request either as a recount of the 473 
whole election results, or of that sub-section. 474 
102.11-7.  All recounts shall be conducted manually with, if possible, the original Election 475 
Officials and Oneida Police Officer present, regardless of the original type of counting process.  476 
Manual recounts may, at the discretion of the Election Officials, be of the total election results, or 477 
of the challenged sub-section of the election results. 478 
102.11-8.  The Oneida Police Officer shall be responsible for picking up the locked, sealed 479 
container with the ballots from the Records Management Department and transporting it to the 480 
ballot recounting location. 481 
102.11-9.  A recount shall be conducted by a quorum of the Election Board, including at least three 482 
(3) of the original Election Officials.  The locked, sealed ballots shall be opened by the Election 483 
Board Chairperson and an Oneida Police Officer shall witness the recount. 484 
102.11-10.  Recounting of ballots may be performed manually or by computer. All ballots shall be 485 

60 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 12 

counted until two (2) final tallies are equal in back to back counting and the total count of ballots 486 
reconciles with the total count from the ballot counting machine.  Sub-sections of candidates may 487 
be recounted in lieu of a full recount. 488 

(a)  Manually counted ballots shall be recounted by the Election Board.  Ballots shall be 489 
counted twice by different persons and certified by the Judges. 490 
(b)  Computer counted ballots shall be recounted twice and certified by the Judges.  Prior 491 
to using an electronic ballot counting device, it shall be certified as correct either by the 492 
maker, lessor of the machine, or Election Board. 493 

 494 
Section D.  Challenges and Declaration of Results 495 
102.11-11.  Challenges.  Any qualified voter may challenge the results of an election by filing a 496 
complaint with the Judiciary within ten (10) calendar days after the election.  The Judiciary shall 497 
hear and decide a challenge to any election within two (2) business days after the challenge is filed.  498 
Any appeal to the appellate body of the Judiciary shall be filed within one (1) business day after 499 
the issuance of the lower body’s decision and decided within two (2) business days after the appeal 500 
is filed. 501 

(a)  The person challenging the election results shall prove by clear and convincing 502 
evidence that the Election Law was violated or an unfair election was conducted, and that 503 
the outcome of the election would have been different but for the violation. 504 
(b)  If the Judiciary invalidates the election results, a Special Election shall be ordered by 505 
the Judiciary for the office(s) affected to be held on a date set by the Judiciary for as soon 506 
as the Election Law allows for a Special Election.  507 

102.11-12.  The Final Report.  The Election Board shall forward a Final Report to the Nation’s 508 
Secretary after time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all recounts or challenges 509 
have been completed, whichever is longer.  The Final Report shall consist of the following 510 
information: 511 

(a)  Total number of persons voting. 512 
(b)  Total votes cast for each candidate by subsection of the ballot. 513 
(c)  List of any ties and final results of those ties, including the method of resolution. 514 
(d)  List of candidates elected and position elected to. 515 
(e)  Number of spoiled ballots. 516 
(f)  Cost of the election, including the compensation paid to each Election Board member. 517 

102.11-13.  Declaration of Results.  The Business Committee shall declare the official results of 518 
the election and send notices regarding when the swearing in of newly elected officials shall take 519 
place within ten (10) business days after receipt of the Final Report. 520 
102.11-14.  Candidates elected to the Business Committee shall resign from any salaried position 521 
effective prior to taking a Business Committee oath of office 522 
102.11-15.  Except in the event of an emergency, as determined by the Business Committee, 523 
newly elected officials shall be sworn into office no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the 524 
official results of an election are declared by the Business Committee. 525 

(a)  If a newly elected official is not sworn in within thirty (30) calendar days, the seat shall 526 
be considered vacant and the Election Board shall declare the next highest vote recipient 527 
the winner.  This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until a winner is declared. 528 
(b)  If all vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a 529 
Special Election shall be held. 530 

61 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 13 

102.11-16.  The Election Board shall send notice to the Records Management Department to 531 
destroy the ballots thirty (30) calendar days after the election or after the final declaration of official 532 
election results occurs, whichever is longer. 533 
 534 
102.12.  Elections 535 
Section A.  Primary Elections; Business Committee 536 
102.12-1.  When a primary is required under 102.12-2, it shall be held on a Saturday at least sixty 537 
(60) calendar days prior to the election. 538 
102.12-2.  There shall be a primary election for Business Committee positions whenever there are 539 
three (3) or more candidates for any officer positions or sixteen (16) or more candidates for the at-540 
large council member positions. 541 

(a)  The two (2) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for each officer 542 
position shall be placed on the ballot. 543 
(b)  The fifteen (15) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for the at-large 544 
council member positions shall be placed on the ballot. 545 
(c)  Any position where a tie exists to determine the candidates to be placed on the ballot 546 
shall include all candidates where the tie exists. 547 

102.12-3.  The Election Board shall cancel the primary election if the Business Committee 548 
positions did not draw the requisite number of candidates for a primary by the petitioning 549 
application deadline set for the primary. 550 
102.12-4. In the event a candidate withdraws or is unable to run for office after being declared a 551 
winner in the primary, the Election Board shall declare the next highest primary vote recipient the 552 
primary winner.  This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until the ballot is full or until there 553 
are no available candidates.  If the ballot has already been printed, the procedures for notifying the 554 
Oneida public in section 102.5-11 and 102.5-12 shall be followed, including the requirement to 555 
print a notice in the Nation’s newspaper if time lines allow. 556 
 557 
Section B.  Special Elections 558 
102.12-5. Matters subject to a Special Election, i.e., referendum, vacancies, petitions, etc., as 559 
defined in this law, may be placed on the same ballot as the subject matter of an election. 560 
102.12-6. Dates of all Special Elections shall be set, as provided for in this law, by the Business 561 
Committee as recommended by the Election Board or as ordered by the Judiciary in connection 562 
with an election challenge. 563 
102.12-7. Notice of said Special Election shall be posted by the Election Board in the prominent 564 
locations, and placed in the Nation’s newspaper not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the 565 
Special Election. 566 
102.12-8. In the event of an emergency, the Election Board may reschedule the election, provided 567 
that no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice of the rescheduled election date is given to the 568 
voters, by posting notices in the prominent locations. 569 
 570 
Section C.  Referendums 571 
102.12-9. Registered voters may indicate opinions on any development, law or resolution, 572 
proposed, enacted, or directed by the Business Committee, or General Tribal Council, in a  special 573 
referendum election. 574 

(a) Referendum elections in which a majority of the qualified voters who cast votes shall 575 

62 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 14 

be binding on the Business Committee to present the issue for action/decision at General 576 
Tribal Council. 577 
(b) Referendum requests may appear on the next called for election. 578 
(c) Referendum questions are to be presented to the Nation’s Secretary, in writing, at the 579 
caucus prior to election, regarding issues directly affecting the Nation or general 580 
membership. 581 

 582 
Section D.  Initiation of Special Elections 583 
102.12-10. Special Elections may be initiated by a request or directive of the General Tribal 584 
Council or the Oneida Business Committee. 585 
102.12-11. Special Election may be requested by a member of the Nation to the Business 586 
Committee or General Tribal Council. 587 
102.12-12. All Special Elections shall follow rules established for all other elections.  This includes 588 
positions for all Boards, Committees and Commissions. 589 
 590 
102.13. Oneida Nation Constitution and By-law Amendments 591 
102.13-1.  Pursuant to Article VI of the Oneida Nation Constitution, amendments to the Oneida 592 
Nation Constitution and By-laws may be initiated by the Oneida Business Committee or a petition 593 
of qualified voters.  The requirements for the Oneida Business Committee’s initiation of 594 
Constitutional amendments are as provided in the Constitution and as further detailed in the 595 
supporting standard operating procedures which the Oneida Business Committee shall adopt.  596 
Qualified voters may petition to amend the Oneida Nation Constitution and By-laws by submitting 597 
a petition to the Office of the Nation’s Secretary which includes the full text of the proposed 598 
amendments and signatures that are equal in number to at least ten percent (10%) of all members 599 
qualified to vote. 600 

(a) Qualified voters may request a petition form from the Office of the Nation’s Secretary. 601 
(b) When a petition form is requested, the Nation’s Secretary, or his or her designee, shall 602 
direct the Trust Enrollment Department to calculate the number of signatures currently 603 
required for a petition submittal, which shall be ten percent (10%) of all members qualified 604 
to vote on the date the petition form is requested from the Office of the Nation’s Secretary.  605 
When the Nation’s Secretary receives the calculation from the Trust Enrollment 606 
Department, the Nation’s Secretary shall provide the requester with the petition form and 607 
the number of signatures that are currently required.   608 
(c) Such petitions shall be circulated with all supporting materials and submitted a 609 
minimum of ninety (90) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendment is to 610 
be voted upon.  If a petition includes supporting materials in addition to the petition form, 611 
each qualified voter signing the petition shall also acknowledge that the supporting 612 
materials were available for review at the time he or she signed the petition by initialing 613 
where required on the petition form. 614 
(d) The Nation’s Secretary shall forward submitted petitions to the Trust Enrollment 615 
Department for verification of signatures and to the Election Board to provide notice that 616 
the petition may need to be placed on an upcoming ballot. 617 
(e) If the petition is verified by the Trust Enrollment Department to contain signatures from 618 
at least ten percent (10%) of all qualified voters, the Election Board shall make an official 619 
announcement of the proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution at least sixty 620 

63 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration (Redline to Last Permanent) 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 15 

(60) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendments are to be voted on. 621 
102.13-2. The Election Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation 622 
Constitution that meet the requirements contained in 102.13-1 on the ballot at the next general 623 
election.  Provided that, the Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council may order a 624 
special election be held to consider the proposed amendments.  In such circumstances, the Election 625 
Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution on the ballot at the 626 
next special election.  627 
102.13-3. The Election Board shall publish any proposed amendments by publishing a sample 628 
ballot no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the election, through a mass mailing.  The Trust 629 
Enrollment Department shall be notified, by the Election Board Chairperson, no less than twenty 630 
(20) calendar days prior to the requested mailing.  Copies of such publications shall be prominently 631 
posted in each polling place and at administrative offices of the Nation and shall also be published 632 
in official Oneida media outlets, which the Oneida Business Committee shall identify by 633 
resolution.  For the purposes of this section, Oneida administrative offices means the location 634 
where the Oneida Business Committee conducts business. 635 
102.13-4. The Election Board shall ensure that the ballot contains a statement of the purpose of 636 
the proposed amendments prepared by the Oneida Law Office.  The Oneida Law Office shall 637 
ensure that the statement of purpose is one hundred (100) words or less exclusive of caption, is a 638 
true and impartial statement and is written in such a manner that does not create prejudice for or 639 
against the proposed amendment. 640 
102.13-5. Pursuant to Article VI, Section 3 of the Oneida Nation Constitution, proposed 641 
amendments that are approved by sixty-five percent (65%) of the qualified voters that vote on that 642 
amendment shall become part of the Constitution and By-laws, and shall abrogate or amend 643 
existing provisions of the Constitution and By-laws at the end of thirty (30) days after  submission 644 
of the final election report.   645 
102.13-6. If two (2) or more amendments approved by the voters at the same election conflict, the 646 
amendment receiving the highest affirmation vote prevails. 647 
 648 
End. 649 
 650  651 
Adopted - June 19, 1993 652 
Amended - June 28, 1995 (Adopted by BC on Behalf of GTC, Completion of Agenda) 653 
Presented for Adoption of 1997 Revisions - GTC-7-6-98-A 654 
Amended- October 11, 2008 (General Tribal Council Meeting) 655 
Amended-GTC-01-04-10-A 656 
Amended – BC-02-25-15-C 657 
Amended – GTC-04-23-17-A 658 
Emergency Amended – BC-03-17-20-B 659 
Emergency Amended – BC-05-13-20-H 660 
Emergency Amended – BC-06-24-20-B (Expired at Conclusion of 2020 General Election) 661 
Emergency Amended – BC-04-28-21-B (Expired) 662 
Emergency Amended – BC-07-13-22-E 663 
Emergency Amended – BC-12-28-22-B 664 
Emergency Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 665 

64 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 1 

Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 102 
ELECTION 

On<yote>a=k@= Tho Ni= Y%t Tsi> <yethiyatal@ko Tsi> Kayanl^hsla 
People of the Standing Stone how it is we will appoint them the kind of laws we have 

 
102.1.   Purpose and Policy 
102.2.   Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 
102.3.   Definitions 
102.4.   Election Board 
102.5.   Candidate Eligibility 
102.6.   Selection of Candidates 
102.7.   Notice of Polling Places 

102.8.   Registration of Voters 
102.9.   Election Process 
102.10. Tabulating and Securing Ballots 
102.11. Election Outcome and Ties 
102.12. Elections 
102.13. Oneida Nation Constitution and By-law Amendments 
  

 
102.1. Purpose and Policy 1 
102.1-1. It is the policy of the Nation that this law shall govern the procedures for the conduct of 2 
orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such as caucuses and nominations. 3 
Because of the desire for orderly and easily understood elections, there has not been an allowance 4 
made for write-in candidates on ballots. 5 
102.1-2. This law defines the duties and responsibilities of the Election Board members and other 6 
persons employed by the Oneida Nation in the conduct of elections.  It is intended to govern all 7 
procedures used in the election process. 8 
 9 
102.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 10 
102.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida General Tribal Council by resolution GTC 07-06-11 
98-A, amended by resolutions GTC-01-04-10-A, BC-02-25-15-C and GTC-04-23-17-A, and 12 
emergency amended by resolution BC-__-__-__-__.   13 
102.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to 14 
the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act. Actions of the Election Board regarding 15 
amendments to this law and policies adopted regarding implementation of this law are to be 16 
presented to the Business Committee who shall then adopt or forward action(s) to the General 17 
Tribal Council for adoption. 18 
102.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 19 
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are considered 20 
to have legal force without the invalid portions. 21 
102.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another law, 22 
the provisions of this law shall control.   23 
102.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation. 24 
 25 
102.3. Definitions 26 
102.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law.  All 27 
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense. 28 
102.3-2. “Alternate” shall mean an individual appointed by the Business Committee to serve on 29 
the Election Board during an election and until election results have been certified. 30 
102.3-3. “Applicant” shall mean a potential candidate who has not yet been officially approved for 31 
acceptance on a ballot. 32 
102.3-4. “Business day” shall mean Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m., excluding 33 
holidays of the Nation. 34 
102.3-5. “Campaigning” shall mean all efforts designed to influence members of the Nation to 35 
support or reject a particular candidate of the Nation including, without limitation, advertising, 36 
rallying, public speaking, or other communications with members of the Nation. 37 

65 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 2 

102.3-6. “Candidate” shall mean a  nominee or applicant for an elected position whose name is 38 
placed on the ballot by the Election Board after successful application. 39 
102.3-7. “Clerk” shall mean the election official who identifies proper registration for the purpose 40 
of determining voter eligibility.   41 
102.3-8. “Close of business” shall mean 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. 42 
102.3-9.  “Conflict of Interest” shall mean any interest, whether it be personal, financial, political 43 
or otherwise, in which a Nation elected official, employee, consultant, appointed or elected, 44 
member of any board, committee or commission, or their immediate relatives, friends or 45 
associates, or any other person with whom they have contact, that conflicts with any right of the 46 
Nation to property, information, or any other right to own and operate its enterprises, free from 47 
undisclosed competition or other violation of such rights of the Oneida Nation, or as defined in 48 
any law or policy of the Nation. 49 
102.3-10. “Election” shall mean every primary and election. 50 
102.3-11. “General election” shall mean the election held every three (3) years in July to elect the 51 
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, and the five Council Members of the 52 
Business Committee and may include contests for elected boards, committees and commissions 53 
positions. 54 
102.3-12. “Judge” shall mean the election official who informs and advises the Chairperson of 55 
discrepancies, complaints and controversy regarding voter eligibility.   56 
102.3-13. “Judiciary” means the judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal 57 
Council resolution GTC-01-07-13-B to administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities of 58 
the Nation. 59 
102.3-14. “Lot drawing” shall mean the equal chance method used to select a candidate as the 60 
winner of an elected position, in the case of a tie between two (2) or more candidates. 61 
102.3-15. “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.  62 
102.3-16. “Nation’s newspaper” shall mean the Kalihwisaks, or any other newspaper operated by 63 
the Nation for the benefit of transmitting news to members of the Nation, which is designated by 64 
the Election Board as a source for election related news. 65 
102.3-17. “Oneida Police Officer” shall mean an enrolled member of the Oneida Nation who is a 66 
police officer on any police force.  67 
102.3-18. “Private property” shall mean any lot of land not owned by the Nation, a residential 68 
dwelling or a privately owned business within the boundaries of the Reservation. 69 
102.3-19.  “Prominent locations” shall mean the polling places, main doors of the Norbert Hill 70 
Center, main doors of the Oneida Community Library, Tsyunhehkwa Retail Store, the Oneida 71 
Community Health Center, the SEOTS building and all One-Stop locations. 72 
102.3-20. “Qualified voter” shall mean an enrolled member of the Nation who is eighteen (18) 73 
years of age or older. 74 
102.3-21. “Rejected Ballots” shall mean those ballots which are rejected by the vote tabulating 75 
machine. 76 
102.3-22. “Spoiled Ballot” shall mean a ballot which contains a voter error or is otherwise marred 77 
and is not tabulated. 78 
102.3-23. “Teller” shall mean the election official in charge of collecting and storing of all ballots. 79 
 80 
102.4. Election Board 81 
Section A.  Establishment, Composition and Election 82 

66 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 3 

102.4-1. An Election Board is hereby created for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this 83 
law and Article III, Sections 2 and 3 of the Oneida Nation Constitution. 84 
102.4-2. The Election Board shall consist of nine (9) elected members.  All members shall be 85 
elected to terms of three (3) years, not to exceed two (2) consecutive terms.   86 
102.4-3. Recusal. An Election Board member shall recuse himself/herself from participating as an 87 
Election Board member in any pre-election, election day, or post-election activities while he or 88 
she is an applicant or candidate in any election or there is otherwise a conflict of interest. 89 
102.4-4. Removal. Removal of members shall be pursuant to the Oneida Removal Law.  A member 90 
who is removed from the Election Board shall be ineligible to serve on the Board for three (3) 91 
years from the time he or she is removed from the Election Board. 92 
102.4-5. Vacancies. Any vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled by appointment by the 93 
Business Committee for the balance of the unexpired term.  The filling of a vacancy may be timed 94 
to correspond with the pre-election activities and the needs of the Election Board.   95 
102.4-6.  The Election Board shall identify tellers, judges and clerks in advance of an election. 96 
102.4-7  The Business Committee may appoint or reappoint a sufficient number of alternates to 97 
the Election Board, as recommended by the Election Board, to assist with election day and pre-98 
election activities.   99 
102.4-8.  The Election Board shall choose a Chairperson from amongst themselves as set out in 100 
the By-laws of the Election Board, to preside over the meetings.  This selection shall be carried 101 
out at the first meeting of the Election Board following an election.  The Chairperson shall then 102 
ask the Election Board to select a Vice-Chairperson and Secretary. 103 
 104 
Section B.  Duties of the Election Board 105 
102.4-9. The Election Board shall have the following duties, along with other responsibilities listed 106 
throughout this law. 107 

(a)  The Election Board shall be in charge of all registration and election procedures; and 108 
(b)  Upon completion of an election, the Election Board shall make a final report on the 109 
election results as set out in this law. 110 

 111 
Section C.  Specific Duties of Officers and Election Board Members 112 
102.4-10. Specific duties of the Chairperson and other Election Board members, in addition to 113 
being present at all Election Board meetings and assisting the handicapped through the voting 114 
process, are as set out herein: 115 

(a) Chairperson: Shall preside over meetings of the Election Board; shall select the hearing 116 
body for applicants found to be ineligible in accordance with 102.5-6 in the event of an 117 
appeal; shall oversee the conduct of the election; shall dismiss the alternates and Trust 118 
Enrollment Department personnel when their election day duties are complete; and shall 119 
post and report election results. 120 
(b) Vice-Chairperson:  Shall preside over all meetings in the absence of the Chairperson. 121 
(c) Secretary:  Shall keep a record of the meetings and make them available to the Nation’s 122 
Secretary, other Election Board members and the public as required in the Open Records 123 
and Open Meetings Law. 124 
(d) Clerks:  Shall implement the requirements of identifying and registering all voters and 125 
determining voter eligibility.  Clerks shall work in conjunction with the Trust Enrollment 126 
Department personnel in the registration process, and assist the Chairperson as directed in 127 

67 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 4 

conducting the election.  Clerks cannot be currently employed by the Trust Enrollment 128 
Department. 129 
(e) Tellers:  Shall collect and keep safe all ballots, until the election is complete, as 130 
determined by this law.  Shall assist the Chairperson in conducting the election. 131 
(f) Judges:  Shall inform and advise the Chairperson of all aspects of the election conducted 132 
under this law.  In case of disputes among Election Board members, or between members 133 
of the Nation and Election Board members, or any controversy regarding voter eligibility, 134 
the Judge(s) shall assist the Chairperson in making a determination.  The Judge(s) shall 135 
also ensure that all ballots of voters whose eligibility may be in question, remain 136 
confidential. 137 

 138 
Section D.  Compensation Rates 139 
102.4-11.  Election Board members are to be compensated at an hourly rate when conducting 140 
elections as provided for in the Election Board’s bylaws as approved by the Business Committee.  141 
The Election Board shall have a budget, approved through the Nation’s budgeting process. 142 
102.4-12.  The Trust Enrollment Department personnel and Oneida Police Officer(s) shall be 143 
compensated at their regular rate of pay out of their respective budgets. 144 
 145 
102.5.  Candidate Eligibility 146 
Section A.  Requirements 147 
102.5-1.  In addition to any specific requirements and/or exceptions set out in duly adopted by-148 
laws or other documents, all applicants shall meet the minimum requirements set out in this section 149 
in order to become a candidate. 150 
102.5-2.  Minimum Requirements.  In order to be eligible to be a candidate, applicants shall: 151 

(a)  be an enrolled member of the Nation, as verified by membership rolls of the Nation. 152 
(b)  be a qualified voter on the day of the election. 153 
(c)  provide proof of physical residency as required for the position for which they have 154 
been nominated or for which they have applied.  Proof of residency may be through one 155 
(1) or more of the following: 156 

(1)  a valid Wisconsin driver’s license; 157 
(2)  a bill or pay check stub showing name and physical address of the candidate 158 
from the prior or current month; 159 
(3)  another form of proof that identifies the candidate and that the candidate has 160 
physically resided at the address and identifies that address as the primary 161 
residence. 162 

102.5-3.  No applicant may have a conflict of interest with the position for which they are being 163 
considered, provided that any conflict of interest which may be eliminated within thirty (30) 164 
calendar days of being elected shall not be considered as a bar to nomination or election. 165 
102.5-4.  Applications shall be filed by presenting the information to the Nation’s Secretary, or 166 
designated agent, during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday, 167 
within five (5) business days after the caucus.  No mailed, internal Nation mail delivery, faxed or 168 
other delivery method shall be accepted. 169 
102.5-5.   The names of the candidates and the positions sought shall be a public record and made 170 
available to the public upon the determination of eligibility by the Election Board or the Board’s 171 
designated agent. 172 

68 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 5 

 173 
Section B.  Eligibility Review 174 
102.5-6.  Applicants found to be ineligible shall have two (2) business days to request an appeal.  175 
At least four (4) Election Board members shall constitute a hearing body.  The Chairperson shall 176 
select the hearing body.  The hearing shall be held within two (2) business days of receipt of the 177 
appeal.  The applicant shall be notified by phone of time and place of the hearing.  The decision 178 
of the hearing body shall be sent via certified mail or hand delivery within two (2) business days 179 
of the hearing.  Any appeal from a decision of the Election Board hearing body shall be to the 180 
Judiciary on an accelerated schedule. 181 
102.5-7.  The Election Board shall be responsible for reviewing the qualifications of applicants to 182 
verify eligibility.  Any applicant found to be ineligible for a nominated or an applied for position 183 
shall be notified by certified mail return receipt requested.  The notice shall provide the following 184 
information: 185 

(a)  Position for which they were considered 186 
(b)  Qualification of the position and citation of the source.  (Copies of source may be 187 
attached.) 188 
(c)  A brief summary explaining why the applicant was found to be ineligible. 189 
(d) That the applicant has two (2) business days from notification to make an appeal.  190 
Appeals must be filed at the location designated on the notice by hand delivery.  The 191 
location designated shall be on the Reservation.  No mailed, internal Nation mail, faxed or 192 
other delivery method will be accepted. 193 

 194 
Section C.  Campaign Financing 195 
102.5-8.  Contributions: 196 

(a)  Solicitation of Contributions by Candidates. 197 
(1)  Candidates shall only accept contributions from individuals who are members 198 
of the Nation or individuals related by blood or marriage to the candidate.  199 
Candidates may not accept contributions from any business, whether sole 200 
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other business entity.  201 
(2)  Candidates shall not solicit or accept contributions in any office or 202 
business/facility of the Nation. 203 

(b)  Fines.  Violation of the contribution restrictions shall result in a fine imposed by the 204 
Election Board in an amount specified in a resolution adopted by the Business Committee. 205 

102.5-9.  Campaign Signs and Campaigning: 206 
(a)  Placement of campaign signs: 207 

(1)  Campaign signs shall not be posted or erected on any property of the Nation 208 
except for private property with the owner/tenant’s permission.  209 
(2)  No campaign sign shall exceed sixteen (16) square feet in area.  A maximum 210 
of seven (7) such signs may be placed on a building or on a lot. 211 
(3)  No campaign sign shall project beyond the property line into the public right 212 
of way. 213 

(b)  Removal of campaign signs.  All campaign signs shall be removed within five (5) 214 
business days after an election. 215 

69 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 6 

(c)  Employees of the Nation shall not engage in campaigning for offices of the Nation 216 
during work hours.  The Nation’s employees shall be subject to disciplinary action under 217 
the personnel policies and procedures for political campaigning during work hours. 218 
(d)  Enforcement.  The Zoning Administrator shall cause to be removed any campaign 219 
signs that are not in compliance with this law, in accordance with the Zoning and Shoreland 220 
Protection Law. 221 
(e)  Fines.  Violation of the campaign sign restrictions shall result in a fine imposed by the 222 
Election Board in an amount specified in a resolution adopted by the Business Committee. 223 

 224 
Section D.  Candidate Withdrawal 225 
102.5-10  Any candidate may withdraw his or her name from a ballot if submitted in writing by 226 
the candidate prior to submission of the ballot for printing to any Election Board member, 227 
excluding alternates. 228 
102.5-11  After printing of the ballot, any candidate may withdraw his or her name from the 229 
election by submitting in writing a statement indicating they are withdrawing from the election 230 
prior to the opening of the polls to any Election Board member, excluding alternates.  This 231 
statement shall be posted alongside any sample ballot printed prior to the election in the newspaper 232 
or any posting at the polling places. 233 
102.5-12.  Candidates withdrawing after opening of the polls shall request, in writing to the 234 
Election Board members in charge of the polling place, to be removed from the ballot.  The written 235 
statement shall be posted next to any posted sample ballot. 236 
102.5-13.  Candidates withdrawing by any method listed herein shall be denied any position from 237 
which they have withdrawn regardless of the number of votes cast for that candidate.  A written 238 
statement shall be considered the only necessary evidence of withdrawal and acceptance of denial 239 
of any position withdrawn from. 240 
102.5-14.  Candidate Withdrawal After Winning an Election. 241 

(a)  In the event a candidate declines an office after winning an election, the Election Board 242 
shall declare the next highest vote recipient the winner.  This procedure shall be repeated 243 
as necessary until a winner is declared. 244 
(b)  If all vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a 245 
Special Election shall be held. 246 

 247 
102.6.  Selection of Candidates 248 
Section A.  Setting of Caucus 249 
102.6-1.  The Election Board shall be responsible for calling a caucus before any election is held.  250 
The caucus for the general election shall be held at least ninety (90) calendar days prior to the 251 
election date.  Caucuses for other elections shall be held at least forty-five (45) calendar days prior 252 
to the election date.  In a general election year, caucuses shall be combined so that candidates for 253 
the Business Committee and elected boards, committees and commissions are nominated at the 254 
same caucus. 255 
102.6-2.  The procedures for the caucus shall be as follows: 256 

(a)  Candidates shall be nominated from the floor. 257 
(b)  Candidates present at the caucus will accept/decline their nomination at the caucus.  258 
Candidates nominated at the caucus, but not present to accept the nomination, shall be 259 
required to follow the application process. 260 

70 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 7 

(c)  Nominations shall consist of the following positions:  Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, 261 
Treasurer, Secretary, Council Member and other elected positions as required by by-laws 262 
or creating documents of a board, committee, or commission. 263 

 264 
Section B.  Application 265 
102.6-3.  Any eligible member of the Nation may apply to be placed on a ballot according to the 266 
following procedures: 267 

(a)  Applicants shall use an official application form as designated by this law which 268 
may be obtained in the Office of the Nation’s Secretary or from the mailing for that 269 
caucus. 270 
(b)  The application form shall consist of information that satisfies the minimum 271 
requirements for eligible candidates. as described in section 102.5-2 of this law. 272 
(c)  Applications shall be presented to the Nation’s Secretary, or designated agent, 273 
during normal business hours, 8:00 to 4:30 Monday through Friday, but no later than 274 
prior to close of business five (5) business days after the caucus.  The location to drop-275 
off applications shall be identified in the mailing identifying the caucus date. 276 
(d)  The Nation’s Secretary shall forward all applications to the Election Board 277 
Chairperson the next business day following the close of application submissions.   278 

102.6-4.  A person who runs for a position on the Oneida Business Committee, or a position on a 279 
judicial court or commission, shall not run for more than one (1) elective office or seat per election. 280 
 281 
102.7.  Notice of Polling Places 282 
102.7-1.  The Election Board shall post a notice in the prominent locations, stating the location of 283 
the polling places and the time the polls will be open.  This notice shall also be posted in an easily 284 
visible position, close to the entrance of the Nation’s businesses/facilities. 285 
102.7-2.  Polling information shall be posted no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the 286 
election, and shall remain posted until the poll closes on the day of the election. 287 
102.7-3.  Except for a Special Election, notice for the election shall be mailed to all Nation 288 
members, stating the time and place of the election and a sample of the ballot, no less than ten (10) 289 
calendar days prior to the election, through a mass mailing.  The Trust Enrollment Department 290 
shall be notified, by the Election Board Chairperson, no less than twenty (20) calendar days prior 291 
to the requested mailing. 292 
102.7-4.  Notice of the election shall be placed in the Nation’s newspaper. 293 
 294 
102.8.  Registration of Voters 295 
Section A.  Requirements 296 
102.8-1.  Registration of Voters.  All enrolled members of the Nation, who are eighteen (18) years 297 
of age or over, are qualified voters of such election(s) as defined in Article III, Section 2 of the 298 
Oneida Nation Constitution. 299 
 300 
Section B.  Identification of Voters 301 
102.8-2.  All voters must present one of the following picture identifications in order to be able to 302 
vote: 303 

(a)  Oneida Nation I.D. 304 
(b)  Drivers License. 305 

71 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 8 

(c)  Other I.D. with name and photo. 306 
 307 
Section C.  Registration Procedures 308 
102.8-3.  Voters shall physically register, on the day of the election, at the polls. 309 
102.8-4.  Trust Enrollment Department personnel shall be responsible for verifying enrollment 310 
with the Nation.  Conduct of Trust Enrollment Department personnel is governed by the Election 311 
Officials during the voting period. 312 
102.8-5.  Every person who intends to vote must sign his/her name on an official Voter Registration 313 
Form containing the voter’s following information: 314 

(a)  name and maiden name (if any); 315 
(b)  current address; 316 
(c)  date of birth; and 317 
(d)  enrollment number. 318 

 319 
Section D.  Qualification/Verification of Voter Eligibility 320 
102.8-6.  Should a question or dispute arise as to the eligibility of a voter being qualified to vote, 321 
the Judges of the Election Officials appointed by the Election Board Chairperson shall meet with 322 
the Trust Enrollment Department personnel who are registering voters, to decide the voting 323 
member’s eligibility currently being questioned and shall make such decisions from the facts 324 
available, whether the applicant is, in fact, qualified/verifiable under the Oneida Nation 325 
Constitution, Article III Section 2, to vote in the Nation’s elections. 326 
102.8-7.  Any voter denied eligibility shall be allowed to vote, provided that the ballot shall be 327 
placed in an envelope, initialed by two (2) Election Officials, sealed and numbered.  The name of 328 
the voter shall be written next to a numbered list which corresponds to the numbered and sealed 329 
envelope.  The voter shall be required to mail a written appeal to the Election Board at P.O. Box 330 
413, Oneida, Wisconsin, 54155, postmarked within two (2) business days of the election if they 331 
desire to challenge the decision made by the Election Officials.  The Election Board shall make a 332 
final decision, within five (5) business days of receiving the appeal and shall report this decision 333 
in the final report sent to the Oneida Business Committee. 334 
 335 
102.9.  Election Process 336 
Section A.  Polling Places and Times 337 
102.9-1.  In accordance with Article III, Section 5 of the Oneida Nation Constitution, elections 338 
shall be held in the month of July on a date set by the General Tribal Council.  The General Tribal 339 
Council shall set the election date at the January annual meeting, or at the first GTC meeting held 340 
during a given year.  Special Elections shall be set in accordance with 102.12-6. 341 
102.9-2.  Elections shall be held in an Oneida Nation facility(s) as determined by the Election 342 
Board. 343 
102.9-3.  Voting for elections shall begin at 7:00 a.m. and shall end at 7:00 p.m.  All voters in line 344 
to vote at 7:00 p.m. shall be allowed to vote. 345 

(a)  If a ballot counting machine is used, the ballot counting machine shall be prepared 346 
prior to 7:00 a.m. on the day of the election.  The Judges shall open the polls only after four 347 
(4) members of the Nation verify, through signature on the tape, the ballot box is empty 348 
and the ballot counting machine printer tape has a zero (0) total count.  349 

102.9-4.  At least one (1) Oneida Police Officer shall be present during the time the polls are open, 350 

72 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 9 

and until the counting of ballots is completed, and tentative results posted. 351 
102.9-5.  The Election Board shall provide a voting area sufficiently isolated for each voter such 352 
that there is an area with at least two sides and a back enclosure. 353 
102.9-6.  No campaigning of any type shall be conducted within two hundred eighty (280) feet of 354 
the voting area, excluding private property. 355 
102.9-7.  No one causing a disturbance shall be allowed in the voting area. 356 
102.9-8.  Election Board members may restrict the voting area to qualified voters only.  This 357 
restriction is in the interest of maintaining security of the ballots and voting process. 358 
 359 
Section B.  Ballot Box 360 
102.9-9.  All ballots being votes, shall be placed in a receptacle clearly marked "Ballot Box" and 361 
shall be locked until counting at the close of polls.  Provided that, with electronic ballot counting, 362 
the ballots may be placed within the ballot counting machine as they are received. 363 
 364 
Section C.  Spoiled Ballots 365 
102.9-10.  If a voter spoils his/her ballot, he/she shall be given a new ballot. 366 
102.9-11.  The spoiled ballot shall be marked "VOID" and initialed by two (2) Election Officials 367 
and placed in an envelope marked as "Spoiled Ballots." 368 
102.9-12.  The Spoiled Ballot envelopes shall be retained and secured for no less than fifteen (15) 369 
calendar days following finalization of any challenge of the election, at the Records Management 370 
Department. 371 
 372 
Section D.  Rejected Ballots 373 
102.9-13.  Rejected Ballots are to be placed in a specially marked container and sealed. 374 

(a)  Computer rejected ballots shall be reviewed by the Election Officials to verify the 375 
authenticity of the ballot.  Ballots rejected because of mutilation shall be added to the final 376 
computer total, provided that, a new ballot was not received as set out in sections 102.9-10 377 
through 102.9-12. 378 
(b)  Ballots rejected, either during the computer process or during a manual counting, shall 379 
be reviewed by the Election Officials to verify that they are authentic.  If the Election 380 
Officials determine that the ballot is not an official ballot, or that it is an illegal ballot, the 381 
ballot shall be designated ‘void,’ and placed in a sealed container marked “Void Ballots.” 382 

 383 
102.10.  Tabulating and Securing Ballots 384 
Section A.  Machine Counted Ballots 385 
102.10-1.  When ballots are counted by machine, at the close of polls the Judges shall generate 386 
from the ballot counting machine copies of the election totals from the votes cast. 387 
102.10-2.  At least three (3) Election Board members shall sign the election totals, which shall 388 
include the tape signed by the members of the Nation before the polls were opened per section 389 
102.9-3(a). 390 
 391 
Section B.  Manually Counted Ballots 392 
102.10-3.  When ballots are manually counted, at the close of polls the Judges shall unlock the 393 
ballot box and remove the ballots. 394 

73 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 10 

102.10-4.  If the ballots need to be counted at a location other than the polling site, the ballots shall 395 
be secured in a sealed container for transportation to the ballot counting location.  The sealed 396 
ballots shall be transported by an Oneida Police Officer with at least three (3) of the Election 397 
Officials for counting/tallying of ballots. 398 
102.10-5.  The sealed ballots shall be opened at the time of counting by the Election Officials and 399 
witnessed/monitored by an Oneida Police Officer. 400 
102.10-6.  Ballots must be counted by two different Election Officials until two final tallies are 401 
equal in back to back counting.  Final tallies shall be verified by the Election Judges.   402 
 403 
Section C.  Securing Ballots 404 
102.10-7.  The Judges shall place together all ballots counted and secure them together so that they 405 
cannot be untied or tampered with without breaking the seal.  The secured ballots, and the election 406 
totals with the signed tape, if applicable, shall then be secured by the Judges in a sealed container 407 
in such a manner that the container cannot be opened without breaking the seals or locks, or 408 
destroying the container.  The Oneida Police Officer shall then deliver, on the day of the election, 409 
the sealed container to the Records Management Department for retaining. 410 
 411 
102.11.  Election Outcome and Ties 412 
Section A.  Election Results Announcement 413 
102.11-1.  The tentative results of an election shall be announced and posted by the Election Board 414 
within twenty-four (24) hours after the closing of the polls.  Notices of election results shall contain 415 
the following statement: 416 

"The election results posted here are tentative results.  Final election results are forwarded 417 
by the Oneida Election Board to the Oneida Business Committee via a Final Report after 418 
time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all  recounts or challenges 419 
have been completed, whichever is longer” 420 

102.11-2.  The Election Board shall post, in the prominent locations, and publish in the Nation’s 421 
newspaper, the tentative results of an election. 422 
 423 
Section B.  Tie 424 
102.11-3.  In the event of a tie for any office, and where the breaking of a tie is necessary to 425 
determine the outcome of an election, the Election Board shall conduct an automatic recount of 426 
the votes for each candidate receiving the same number of votes.  Any recount conducted shall be 427 
the only recount allowed for the tied candidates. 428 
102.11-4.  For Business Committee positions, a run-off election between the candidates with the 429 
same number of votes shall be held if there remains a tie after the recount.  Said run-off election 430 
shall be held within twenty one (21) calendar days after the recount.  For all other positions, if 431 
there remains a tie after the recount, the Election Board shall decide the winner of the tied positions 432 
at least two (2) business days after, but no more than five (5) business days after the recount 433 
through a lot drawing, which shall be open to the public. 434 

(a)  The Election Board shall notify each of the tied candidates and the public of the date, 435 
time, and place of the drawing at least one (1) business day before the drawing.  Notice to 436 
the tied candidates shall be in writing.  Notice to the public shall be posted by the Election 437 
Board in the prominent locations. 438 
(b)  On the date and at the time and place the drawing was noticed, the Election Board 439 

74 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 11 

Chairperson shall clearly write the name of each tied candidate on separate pieces of paper 440 
in front of any witnesses present.  The pieces of paper shall be the same, or approximately 441 
the same, color, size, and type.  The papers shall be folded in half and placed in a container 442 
selected by the Election Board Chairperson. 443 
(c)  The Election Board Chairperson shall designate an uninterested party to draw a name 444 
from the container.  The candidate whose name is drawn from the container first shall be 445 
declared the winner.  An Election Board member other than the Chairperson shall remove 446 
the remaining pieces of paper from the container and show them to the witnesses present. 447 

 448 
Section C.  Recount Procedures 449 
102.11-5.  A candidate may request the Election Board to complete a recount, provided the margin 450 
between the requesting candidate’s vote total and vote total for the unofficial winner was within 451 
two percent (2%) of the total votes for the office being sought or twenty (20) votes, whichever is 452 
greater.  A candidate requests a recount by hand delivering a written request to the office of the 453 
Nation’s Secretary, or noticed designated agent, within five (5) business days after the election.  454 
Requests shall be limited to one (1) request per candidate.  The Nation’s Secretary shall contact 455 
the Election Board Chairperson by the next business day after the request for recounts. 456 
102.11-6.  The Election Board shall respond by the close of business on the fifth (5th) day after the 457 
request regarding the results of the recount.  Provided that, no recount request need be honored 458 
where there have been two (2) recounts completed as a result of a request either as a recount of the 459 
whole election results, or of that sub-section. 460 
102.11-7.  All recounts shall be conducted manually with, if possible, the original Election 461 
Officials and Oneida Police Officer present, regardless of the original type of counting process.  462 
Manual recounts may, at the discretion of the Election Officials, be of the total election results, or 463 
of the challenged sub-section of the election results. 464 
102.11-8.  The Oneida Police Officer shall be responsible for picking up the locked, sealed 465 
container with the ballots from the Records Management Department and transporting it to the 466 
ballot recounting location. 467 
102.11-9.  A recount shall be conducted by a quorum of the Election Board, including at least three 468 
(3) of the original Election Officials.  The locked, sealed ballots shall be opened by the Election 469 
Board Chairperson and an Oneida Police Officer shall witness the recount. 470 
102.11-10.  Recounting of ballots may be performed manually or by computer. All ballots shall be 471 
counted until two (2) final tallies are equal in back to back counting and the total count of ballots 472 
reconciles with the total count from the ballot counting machine.  Sub-sections of candidates may 473 
be recounted in lieu of a full recount. 474 

(a)  Manually counted ballots shall be recounted by the Election Board.  Ballots shall be 475 
counted twice by different persons and certified by the Judges. 476 
(b)  Computer counted ballots shall be recounted twice and certified by the Judges.  Prior 477 
to using an electronic ballot counting device, it shall be certified as correct either by the 478 
maker, lessor of the machine, or Election Board. 479 

 480 
Section D.  Challenges and Declaration of Results 481 
102.11-11.  Challenges.  Any qualified voter may challenge the results of an election by filing a 482 
complaint with the Judiciary within ten (10) calendar days after the election.  The Judiciary shall 483 
hear and decide a challenge to any election within two (2) business days after the challenge is filed.  484 

75 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 12 

Any appeal to the appellate body of the Judiciary shall be filed within one (1) business day after 485 
the issuance of the lower body’s decision and decided within two (2) business days after the appeal 486 
is filed. 487 

(a)  The person challenging the election results shall prove by clear and convincing 488 
evidence that the Election Law was violated or an unfair election was conducted, and that 489 
the outcome of the election would have been different but for the violation. 490 
(b)  If the Judiciary invalidates the election results, a Special Election shall be ordered by 491 
the Judiciary for the office(s) affected to be held on a date set by the Judiciary for as soon 492 
as the Election Law allows for a Special Election.  493 

102.11-12.  The Final Report.  The Election Board shall forward a Final Report to the Nation’s 494 
Secretary after time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all recounts or challenges 495 
have been completed, whichever is longer.  The Final Report shall consist of the following 496 
information: 497 

(a)  Total number of persons voting. 498 
(b)  Total votes cast for each candidate by subsection of the ballot. 499 
(c)  List of any ties and final results of those ties, including the method of resolution. 500 
(d)  List of candidates elected and position elected to. 501 
(e)  Number of spoiled ballots. 502 
(f)  Cost of the election, including the compensation paid to each Election Board member. 503 

102.11-13.  Declaration of Results.  The Business Committee shall declare the official results of 504 
the election and send notices regarding when the swearing in of newly elected officials shall take 505 
place within ten (10) business days after receipt of the Final Report. 506 
102.11-14.  Candidates elected to the Business Committee shall resign from any salaried position 507 
effective prior to taking a Business Committee oath of office 508 
102.11-15.  Except in the event of an emergency, as determined by the Business Committee, 509 
newly elected officials shall be sworn into office no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the 510 
official results of an election are declared by the Business Committee. 511 

(a)  If a newly elected official is not sworn in within thirty (30) calendar days, the seat shall 512 
be considered vacant and the Election Board shall declare the next highest vote recipient 513 
the winner.  This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until a winner is declared. 514 
(b)  If all vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a 515 
Special Election shall be held. 516 

102.11-16.  The Election Board shall send notice to the Records Management Department to 517 
destroy the ballots thirty (30) calendar days after the election or after the final declaration of official 518 
election results occurs, whichever is longer. 519 
 520 
102.12.  Elections 521 
Section A.  Primary Elections; Business Committee 522 
102.12-1.  When a primary is required under 102.12-2, it shall be held on a Saturday at least sixty 523 
(60) calendar days prior to the election. 524 
102.12-2.  There shall be a primary election for Business Committee positions whenever there are 525 
three (3) or more candidates for any officer positions or sixteen (16) or more candidates for the at-526 
large council member positions. 527 

(a)  The two (2) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for each officer 528 
position shall be placed on the ballot. 529 

76 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 13 

(b)  The fifteen (15) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for the at-large 530 
council member positions shall be placed on the ballot. 531 
(c)  Any position where a tie exists to determine the candidates to be placed on the ballot 532 
shall include all candidates where the tie exists. 533 

102.12-3.  The Election Board shall cancel the primary election if the Business Committee 534 
positions did not draw the requisite number of candidates for a primary by the application deadline 535 
set for the primary. 536 
102.12-4. In the event a candidate withdraws or is unable to run for office after being declared a 537 
winner in the primary, the Election Board shall declare the next highest primary vote recipient the 538 
primary winner.  This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until the ballot is full or until there 539 
are no available candidates.  If the ballot has already been printed, the procedures for notifying the 540 
Oneida public in section 102.5-11 and 102.5-12 shall be followed, including the requirement to 541 
print a notice in the Nation’s newspaper if time lines allow. 542 
 543 
Section B.  Special Elections 544 
102.12-5. Matters subject to a Special Election, i.e., referendum, vacancies, petitions, etc., as 545 
defined in this law, may be placed on the same ballot as the subject matter of an election. 546 
102.12-6. Dates of all Special Elections shall be set, as provided for in this law, by the Business 547 
Committee as recommended by the Election Board or as ordered by the Judiciary in connection 548 
with an election challenge. 549 
102.12-7. Notice of said Special Election shall be posted by the Election Board in the prominent 550 
locations, and placed in the Nation’s newspaper not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the 551 
Special Election. 552 
102.12-8. In the event of an emergency, the Election Board may reschedule the election, provided 553 
that no less than twenty-four (24) hours notice of the rescheduled election date is given to the 554 
voters, by posting notices in the prominent locations. 555 
 556 
Section C.  Referendums 557 
102.12-9. Registered voters may indicate opinions on any development, law or resolution, 558 
proposed, enacted, or directed by the Business Committee, or General Tribal Council, in a  special 559 
referendum election. 560 

(a) Referendum elections in which a majority of the qualified voters who cast votes shall 561 
be binding on the Business Committee to present the issue for action/decision at General 562 
Tribal Council. 563 
(b) Referendum requests may appear on the next called for election. 564 
(c) Referendum questions are to be presented to the Nation’s Secretary, in writing, at the 565 
caucus prior to election, regarding issues directly affecting the Nation or general 566 
membership. 567 

 568 
Section D.  Initiation of Special Elections 569 
102.12-10. Special Elections may be initiated by a request or directive of the General Tribal 570 
Council or the Oneida Business Committee. 571 
102.12-11. Special Election may be requested by a member of the Nation to the Business 572 
Committee or General Tribal Council. 573 
102.12-12. All Special Elections shall follow rules established for all other elections.  This includes 574 

77 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 14 

positions for all Boards, Committees and Commissions. 575 
 576 
102.13. Oneida Nation Constitution and By-law Amendments 577 
102.13-1.  Pursuant to Article VI of the Oneida Nation Constitution, amendments to the Oneida 578 
Nation Constitution and By-laws may be initiated by the Oneida Business Committee or a petition 579 
of qualified voters.  The requirements for the Oneida Business Committee’s initiation of 580 
Constitutional amendments are as provided in the Constitution and as further detailed in the 581 
supporting standard operating procedures which the Oneida Business Committee shall adopt.  582 
Qualified voters may petition to amend the Oneida Nation Constitution and By-laws by submitting 583 
a petition to the Office of the Nation’s Secretary which includes the full text of the proposed 584 
amendments and signatures that are equal in number to at least ten percent (10%) of all members 585 
qualified to vote. 586 

(a) Qualified voters may request a petition form from the Office of the Nation’s Secretary. 587 
(b) When a petition form is requested, the Nation’s Secretary, or his or her designee, shall 588 
direct the Trust Enrollment Department to calculate the number of signatures currently 589 
required for a petition submittal, which shall be ten percent (10%) of all members qualified 590 
to vote on the date the petition form is requested from the Office of the Nation’s Secretary.  591 
When the Nation’s Secretary receives the calculation from the Trust Enrollment 592 
Department, the Nation’s Secretary shall provide the requester with the petition form and 593 
the number of signatures that are currently required.   594 
(c) Such petitions shall be circulated with all supporting materials and submitted a 595 
minimum of ninety (90) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendment is to 596 
be voted upon.  If a petition includes supporting materials in addition to the petition form, 597 
each qualified voter signing the petition shall also acknowledge that the supporting 598 
materials were available for review at the time he or she signed the petition by initialing 599 
where required on the petition form. 600 
(d) The Nation’s Secretary shall forward submitted petitions to the Trust Enrollment 601 
Department for verification of signatures and to the Election Board to provide notice that 602 
the petition may need to be placed on an upcoming ballot. 603 
(e) If the petition is verified by the Trust Enrollment Department to contain signatures from 604 
at least ten percent (10%) of all qualified voters, the Election Board shall make an official 605 
announcement of the proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution at least sixty 606 
(60) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendments are to be voted on. 607 

102.13-2. The Election Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation 608 
Constitution that meet the requirements contained in 102.13-1 on the ballot at the next general 609 
election.  Provided that, the Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council may order a 610 
special election be held to consider the proposed amendments.  In such circumstances, the Election 611 
Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution on the ballot at the 612 
next special election.  613 
102.13-3. The Election Board shall publish any proposed amendments by publishing a sample 614 
ballot no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the election, through a mass mailing.  The Trust 615 
Enrollment Department shall be notified, by the Election Board Chairperson, no less than twenty 616 
(20) calendar days prior to the requested mailing.  Copies of such publications shall be prominently 617 
posted in each polling place and at administrative offices of the Nation and shall also be published 618 
in official Oneida media outlets, which the Oneida Business Committee shall identify by 619 

78 of 400



Draft 1 for Emergency OBC Consideration 
2023 03 08 

1 O.C. 102 – page 15 

resolution.  For the purposes of this section, Oneida administrative offices means the location 620 
where the Oneida Business Committee conducts business. 621 
102.13-4. The Election Board shall ensure that the ballot contains a statement of the purpose of 622 
the proposed amendments prepared by the Oneida Law Office.  The Oneida Law Office shall 623 
ensure that the statement of purpose is one hundred (100) words or less exclusive of caption, is a 624 
true and impartial statement and is written in such a manner that does not create prejudice for or 625 
against the proposed amendment. 626 
102.13-5. Pursuant to Article VI, Section 3 of the Oneida Nation Constitution, proposed 627 
amendments that are approved by sixty-five percent (65%) of the qualified voters that vote on that 628 
amendment shall become part of the Constitution and By-laws, and shall abrogate or amend 629 
existing provisions of the Constitution and By-laws at the end of thirty (30) days after  submission 630 
of the final election report.   631 
102.13-6. If two (2) or more amendments approved by the voters at the same election conflict, the 632 
amendment receiving the highest affirmation vote prevails. 633 
 634 
End. 635 
 636  637 
Adopted - June 19, 1993 638 
Amended - June 28, 1995 (Adopted by BC on Behalf of GTC, Completion of Agenda) 639 
Presented for Adoption of 1997 Revisions - GTC-7-6-98-A 640 
Amended- October 11, 2008 (General Tribal Council Meeting) 641 
Amended-GTC-01-04-10-A 642 
Amended – BC-02-25-15-C 643 
Amended – GTC-04-23-17-A 644 
Emergency Amended – BC-03-17-20-B 645 
Emergency Amended – BC-05-13-20-H 646 
Emergency Amended – BC-06-24-20-B (Expired at Conclusion of 2020 General Election) 647 
Emergency Amended – BC-04-28-21-B (Expired) 648 
Emergency Amended – BC-07-13-22-E 649 
Emergency Amended – BC-12-28-22-B 650 
Emergency Amended – BC-__-__-__-__ 651 

79 of 400



Page 1 of 5 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

Legislative Operating Committee 
March 1, 2023 

Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Amendments     

Submission Date: 2/6/19 Public Meeting: 1/12/23 

LOC Sponsor:   Marie Summers Emergency Enacted: 11/24/21, 5/11/22, 
11/7/22 

Summary:  This item was carried over from last term. This request for amendments to the Oneida
Personnel Policies and Procedures was added to the AFL in February 2019. The purpose of the Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures is to provide the various procedures and policies governing employee 
related matters including recruitment, selection, compensation and benefits, employee relations, safety 
and health, rules and regulations, recordkeeping, and privacy and confidentiality. The Nation’s Human 
Resources Department requested amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures to 
address investigative enforcement. Amendments are being sought to delegate authority to investigators to 
put employees on investigative leave (as opposed to just the supervisor of the employee), and discipline 
employees. An amendment was also sought so that if terminated, an employee would be ineligible for 
employment with the Nation, but may request forgiveness after five (5) years. This item was added to the 
AFL in conjunctions with a request for amendments to the Investigative Leave Policy and the Workplace 
Violence law.  On April 10, 2019, the Oneida Business Committee directed the LOC to complete the 
legislative process to remove section IV(A)(5)(n) regarding Trade Back for Cash from the Personnel 
Policies and Procedures. On August 18, 2021, the Legislative Operating Committee considered a request 
for amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures from the Human Resources Department 
to address the selection policy in an effort to update the Personnel Policies & Procedures using current 
interpretations, language and technology to improve minimize the time to hire employees from post to hire 
in a tight labor market. The Legislative Operating Committee determined these amendments should be 
pursued on an emergency basis for the immediate preservation of the general welfare of the Reservation 
population. The Oneida Business Committee adopted emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel 
Policies and Procedures to address the selection policies on November 24, 2021, through the adoption of 
resolution BC-11-24-21-A. The emergency amendments will expire on May 24, 2022. The Oneida Business 
Committee adopted additional emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 
to clarify inconsistencies that arose as a result of the last emergency amendments on May 11, 2022, 
through the adoption of resolution BC-05-11-22-A. The emergency amendments will now expire on 
November 11, 2022. The Oneida Business Committee extended the emergency amendments to the Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures for an additional six (6) month period on November 7, 2022, through 
the adoption of resolution BC-11-07-22-A. The emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies 
and Procedures will now expire on May 11, 2023. 

10/7/20 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 
Amendments to the Active Files List with Marie Summers as the sponsor; seconded by Kirby 
Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously. 

80 of 400

"' =DODDOO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

8/18/21 LOC: Motion by Marie Summers to accept the information provided in the request [request for 
amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures to address the revision of the 
HRD Manager Title] as FYI; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
 Motion by Marie Summers to accept for emergency LOC process [request for amendments to 

the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures to address the selection process] with Marie 
Summers as the sponsor; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
9/13/21: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen 

Vanlanen, Geraldine Danforth, Todd Vandenheuvel, Barbara Kolitsch, Josh Cottrell, Nic 
Reynolds, Wendy Alvarez, Kristal Hill, Matt Denny, Rhiannon Metoxen, Melinda K. 
Danforth, Rita Reiter. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose 
of this work meeting was to review and discuss the proposed emergency amendments to the 
Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures submitted by the HRD Department. 

 
9/15/21: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster, Kirby 

Metoxen, Marie Summers, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Rhiannon Metoxen, 
Kristal Hill. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this 
work meeting was to review and discuss the proposed emergency amendments to the Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures submitted by the HRD Department. 

 
10/12/21: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster, Marie 

Summers, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Rhiannon Metoxen, Kristal Hill, Todd 
Vandenheuvel, Josh Cottrell, Nic Reynolds, Wendy Alvarez, Matt Denny, Melinda K. 
Danforth, Rita Reiter. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose 
of this work meeting was to review and discuss with HRD the LOC’s proposed emergency 
amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
10/18/21: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster, Marie 

Summers, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Kristal Hill, Todd Vandenheuvel, Josh 
Cottrell, Wendy Alvarez, Matt Denny, Rita Reiter. This was a work meeting held through 
Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to continue reviewing and discussing 
with HRD the LOC’s proposed emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures. 

 
10/21/21: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Wendy Alvarez. This was a 

work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to work 
on clarifying the internal job posting section of the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
10/25/21: Work Meeting. Present: Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster, Marie Summers, Clorissa N. 

Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Kristal Hill, Todd Vandenheuvel, Josh Cottrell, Wendy Alvarez, 
Dana Thyssen, Lucy Neville, Nic Reynolds. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft 
Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to review an updated draft of the proposed 
emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
11/4/21:  Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer 

Webster, Marie Summers, Lisa Liggins, Brandon Yellowbird Stevens, Tehassi Hill, Cristina 
Danforth, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Kristal Hill, Rhiannon Metoxen, Todd 
Vandenheuvel, Lucy Neville, Nic Reynolds, Rita Reiter, and Matthew Denny. This was a 
work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting with the 
officers of the Oneida Business Committee and Human Resources Department was to discuss 
the potential for emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures and 
whether the emergency legislation standard provided in the LPA has been met. 

 

81 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

11/9/21: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman 
King, Marie Summers, Clorissa N. Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Carmen Vanlanen, Kristal Hill. 
This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting 
was to review the updated proposed emergency amendments. 

 
11/17/21 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures emergency 

amendments adoption packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for 
consideration; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
11/24/21 OBC: Motion by Brandon Stevens to adopt resolution 11-24-21-A Emergency Amendments to the 

Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures - Selection Policy, seconded by Lisa Liggins. 
Motion carried. 

 
11/30/21: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Todd Vandenheuvel, Matthew Denny. This was 

a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to 
discuss some questions HRD had on the implementation of the emergency amendments. 

 
12/15/21: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Marie 

Summers, Clorissa N. Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Carmen Vanlanen. This was a work meeting 
held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss a strategy on 
how to move forward the permanent adoption of amendments to this Law.  

 
2/21/22: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa N. Santiago, Todd Vandenheuvel. This was a work meeting 

held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to briefly discuss the 
purpose of next Thursday’s work meeting between the LOC and HRD. 

 
2/24/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel Guzman King, Marie 

Summers, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen, Kristal Hill, Rhiannon Metoxen, Todd 
Vandenheuvel, Nic Reynolds, Matthew Denny, Josh Cottrell, Wendy Alvarez. This was a 
work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to begin 
discussions on a potential plan for permanent amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies 
and Procedures. The LOC and HRD discussed and began determining a ranking of potential 
issues to be amended in the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures to be addressed through 
phased amendments. 

 
4/20/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Marie Summers, Jennifer 

Webster, Clorissa N. Santiago, Carmen Vanlanen. This was a work meeting held through 
Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss a plan for brining minor 
additional emergency amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures to the 
May 4, 2022, LOC meeting. 

 
5/4/22 LOC: Motion by Marie Summers to approve the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 

emergency amendments adoption packet and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for 
consideration; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
5/11/22 OBC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to adopt resolution entitled 05-11-22-A Additional Emergency 

Amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures - Selection Policy, seconded 
by Lisa Liggins. Motion carried. 

 
6/8/22 OBC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to support the designation of June 19 as an Oneida Nation paid 

holiday for the Juneteenth National Independence Day and forward to the Legislative 
Operating Committee for review, seconded by David P. Jordan. Motion carried. 

 

82 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

6/15/22 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to accept the request as information to be discussed during the  
current development of amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures; 
seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
7/15/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Clorissa N. Santiago, Kristal 

Hill, Todd Vandenheuvel, Nic Reynolds, Matthew Denny, Wendy Alvarez, Grace Elliot, 
Carolyn Salutz. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this 
work meeting was to review two options for how to approach the permanent amendments to 
the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
8/31/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster, Clorissa N. 

Santiago, Todd Vandenheuvel, Nic Reynolds, Matthew Denny, Wendy Alvarez, Josh Cottrell, 
Whitney Wheelock, Grace Elliott, Carolyn Salutz, Rhiannon Metoxen. This was a work 
meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to continue the 
discussion of permanent amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures and 
identify other areas within the law that should be amended in addition to Section III. 

 
10/19/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster, Kirby 

Metoxen, Marie Cornelius, Clorissa N. Leeman, Todd Vandenheuvel, Nic Reynolds, Matthew 
Denny, Wendy Alvarez, Josh Cottrell, Whitney Wheelock, Grace Elliott, Carolyn Salutz, 
Rhiannon Metoxen, Kristal Hill. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The 
purpose of this work meeting was to review the draft of proposed permanent amendments to 
the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
11/2/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Clorissa N. Leeman, Todd 

Vandenheuvel, Nic Reynolds, Matthew Denny, Wendy Alvarez, Josh Cottrell, Whitney 
Wheelock, Grace Elliott, Carolyn Salutz, Rhiannon Metoxen, Kristal Hill. This was a work 
meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to continue 
reviewing the draft of proposed permanent amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures. 

 
11/3/22: E-Poll Conducted. This e-poll was titled, “Extension of the Emergency Amendments to the 

Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures.” The requested action of this e-poll was to approve 
the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures emergency amendments extension packet and 
forward to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration. This e-poll was approved by 
David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Marie Cornelius, Jennifer Webster, and Daniel Guzman 
King. 

 
11/7/22: OBC E-Poll Conducted. This e-poll was titled, “Adopt the resolution entitled Extension of the 

Emergency Amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures.” The requested 
action of this e-poll was to adopt the resolution entitled, Extension of the Emergency 
Amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. This e-poll was approved by 
Daniel Guzman King, David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster. 

 
11/23/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Marie Cornelius, Daniel Guzman 

King, Clorissa N. Leeman, Todd Vandenheuvel, Matthew Denny, Josh Cottrell, Whitney 
Wheelock, Grace Elliott, Carolyn Salutz. This was a work meeting held through Microsoft 
Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to review the updated draft of proposed 
permanent amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
12/1/22: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Marie Cornelius, Daniel Guzman 

King, Clorissa N. Leeman, Grace Elliott, Carolyn Salutz, Kristal Hill. This was a work 
meeting held through Microsoft Teams. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss 

83 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

potential timelines for bringing the proposed amendments to the General Tribal Council for 
consideration. 

 
12/7/22 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the draft of the Oneida Personnel Policies and 

Procedures amendments, the legislative analysis, and the public meeting notice with updated 
date, and forward the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures amendments to a public 
meeting to be held on January 12, 2023; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 Motion by Marie Cornelius to enter into the record the results of the November 3, 2022, e-

poll entitled,  Extension of the Emergency Amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
1/12/23: Public Meeting Held. Present: Jennifer Webster, Clorissa N. Leeman, Carolyn Salutz, Grace 

Elliott, Bonnie Pigman, Microsoft Teams: Daniel Guzman King, Terri Schiltz, Nicholas 
Metoxen, Whitney Wheelock, Rita Reiter, Lora Danforth. Stefanie Reinke, Wendy Alvarez, 
Laurel Meyerspooner, Peggy Van Gheem, Tina Jorgensen, Chad Fuss, Sidney White, Louise 
Cornelius, Kelly McAndrews, Lori Metoxen, Laura Laitinen-Warren, Karen Smith, Kathe 
Cornelius, Artley Skenandore, Michelle Hill, Melanie Burkhart, Michelle Tipple, Jessica 
Vandekamp, Kelly Skenandore-Holtz, Reynold Danforth, Henrietta Cornelius, Racquel Hill, 
Gregory Matson, Lavina Cornelius, Lisa Rauschenbach, Grace Delgado, Mark Powless, Eric 
Boulanger, Matthew J. Denny, Debra Santiago, Kara Melchert, Debra Danforth, Lori Hill, 
Kristal Hill, Carrie Lindsey, Todd Vanden Heuvel, Trina Schuyler, Gunladunt Webster, 
Sharon Mousseau, Monica Doxtator, Michelle Braaten, Mari Kriescher, Kristen Jorgenson-
Dann, Joy Salzwedel, Michelle Demmin, Lucy Neville, Danielle White, Mary Graves. The 
public meeting for the proposed amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 
was held in person in the Norbert Hill Center and on Microsoft Teams. Seven (7) individuals 
provided public comment during the public meeting. 

 
1/19/23: Public Comment Period Closed. Fourteen (14) submissions of written comments were 

received during the public comment period. 
 
 
Next Steps: 
 Accept the public comments and the public comment review memorandum and defer to a 

work meeting for further consideration. 

84 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 1 of 184 
 

Oneida Nation 
Legislative Operating Committee 

Legislative Reference Office 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  
   
 
 
TO:  Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) 
FROM: Clorissa N. Leeman, Legislative Reference Office, Senior Staff Attorney 
DATE:  March 1, 2023 
RE: Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments: Public Comment Review  
 
On January 12, 2023, a public meeting was held regarding the proposed amendments to the Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures (“the Law”). The public comment period was then held open 
until January 19, 2023. This memorandum is submitted as a review of the comments received 
during the public meeting and public comment period. The public meeting draft, public meeting 
transcript, and written comments received are attached to this memorandum for review. 
 
Comments 1 through 5 – Definition of Immediate Family: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

2. Funeral Leave  (Work Standard, 8-2-11) 
a. All regular employees will be given a five (5) day leave without loss of 
pay for funeral services for immediate family.  Immediate family includes: 
Husband  Mother  Brother Great-grandparent 
Wife   Father   Sister  Great-grandchildren 
Mother-in-law Son   Grandparents  
Spouse’s great-grandparents  Father-in-law  Daughter 
Grandchild  Spouse’s grandparents   Daughter-in-law 
Sister-in-law Brother-in-law   
b. Five (5) day leave for other persons will be given only if the employee 
is responsible for making funeral arrangements, subject to prior approval of 
supervisor. 
c. All other funeral leave will be limited to three (3) hours with pay subject 
to the notification and approval of the immediate supervisor. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (oral): Tina Jorgensen. I have a couple of questions and then two comments. I 
want to know, well one of, one thing that is not included in the current Personnel Policies and 
Procedures for immediate family definition does not include aunt and uncle. And I believe that as 
an important part of our families. So, I feel this should be added to the Personnel Policies and 
Procedures. 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): Funeral leave – Aunts and uncles are considered with high regard in 
families and play a role in a child’s life traditionally. Aunt and Uncle should be added to the 
immediate family list for funeral leave. 
 
 

 

HANDOUT 

85 of 400

"' =DODDOO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

Page 2 of 184 
 

Lisa Rauschenbach (written): Other Changes: Aunt/Uncle should be included in immediate 
family. It should also be clear if step-children, grand-children and parents are included in the 
immediate family. 
 
Mark Powless (written):  
726 a. All regular employees will be given a three (3five (5) day leave without loss of pay for 
727 funeral services for immediate family. Immediate family includes: 
728 Husband Mother Brother Great-grandparent 
729 Wife Father Sister Great-grandchildren 
730 Mother-in-law Son Grandparent Spouse’s great-grandparents 
731 Father-in-law Daughter Grandchild Spouse’s grandparents 
732 Daughter-in-law Sister-in-law Brother-in-law 
 
• Extend the definition of ‘immediate family’ to include Aunts and Uncles 
 
Jessica Vandekamp (written):  3. Funeral Leave 

• Add other relationships, such as; step-, adopted, civil unions, life partner. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters requests that the definition for “immediate family” included in section IV.D.2.a 
of the Law be expanded. 
 
Currently, the Law discusses immediate family in regard to funeral leave, and provides that all 
regular employees will be given a five (5) day leave without loss of pay for funeral services for 
immediate family, which includes the following individuals: 
 Husband; 
 Wife; 
 Mother ; 
 Father;  
 Brother; 
 Sister;  
 Son; 
 Daughter; 
 Grandparent; 
 Great-grandparent; 
 Grandchild;  
 Great-grandchild; 
 Mother-in-law;  
 Father-in-law;  
 Daughter-in-law; 
 Son-in-law; 
 Sister-in-law;  
 Brother-in-law; 
 Spouse’s grandparents; and 
 Spouse’s great-grandparents.  

86 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 3 of 184 
 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to 
these comments: 

1. The definition of immediate family as provided for in section IV.D.2.a of the Law shall 
remain as currently drafted.  

2. The definition of immediate family as provided for in section IV.D.2.a of the Law should 
be expanded. The Legislative Operating Committee will need to determine how to 
expend the definition of immediate family, and whether it should include aunts or uncles, 
step-family, or life partners. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 6  through 9 – Support of Funeral Leave Provisions: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

2. Funeral Leave  (Work Standard, 8-2-11) 
a. All regular employees will be given a five (5) day leave without loss of 
pay for funeral services for immediate family.  Immediate family includes: 
Husband  Mother  Brother Great-grandparent 
Wife   Father   Sister  Great-grandchildren 
Mother-in-law Son   Grandparents  
Spouse’s great-grandparents  Father-in-law  Daughter 
Grandchild  Spouse’s grandparents   Daughter-in-law 
Sister-in-law Brother-in-law   
b. Five (5) day leave for other persons will be given only if the employee 
is responsible for making funeral arrangements, subject to prior approval of 
supervisor. 
c. All other funeral leave will be limited to three (3) hours with pay subject 
to the notification and approval of the immediate supervisor. 

 
Artley Skenandore (oral): Uh, just a, a statement relative to reading the executive summary. I 
did want to acknowledge the a, the bereavement expansion from three (3) to five (5)year, uhh three 
(3) days to five (5) days as a, as a very appropriate response to assist in the uh, in the development 
of our community overall. And looking across the country, many, many tribal nations are walking 
along this same path, and it certainly should be something that the rest of corporate America should 
look at relative to offering that opportunity of encouragement to support families. So, I just wanted 
to acknowledge that and make mention of uhh, that's a step in the, in a good direction for our 
community. 
 
Lisa Rauschenbach (written):  Positive Changes: Extending funeral time from 3 days to 5 days. 
 

87 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 4 of 184 
 

Jessica Vandekamp (written):  3. Funeral Leave 
• Agree with 5 days for immediate family. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section IV.D.2., Leaves 
The current OPPP allow regular employees a three-day leave of absence upon the death of an 
immediate family member or, upon approval of a supervisor, upon the death of other persons if 
the employee is responsible for funeral arrangements. (OPPP Section IV.D.2.) The proposed 
amendments extend the length of funeral leave in both cases to five days. (OPPP Amendments, 
Draft 1, lines 527-536) 
 
In all other circumstances, the current OPPP provide up to one day of funeral leave. (OPPP 
IV.D.2.c.) The proposed amendments shorten permissible leave to three hours when the employee 
is neither an immediate family member nor responsible for funeral arrangements of the deceased. 
(OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 537-538) Proposed changes to the Leaves section of the OPPP 
present no legal issues. 
 
Response 
 
Overall, the commenters express support for, or do not identify any issues with, the proposed 
amendments to Section IV.D.2. of the Law regarding funeral leave. 
 
There is no action needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on these comments. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 10 – Expansion of Funeral Leave for  Assisting with a Funeral: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

2. Funeral Leave  (Work Standard, 8-2-11) 
a. All regular employees will be given a five (5) day leave without loss of 
pay for funeral services for immediate family.  Immediate family includes: 
Husband  Mother  Brother Great-grandparent 
Wife   Father   Sister  Great-grandchildren 
Mother-in-law Son   Grandparents  
Spouse’s great-grandparents  Father-in-law  Daughter 
Grandchild  Spouse’s grandparents   Daughter-in-law 
Sister-in-law Brother-in-law   
b. Five (5) day leave for other persons will be given only if the employee 
is responsible for making funeral arrangements, subject to prior approval of 
supervisor. 

88 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 5 of 184 
 

c. All other funeral leave will be limited to three (3) hours with pay subject 
to the notification and approval of the immediate supervisor. 

 
Jessica Vandekamp (written):  3. Funeral Leave 

• Consider adding: an employee who works the funeral (prepares & serves food, etc.). 
 

Response 
 
The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider adding a provision to 
the Law that expands the amount of funeral leave provided to an employee who works the funeral, 
such as someone who prepares and serves food. 
 
Currently, Section IV.D.2.b of the Law provides that five (5) day leave for persons not the 
immediate family of the deceased will be given only if the employee is responsible for making 
funeral arrangements, subject to prior approval of supervisor. If not making funeral arrangements 
and not a member of the immediate family, section IV.D.2.c of the Law limits paid funeral leave 
to three (3) hours.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether the Law should be expanded to 
address an employee who is not necessarily responsible for making funeral arrangements for the 
deceased, but is still assisting with the funeral in some capacity. The Legislative Operating 
Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to these comments: 

1. The provisions on funeral leave as provided for in section IV.D.2 of the Law shall remain 
as currently drafted.  

2. The provisions on funeral leave as provided for in section IV.D.2 of the Law should be 
expanded to address an employee who is not necessarily responsible for making funeral 
arrangements for the deceased, but is still assisting with the funeral in some capacity.  The 
Legislative Operating Committee will need to determine how to address the funeral leave 
of an employee who assists with a funeral.  

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 11 through 12 – Maternity Leave: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 
4. Maternity Leave 

a. Maternity leave will be granted for a period of six (6) weeks without pay. 
1) An employee may elect to cover any portion of this time by using 
accumulated sick days. 
2) Any maternity-related absences for longer than six (6) weeks must be 
taken as a medical leave of absence. 

89 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 6 of 184 
 

 
Jessica Vandekamp (written): 4. Maternity Leave • Add: to allow up to 12 weeks for maternity 
leave 
 
Mark Powless (written):  
757 4. Maternity Leave 
758 a. Maternity leave will be granted for a period of six (6) weeks without pay. 
759 1) An employee may elect to cover any portion of this time by using accumulated 
760 sick days. 
761 2) Any maternity-related absences for longer than six (6) weeks must be taken as a 
762 medical leave of absence. 
 
• To be reflective of our cultural values and high regard for our women and the family unit, provide 
paid maternity leave. This will help to reduce stress for our families and allow attention to focus 
on the newborn. Our community is our workforce and our workforce is our community. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters requests that the Nation reconsider how maternity leave is addressed in section 
IV.D.4.a of the Law. One commenter requests that the leave of six (6) weeks without pay be 
extended to twelve (12) weeks. The other commenter requests that maternity leave be paid to better 
reflect the Nation’s cultural values and high regard for women and children. 
 
Currently the Law provides that maternity leave will be granted for a period of six (6) weeks 
without pay. [OPPP Section IV.D.4.a.]. An employee may elect to cover any portion of this time 
by using accumulated sick days. [OPPP Section IV.D.4.a.1.]. Any maternity-related absences for 
longer than six (6) weeks must be taken as a medical leave of absence. [OPPP Section IV.D.4.a.2.]. 
 
In the development of these current proposed amendments the Legislative Operating Committee 
did not consider whether maternity leave should be addressed or revised. The Legislative 
Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations: 

1. Section IV.D.4.a of the Law shall remain as currently drafted with maternity leave granted 
for a period of six (6) weeks without pay.  

2. Section IV.D.4.a of the Law should be revised updated to address how the Nation handles 
maternity leave. The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether to expand 
the time allowed for maternity leave, or provide that maternity leave be paid instead of 
unpaid.  

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 13 through 16 – Indian Preference and the Haudenosaunee Community: 
 

90 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 7 of 184 
 

SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
A. ONEIDA PREFERENCE AND INDIAN PREFERENCE STATEMENT OF 
POLICY 
The Oneida Nation is an equal employment opportunity employer and follows non-
discriminatory policies and procedures in personnel decisions. The Oneida Nation exists to 
serve the needs of the Oneida people and therefore accords Oneida Preference to enrolled 
members of the Oneida Nation where such preference is not otherwise prohibited.  All 
General Managers and top administrative positions, as defined by HRD in a standard 
operating procedure, shall be held by enrolled members of the Oneida Nation. In all other 
instances, the Nation applies the following priorities of Indian Preference in staffing 
decisions: 
1 Enrolled members of the Oneida Nation; 
2 Individuals eligible for enrollment in the Oneida Nation; 
3 Documented first generation descendants of the Oneida Nation; 
4 Members or descendants of a federally recognized tribe; 
5 Other (non-Indian).  
 
B. HIRING PROCEDURE 

1 Statement of Policy  
a. The Oneida Nation is an equal employment opportunity employer and 
follows nondiscriminatory policies in hiring. 
b. The Oneida Nation is a firm advocate of the 1964 Civil Rights Act (as 
amended) and the 1968 Indian Civil Rights Act (as amended) and will make 
every effort to ensure compliance with each Act; however: 
c. The Oneida Nation follows the principles of Indian Preference in the 
implementation of hiring practices (see the Oneida Preference and Indian 
Preference Statement of Policy). 

 
Tina Jorgensen (oral): And I'd like somewhere I don't know if it's an Indian preference law, 
probably. But we have a large community of members that are not Oneida or not considered 
Oneida enrolled because they live in Canada. And they could be interested in applying for our 
positions, specifically in Cultural Heritage, and I'd like for somehow Haudenosaunee communities 
or community members to be considered as part of our Indian preference. Currently, we only can 
post Oneida enrolled only or not. And I would like Oneida enrolled only at least to include those 
communities, or have the ability to post for those to include those communities. Those are my 
questions and comments. 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): Please include the following in the comments for the proposed law 
amendments of the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
Section III – Selection Policy 
• Currently, you can post for Oneida enrolled only or open to all. I would like to add the following 
categories: 

o Six Nations tribal members or Haudenosaunee or Confederacy something to that effect 
o All enrolled tribal members from a federally recognized tribe. 

 

91 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 8 of 184 
 

Tina Jorgensen (written): Additionally, I think our Oneida family members in Canada that are 
not considered “federally recognized” should be considered eligible for enrollment and listed 
somewhere or defined in the policies. 
 
Mark Powless (written): Line Specific Comments 

253 The Oneida Nation exists to serve the needs of the Oneida people and 
254 therefore accords Oneida Preference to enrolled members of the Oneida Nation 
255 Members where such preference is not otherwise prohibited. 
 
• Extend Oneida Preference to all members of the Haudenosaunee. We have a shared 
history, culture, and family lines. Our ancestors took great measures to preserve the unity 
of the Haudenosaunee. Our hiring practices should reflect who we are as a people. 

 
Response 
 
The commenters express a desire to have the Legislative Operating Committee reconsider the 
Nation’s Indian Preference in staffing decisions to be more inclusive of all members of the 
Haudenosaunee.  
 
The Law provides that the Nation applies the following priorities of Indian Preference in staffing 
decisions: 

1. Enrolled members of the Oneida Nation; 
2. Individuals eligible for enrollment in the Oneida Nation; 
3. Documented first generation descendants of the Oneida Nation; 
4. Members or descendants of a federally recognized tribe; 
5. Other (non-Indian). [OPPP Section III.A]. 

 
Enrolled members of the Oneida Nation receive the highest level of preference, while members or 
descendants of other federally recognized tribes receive preference just above other non-Indians. 
Members of Haudenosaunee nations – such as the Mohawk, Onondaga, Cayuga, Seneca and 
Tuscarora – would currently be considered in the “members or descendants of a federally 
recognized tribe” category of preference. The commenters first look for consideration from the 
Legislative Operating Committee that general Indian Preference in staffing be revised so that all 
members of Haudenosaunee be provided the same preference as enrolled members of the Oneida 
Nation. 
 
The commenters also look specifically at how job postings are made within the Nation and suggest 
that the process be revised to better include all members of the Haudenosaunee. Originally the 
Law provided that unless otherwise prohibited by external grant source or federal law, the first 
posting for a position vacancy shall be limited to enrolled Oneida members and shall be posted for 
a minimum of seven (7) calendar days, while the second posting for a position vacancy shall be 
posted for a minimum of ten (10) calendar days and shall be open to the general public, unless the 
position must be filled by an enrolled Oneida Nation member. To improve the Nation’s hiring 
capacity and service delivery in the tight labor markets that resulted from the COVID-19 pandemic 
the Oneida Business Committee adopted emergency amendments to the Law through resolution 
BC-11-24-21-A which eliminated the requirement that a position vacancy be posted twice with the 

92 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 9 of 184 
 

first posting open to enrolled members of the Nation only and the second posting open to the 
general public and required instead that applicants who are enrolled members of the Oneida Nation 
be screened and interviewed prior to any other applicants.  
 
The proposed amendments to the Law eliminate much of the process and procedures currently 
contained in the law regarding the hiring and selection process, and instead provides that the HRD 
Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking 
law to develop rules regarding procedures for the hiring and selection of employees of the Nation. 
[Section III(B)(2)(c)]. Utilizing the Administrative Rulemaking law for the promulgation of rules 
regarding the hiring and selection process instead of including this information in the law itself 
provides greater flexibility to the Human Resources Department to develop rules that best meet 
the needs of the Nation in its current circumstances. These rules could address how postings are 
made to better include all members of Haudenosaunee. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to 
these comments: 

1. The priorities of Indian Preference in staffing decisions as provided in Section III.A of the 
Law shall remain as currently drafted. 

2. The priorities of Indian Preference in staffing decisions as provided in Section III.A of the 
Law should be revised to be more inclusive of all members of the Haudenosaunee. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether all members of the 
Haudenosaunee should receive the same level of preference as members of the Oneida 
Nation, or how preference is utilized in the postings of vacant job positions. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 17 – Removal of the Wage Deduction for Probationary Employees: 
 
SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
D. ORIGINAL PROBATION 
The first three (3) months after an employee's starting date after being hired, transferred, 
or reassigned shall be considered a period of probation.  At the end of six (6) weeks, the 
employee's performance shall be reviewed with them by the supervisor by completing an 
employee evaluation. At the end of the three (3) month probation period, a second 
performance evaluation shall be conducted.  This evaluation shall recommend the end of 
probation and regular status for the employee, an extension of probation, or termination for 
cause. 

1. Status as a Probationary Employee 
a. Probationary employees shall accrue vacation and personal days 
during the probation period and shall receive holiday pay.  
b. Probationary employees may be terminated for cause at any time 
during the probation period.  Cause shall consist of a violation of policies or 

93 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 10 of 184 
 

the documented inability of the employee to perform the duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
c. Termination of an employee for cause during their original 
probationary period shall not be subject to appeal. 

 
Michelle Tipple (oral): And then the second comment is I support removing the wage deduction 
from probationary employees because of the challenge in recruiting right now for our workforce. 
Thank you. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter expresses support for the removal of the wage deduction for probationary 
employees. Previously, the Law provided that probationary employees will be paid at five percent 
(5%) below the posted pay rate for the position and that new employees hired under a negotiated 
salary will receive a salary one step below the agreed upon salary during the probationary period. 
To improve the Nation’s hiring capacity and service delivery in the tight labor markets that resulted 
from the COVID-19 pandemic the Oneida Business Committee adopted emergency amendments 
to the Law through resolution BC-11-24-21-A which removed the provision that provided 
probationary employees be paid at five percent (5%) below the posted pay rate for the position 
The proposed amendments to the Law remove this provision on a permanent basis. 
 
There is no action or consideration needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on this 
comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 18 through 21 – Non-Payment of Personal and Vacation time for a Probationary 
Employee: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 
5. Vacation/Personal Days 

h. Upon termination from Oneida Nation employment, employees will be paid 
for any unused personal and/or vacation days. 

1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan program 
will be required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 
2) Employees who are terminated during their original probation period 
shall not be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in their 
final paycheck. 

 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 661 If an employee quits in the first 90 days do they received 
PTO payout? If so, can they add “Employees who resign or are terminated during …..” 

94 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 11 of 184 
 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section IV.A.5., 
Vacation/Personal Days 
 
The current OPPP provides that all employees are paid out for unused personal and vacation time 
upon separation from employment. (OPPP Section IV.A.5.h.) The proposed amendments disallow 
payout of personal or vacation time to employees “who are terminated during their original 
probation period.” (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 463-464) The amendments do not 
distinguish between probationary employees who are “terminated” and those who are separated 
for other reasons, such as a quit. It is unclear whether the word “terminated” is used to mean any 
separation of a probationary employee from their employment or if it means, very specifically, 
termination. This should be clarified, perhaps through use of the word “separated” in place of 
“terminated.” 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): 4) Clarify the statement to 
include separations (e.g., quit, job abandonment, etc.).  

 
661 2) Employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall not 662 
be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck 

 
Shannon Stone (written): Accrued Personal and Vacation time: Lines 661 and 662 state, 
Employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall not be paid for any 
unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck. 
 
I don’t understand the need to not pay a terminated employee the compensation they earned. This 
seems contrary to our values and promotes an undesired behavior of not saving time off for 
emergencies. This could create an economic problem in the future if an employee is injured or sick 
but is always keeping their accrual balance at or near zero, and therefore has no safety net to get 
through the emergency. 
 
Response 
 
One commenter questions whether an employee who resigns during their original probation period 
receives pay for any unused accrued vacation or personal time.  
  
Previously, the Law provided that employees who are terminated during the probation period will 
receive credit for accrued vacation/personal days in their final paycheck. To improve the Nation’s 
hiring capacity and service delivery in the tight labor markets that resulted from the COVID-19 
pandemic the Oneida Business Committee adopted emergency amendments to the Law through 
resolution BC-11-24-21-A which eliminated Section III.D.3.b which stated that employees who 
are terminated during the probationary period will receive credit for accrued vacation/personal 
days in their final paycheck. Then additional emergency amendments to the Law were made 
through resolution BC-05-11-22-A to clarify an inconsistency that was erroneously made with 
Section IV.A.5.h with the prior emergency amendments. Section IV.A.5.h of the Oneida Personnel 
Policies and Procedures stated that upon termination from Oneida Nation employment, employees 
will be paid for any unused personal and/or vacation days. This additional emergency amendment 

95 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 12 of 184 
 

clarified that employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall not be paid 
for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck. [Section IV.A.5.h.2]. 
 
The proposed emergency amendments to the Law now provide in section IV.A.5.h.2 of the Law 
that employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall not be paid for any 
unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck. The intent behind this provisions 
was that an employee should only be eligible to receive credit for any vacation or personal time 
accrued once they make it beyond their probationary status and become a regular employee of the 
Nation. To better reflect the original intent of this provision of the Law the following revision is 
recommended: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 
5. Vacation/Personal Days 

h. Upon resignation, separation, or termination from Oneida Nation employment, 
employees will be paid for any unused personal and/or vacation days. 

1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan program will 
be required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 
2) Employees who are separated or terminated, or resign during their original 
probation period shall not be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days 
in their final paycheck. 

 
The other commenter expresses concern that it is poor practice to not pay a terminated employee 
the compensation they earned as this seems contrary to our values and promotes an undesired 
behavior of not saving time off for emergencies. It is important to note that section IV.A.5.h.2 of 
the Law provides that employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall 
not be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck. So if an 
employee makes it beyond their probationary period then section IV.A.5.h of the Law provides 
that the employee is indeed paid out for their unused personal and vacation time. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 22 – Additional Duties Compensation: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
o.  Additional Duties Compensation 

 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 708 Additional Duties, there is nothing written. Should the Work 
Standard be referend? 
 

96 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 13 of 184 
 

Response 
The commenter points out that section IV.A.5.o of the Law is titled “Additional Duties 
Compensation” but does not contain any additional information as to what this may refer to. It is 
recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review and clarify this provision of the 
Law to see if this line should be deleted, expanded, or if a work standard needs to be referenced. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 23 – Meeting Attendance Organized under Leaves: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

1. Meeting Attendance 
a. Approval for attending any meetings inside normal working hours 
must be approved in advance by the employee's immediate supervisor.  (BC 
Action, 5-16-89) 
b. Employees who receive stipends or honoraria in excess of $50.00 for 
attending meetings during working hours will forfeit the amount in excess of 
$50.00 from their regular paycheck.  Stipends for travel or per diem will not 
be deducted if accompanied by receipts for such expenses. 
c. Stipends or honoraria for intra-tribal meetings during normal working 
hours will results in the employee's paycheck being reduced by the full amount 
of the stipend. 

 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 715 to 724 Meeting attendance – is this the correct place under 
leaves? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions whether the Meeting Attendance provisions found in section IV.D.1 of 
the Law is organized in the right place within the Law. 
 
Section IV.D.1 of the Law discusses the procedures to be followed if an employee requests leave 
from work to attend a meeting with an outside organization during their normal working hours. 
Approval for attending any meetings during normal working hours must be approved in advance 
by the employee's immediate supervisor. [OPPP section IV.D.1.a]. The Law then governs how 
stipends or honoraria for attending these outside meetings is handled. Employees who receive 
stipends or honoraria in excess of fifty dollars ($50) for attending meetings during working hours 
will forfeit the amount in excess of fifty dollars ($50) from their regular paycheck, but stipends for 
travel or per diem will not be deducted if accompanied by receipts for such expenses. [OPPP 
section IV.D.1.b]. Stipends or honoraria for intra-tribal meetings during normal working hours will 

97 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 14 of 184 
 

results in the employee's paycheck being reduced by the full amount of the stipend. [OPPP section 
IV.D.1.c]. 
 
Because section IV.D.1 of the Law discusses the procedures to be followed if an employee requests 
leave from work to attend a meeting with an outside organization during their normal working 
hours, it is appropriate placed under the “Leaves” section of the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 24 – Honoraria for Meeting Attendance Leave: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

1. Meeting Attendance 
a. Approval for attending any meetings inside normal working hours 
must be approved in advance by the employee's immediate supervisor.  (BC 
Action, 5-16-89) 
b. Employees who receive stipends or honoraria in excess of $50.00 for 
attending meetings during working hours will forfeit the amount in excess of 
$50.00 from their regular paycheck.  Stipends for travel or per diem will not 
be deducted if accompanied by receipts for such expenses. 
c. Stipends or honoraria for intra-tribal meetings during normal working 
hours will results in the employee's paycheck being reduced by the full amount 
of the stipend. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (written): Section IV – Compensation and Benefits 
• QUESTION regarding meeting attendance: If an employee is going to be paid honorarium for 
presenting at a meeting, can they use personal or vacation time to receive the honorarium? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions whether an employee can utilize vacation or personal time to take time 
off of work to attend a meeting with an outside organization and accept the payment of honorarium 
for presenting at that meeting. 
 
The Law governs how stipends or honoraria for attending these outside meetings is handled. 
Employees who receive stipends or honoraria in excess of fifty dollars ($50) for attending meetings 
during working hours will forfeit the amount in excess of fifty dollars ($50) from their regular 
paycheck, but stipends for travel or per diem will not be deducted if accompanied by receipts for 
such expenses. [OPPP section IV.D.1.b]. Stipends or honoraria for intra-tribal meetings during 
normal working hours will results in the employee's paycheck being reduced by the full amount of 
the stipend. [OPPP section IV.D.1.c]. 

98 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 15 of 184 
 

 
The Law is not clear on whether utilizing vacation or personal time to take the day off of work, 
eliminates the requirement that an employee forfeit any amount in excess of fifty dollars ($50) 
from their regular paycheck for attending a meeting with an outside organization during working 
hours. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee should consider clarifying section IV.D.1 of the Law and 
the provisions governing the receipt of stipends or honorarium for attending a meeting with an 
outside organization during working hours. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 25 through 26 – Maximum Wage instead of Highest Step: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
B. EVALUATIONS 
4. Satisfactory evaluations may result in the employee receiving an increase in pay within 
their grade level provided that the employee has not attained the highest step within the 
grade. 
 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 864 “has not attained the highest step? We do not have steps in 
the grades an longer. Change step to wage? 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Below are public comments 
submitted on behalf of Gaming Senior Management regarding the proposed Oneida Personnel 
Polices and Procedures Amendments. The comments are separated in two sections: 

• Hiring and Selection 
• Complaints, Disciplinary Actions and Grievance Processes 

Please contact Louise Cornelius, Gaming General Manager, regarding any questions you may 
have. She can be reached at extension 3201 or at lcornel3@oneidanation.org Thank you 
 
Hiring and Selection 
1) Remove the following: We do not have steps within grades. 

166 e. Temporary employees will be paid within the Grade in which the job is classified 
and  
167 salary will be negotiated within the first three (3) steps of respective grade.  
168 1) Any negotiated salary beyond step three will require written justification and 
169 approval from the respective General Manager. (H.R. Interpretation, 12-8-16) 

 
Response 
 

99 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 

mailto:lcornel3@oneidanation.org


 

Page 16 of 184 
 

The commenters provides that section V.B.4 of the Law uses the terminology “highest step,” but 
that terminology is no longer used within the Nation.  
 
Section V.B.4 of the Law provides information on evaluations and states that satisfactory 
evaluations may result in the employee receiving an increase in pay within their grade level 
provided that the employee has not attained the highest step within the grade. 
 
The following revision is recommended to clarify the terminology used in section V.B.4 of the 
Law: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
B. EVALUATIONS 
4. Satisfactory evaluations may result in the employee receiving an increase in pay within their 
grade level provided that the employee has not attained the highest step maximum wage within 
the grade. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 27 through 29 – Career Development: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
C. CAREER DEVELOPMENT 

1. Oneida Nation employees are encouraged to develop their skills and abilities 
by pursuing education at a local educational institution. (BC Action, 9-9-92) 

a. Oneida Nation employees must provide a general Career Development 
Plan to the supervisor listing the goals and objectives of the training and 
education to be undertaken. 

2. Oneida Nation employees may be eligible for assistance for one (1) course per 
semester.  The employee must attempt to arrange to take the class outside his/her 
normal working hours. 

a. Where a class conflicts with the employee’s work schedule, the needs of 
the Tribal unit take precedence; however, the supervisor shall attempt to 
accommodate the employee’s request. 
b. In no case shall the accommodation exceed actual class hours plus 
reasonable travel time. 
c. Employees must obtain the approval of their immediate supervisor to 
take a course on work time. 

3. The supervisor’s approval and estimated cost must be submitted to the HRD 
Office, the Area Manager and the General Manager. (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16)   
4. The cost of the books, tuition and fees for the course shall be paid by the Nation 
through funds budgeted in programs or through the Higher Education program. 

a. Reimbursement for books, tuition and fees is contingent upon the 
employee receiving at least a C (2.0 on a 4.0 point scale). 

100 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 17 of 184 
 

b. Employees who receive less than the required grade point will be 
required to reimburse the program for whatever costs were incurred. 

 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 898to 903 Are we reimbursing for classes? I didn’t think we were 
doing this any longer 
 
Mark Powless (written):  
880 C. CAREER DEVELOPMENT 
881 1. Oneida Nation employees are encouraged to develop their skills and abilities by 
882 pursuing education at a local educational institution. (BC Action, 9-9-92) 
883 a. Oneida Nation employees must provide a general Career Development Plan to the 
884 supervisor listing the goals and objectives of the training and education to be 
885 undertaken. 
 
• This process is not followed within the Oneida Nation. Either strike these lines from the Personnel 
Policies and Procedures or enforce with all staff. Additionally, these aspects of training and 
education should be an emphasis of the Nation but do not have the funding to support. A concerted 
effort should be placed on improving our policies, procedures, and funding of employee training 
and education. 
 
Mark Powless (written):  
886 2. Oneida Nation employees may be eligible for assistance for one (1) course per semester. 
887 The employee must attempt to arrange to take the class outside his/her normal working 
888 hours. 
889 a. Where a class conflicts with the employee’s work schedule, the needs of the Tribal 
890 unit take precedence; however, the supervisor shall attempt to accommodate the 
891 employee’s request. 
892 b. In no case shall the accommodation exceed actual class hours plus reasonable travel 
893 time. 
894 c. Employees must obtain the approval of their immediate supervisor to take a course 
895 on work time. 
896 3. The supervisor’s approval and estimated cost must be submitted to the HRD Office, the 
897 Area Manager and the General Manager. (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16) 
898 4. The cost of the books, tuition and fees for the course shall be paid by the Nation through 
899 funds budgeted in programs or through the Higher Education program. 
900 a. Reimbursement for books, tuition and fees is contingent upon the employee 
901 receiving at least a C (2.0 on a 4.0 point scale). 
902 b. Employees who receive less than the required grade point will be required to 
903 reimburse the program for whatever costs were incurred. 
 
• This section is not funded or utilized within the Oneida Nation. Either strike these lines from the 
Personnel Policies and Procedures or fund and utilize. If utilizing I refer back to my previous 
statement of taking the time to improve our policies, procedures, and funding of employee training 
and education. Regarding this specific section I recommend revising to encompass not only a 
course, but also a certificate, training or similar program. 
 

101 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 18 of 184 
 

Response 
 
The commenters questions whether the Nation still engages in career development practices and 
reimbursing for educational classes taken for career development. 
 
Section V.C. of the Law discusses career development. The Law provides that employees of the 
Nation are encouraged to develop their skills and abilities by pursuing education at a local 
educational institution. [OPPP section V.C.1]. Oneida Nation employees may be eligible for 
assistance for one (1) course per semester. [OPPP section V.C.2]. The cost of the books, tuition 
and fees for the course shall be paid by the Nation through funds budgeted in programs or through 
the Higher Education program. [OPPP section V.C.4]. The Law further provides that 
reimbursement for books, tuition, and fees is contingent upon the employee receiving at least a 
“C” grade, and that employees who receive less than the required grade point will be required to 
reimburse the program for whatever costs were incurred. [OPPP section V.C.4(a)-(b)]. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review section V.C. of the Law 
regarding career development with the Human Resources Department to determine if this practice 
is still being utilized within the Nation, or if these provisions need to be removed from the Law.  
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 30 through 31 – Recordkeeping Requirements: 
 
SECTION VIII – RECORDKEEPING 
A.  PERSONNEL OFFICE 

1. Basic records to be retained include: 
  a.  Reference Data 
  b.  Job Descriptions 
  c.  Resumes and Applications 
  d.  Interview notes/selection information 
  e.  Resignations 
  f.   Employee tax exemption claims 
  g. Disciplinary action information 
  h. Performance evaluations 
  i. Insurance coverage/changes 
  j. Transfers 

2. The Personnel Office shall keep and maintain a complete record of each 
employee  throughout his/her term of employment. 

a. Oneida Nation employees shall have access to their employment file. 
b. Employment files kept by the Personnel Office shall be considered 
confidential information.  Release of any information to a third party must 
have the consent of the employee in writing. 

102 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 19 of 184 
 

 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 1725 What reference data do we retain? 
 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Line 1728 What interview notes/selection information do we retain? 
If it is on this list, do we have to retain the records for a specified time period? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions what reference data and interview notes/selection information the 
Nation retains as referenced in section VIII.A.1.a and section VIII.A.1.d of the Law. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee did not review or revise section VIII during the development 
of these amendments, so it is unknown what specifically “reference data” is being referenced in 
section VIII.A.1.a of the Law, or what “interview notes/selection information” is being referenced 
in section VIII.A.1.a of the Law other than the ordinary use of the language.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may collaborate with the Human Resources Department to 
review section VIII.A.1 and determine what records are currently maintained by the Human 
Resources Department to adequately capture what the Law should require for recordkeeping.  
 
The commenter also questions how long the Human Resources Department has to retain the 
records for. The Nation’s Open Records and Open Meetings law typically requires that all records 
be retained at least seven (7) years before destruction. [1 O.C. 107.9-4]. The Open Records and 
Open Meetings law then provides that the regulations regarding the storage and protection of 
personnel  records shall be governed by the Nation’s personnel policies and procedures. [1 O.C. 
107.4-3]. Section VIII.A.2 of the Law provides that the Human Resources Department is required 
to keep and maintain a complete record of each employee throughout his/her term of employment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 32 through 33 – Indigenous Peoples’ Day: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14)  
a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 

1) One-half Day Christmas Eve 
2) Christmas Day 
3) New Year's Day 
4) Memorial Day 
5) Veteran's Day 
6) Independence Day 

103 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 20 of 184 
 

7) Labor Day 
8) Indigenous Peoples’ Day 
9) Thanksgiving Day 
10) Indian Day (day after Thanksgiving) 
11) One-half day Good Friday 
12) Code Talker’s Day (Oneida Day, Friday prior to Memorial Day) 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section IV, Compensation and 
Benefits - Section IV.A.4., Holidays 
 
The proposed amendments establish a new holiday – Indigenous Peoples’ Day – for Oneida 
employees. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, line 406) In the United States, Indigenous Peoples’ Day 
is celebrated on the second Monday of October. 
 
Lisa Rauschenbach (written): Feedback from Comprehensive Housing Staff: Positive Changes:  
Indigenous People Day being added as a paid holiday. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters either provide a summary of the proposed amendment to section IV.A.4.a of the 
Law, which is the addition of Indigenous Peoples’ Day as a recognized holiday of the Nation, or 
express their support of this proposed amendment. 
 
There is no action needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on these comments. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 34 – Martin Luther King Jr. Day as a Holiday: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14)  
a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 

1) One-half Day Christmas Eve 
2) Christmas Day 
3) New Year's Day 
4) Memorial Day 
5) Veteran's Day 
6) Independence Day 
7) Labor Day 
8) Indigenous Peoples’ Day 
9) Thanksgiving Day 

104 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 21 of 184 
 

10) Indian Day (day after Thanksgiving) 
11) One-half day Good Friday 
12) Code Talker’s Day (Oneida Day, Friday prior to Memorial Day) 

 
Mark Powless (written): 596 a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 
• Add Martin Luther King Jr. Day. MLK Day is a Federal holiday. Many area businesses and 
schools close or take time to recognize his accomplishments for people of color. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that Martin Luther King Jr. Day – observed on the third Monday of each 
January – be considered as an official holiday of the Nation.  
 
Section IV.A.4.a of the Law provides a list of all the recognized official holidays of the Nation. 
The Nation currently recognizes one-half day for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, 
Memorial Day, Veteran's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Indian Day, 
one-half day for Good Friday, and Code Talker’s Day. The proposed amendments to the Law also 
include the addition of Indigenous Peoples’ Day. 
 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether Martin Luther King Jr. Day be 
included as an official recognized holiday of the Nation. The Legislative Operating Committee 
may make one of the following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.A.4.a of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and Martin Luther King 
Jr. Day should not be included as an official holiday recognized by the Nation. 

2. Section IV.A.4.a of the Law should be revised to include Martin Luther King Jr. Day as an 
official holiday of the Nation. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination then the following revision is recommended: 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14)  
a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 

1) One-half Day Christmas Eve 
2) Christmas Day 
3) New Year's Day 
4) Memorial Day 
5) Veteran's Day 
6) Independence Day 
7) Labor Day 
8) Indigenous Peoples’ Day 
9) Thanksgiving Day 
10) Indian Day (day after Thanksgiving) 
11) One-half day Good Friday 
12) Code Talker’s Day (Oneida Day, Friday prior to Memorial 
Day) 
13) Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

105 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 22 of 184 
 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 35 – Floating Holidays: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14)  
a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 

1) One-half Day Christmas Eve 
2) Christmas Day 
3) New Year's Day 
4) Memorial Day 
5) Veteran's Day 
6) Independence Day 
7) Labor Day 
8) Indigenous Peoples’ Day 
9) Thanksgiving Day 
10) Indian Day (day after Thanksgiving) 
11) One-half day Good Friday 
12) Code Talker’s Day (Oneida Day, Friday prior to Memorial Day) 
 

Jessica Vandekamp (written): 1. Floating Holidays. To propose the Oneida Nation provides up 
to two (2) floating holidays to each employee that will substitute up to two (2) current public paid 
holidays. This can promote diversity and respect for employees who have different cultures, 
religious beliefs, or traditions. The day the employee decides to take off is at their discretion and 
approved by the immediate supervisor. 
 
Benefits for Employee: 

1. Allowing employees to celebrate a holiday, religious event or cultural event that has 
meaning to them respects individual’s differences. (Ex: Oneida ceremonies, birthdays, 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Hmong New Year, etc.) 
2. Happy employees are productive employees when you allow them to take time off that 
matters to them. 
 

Benefits for the Nation: 
1. May lower payroll for premium pay when employees choose floating holidays rather 
than work public holidays. 
2. Scheduling may improve in departments and be more flexible in Enterprises & Gaming. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
1. Are not eligible for premium pay. 

106 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 23 of 184 
 

2. Employee may choose floating holiday(s) at the beginning of each calendar year. 
3. Must be scheduled and approved in advance by the employee’s immediate supervisor. 
4. Will not carry over to the next calendar year. 
5. Cannot be cashed out or paid upon termination of employment. 
6. Floating holidays only count towards religious holidays, cultural holidays, employee 
birthday, state/federal holiday, wedding anniversary, or special occasion mutually agreed 
upon by the employee & supervisor. 

 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider allowing up to two 
(2) floating holidays to each employee that will substitute up to two (2) current paid holidays for 
employees of the Nation. 
 
Currently, section IV.A.4.a. of the Law provides a list of all the recognized official holidays of the 
Nation. The Nation currently recognizes one-half day for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New 
Year's Day, Memorial Day, Veteran's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
Indian Day, one-half day for Good Friday, and Code Talker’s Day. The proposed amendments to 
the Law also include the addition of Indigenous Peoples’ Day. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the Law should allow an employee 
to substitute up to two (2) official recognized holidays of the Nation for floating holidays that can 
be taken on a date mutually agreed upon between the employee and their immediate supervisor. 
The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to 
this comment: 

1. Section IV.A.4.a of the Law should remain as currently drafted. 
2. Section IV.A.4.a of the Law should be revised allow an employee to substitute up to two 

(2) official recognized holidays of the Nation for floating holidays that can be taken on a 
date mutually agreed upon between the employee and their immediate supervisor. If the 
Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination then it is recommended that the 
Legislative Operating Committee collaborate with the Human Resources Department to 
determine how floating holidays should be addressed and implemented for the Nation. For 
example, the use of floating holidays may have different implementation implications for 
different parts of the organization. On the enterprise side of the organization, areas such as 
Gaming and Retail are typically open and operational on holidays recognized by the 
Nation, so allowing an employee to regularly work on a holiday and instead substitute the 
holiday time for a different day may just require administrative tracking. On the program 
side of the organization, many of the areas or departments are closed and non-operational 
on holidays recognized by the Nation, so allowing an employee to work on a holiday will 
need different considerations.  

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 

107 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 24 of 184 
 

 
Comment 36 – Eligibility for Holiday Pay: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14) 
b. To be eligible for a paid holiday, employees must work the preceding 
and following scheduled work days (except for employees who are on a 
prescheduled work leave or an approved extended sick leave.)  Employees who 
are granted a sick day directly prior to a holiday must certify that they were 
capable of working the holiday in order to qualify for a paid holiday. 

 
Mark Powless (written):  
610 b. To be eligible for a paid holiday, employees must work the preceding and following 
611 scheduled work days (except for employees who are on a prescheduled work leave 
612 or an approved extended sick leave.) Employees who are granted a sick day directly 
613 prior to a holiday must certify that they were capable of working the holiday in order 
614 to qualify for a paid holiday. 
 
• From an administrative perspective this can be cumbersome. Grant the holiday regardless of 
whether or not they work the preceding and following scheduled workdays. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that section IV.A.4.b of the Law’s requirement that to be eligible for a 
paid holiday, employees must work the preceding and following scheduled work days is 
cumbersome from an administrative perspective, and should be simplified and removed.  
 
Section IV.A.4.b of the Law provides that to be eligible for a paid holiday, employees must work 
the preceding and following scheduled work days, except for employees who are on a prescheduled 
work leave or an approved extended sick leave. The Law then goes on to state that employees who 
are granted a sick day directly prior to a holiday must certify that they were capable of working 
the holiday in order to qualify for a paid holiday. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the requirement to work the 
preceding and following scheduled work days in order to be eligible for holiday pay should remain 
as a requirement in the Law. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following 
considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.A.4.b of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and an employee should 
be required to work the preceding and following scheduled work days in order to be eligible 
for holiday pay. 

2. Section IV.A.4.b of the Law should be revised to eliminate any administrative burden, and 
the requirement that an employee work the preceding and following scheduled work days 
in order to be eligible for holiday pay be removed.  If the Legislative Operating Committee 
makes this determination then the following revision is recommended: 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

108 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 25 of 184 
 

A. SALARY 
4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14) 

b. To be eligible for a paid holiday, employees must work the 
preceding and following scheduled work days (except for employees who 
are on a prescheduled work leave or an approved extended sick leave.)  
Employees who are granted a sick day directly prior to a holiday must 
certify that they were capable of working the holiday in order to qualify for 
a paid holiday. 
 

LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 37 – Maximum Paid Holiday Hours: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14) 
c. All regular employees will be given holiday pay for the maximum pay 
of eight (8) hours per day. 
 

Mark Powless (written):  
615 c. All regular employees will be given holiday pay for the maximum pay of eight (8) 
616 hours per day. 
 
• Grant holiday pay based on the regularly scheduled hours for that position. If an employee works 
10-hour shifts, provide holiday pay of 10 hours, when applicable. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider revising section 
IV.A.4.c of the Law, and grant holiday pay based on the regularly scheduled hours for that position. 
 
Section IV.A.4.c of the Law provides that all regular employees will be given holiday pay for the 
maximum pay of eight (8) hours per day. The commenter points out that there are some employees 
within the Nation that regularly work shifts of more than eight (8) hours.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the eight (8) hour maximum for 
holiday pay should remain in the Law. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.A.4.c of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and an employee 
employees should only be given holiday pay for the maximum pay of eight (8) hours per 
day  

109 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 26 of 184 
 

2. Section IV.A.4.c of the Law should be revised so that an employee is eligible to receive 
holiday pay for all regularly scheduled hours worked during a holiday.  If the Legislative 
Operating Committee makes this determination then the following revision is 
recommended: 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14) 
c. All regular employees will shall be given holiday pay for the hours 
worked during a holidaymaximum pay of eight (8) hours per day. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 38 – Reduction of the Amount of Accrued Personal and Vacation Time: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal days shall 
be as follows:  (BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F)               

1) 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
2) 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
3) 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 

d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall 
be as follows: 

1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 
2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
3) 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 
 

Mark Powless (written):  
636 c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal days shall be as follows: 
637 (BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F) 
638 1) 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
639 2) 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
640 3) 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
641 4) 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 
642 d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall be as follows: 
643 1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 
644 2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
645 3) 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
646 4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 

110 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 27 of 184 
 

 
• Start to scale back the accrual of personal and vacation days by eliminating the accruals for 15+ 
years of service for both personal and vacation. Prior to Trade Back For Cash in 2022 91employees 
were maintaining a balance of 250 or more personal/vacation hours. Of those, 73% had 15 or more 
years of service. Additionally, employees are gaining an additional holiday (Indigenous People’s 
Day) with the approval of these amendments. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider how the accrual of 
personal and vacation time is handled by the Nation and eliminate the additional accrual category 
for employees with more than fifteen (15) years of service.  
 
The Law provides that every Oneida Nation employee, except temporary employees, shall be 
allowed personal and vacation days with pay to the extent that personal days and vacation are 
accumulated. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.a]. The amount of personal and vacations days shall be 
determined by continuous service for the Nation. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.b]. The Law provides the 
following for the accrual of personal and vacation time: 
 Accrual of Personal Days: 

 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 

 Accrual of Vacation Days: 
 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year; 
 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.c-d]. 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the accrual rates for personal and 
vacation time provided for in section IV.A.5.c-d of the Law should be revised Law. The Legislative 
Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.A.5.c-d of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and there should be no 
change to the accrual rates for personal and vacation time. 

2. Section IV.A.5.c-d of the Law should be revised to address the accrual rates for personal 
and vacation time. The Legislative Operating Committee may consider how the accrual 
rates should be revised, and if they should be reduced or if certain accrual rate levels should 
be eliminated. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes the determination to 
eliminate the accrual rates for personal and vacation time for those employees who have 
more than fifteen years of service, as suggested by the commenter, then the following 
revision is recommended: 

SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal days shall be as 
follows:  (BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F)               

111 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 28 of 184 
 

1) 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
2) 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
3) 8+-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 

d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall be as 
follows: 

1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 
2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
3) 8+-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 
 

LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 39 – Combination of Personal and Vacation Time: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal days shall 
be as follows:  (BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F)               

1) 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
2) 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
3) 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 

d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall 
be as follows: 

1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 
2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
3) 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 

 
Jessica Vandekamp (written): 6. Paid Time Off 

• Why do we have to separate personal/vacation? 
• Most employees use interchangeably. 
• Combine p/v time to one large amount of PTO, load at the beginning of the year rather 
than accumulate. 

 
Response 
 
The commenter questions why the Law differentiates between “personal” and “vacation” time 
since they are typically used interchangeably by an employee, and suggests that the Law be revised 
to combine personal time and vacation time into one allocation of personal time off. The 

112 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 29 of 184 
 

commenter also then suggests that the Law be revised so that yearly accruals are provided to an 
employee in one lump sum at the beginning of the year instead of accumulated throughout the year 
through weekly accrual rates. 
 
The Law provides that every Oneida Nation employee, except temporary employees, shall be 
allowed personal and vacation days with pay to the extent that personal days and vacation are 
accumulated. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.a]. The amount of personal and vacations days shall be 
determined by continuous service for the Nation. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.b]. The Law provides the 
following for the accrual of personal and vacation time: 
 Accrual of Personal Days: 

 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 

 Accrual of Vacation Days: 
 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year; 
 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.c-d]. 

 
Personal Days can be used for any reason so long as the request is approved by the employee's 
supervisor at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance, unless the absence is due to illness or 
unforeseen circumstances. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.i]. In the case of illness or unforeseen 
circumstance, the supervisor shall be notified no later than fifteen (15) minutes before the 
scheduled starting time. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.i.1]. An employee shall notify his or her supervisor 
of an intent to use personal days in the following ways: for three (3) to five (5) days - one (1) week 
advance notification, and for six (6) days or more days - two (2) weeks advance notification. 
[OPPP Section IV.A.5.j]. An employee shall notify his or her supervisor one (1) day in advance if 
he or she will take off one (1) or two (2) days of vacation. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.k]. Three (3) to 
five (5) days of vacation require a one (1) week advance notification, while six (6) or more days 
of vacation require at least two (2) weeks advance notification. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.k.1-2]. 
Programs and enterprises may institute stricter standards of notification. [OPPP Section IV.A.5.i.2, 
and IV.A.5.k]. 
 
It is unknown why personal and vacation time are differentiated in the Law. The provisions for 
advance notification of the use of personal and vacation time are very similar for each category, 
except that personal time may be notified less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance in certain 
circumstances. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider how the Nation handles the separation of 
personal and vacation time accruals. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.A.5.c-d of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and there should be no 
change to the separation of personal and vacation time accrual rates. 

113 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 30 of 184 
 

2. Section IV.A.5.c-d of the Law should be revised to combine the accrual rates for personal 
and vacation time. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then 
the following revision is recommended: 

SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days Personal Time Off 
c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal time off (PTO) 
days shall be as follows:  (BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F)               

1) 0-3 years of service – 18 6 days per year; 
2) 4-7 years of service – 23 8 days per year; 
3) 8-14 years of service – 30 10 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service – 37 12 days per year;. 

d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall be as 
follows: 

1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 
2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
3) 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 

All other references to personal or vacation time throughout the Law would also have to be updated 
and revised. 
 
Additionally, the Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the amount of personal 
and vacation time provided to an employee should be accrued throughout the year, as is the current 
practice, or provided to the employee in one lump sum at the beginning of the year. If the 
Legislative Operating Committee would like to explore this issue, then it is recommended that the 
Legislative Operating Committee collaborate with the Finance Administration to determine the 
potential fiscal impacts of providing personal and vacation time to an employee as a lump sum at 
the beginning of the year. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 40 – Discontinuance of Oneida Nation Sponsored Loan Program: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
h. Upon termination from Oneida Nation employment, employees will be 
paid for any unused personal and/or vacation days. 

1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan 
program will be required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 

 
Mark Powless (written):  

114 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 31 of 184 
 

659 1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan program will be 
660 required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 
 
• This program no longer exists. Strike these lines from the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that the Oneida Nation sponsored loan program no longer exists, and 
therefore the language referencing this loan program found in section IV.A.5.h.1 should be 
removed from the Law.  
 
Section IV.A.5.h. of the Law provides that upon termination from Oneida Nation employment, 
employees will be paid for any unused personal and/or vacation days. The Law then states that 
employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan program will be required to honor 
the terms of the loan agreement. 
 
The following revision is recommended based on the comment that the Oneida Nation sponsored 
loan program is no longer utilized: 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
h. Upon termination from Oneida Nation employment, employees will be paid 
for any unused personal and/or vacation days. 

1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan 
program will be required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 41 – Trade Back for Cash: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
n. Trade-back for Cash - Each fiscal year, the Oneida Business 
Committee shall analyze fiscal conditions to determine whether employees 
may trade back personal and/or vacation hours for cash that fiscal year. 

1) If the Oneida Business Committee approves trade-back for 
cash, they shall also determine whether (i) and/or (ii) applies: (See 
Revision) 

i. All employees will have the opportunity to trade-back 
hours one time that year. 

115 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 32 of 184 
 

1. By August 15, each employee who has 
accumulated twenty-four (24) hours or more of vacation 
and/or personal days may opt to trade in his/her hours 
for cash.  
2. Employees will receive their trade back on or 
before September 30 of that year. 

ii. Only those employees who are unable to utilize their 
personal and/or vacation time due to working conditions, such 
as a shortage in staffing, as determined by the Human Resources 
Executive Director or designee, will have the opportunity to 
trade back hours on a quarterly basis. 

1. Employees will receive their trade back within 
sixty (60) days after opting to trade back hours. 

2) When trade-back for cash is approved by the Oneida Business 
Committee, the following standards shall apply: 

i. Employees must decide which status (vacation or 
personal or both) from which their trade back will be drawn.  
ii. Employees may not trade for cash more than eighty (80) 
hours in one year.  (GTC Resolution, 5-23-11-B) 

  
Mark Powless (written):  
696 ii. Only those employees who are unable to utilize their personal and/or 
697 vacation time due to working conditions, such as a shortage in staffing, as 
698 determined by the Human Resources Executive Director or 
699 designee, will have the opportunity to trade back hours on a quarterly basis. 
700 1. Employees will receive their trade back within sixty (60) days after 
701 opting to trade back hours. 
 
• This opportunity no longer exists. Strike these lines from the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that the opportunity for Trade Back for Cash as provided in section 
IV.A.5.n. of the Law no longer exists, so this provision of the Law should be eliminated.  
 
Section IV.A.5.n. of the Law provides that each fiscal year, the Oneida Business Committee is 
responsible for analyzing fiscal conditions to determine whether employees may trade back 
personal and/or vacation hours for cash that fiscal year. If the Oneida Business Committee 
approves trade-back for cash, they shall also determine whether all employees will have the 
opportunity to trade back hours one time that year, or if only those employees who are unable to 
utilize their personal and/or vacation time due to working conditions, such as a shortage in staffing, 
as determined by the Human Resources Executive Director or designee, will have the opportunity 
to trade back hours on a quarterly basis. If all employees are allowed to trade back personal or 
vacation time for cash, then by August 15, each employee who has accumulated twenty-four (24) 
hours or more of vacation and/or personal days may opt to trade in his/her hours for cash. 
Employees will receive their trade back on or before September 30 of that year. If only certain 

116 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 33 of 184 
 

employees are allowed to trade back their personal or vacation time for cash then employees will 
receive their trade back within sixty (60) days after opting to trade back hours. Overall, when trade-
back for cash is approved by the Oneida Business Committee, employees must decide which status 
(vacation or personal or both) from which their trade back will be drawn, and employees are 
limited to trading back no more than eighty (80) hours in one year. 
 
Trade Back for Cash was most recently used in 2022. The Oneida Business Committee adopted 
resolution BC-07-13-22-G, Authorization of 80 Hours of Trade Back for Cash for Fiscal Year 
2022. Through this resolution the Oneida Business Committee declared that there shall be 
authorized a one-time Trade Back for Cash for Fiscal Year 2022 which shall be capped at eighty 
(80) hours of personal and/or vacation time for eligible employees in accordance with Section 
IV.A.5.n. of the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether Trade Back for Cash program as 
provided for in section IV.A.5.n of the Law should remain in the Law or be eliminated. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to this 
comment: 

1. Section IV.A.5.n. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and the Trade Back for 
Cash program should remain in the Law. This provides the Oneida Business Committee 
the flexibility to determine if the fiscal conditions of the Nation provide the opportunity for 
this program to be utilized. 

2. Section IV.A.5.n. of the Law should be revised to eliminate the Trade Back for Cash 
program. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes the determination then the 
following revision is recommended: 

SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
A. SALARY 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 
n. Trade-back for Cash - Each fiscal year, the Oneida Business Committee 
shall analyze fiscal conditions to determine whether employees may trade back 
personal and/or vacation hours for cash that fiscal year. 

1) If the Oneida Business Committee approves trade-back for cash, 
they shall also determine whether (i) and/or (ii) applies: (See Revision) 

i. All employees will have the opportunity to trade-back hours 
one time that year. 

1. By August 15, each employee who has accumulated 
twenty-four (24) hours or more of vacation and/or personal 
days may opt to trade in his/her hours for cash.  
2. Employees will receive their trade back on or before 
September 30 of that year. 

ii. Only those employees who are unable to utilize their 
personal and/or vacation time due to working conditions, such as a 
shortage in staffing, as determined by the Human Resources 
Executive Director or designee, will have the opportunity to trade 
back hours on a quarterly basis. 

1. Employees will receive their trade back within sixty 
(60) days after opting to trade back hours. 

117 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 34 of 184 
 

2) When trade-back for cash is approved by the Oneida Business 
Committee, the following standards shall apply: 

i. Employees must decide which status (vacation or personal 
or both) from which their trade back will be drawn.  
ii. Employees may not trade for cash more than eighty (80) 
hours in one year.  (GTC Resolution, 5-23-11-B) 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 42 – Promotions as a Result of Evaluations: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
B. EVALUATIONS 

1. Evaluation reports will be used in determining all promotions, transfers and 
salary adjustments. 
 

Mark Powless (written):  
850 B. EVALUATIONS 
851 1. Evaluation reports will be used in determining all promotions, transfers and salary 
852 adjustments.  
 
This section is obsolete. The Oneida Nation does not offer promotions and evaluations are not 
provided when determining transfers. With that being said, areas would like the opportunity to 
view recent evaluations when considering transfers into their department. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that section V.B.1 of the Law is obsolete since the Nation does not 
provide promotions, and evaluations are not provided when determining transfers.  
 
Section V.B.1 of the Law provides that evaluation reports will be used in determining all 
promotions, transfers, and salary adjustments. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review with the Human Resources 
Department what an evaluation could be used for, and clarify this section accordingly. Specifically, 
it should be determined whether evaluations are provided when transfer considerations are made. 
If it determined that evaluations are not used for determining promotions or transfers, then the 
following revisions is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
B. EVALUATIONS 

1. Evaluation reports will be used in determining all promotions, transfers and salary 
adjustments. 

118 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 35 of 184 
 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 43 – Title of Human Resources Executive Director: 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Throughout OPPP amendments 
The title “HRD Manager” is updated to “Human Resources Executive Director” throughout the 
OPPP. This change presents no legal issues. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter’s highlight that throughout the Law the title of “HRD Manager” has been updated 
to “Human Resources Executive Director” and this revision reflects no legal issue.  
 
After the draft of proposed amendments to this Law was sent to public meeting it was brought to 
the Legislative Operating Committee’s attention that the proper title is Executive Human 
Resources Director. It is recommended that “Human Resources Executive Director” is revised to 
“Executive Human Resources Director” throughout the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
Comment 44 – Oneida Preference and Indian Preference Statement of Policy: 
 
SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
A. ONEIDA PREFERENCE AND INDIAN PREFERENCE STATEMENT OF 
POLICY 
The Oneida Nation is an equal employment opportunity employer and follows non-
discriminatory policies and procedures in personnel decisions. The Oneida Nation exists to 
serve the needs of the Oneida people and therefore accords Oneida Preference to enrolled 
members of the Oneida Nation where such preference is not otherwise prohibited.  All 
General Managers and top administrative positions, as defined by HRD in a standard 
operating procedure, shall be held by enrolled members of the Oneida Nation. In all other 
instances, the Nation applies the following priorities of Indian Preference in staffing 
decisions: 
1 Enrolled members of the Oneida Nation; 
2 Individuals eligible for enrollment in the Oneida Nation; 
3 Documented first generation descendants of the Oneida Nation; 
4 Members or descendants of a federally recognized tribe; 
5 Other (non-Indian).  

119 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 36 of 184 
 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section III, Selection Policy 
Section III.A., Oneida Preference and Indian Preference Statement of Policy 
 
The proposed amendments update the language of the Oneida Preference and Indian Preference 
Statement of Policy. In this section, updated language does not substantially change the underlying 
policy and does not create any legal issues. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters highlight that there has been slight modification to the verbiage used in the 
Oneida preference and Indian preference statement of policy found in section III.A of the Law. 
This language does not alter the intent of the Oneida preference and Indian preference statement 
of policy. 
 
There is no action needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on these comments. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 45 through 46 – Use of Administrative Rulemaking: 
 
SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
B. HIRING PROCEDURE 

2. Hiring Guidelines 
c. Hiring and Selection Rules.   

1) The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in 
accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules 
regarding procedures for the hiring and selection of employees of the 
Nation. 

C. INTERNAL POSITION POSTING - The Oneida Nation encourages movement 
within and among units in order to make the best possible use of human resources to meet 
the Oneida Nation’s goals and objectives.  Supervisors and employees are encouraged to 
work together to create an environment in which employees constantly strive to improve 
their skills and abilities and managers constantly seek to provide challenging and rewarding 
work experiences. 

1. Internal Position Posting and Reassignment Rules. 
a. The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance 
with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding 
procedures for internal position posting and reassignment of employees of the 
Nation. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section III.B., Hiring Procedure 

120 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 37 of 184 
 

 
The proposed amendments eliminate almost all OPPP language regarding recruitment and hiring 
topics, such as identifying vacancies, developing job descriptions, applications, advertising 
vacancies, screening for positions, interviews, and selection of a candidate. In place of such 
language, the proposed amendments delegate rulemaking authority to the Human Resources 
Department as follows: 

c. Hiring and Selection Rules. 
1) The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance with 
the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for the 
hiring and selection of employees of the Nation. (OPPP Amendments (clean copy), 
Draft 1, lines 295-298) 

 
Section III.C. Internal Position Posting (formerly Transfers and Promotions Policy) 
Similarly, the proposed amendments eliminate almost all OPPP language regarding transfers and 
promotions, internal postings, applicant pool, and reassignments and, again, delegate rulemaking 
authority to HRD, specifically: 

1. Internal Position Posting and Reassignment Rules 
a. The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance with the 
Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for internal 
position posting and reassignment of employees of the Nation. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 306-309) 

 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): 3) Gaming is requesting the 
LOC consider a process that gives management (to include gaming management) representation 
and joint rulemaking authority over all rules for which HRD is delegated rulemaking authority in 
the draft OPPP. Failure to include management in this drafting process and the importance of a 
seat at the table in the drafting process should be noted because once documents are made public, 
certain things can be difficult to walk back from. This supports the need for joint authority to 
ensure management’s voice is guaranteed to be incorporated into HRD rules rather than merely 
receiving the opportunity to provide public comment – as is the case in this instance. Please note 
that the last time employment matters were considered the LOC recognized the importance of 
including management and, at Gaming’s request, included 2 gaming HRD representatives on the 
drafting team to provide a perspective from the profit centers who rely on these processes to 
operate businesses that funds the lion’s share of the Nation’s operations. 
 

388 2) The HRD Office shall notify screened out applicants within five (5) working 
days  
389 after the initial screening and reserve these applicationsbe delegated rulemaking 
390 authority in the general recruiting pool. 

 
Response 
 
Some of the commenters summarize the proposed revisions to the Law regarding the hiring and 
selection process, and the internal transfer process. The proposed amendments to the Law 
eliminate much of the process and procedures currently contained in the law regarding the hiring 
and selection process, and instead provides that the HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking 

121 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 38 of 184 
 

authority in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding 
procedures for the hiring and selection of employees of the Nation. [Section III.B.2.c]. The 
proposed amendments to the Law also eliminate much of the process and procedures currently 
contained in the law regarding the transfers and promotions, internal postings, applicant pool, and 
reassignments and instead provides that the HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority 
in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for 
the internal position posting and reassignment of employees of the Nation. [Section III.C.1]. 
 
The other commenters ask the Legislative Operating Committee to consider a joint delegation of 
rulemaking authority to management when rulemaking authority is delegated to the Human 
Resources Department, in an effort to recognize the importance of including management in the 
development of policies.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider what the most appropriate delegation of 
rulemaking authority is under the Law. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of 
the following determinations: 

1. Sections III.B.2.c. and III.C.1 of the Law should remain as currently drafted and provide 
delegations of rulemaking authority to the Human Resources Department.  

2. Sections III.B.2.c. and III.C.1 of the Law should be redrafted to include a joint delegation 
of rulemaking authority to include management. If the Legislative Operating Committee 
makes this determination then the following revision to the Law is recommended: 

SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
B. HIRING PROCEDURE 

2. Hiring Guidelines 
c. Hiring and Selection Rules.   

1) The HRD Office Human Resources Executive Director, General 
Manager, Gaming General Manager, and Retail General Manager shall be 
delegated joint rulemaking authority in accordance with the Administrative 
Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for the hiring and 
selection of employees of the Nation. 

C. INTERNAL POSITION POSTING - The Oneida Nation encourages movement within and 
among units in order to make the best possible use of human resources to meet the Oneida Nation’s 
goals and objectives.  Supervisors and employees are encouraged to work together to create an 
environment in which employees constantly strive to improve their skills and abilities and 
managers constantly seek to provide challenging and rewarding work experiences. 

1. Internal Position Posting and Reassignment Rules. 
a. The HRD Office Human Resources Executive Director, General Manager, 
Gaming General Manager, and Retail General Manager shall be delegated joint 
rulemaking authority in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to 
develop rules regarding procedures for internal position posting and reassignment 
of employees of the Nation. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 

122 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 39 of 184 
 

 
 
Comment 47 – Complaint Procedure in Law: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
1. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
a. General 
b. Types of Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee 

may file a complaint with the EEO Department. 
b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 

Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the 
complaint. 

c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 
the complaint. 
i. The supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 

the supervisor receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 
ii. The supervisor shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as 

well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 
1. Meetings between the supervisor and employees may occur in 

person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 
2. The supervisor shall document all attempts made to meet with an 

employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the supervisor shall move forward 
with the investigation based on the information they have. 

iii. If the supervisor cannot complete the investigation within the ten (10) 
working day timeframe, the supervisor may request a one (1) time five 
(5) working day extension from the EEO Department. 

iv. When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution. 

1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then 
the supervisor shall provide written justification for non-agreement 
on the resolution to both the Area Manager and the Human 
Resources Executive Director. 

v. The supervisor shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager 
to ensure accountability. 

vi. The supervisor shall also send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO 
Department for filing and reporting purposes. 

123 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 40 of 184 
 

d) If the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 
complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the Area Manager. 
i. The notice shall notify the Area Manager that the complaint was not 

addressed within the allotted ten (10) working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the Area Manager that the supervisor violated 

the complaint process by being negligent in the performance of their 
assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 

iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the 
supervisor. 

1. If the Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the 
accountability of the supervisor, then the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of 
command. If the General Manager level position was the Area 
Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the 
notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

iv. The notice shall direct the Area Manager to complete the complaint 
investigation within ten (10) working days of receiving the notice from 
EEO. 

e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they 
may refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the 
Area Manager. 
i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 

Department shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the 
complaint. 

ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation. 

iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day 
after the Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO 
Department. 

iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint 
as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur 
in person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 

2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with 
an employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they have. 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area 
Manager shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an 
appropriate resolution. 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with 
the EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, 
then the Area Manager shall provide written justification for non-
agreement on the resolution to both the appropriate GM level 
position and the HRD Executive Director. 

124 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 41 of 184 
 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO 
Department for filing and reporting purposes. 

vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final.  
f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 

complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of 
command. If the General Manager level position was the Area Manager in 
the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida 
Business Committee. 
i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level position that the 

complaint was not addressed within the additional ten (10) working 
days. 

ii. The notice shall inform the General Manager level position that the 
Area Manager violated the complaint process by being negligent in the 
performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 
investigate a complaint. 

iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the Area 
Manager. 

iv. The notice shall address the General Manager level position’s 
responsibility to complete the complaint investigation and reach a 
resolution. 

1. Investigation Procedure for all General Manager Level Positions, 
not the Oneida Business Committee 
a. The General Manager level position shall complete the 

investigation and reach a resolution within ten (10) working 
days of receiving the notice from EEO. 

b. The General Manager level position’s ten (10) working day 
timeframe begins the day after the General Manager level 
position receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 

c. The General Manager level position shall meet with the 
employee filing the complaint as well as all other parties 
mentioned in the complaint. 
i. Meetings between the General Manager level position and 

the employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 

ii. The General Manager level position shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an employee. If the complaining 
employee or the employee being complained about is 
unavailable, the General Manager level position shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they 
have. 

d. When the General Manager level position’s investigation is 
complete, the General Manager level position shall contact the 
EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

125 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 42 of 184 
 

i. If the General Manager level position cannot come to a 
mutual determination with the EEO Officer as to an 
appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the General 
Manager level position shall provide written justification for 
non-agreement on the resolution to the Human Resources 
Executive Director. 

e. The final resolution shall be sent to the EEO Department for 
filing and reporting purposes. 

f. The General Manager level position’s resolution of the 
complaint shall be final.  

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida Business Committee 
a. When the GM level position of a complaint was the Area 

Manager in the complaint, then the Oneida Business Committee 
shall complete the investigation and reach a resolution in 
accordance with their standard operating procedure regarding 
complaints. 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with the EEO 

Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and 

resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 

the EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee 

being complained about so they: 
i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee;  

ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 
resolution; and  

iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well 
as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave 
while the employee is being investigated for an EEO Violation complaint. 

g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director 
to mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  

h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 
resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes.  

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  
3) Illegal Activities 

a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with the EEO 
Department. 

b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and 
resolve the complaint. 

c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 
the EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee. 

126 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 43 of 184 
 

d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee 
being complained about so they: 
i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee;  

ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 
resolution; and  

iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well 
as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave 
while the employee is being investigated for an Illegal Activities complaint. 

g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director 
to mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  

h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 
resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes.  

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint investigation of the 

employee resulted in the conclusion that an illegal activity did occur, then 
the EEO Officer shall forward the complaint resolution and all support 
documentation to a local law enforcement agency. 

d. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize their investigation and 
accountability processes for the complaint. 

 
Melanie Burkhart (oral): Yes, thank you. I just have a, a comment on the complaint area. I 
disagree with having the complaint process included in the law, because then that ties our hands 
in terms of needing to be able to update a process because it's part of a law. So, I don't think that 
should be included in the law. Thank you. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that she disagrees with including the complaint procedure in the Law 
because it results in a lack of flexibility in updating the complaint procedures to meet the needs of 
the Nation, since any changes to the Law would have to follow the legislative process.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee has to weigh what procedures and processes should be 
included in the Law and what procedures and processes should be provided for in other manners 
such as administrative rules or standard operating procedures. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the complaint procedures should 
remain included in the Law, or be delegated to be provided in a different manner. The Legislative 
Operating Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section V.A.1c. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and the complaint 
procedures should be included in the Law itself. 

2. Section V.A.1.c of the Law should be revised to remove the complaint procedure from the 
Law itself and instead delegate authority for the complaint procedure to be provided for 

127 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 44 of 184 
 

through an administrative rule. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination, then the following revision is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
A. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

i. The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in 
accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop 
rules regarding complaint procedures. 

Note: All other complaint procedure language would be removed from the 
Law. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 48 – Approval of a Leave of Absence: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

3. Leave of Absence  (Work Standard, 6-10-14) 
a. A leave of absence without pay may be granted to employees for a 
justifiable reason (including caring for a child, spouse or parent with a serious 
health condition) and when in the best interest of the Nation.   

1) Leaves of absence will not exceed three (3) months. 
i. All leaves of absence shall be approved by the 
Supervisor.   
ii. Requests shall  be documented and submitted to the 
supervisor with as much advance notice as possible. 
iii. Disposition of requests will be made on the basis of 
staffing requirements. 

2) Upon returning, the employee will be reinstated in the former 
position with full status and benefits.  Holiday, vacation, and sick leave 
will not be accrued during the leave of absence. 
3) No later than fifteen (15) working days prior to the expiration 
of the leave period the employee must give notice in writing of his/her 
intent to return to the position.  Notice must be presented to the 
supervisor. 

i. Failure to provide written notice will be interpreted to 
mean that the employee does not intend to return following the 
leave.  The position will be posted and filled through the 
selection process.   

 

128 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 45 of 184 
 

Lisa Rauschenbach (written): Leave of Absence should also include the Area Manager. There 
should be more than just a Supervisor approval to ensure areas are covered. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that approval of a leave of absence should include the approval of the 
Area Manager and not just a supervisor.  
 
The proposed amendments to section IV.D.3. provides that all leaves of absence shall be approved 
by the supervisor. Currently, the Law requires that a leave of absence be approved by the 
Supervisor, Area Manager, HRD Manager and General Manager. The level of approval needed for 
a leave of absence was reduced to alleviate the administrative burden of obtaining approval from 
four (4) individuals and simplify the process.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether a leave of absence should require 
approval beyond just the supervisor. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.D.3. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and all leaves of absence 
shall be approved by the Supervisor. 

2. Section IV.D.3. of the Law should be revised to require that the Area Manager, in addition 
to the supervisor, approve a leave of absence. If the Legislative Operating Committee 
makes this determination, then the following revision is recommended: 
 

SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

3. Leave of Absence  (Work Standard, 6-10-14) 
a. A leave of absence without pay may be granted to employees for a 
justifiable reason (including caring for a child, spouse or parent with a serious 
health condition) and when in the best interest of the Nation.   

1) Leaves of absence will not exceed three (3) months. 
i. All leaves of absence shall be approved by the Supervisor 
and Area Manager.   
ii. Requests shall  be documented and submitted to the 
supervisor with as much advance notice as possible. 
iii. Disposition of requests will be made on the basis of staffing 
requirements. 

2) Upon returning, the employee will be reinstated in the former 
position with full status and benefits.  Holiday, vacation, and sick leave will 
not be accrued during the leave of absence. 
3) No later than fifteen (15) working days prior to the expiration of the 
leave period the employee must give notice in writing of his/her intent to 
return to the position.  Notice must be presented to the supervisor. 

i. Failure to provide written notice will be interpreted to mean 
that the employee does not intend to return following the leave.  The 
position will be posted and filled through the selection process.   

 

129 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 46 of 184 
 

LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 49 – Intent to Return to Work: 
 
SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
D. LEAVES 

3. Leave of Absence  (Work Standard, 6-10-14) 
a. A leave of absence without pay may be granted to employees for a 
justifiable reason (including caring for a child, spouse or parent with a serious 
health condition) and when in the best interest of the Nation.   

1) Leaves of absence will not exceed three (3) months. 
i. All leaves of absence shall be approved by the 
Supervisor.   
ii. Requests shall  be documented and submitted to the 
supervisor with as much advance notice as possible. 
iii. Disposition of requests will be made on the basis of 
staffing requirements. 

2) Upon returning, the employee will be reinstated in the former 
position with full status and benefits.  Holiday, vacation, and sick leave 
will not be accrued during the leave of absence. 
3) No later than fifteen (15) working days prior to the expiration 
of the leave period the employee must give notice in writing of his/her 
intent to return to the position.  Notice must be presented to the 
supervisor. 

i. Failure to provide written notice will be interpreted to 
mean that the employee does not intend to return following the 
leave.  The position will be posted and filled through the 
selection process.   

 
Shannon Stone (written): Leave of Absence: Line 751 requires 15 working days prior written 
notice of intent to return to work by the employee. There is an interpretation that says one day 
notice is required for LOAs shorter than 15 working days. Overall, the 15-day requirement seems 
out of date, particularly when the employee and supervisor should maintain communications 
through the period of leave. One day notice should be sufficient and earlier notice would be 
courteous. 
 
The other thought is what constitutes notice of intent to return? If an employee provides a return-
to-work letter from a doctor with a date to return is that intent to return? 
 
Response 
 

130 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 47 of 184 
 

The commenter provides that the requirement that no later than fifteen (15) working days prior to 
the expiration of the leave period the employee must give notice in writing of his/her intent to 
return to the position may be outdated and too long, and instead one (1) day notice should be 
sufficient. The commenter additionally asks for clarification on what constitutes a notice of intent 
to return. 
 
Section IV.D.3.a.3. of the Law provides that no later than fifteen (15) working days prior to the 
expiration of the leave period the employee must give notice in writing of his or her intent to return 
to the position. The notice must be presented to the supervisor, and failure to provide written notice 
will be interpreted to mean that the employee does not intend to return following the leave. The 
position will be posted and filled through the selection process.   
 
A fifteen (15) day notice period for an employee’s intent to return to their position after a leave of 
absence may be included to ensure that there is adequate time for a department and supervisor to 
plan and prepare for an employee’s return. The Legislative Operating Committee may consider 
whether the fifteen (15) day notice requirement should be shortened. The Legislative Operating 
Committee may make one of the following considerations in regard to this comment: 

1. Section IV.D.3.a.3 of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and the requirement that 
no later than fifteen (15) working days prior to the expiration of the leave period the 
employee must give notice in writing of his or her intent to return to the position should 
remain in the Law.  

2. Section IV.D.3.a.3 of the Law should be revised to shorten the amount of working days 
prior to the expiration of the leave period the employee must give notice in writing of his 
or her intent to return to the position. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination, then the following revision is recommended: 

3) No later than fifteen (15) ___X___working days prior to the 
expiration of the leave period the employee must give notice in writing of 
his/her intent to return to the position.  Notice must be presented to the 
supervisor. 

i. Failure to provide written notice will be interpreted to mean 
that the employee does not intend to return following the leave.  The 
position will be posted and filled through the selection process.   

 
The Legislative Operating Committee should also consider whether the Law should address the 
amount of notice that is required for an employee to provide written notice of their intent to return 
to work after a leave of absence if the leave of absence is less than fifteen (15) days in length. If 
the Legislative Operating Committee determines the Law should address leave of absences less 
than fifteen (15) days in length, then the following revision is recommended: 

3) For a leave of absence longer fifteen (15) days or longer, no later 
than fifteen (15) ___X___working days prior to the expiration of the leave 
period the employee shall must give notice in writing of his/her intent to 
return to the position.  For a leave of absence less than fifteen (15) days, no 
later than ___X___ working days prior to the expiration of the leave period 
the employee shall give notice in writing of their intent to return to the 
position. Notice shall must be presented to the supervisor. 

131 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 48 of 184 
 

i. Failure to provide written notice shall will be interpreted to 
mean that the employee does not intend to return following the 
leave.  The position shall will be posted and filled through the 
selection process.   

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may also consider whether the Law needs additional 
clarification as to what constitutes written notice.  
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 50 through 89 – Authority of the Supervisor and the EEO Department: 
 
Lisa Rauschenbach (written): The Complaint process is taking the majority of the authority away 
from the Supervisor and giving it to the EEO Officers. 
 EEO department currently only has two employees. They are difficult to get ahold of 

currently. 
 The EEO Officers don’t know the day to day operations in departments nor the 

personalities of employees. This is what the Supervisor is for. The majority of a 
Supervisor’s job is to manage employees. 

 The EEO Officer will also have the ability to discipline employees with the approval 
process going to the HRD Executive Director. 

 The EEO Officer will have 10 days to investigate a complaint, allowing interviews of all 
necessary staff. This is a potential disruption thru a department. 

 In the EEO Officer investigation they notify the Supervisor and at the end they meet with 
the Human Resources Executive Director to determine the final resolution and the EEO 
Officer’s resolution is final. 

 
Ultimately, this is taking the authority away from the Supervisors, crippling them within their 
departments and giving all authority to HRD department. It opens the door for individuals to make 
accusations against co-workers with no documentation, proof/evidence. It provides the ability to 
disrupt departments for investigations and too much room for abuse of power. 
 
If there is an issue with toxic work environments then the managers/directors should be held 
accountable to make the work conditions better and safe for all their staff. The disciplinary process 
should remain the same. 
 
The Blue book is written for employees and supervisors and not EEO. EEO should remain a neutral 
entity at all times. The Personnel Policies book should be written for supervisors. 
 
Instead of taking away managers and supervisors authority, why not build them up? These changes 
affect the authority that supervisors/managers have and give it directly to HRD and the EEO 
officers. 

132 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 49 of 184 
 

 
EEO/HRD should never have the authority to discipline outside of their department. 
 
These amendments sound like EEO is frustrated with poor management and has decided to take 
away the managers ability to manage. These amendments sound like they would create more chaos 
within an area than help it. 
 
Supervisors know their frontline staff intimately and are better equipped to handle complaints and 
disciplines. How will an EEO know an employee and their work habits, ethics etc when 
investigating a complaint? 
 
The EEO should never be responsible party for issuing a discipline. 
 
Kelly Skenandore-Holtz (oral): Good Afternoon, Kelly Skenandore-Holtz. I have some 
comments and questions about the section where EEO will be initiating disciplinary action in lieu 
of the supervisors in an EEO issue or illegal activity, I believe is the verbiage. My question is, 
what research has been done regarding the implications of this decision? Umm, in the operations 
of the organization. What other alternatives have been explored versus EEO issuing the 
disciplines?  
 
And then a comment that, there is, it feels as though there is a lot of support for leadership 
development in this organization and this process eliminates umm, the need for leadership 
development. It eliminates the ability for supervisors to take the action. It also eliminates 
supervisors’ authority. And is there a set process of how if EEO is issuing disciplinaries, what it 
will be the process as to how they determine what level of disciplinary action will take place and 
then what will be the appeal process, if anything, for supervisors that don't agree with the level of 
discipline that has been issued. 
 
Tina Jorgensen (oral): I was going to submit written comments in addition, but I think I'd like to 
also reiterate what Kelly had said about the complaint process. I disagree with changing the 
complaint process and putting it in the hands of fully of the EEO Department. It appears in reading 
through those flow charts and through the proposed amendments that there is, this is being put in, 
and this is my opinion, that it's being put in place because there's a distrust in the supervisors 
actually doing their duties and responsibilities with the complaint process and holding employees 
accountable. And we have in the past, several times, put things in place because of distrust. And I 
think instead there should be more efforts to educate supervisors, maybe require more leadership 
development. And educate on the process and the responsibilities. And then also for area managers 
to hold those in, those supervisors or managers accountable instead of putting this in the hands of 
a different department. 
 
Louise Cornelius (oral): : I just wanted to add my comments to Kelly Skenandore-Holtz on the 
umm, on the EEO process on the disciplinary action, I don't agree with them issuing the 
disciplinary action. I think again, I concur with her, and it eliminates the supervisor’s authority. 
They're not familiar with what exactly is going on when those type of things are required, but I do, 
umm I do know that they do consult with them before issuing any type of disciplinary action with 
our employees. So, I think that works fine as it is, not to give them that authority. Thank you. 

133 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 50 of 184 
 

 
Matthew W. Denny (written): In regards to the OPP Amendments…I am against the proposed 
amendment that allows the EEO office to investigate and issue disciplinary action. For whatever 
reason! 
As it was explained by Matt J Denny, EEO Director, that the purpose of this amendment is because 
supervisors do not do or know how to do disciplinary action when it comes to EEO violations 
and/or Illegal activities. 
 
This is a problem with the training of the supervisor and/or Area Manager. The problem is not 
solved by taking this duty away from the supervisor, and giving it to another entity who does not 
discipline. The problem gets fixed by training the supervisor, and holding them accountable when 
they do not perform their duties correctly, just like any other employee. This seems to be the real 
issue to the problem. 
 
The EEO office has been designated as an impartial entity in regards to disciplinary actions. They 
currently have authority to void disciplinary actions that have clear procedural errors. This office 
looks out for employees of the Nation, and the Nation, not just the Nation. Giving them authority 
to discipline employee takes away their impartial status in the disciplinary procedure, and makes 
them a tool of the Nation only. The proposal also talks about who hears appeals of EEO initiated 
disciplines, which is different then any other procedure. This causes confusion and is unnecessary. 
 
By having a properly trained Supervisors and Area Managers, this issue, large or small, will be 
fixed. Giving another entity who is not the employee’s supervisor, disciplinary authority, is NOT 
the answer, and opens doors that should not be opened. Ignorance and laziness of Supervisors and 
Area Managers must be addressed by HRD and the OBC with training. Proposed solution: Make 
this issue an requirement for Supervisors/Area Managers before they can discipline, just like 
Interview Training is required before Hiring. Make EEO do the training. Good Day. 
 
Jackie Smith (written): 3. Reconsider the power and authority of the EEO department in 
managing complaints 

a. It is not recommended that HRD EEO has the ability to determine the outcome of an 
employee in a complaint investigation without input and possibly appeal rights of the 
supervisor. 
b. HRD as an overall program hasn’t been held accountable to deliver on current HRD 
laws, it is uncertain how this lack of oversight and accountability will be managed in the 
future. 

 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Complaints, Disciplinary 
Actions and Grievance Processes 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments 
 
Section V- Employee Relations 
Line 704-707: In all cases of grievance and discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common 
sense, discretion and judicious good sense to resolve complaints between employees, exercise 
disciplinary prerogatives and handle grievances. 
 

134 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 51 of 184 
 

Blue book is written for employees and supervisors, not EEO. EEO should not have authority to 
take disciplinary action on an employee. EEO is HRD who should remain a neutral entity at all 
times. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): EEO Violations: Agree that 
EEO violations should be investigated by EEO but they should not have the authority to discipline. 
HRD needs to remain neutral and not be involved in disciplining an employee they do not 
supervise. EEO should continue to submit their recommendation to the immediate supervisor of 
the employee after they have completed their investigation. HR's job is to support the nations 
employees, supervisors, managers etc., not to dictate how they operate or take over their job 
responsibilities. EEO must ensure that the supervisor is taking proper corrective measures and 
advise the decision makers on processes and points of law as well as informing them how historical 
cases have been treated, to ensure consistency. EEO should not be disciplining an employee they 
do not supervise. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1069-1070: The supervisor 
or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action from within five (5) working days or either:  
 
Remove “or EEO Officer” from this process. This should not be within their authority to discipline 
employees they do not supervise. The current disciplinary procedure first states “Supervisor 
becomes aware of unsatisfactory work performance or violation. Supervisor investigates through 
a meeting with the employee(s) and determines whether disciplinary action is warranted” This is 
one of the most important steps in the procedure. It clearer written the current way than what is 
written in the new process lines 1071 -1074. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1071-1074: the resolution 
of a complaint from which it has been determined that disciplinary action is warranted, or the 
determination that disciplinary action is warranted based on the unsatisfactory work performance 
of an employee.  
 
Line 1075: The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary action form…  
 
Remove “or EEO Officer” as this should not be within their authority as they are not the immediate 
supervisor of the employee. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1082-1084: The supervisor 
or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action 
form with the employee and identify a corrective action.  
 
Remove “or EEO Officer” as this should not be within EEO authority, as they need to remain a 
neutral entity. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1085-1086: The meeting 
between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or over the telephone.  
 

135 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 52 of 184 
 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as they should not be disciplining employees they do not supervise. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1087: During the meeting 
the supervisor or EEO Officer shall discuss the disciplinary action with the employee…  
 
Remove “or EEO Officer” should not have authority to discipline employees they do not supervise 
as HR needs to remain a neutral entity. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1095-1096: “or EEO 
Officer” is mentioned twice and should be removed from the procedure as it is not within the EEO 
Officers authority issue disciplinary action against an employee they do not supervise. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1099: the supervisor or 
EEO Officer shall provide copies of the signed disciplinary action…  
 
Remove “or EEO Officer” as it should not be within EEO’s authority to issue disciplinary action 
to employees they do not supervise. EEO needs to remain a neutral entity. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1132-1133: The Human 
Resources Executive Director, or designee, may void a disciplinary action taken by an EEO Officer 
for clear procedural errors.  
 
Remove these lines as EEO Officers should not have authority to issue disciplinary actions against 
employees they do not supervise. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1134-1135: Notification of 
a voided disciplinary action shall be sent to the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee which 
identifies the procedural error.  
 
Remove “or EEO Officer” as they should not have authority to issue disciplinary action to 
employees they do not immediately supervise. Only the immediate supervisor has authority to take 
action against an employee. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Complaint Procedures 
Line 784-788: If the supervisor cannot come to mutual determination with the EEO Officer as to 
an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the supervisor shall provide written justification 
for non-agreement on the resolution to both the Area Manager and the Human Resources 
Executive Director. 
 
Why? What is the purpose of this? The process is long enough without adding another step. It is 
the discretion of the supervisor as to what they are going to do, not EEO. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 789-790: The supervisor 
shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager to ensure accountability. 
 

136 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 53 of 184 
 

What does this mean, to ensure accountability??? What is area manager supposed to do about it? 
Again, it is the discretion of the supervisor. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 802: The notice shall 
address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 
 
What does this mean? Line 799-801 already states the notice shall inform the area manager that 
the supervisor violated the complaint process by being negligent and failed to properly investigate 
a complaint, so what does line 802 mean? This line doesn’t seem necessary. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 803-808: If the Area 
Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the accountability of the supervisor, then the 
EEO department shall send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of command. 
If the General Manager level position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO 
Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 
 
So, it’s up to EEO to determine if an Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the 
supervisor? So, if EEO don’t like or agree with what the Area Manager did, this goes to the General 
Manager? This is too much authority for EEO. First off, in gaming there are many levels of 
management and the General Manager may not be the appropriate person in the chain of command. 
Only an immediate supervisor can take corrective action with an employee and in most cases the 
Gaming General Manager is not the immediate supervisor of an area manager. Secondly, why are 
there so many levels now in the complaint process? This is way too much. The Gaming General 
Manager doesn’t need to be involved in, nor do they have the time for front line complaints that 
EEO is not satisfied with how they were handled all the way up the chain of command. Does the 
Business Committee really want to be involved in employee complaints that EEO is not satisfied 
with how they were handled? The current blue book has four (4) sentences on how to handle a 
complaint. This new complaint process is now five (5) pages. This is way too much. Why is it so 
long? 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 833-837: If the Area 
Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO Officer as to an appropriate 
resolution for the complaint, then the Area Manager shall provide written justification for non-
agreement on the resolution to both the appropriate GM level position and the HRD Executive 
Director. 
 
Why? What is the purpose of this, it’s just another step that is unnecessary? It’s up to the Area 
Manager what they are going to do, it’s not up to EEO. And what if this step doesn’t happen, what 
does this change? 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 842-846: If the Area 
Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working 
days, the EEO Department shall send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of 
command. If the General Manager level position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the 
EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 
 

137 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 54 of 184 
 

This is now the third (3rd) step in the complaint process. Why is it necessary to have so many 
levels involved? The General Manager may not be the supervisor of the Area Manager in gaming 
as there are many levels in the chain of command so why is going to the General Manager? The 
GM cannot take action on an Area Manager they do not supervise. The process is too long. Should 
the Oneida Business Committee really be involved in day-to-day complaints that employees file, 
that EEO is not satisfied with how they were handled? The current complaint process is short and 
sweet, easy to follow, this recommended process is too lengthy and has too many levels of 
management involved. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 854-855: The notice shall 
address the appropriate accountability of the Area Manager. 
 
It’s not clear as to what this means as prior to this step, the EEO sends a notice to the General 
Manager informing them the Area Manager violated the complaint process by being negligent in 
the performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 
Seems another unnecessary step. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 905-906: Know the EEO 
Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final resolution;  
 
EEO Officer should not be responsible for implementing the final resolution, they should send 
their recommendation to the immediate supervisor of the employee to implement. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 928-929: Know the EEO 
Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final resolution; and;  
 
EEO should not be responsible for implementing the final resolution (discipline) they should be 
sending their recommendation to the immediate supervisor of the employee. EEO should not have 
discipline authority of employees they do not supervise. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Discipline Line 952-953: 
Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an EEO Officer as the resolution of an EEO Violation 
complaint or an illegal activities complaint investigation.  
 
Remove this sentence. Disciplinary procedures should only be initiated by the immediate 
supervisor. EEO keeps record of disciplinary actions on file, they should not be issuing them and 
tracking their own disciplines. EEO needs to remain neutral. I agree EEO can investigate these 
complaints but send their recommendation to the immediate supervisor to address. Giving EEO 
Officers the ability to discipline employees they do not supervise is too much authority, as that is 
the job of the immediate supervisor, not EEO. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Disciplinary Procedure Line 
1067-1068: The following procedure shall be adhered to by the supervisor or EEO Officer 
whenever disciplinary action is taken.  
 

138 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 55 of 184 
 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as they should not have authority to discipline employee’s they do not 
supervise. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1111-1113: If the EEO 
Office is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine the length of the suspension.  
 
Remove these lines as EEO should not be disciplining employees they do not supervisor. It is not 
within their authority. 
  
If allowed, what is the process if they don’t agree to the length of suspension? It should be the 
same as managements process. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1123-1125: If the EEO 
Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine that the termination is the appropriate disciplinary 
action.  
 
Remove these lines as the EEO Officers should not have the authority to issue disciplinary action 
to employees they do not supervise. EEO Officers at HR need to remain neutral, not go against 
employees.  
 
If allowed, what is the process if they don’t mutually agree to the termination? It should be the 
same process as managements. 
 
Mark Powless (written):  
1167 2) A supervisor Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an EEO Officer as the 
1168 resolution of an EEO Violation complaint or an Illegal Activities complaint 
1169 investigation. 
 
• Moving disciplinary actions out of the hands of supervisors and into the hands of EEO Officer 
will create a difficult dynamic in departments. Some of the reasons include: 

o If a supervisor witnesses or receives a report of an employee contributing to a hostile 
workplace or bullying, will the supervisor be able to take immediate action in the 
workplace? Must the issue be reported to the EEO office and work its way through the 
process before being addressed? If so, the result is the inability to address workplace issues 
in a timely manner. 
o This change will send a message that either supervisors are deemed incompetent or not 
trusted to address workplace issues. The result is decreased morale. 
o The EEO officers do not understand the dynamics of departments and the backgrounds 
of workplace relationships. They do not have the depth of understanding that supervisors 
have to address issues. 
o Some supervisors address matters more effectively through coaching and mentoring or 
through mediation. This revised process ignores and stifles those strengths in supervisors. 

139 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 56 of 184 
 

o There is the potential that different employees under the same supervisor will be treated 
differently for the same violation if their matter is addressed by different EEO Officers, 
leading to inconsistent corrective actions. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (written): Section V – Employee Relations 
• Complaints – Employee disagreements should NOT be submitted to EEO department as this 
removes the responsibility of the Supervisor. I can agree that the complaint is CC’d to EEO but 
not filed with EEO. This appears to be recommended to implement due to a lack of trust and that 
Supervisors are not doing their job. I don’t believe a process like this should be implemented for 
that reason. We should train Supervisors and work with Area Managers to hold those Supervisors 
accountable instead of taking away their ability to do their job and give it to someone else. 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): Again, I do not agree with the EEO department having the ability to 
discipline. This takes away from the role of the Supervisor. 
 
Vanessa Miller (written): Further, I share concern that during the process of EEO investigations 
of EEO policy violations, efforts in coaching and mentoring being made by the supervisor may be 
lost when a separate department is potentially issuing disciplinary action. While I recognize that 
discretion will still certainly be key while EEO performs their investigation, supervisor efforts and 
up close understanding of situations, cultural climate, personalities, environmental climate, etc. is 
necessary if the goal is changed behavior and changed work performance. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Establishing the Nation’s 
Workplace Culture 
 
A workplace culture is the shared values, belief systems, attitudes and the set of assumptions that 
people in a workplace share. Dr. Pragya Agarwal, How To Create A Positive Workplace Culture, 
Forbes (August 29, 2018). A positive workplace culture values, supports and nurtures all the 
organization’s employees. Id. The importance of carefully crafting a positive workplace culture is 
increasingly a topic among human resources professionals who note, “[a]ll leaders have a 
responsibility to be intentional and systematic about designing the culture they want, rather than 
settling for the culture that is created by chance.” Starner, Tom, 6 Policies to Help HR be More 
Strategic About Culture, Human Resources Executive (September 9, 2021). Additionally, experts 
have noted, “[t]he new remote and hybrid work environments have not only made culture more 
important than ever, but they’ve forced leaders to rethink their strategy for building culture.” Id. 
 
The Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures is the primary document responsible for setting the 
Nation’s workplace culture – it defines the Nation’s employment goals and sets human resources 
standards for the Nation. A serious concern related to the proposed amendments to the OPPP is 
the overall tone of the document and how that tone may have a negative impact on the workplace 
culture. The underlying tone of this document communicates that the Nation’s supervisors cannot 
be trusted, that supervisors’ experiences are not valued and that the OPPP and HRD are needed to 
protect “employees.” This is most glaring in the Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances 
section. For example, the introductory paragraph reads: 

Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process for handling problem employees and 
correcting unacceptable behavior. Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for 

140 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 57 of 184 
 

protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment. In all cases of grievance and 
discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious good 
sense to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives and 
handles grievances. 
 

There are a couple important things to note about this section. First, when compared to the current 
OPPP, the reference to also serving to protect the Nation has been removed. Second, the line about 
protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment really stands out. When put together, 
it takes the section out of balance. By reading in between the lines, the organization would be 
sending the message that corrective actions are for “problem employees” and that, if left to their 
own devices, supervisors would treat their employees inconsistently and unfairly. A much simpler 
drafting of the policy, without reference to “problem employees” or to the need to protect 
employees from supervisors would foster a much more positive workplace culture. For example: 
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process for correcting unacceptable employment 
behavior/performance. In all cases of grievance and discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use 
common sense, discretion and judicious good sense. 
 
This tone is carried throughout proposed Section V.D., to the extent that all these actions funnel 
through the Equal Employment Officer and route disciplines for any EEO and/or illegal activities 
violations exclusively through the EEO Department. The breadth of illegal activities is wide and 
often implicated when terminating an employee for reasons other than progressive discipline. 
There is a question as to the capacity of the EEO Department to perform these investigations for 
the Nation’s entire employment body even if only considering time and resources. But it is also an 
issue of subject matter expertise. While the EEO has the subject matter expertise in human 
resources policies, the supervisors have critical subject matter expertise that cannot be removed 
from the process without sacrificing the integrity of the investigation. For example, supervisors 
are the subject matter experts related to the interactions between the employees involved, the 
employment standards and expectations for the positions involved, and most importantly, the day-
to-day operations of their department, including any operating systems for access to documents. 
Removing supervisors from investigations does not serve the employees’ or the Nation’s best 
interests. 
 
The proposed OPPP amendments fall short of building a positive workplace culture that values, 
supports and nurtures all the organization’s employees when the policy does not value, support 
and nurture the Nation’s management team. I strongly encourage the drafting team to consider 
workplace culture when setting the tone of the amended-OPPP. I encourage the Nation to consider 
whether its HRD should be a processor of human resources documents and policies (similar to 
most HRDs) or whether the Nation’s HRD will have decision making authorities on behalf of the 
Nation (which is very uncommon). It would be helpful to spend some time identifying an overall 
policy and goal of the Nation in terms of employment and to keep that at the forefront in each 
section of the document rather than trying to identify the policy and goals section by section – 
which create internal conflict within the document and creates confusion as to the Nation’s 
employment intentions. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Another concern is the 
proposed Amendments would require the EEO Officers to investigate the functions, records, 

141 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 58 of 184 
 

systems, and policies of a department that the EEO likely has no experience in. Such investigations 
are currently delegated to supervisors who understand and work directly in their departments. 
Supervisors may request assistance from professional investigators in Oneida Internal Security. 
An EEO Officer’s unfamiliarity with the subject matter and processes can increase the time, effort, 
and resources needed for an investigation. It will also likely affect the ability of law enforcement 
to conduct an effective investigation, if needed. It is not clear why this responsibility has been 
removed from the supervisors. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.2., Discipline 
The current OPPP provide a process for direct supervisors to discipline their employees for 
infractions enumerated within the Law. See OPPP V.D.2. Under current law, if anyone other than 
an immediate supervisor uncovers information or performs an investigation that reveals a basis for 
possible discipline, the matter is referred to the direct supervisor to perform the discipline. (See 
e.g. Investigative Leave, 2 O.C. 208.7-3; and OPPP §V.D.5)a)1.c.,Sexual Harassment Policy). 
Throughout the investigation and disciplinary process in place at this time, supervisors are given 
discretion to determine how an investigation is conducted, whether a discipline is justified, and the 
severity of the discipline. Oneida Courts have affirmed supervisor discretion, holding, for example, 
that a supervisor has discretion to not terminate an employee who accumulates three disciplinary 
notices, even though such termination is provided for in the OPPP. (Moore v. Skenandore, 15-AC-
011, p. 4 (November 10, 2015)) (See also Oneida Bingo & Casino, Table Games Dept. v. Hoffman, 
09-AC-007, p. 9 (Aug. 19, 2009)) (“It is the discretion of the supervisor to determine if a discipline 
is warranted and if so the severity of the discipline. . . . Having found that Ms. Hoffman did not 
adhere to the attendance and punctuality rules, it is the supervisor that should be permitted and has 
the authority in deciding what if any consequences should be applied to their employee’s work 
performance.”) 
 
Current law also places certain constraints on the supervisor’s discretion, specifically: (1) any 
deviation from progressive discipline must be justified (OPPP V.D.2.b.)16; (2) five-day timeline to 
issue discipline after supervisor concludes the investigation (OPPP V.D.5.b.); (3) in the event of a 
suspension or termination, supervisor must consult with an EEO Officer to mutually determine the 
discipline (OPPP V.D.5.f.1)).17 In addition to the constraints imposed by the OPPP, supervisors’ 
disciplinary decisions are regularly reviewed by area managers and the Courts. It is not clear why 
the proposed amendments reach even further in constraining supervisor and area manager 
discretion. 
 
Unlike the current OPPP, the proposed amendments would establish a disciplinary process that 
may be initiated by either the direct supervisor or the EEO Officer 
. 

2. Discipline 
a. Initiation of Disciplinary Action. 

1) Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an immediate supervisor for the 
purpose of correcting unsatisfactory work performance or as the resolution 
of an Employee Disagreement complaint investigation. 
2) Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an EEO Officer as the resolution 
of an EEO Violation complaint or an Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 947-953). 

142 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 59 of 184 
 

 
The proposed amendments permit discipline by either an employee’s direct supervisor or an EEO 
Officer, depending on the basis for the discipline. In situations where a supervisor “fails to 
investigate and resolve [an Employee Disagreement] complaint,” the EEO will direct the Area 
Manager or, ultimately, the General Manager to “resolve the complaint.” (OPPP amendments, 
Draft 1, lines 794-6 and 856-8). Where supervisor discretion and supervisor-initiated disciplines 
have had long standing in the OPPP and are supported by the Courts, it is not clear what philosophy 
has led to such a change in the proposed amendments. 
 
16 Justification of deviation from progressive discipline is typically included in the written 
summary that accompanies the Disciplinary Action Form. The justification may then be reviewed 
by the area manager, in the event the employee appeals. 
17 OPPP V.D.5.f.1) requires the supervisor to mutually determine suspensions and terminations 
with the HRD Manager. In practice, this function has been delegated to the EEO Officers. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

iii. If the supervisor cannot complete the investigation within the ten (10) working day 
timeframe, the supervisor may request a one (1) time five (5) working day extension from 
the EEO Department. 
iv. When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall contact the EEO 
Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO Officer as 
to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the supervisor shall provide 
written justification for non-agreement on the resolution to both the Area Manager 
and the Human Resources Executive Director. 

v. The supervisor shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager to ensure 
accountability. 
vi. The supervisor shall also send the final resolution and all supporting documentation 
used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department for filing and reporting purposes. 

 
Sections V.D.1.c.1)c)iii. - vi. of the proposed amendments create additional burdens for 
supervisors when resolving Employee Disagreement Complaints. The current OPPP gives the 
supervisor discretion to “attempt to resolve the disagreement” and, if the resolution is not 
satisfactory to the complaining employee, allows the employee to appeal one time to the area 
manager. (current OPPP V.D.1.b. and c. (See excerpt at p. 4, above)). Under the amended process, 
a supervisor – and an area manager and the General Manager – is no longer trusted to resolve 
complaints that are based on an employee’s frustration or misunderstanding with another 
employee. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 726-7) The supervisor, area manager, and General 
Manager would be required to consult with the EEO to resolve an employee’s frustration or to 
properly address an employee’s misunderstanding.12 It is unclear what has prompted this wholesale 
removal of discretion from supervisors, area managers, and General Managers. The foundation for 
and philosophy behind this change is not explained in the proposed amendments. 
 
12 And, it is important to note at this point, if the supervisor, area manager, or General Manager 
does not follow this process, they may be disciplined. 
 

143 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 60 of 184 
 

Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  
e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may refile 
their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area Manager. 

i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO Department 
shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the complaint. 
ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation. 
iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the 
Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO Department. iv. The Area 
Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as all other 
parties mentioned in the complaint. 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur in 
person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 
2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with an 
employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being complained 
about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall move forward with the 
investigation based on the information they have. 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area Manager shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO 
Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the Area 
Manager shall provide written justification for non-agreement on the 
resolution to both the appropriate GM level position and the HRD Executive 
Director. 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department 840 for 
filing and reporting purposes. 
vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final. 

f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within 
the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice to the General Manager 
level position in that chain of command. If the General Manager level position was the 
Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida 
Business Committee. 

i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level position that the complaint was 
not addressed within the additional ten (10) working days. ii. The notice shall 
inform the General Manager level position that the Area Manager violated the 
complaint process by being negligent in the 
performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a 
complaint. 
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the Area Manager. 
iv. The notice shall address the General Manager level position’s responsibility to 
complete the complaint investigation and reach a resolution. 

1. Investigation Procedure for all General Manager Level Positions, not the 
Oneida Business Committee 

144 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 61 of 184 
 

a. The General Manager level position shall complete the 
investigation and reach a resolution within ten (10) working days of 
receiving the notice from EEO. 
b. The General Manager level position’s ten (10) working day 
timeframe begins the day after the General Manager level position 
receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 
c. The General Manager level position shall meet with the employee 
868 filing the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 

i. Meetings between the General Manager level position and 
the employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 
ii. The General Manager level position shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an employee. If the complaining 
employee or the employee being complained about is 
unavailable, the General Manager level position shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they 
have. 

d. When the General Manager level position’s investigation is 
complete, the General Manager level position shall contact the EEO 
Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

i. If the General Manager level position cannot come to a 
mutual determination with the EEO Officer as to an 
appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the General 
Manager level position shall provide written justification for 
non-agreement on the resolution to the Human Resources 
Executive Director. 

e. The final resolution shall be sent to the EEO Department for filing 
and reporting purposes. 
f. The General Manager level position’s resolution of the complaint 
shall be final. 

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida Business Committee 
a. When the GM level position of a complaint was the Area Manager 
in the complaint, then the Oneida Business Committee shall 
complete the investigation and reach a resolution in accordance with 
their standard operating procedure regarding complaints. 

 
The proposed amendments significantly and, perhaps, unnecessarily complicate the employee 
complaint process. An Employee Disagreement based on a problem, misunderstanding, or 
frustration may be elevated to the General Manager, which could be as many as five levels of 
supervision above the complaining employee. It is difficult to estimate how many additional 
complaints might require area managers’ and General Managers’ attention under the amended 
process. Of course, it is not just the additional complaints that will become burdensome. The 
Complaint investigation and resolution process itself will bury supervisors, area managers, and 
General Managers. With present labor market conditions and a shortage of workers in most Oneida 
departments, supervisors and area managers are regularly covering work duties and filling 

145 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 62 of 184 
 

vacancies. If supervisors are regularly faced with the choice between, on the one hand, being 
disciplined for an untimely response to a complaint or, on the other hand, an unattended cashier 
till, patients who cannot get in for required medical visits, lack of supervision in a Head Start 
classroom, or being unavailable for required testimony in Indian Child Welfare hearings, 
supervisors will simply choose to leave the Oneida organization and go elsewhere. Supervisors, 
including area managers and General Managers, are employees, too. They deserve trust and respect 
in the form of discretion to investigate and resolve employee complaints that are based on 
“frustration and misunderstandings.” 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Proposed Amendments Create 
Uncertainty and Conflict 
 
The proposed amendments insert the HRD Director and EEO into the disciplinary process in a 
new way. The amendments delegate quasi-judicial29 authority to the EEO, vesting broad discretion 
to the EEO. This delegation of authority is potentially problematic for several reasons. 
 
First, the amendments contain vague and undefined language, thereby opening up EEO 
enforcement to subjective criteria. For example, the proposed EEO violation section indicates an 
“EEO violation occurs when an employee alleges they are being bullied, working in a hostile-
working environment, being discriminated against, being harassed, being intimidated, being 
retaliated against, or being sexually harassed.” Sec. V.D.I.2. As written, a mere allegation 
constitutes a violation. It is unknown if this presumption is intentional in the drafting. Aside from 
“sexual harassment,” the concepts (terms) of “being bullied,” “hostile-working environment,” 
“being discriminated against,” “being harassed,” “being intimidated,” and “being retaliated 
against” are undefined in the proposed amendments and process is lacking. Although there is no 
federal employment law against “bullying,”30 some of the behaviors that may fall under such a 
label may generally fall under discrimination. Without highlighting the complexities of application 
of federal and state employment laws to tribal employers, those established laws have defined 
meanings and processes for topics such as discrimination, hostile-work environment, and 
retaliation. And, yet, no such definitions or processes have made their way into the proposed 
amendments. 
 
Second, the proposed changes and delegation of quasi-judicial authority may implicate liability 
and premium concerns that are best explored with the Nation’s Risk Management Department. 
The Nation has vigorously defended its employees to both state and federal regulatory agencies 
when external discrimination complaints have been leveled against them and when external 
litigation occurs. In such instances, the legal defenses31 are generally known. With the proposed 
amendments, the EEO is tasked with making a legal determination that may have a legal effect on 
the Nation, both with the Nation’s court system and potentially with external regulatory agencies. 
It becomes more complex to defend against an employment or external discrimination complaint, 
for example, when a finding of wrongdoing (“violation”) has already occurred or has been 
predetermined. This issue also raises questions concerning policy coverage and individual liability 
when there is a “violation” and external litigation occurs. A standard immunity defense in external 
courts requires, generally, that a tribal employee (supervisor, for example) be acting within their 
official capacity and scope of authority. A quasi-judicial final determination of a violation by the 
EEO in these instances may negate the “scope authority” argument and, additionally, policy 

146 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 63 of 184 
 

coverage. See for example, Hardin v. White Mountain Apache Tribe, 779 F.2d 476 (1985); 
Landreman v. Martin, 191 Wis. 2d 787, 530 N.W.2d 62 (Ct. App. 1995); Imperial Granite Co. v. 
Pala Band of Mission Indians, 940 F.2d 1269 (1991). 
 
Third, the proposed amendments create at least four types of conflict: (1) conflict between the 
EEO’s responsibilities; (2) conflict between the EEO and supervisors; (3) conflict between 
employees and supervisors; and, (4) conflict between the EEO’s role and the Judiciary’s role.32 
Currently, the EEOs position themselves as “neutrals” in the discipline process, primarily 
providing process guidance to supervisors while also providing similar process information to 
employees subject to discipline.33 Under the proposed structure, the EEO would continue to offer 
supervisors guidance on the disciplinary process, but the EEO is also inserted into the process as 
an authority that metes out discipline. Under the proposed structure, the EEO would make a final 
determination (and seemingly discipline) on those newly categorized EEO violations against the 
same supervisors34 the EEO office may be responsible to provide support to. The EEO may require 
a specific disciplinary outcome from supervisors continuing through the General Manager level.35 
The EEO will absolutely determine negligence occurred if the disciplinary timeline is not adhered 
to.36 The EEO will be inserted the investigation of illegal activities.37 And the EEO will void a 
disciplinary action for a “clear” procedural error. V.D.1. and 2. The EEO would no longer be a 
neutral. Even with this new quasi-judicial authority the EEO remains in a position where they are 
offering guidance to supervisors in the disciplinary process. This is a conflict of role that also has 
the real ability to create conflict between the EEO and the supervisors they are advising.38 

 

It is unclear what has necessitated some of the proposed amendments, including the new EEO 
violation section. Certainly, the proposed complaint section containing the new EEO violations of 
the law invites “complaints” from employees to file against other employees. It is not far reaching 
to presume that an employee subject to discipline may feel as if the discipline is an act of being 
“bullied” and may, in turn, file an EEO complaint. This scenario creates a conflict within the EEO 
role because it creates conflict between the EEO and the supervisor, as well as the EEO and the 
employee. Additionally, although the EEO has been a neutral witness concerning HRD-related 
processes and interpretations, insertion of the EEO into the quasi-judicial role may cause confusion 
at all levels, including the Judiciary, where it may be necessary to determine whether EEO is a 
witness or a party in employment litigation. 
 
Last, in addition to lacking definition, the delegation of quasi-judicial authority to the EEO lacks 
process and potentially delegates unfettered authority. Not only are undefined but specified 
allegations deemed “violations” when they are alleged, but the law lacks a process that is specific 
enough to allow an accused employee to ask questions, present evidence or otherwise refute or 
address any allegations. Although the EEO is acting in a quasi-judicial capacity, the administrative 
process that tends to exist for quasi-judicial decisions is lacking.39 

 

It is not necessary, in fact it is a duplication of services, to push employee advocacy and/or quasi-
judicial responsibilities onto the Equal Employment Officer. EEOs must know the Nation’s human 
resources policies and must be able to inform employees regarding access to those policies. 
However, the EEO should not be providing employees interpretations of policies (unless it is a 
formal interpretation issued in writing by HRD as a whole) and should not be advising employees 
as to potential legal courses of action following a discipline aside from providing a referral to the 

147 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 64 of 184 
 

GTC Legal Resource Office. That is because the Nation is already employing an entire office to 
do just this – the GTC Legal Resource Center is responsible for providing legal representation to 
Oneida Nation employees involved in the disciplinary process at no cost. It is the GTC Legal 
Resource Center that should provide interpretations of policy for employee’s use in their defense 
and guidance through the employment process. 
 
29 To describe an activity (as opposed to “ministerial”) is “quasi-judicial” is to say that the activity 
involves the exercise of discretion and judgment in the application of a rule to specific facts. The 
concept of quasi-judicial immunity is a common law concept that may also be codified in law. 
Although the contours of quasi-judicial immunity remain unsettled, quasi-judicial immunity 
extends beyond to traditional “judges” to those employees/ officials and members of adjudicatory 
bodies whose duties are functionally equivalent to those of a judge or prosecutor. The caselaw on 
quasi-judicial and quasi-judicial function (and immunity) is lengthy, but an example appears in 
Wilson v. Ill. Dep’t of Financial and Professional Regulation, 376 F. Supp.3d 849 (March 25, 
2019); Snyder v. Nolan, 380 F.3d 279 (August 13, 2004). Even agencies, those with functions such 
as the FTC, have been determined to be quasi-judicial agencies. Morrison v. Olson, 487 U.S. 654, 
687 (June 29, 1988). 
30 https://www.stopbullying.gov/resources/laws/federal.gov 
31 By its own terms, Title VII does not apply to Indian tribes. 42. U.S.C. § 2000e(b); Morton v. 
Mancari, 417 U.S. 535 (June 17, 1974); www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/policy-statement-indian-
preference-under-title-viiian Preference under Title VII | U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (eeoc.gov); www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/section-2-threshold-issues2 Threshold 
Issues | U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (eeoc.gov). 
32 The EEO position predates the Judiciary, which was implemented into the Nation’s Constitution 
in 2017. The proposed amendments seem to be a step backwards by delegating quasi-judicial 
authority to the EEO—after the Nation has so carefully transferred quasi-judicial authority to the 
Judiciary where possible. For example BC Resolution 09-27-17-E. The General Tribal Council 
adopted the Judiciary at its January 7, 2013 meeting by resolution GTC-01-07-13-B. Broadly, the 
Judiciary was established to administer the law and ensure justice through the Oneida Nation’s 
own court system. Formalizing the court system reinforced Oneida Nation’s status as sovereign 
nation evidenced by the exercise of its inherent authority to make, execute, apply, and enforce its 
own laws, and to apply its own customs and traditions in matters affecting the Oneida people. In 
the spring of 2015, through the BIA’s Secretarial Election process, Oneida Nation’s membership 
voted to amend the Oneida Nation Constitution by adopting Article V, Judiciary. Although the 
GTC already approved the Judiciary, Article V constitutionally established the judiciary as a 
separate power, existing to exercise the judicial authority of the Oneida Nation. Although there 
was a challenge to the Secretarial Election, the election was upheld and Oneida’s constitution was 
amended. Genskow v. Midwest Regional Dir., 62 IBIA 155 (02/11/2016). The General Tribal 
Council confirmed the results of the secretarial election, by adopting resolution GTC-03-19-17-A. 
This resolution confirmed the Oneida Judiciary in the Oneida Nation Constitution and made a 
broad authorization of judicial authority. 
33 Employees (regardless of Tribal status) subject to discipline also have access to the GTC Legal 
Resource Center for representation on employment matters. See Oneida General Tribal Council, 
2nd Reconvened Special Meeting from Aug. 10, 2016, Meeting Minutes- Draft, p. 39 (November 
14, 2016). 
34 As well as other employees. 

148 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 65 of 184 
 

35 This creates questions of structure if the EEO is not in the chain of command or organizational 
chart. Additionally, while the EEO is required to know the employment process, the EEO may not 
be in the best position to understand the nuances of the facts and responsibilities of the position. 
36 Regardless or reason. 
37 It is unclear how the EEO is more suited to perform these investigations over a supervisor with 
immediate knowledge of the facts and operations of a department. While an “illegal activities” 
section of the law may be helpful for those supervisors performing complex employment 
investigations with criminal implications (for example: embezzlement, theft from an employer, 
misuse of federal funds, fraud, and computer crimes) by providing additional process guidance 
and potentially extended timeframes, it is not clear that the EEO is in the best position to do this. 
As drafted, it is also not clear if “illegal activities” are only those few violations listed. Still, the 
EEO would then replace the Supervisor and the EEO “neutral” role would be negated. This has 
potential to cause confusion, particularly at the Judicial level. 
38 And will potentially chill an already difficult disciplinary process. 
39 Although the Judiciary contains such process, such a process should be available when 
administrative quasi-judicial determinations are made. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern with the delegation of authority to the EEO Department to 
investigate complaints in certain circumstances and issue disciplines as a result of those 
complaints. The commenters feel that this change to the Law is encroaching on the authority of 
supervisors, and that instead of delegating what traditionally has been the authority of supervisors 
to the EEO Department, more efforts should be made to train supervisors to handle these 
responsibilities themselves.  
 
The proposed amendments to section V.D.1.b of the Law separate complaints into three (3) 
categories: Employee Disagreements, EEO violations, and Illegal Activities. Supervisors are 
responsible for handling the investigations for Employee Disagreement complaints, while the EEO 
Department is responsible for handling the investigations or EEO Violations and Illegal Activities 
complaints. Disciplinary action shall be initiated by an immediate supervisor for the purpose of 
correcting unsatisfactory work performance or as the resolution of an Employee Disagreement 
complaint investigation. [OPPP Section V..2.a.1]. While disciplinary actions shall be initiated by 
an EEO Officer as the resolution of an EEO Violation complaint or an Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation. [OPPP Section V..2.a.2]. The intent of the proposed amendments to the complaint 
and disciplinary procedures found in the Law was to move the higher level complaints to an area 
that can specialize in those complaint investigations, and to ensure that the body completing the 
investigation and gathering all the information is the body that ultimately determines the 
conclusion of the investigation and issues and corresponding discipline. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider the complaint and discipline provisions 
found in section V.D of the Law in light of the concerns expressed by the commenters, and 
determine moving forward how best to address who should have the authority to investigate 
complaints and issue disciplines. 
 
LOC Consideration 

149 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 66 of 184 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Comments 90 through 95 – Role of the Personal Commission: 
SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
B. HIRING PROCEDURE 

2. Hiring Guidelines  
a. All Supervisors of the Oneida Nation shall undergo both training upon 
hiring and periodic retraining in EEO and laws, rules, and regulations of the 
Nation.  
b. Personnel Commission Role 

1) The Oneida Nation established the Personnel Commission to 
represent the Oneida Community-at-large in the selection of employees 
of the Nation and to shield those employees from inconsistent and 
unfair treatment by: 

a) Protecting against issues of nepotism; 
b) Enforcing Oneida and Indian preference. 

2) The Personnel Commission is directed to: 
i. Participate in the hiring selection process, including job 
description pre-screens and interviews, to ensure compliance 
with the Nation’s laws and policies regarding the following 
subject matters: 

1. Oneida and Indian preference; 
2. Nepotism; 
3. Conflicts of interest; 
4. Veteran status; and  
5. Physical capacity requirements. 

ii. Comply with the Oneida Personnel Commission Bylaws 
 
Wendy Alvarez (written): Good afternoon, I would like to submit some comments based on the 
Proposed Amendments to the Oneida Policies and Procedures. Line 301 What it the OPC role? 
Are we going to meet with them to review how this will look? 
 
Shannon Stone (written): Personnel Commission: The Personnel Commission Role is to a) 
Protecting against issues of nepotism; and b) Enforcing Oneida and Indian preference. Lines 301 
through 306. However, lines 307 through 362 are inconsistent by directing the OPC to ensure 
compliance with the Nation’s laws and policies in the area of Conflicts of Interest, Veteran Status, 
and Physical Capacity requirement. One would think the Personnel Commission would act only 
within the boundaries of their role. 
 
Finally, it seems strange that the Personnel Policies and Procedures would have authority to direct 
the Personnel Commission to follow their bylaws. This should be a matter of law, not policy. 
Additionally, the Commission’s bylaws should be consistent with the established role to protect 

150 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 67 of 184 
 

against issues of nepotism and enforcement of Indian Preference. Activities outside this area would 
be beyond the scope authorized by the GTC. 
 
Jessica Vandekamp (written): 2. Personnel Commission. Remove any responsibilities of being 
a hearing body for employment appeals and to participate in the hiring process. I believe this 
commission has outlived its purpose for the Nation’s hiring and it impedes upon a smooth and 
timely hiring process. 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): I agree with the Personnel Commission ensuring compliance with 
specific processes. I would like that to be the only responsibility of the Personnel Commission 
during hiring. For instance, in the past, the Personal Commission scored the applicants during the 
interview. I do not believe this should be a future responsibility of the Personnel Commission as 
they are not the experts on the questions and answers. They do not know the dynamics of the 
department and what type of employee the Supervisor is looking for. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section III.B.2.b., Personnel 
Commission Role 
 
The current OPPP defines the Personnel Commission Role as follows: 

b. Personnel Commission Role 
1) The Oneida Nation established the Personnel Commission to represent the 
Oneida Community-at-large in the selection of employees of the Nation. 

 
The proposed amendments narrow down the Personnel Commission Role: 
b. Personnel Commission Role  

1) The Oneida Nation established the Personnel Commission to represent the Oneida 
Community-at-large in the selection of employees of the Nation and to shield those 
employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment by: 

a) Protecting against issues of nepotism; 
b) Enforcing Oneida and Indian preference.1 (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
280-284) 

 
In addition, the current OPPP direct the involvement of Personnel Commissioners in particular 
screening and interview processes, specifically as one member of the Screening Committee “to 
conduct the screening of applicants” (OPPP III.B.2.f.2)) and as two members of the Interview 
Committee (OPPP III.B.2.g.1)). The proposed amendments generally direct the Oneida Personnel 
Commission to “participate in the hiring selection process, including job description pre-screens 
and interviews” and “ensure compliance with the Nation’s laws and policies regarding . . . 1. 
Oneida and Indian preference; 2. Nepotism; 3. Conflicts of Interest; 4. Veteran status; and 5. 
Physical capacity requirements.” The Commission is further directed to comply with its own 
bylaws. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 285-294). 
 
While the current OPPP specifies how Personnel Commissioners are involved in screening and 
interview processes, the proposed amendments do not identify any specific duties through which 
the Commission will “participate” and “ensure compliance.” The Commission’s current bylaws 
have similar language2 to the OPPP amendments and, therefore, do not identify specific duties for 

151 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 68 of 184 
 

Commissioners in the screening and interview processes. (Oneida Personnel Commission By-
Laws, Article I. Authority, Section 1-3 and 1-5(e)) The Personnel Commission could amend its 
bylaws to describe its participation in the Nation’s hiring processes.3 (See Oneida Personnel 
Commission By-Laws, Article VII. Amendments). If the amended OPPP does not direct the 
Personnel Commissioners’ duties in the screening and interview processes, who has the authority 
to direct them? The authority of and involvement by the Oneida Personnel Commission has always 
been defined by Oneida Law and not through departmental rulemaking. The proposed amendments 
do not state why this change is needed. 
 
1 Language added through the proposed OPPP amendments is identical to language in the 
Commission’s Bylaws describing its authority. See Oneida Personnel Commission By-Laws, 
Section 1-3(a). 
2 The Personnel Commission bylaws include an additional area of authority under Section 1-3: 
“(3) Hearing and deciding appeals of disciplinary action filed by employees of the Nation.” Section 
1-5(e) includes a corresponding responsibility to “[c]onduct grievance hearings in accordance with 
the Oneida Personnel Policies and procedures and Oneida Business Committee Resolution BC-
03-13-19-C.” Through a series of Business Committee resolutions and GTC directives that are not 
relevant to this legal review, the Personnel Commission was dissolved and then reinstated in 2018. 
3 At this time, the Personnel Commission has 1 member; all other seats are vacant. 
 
Lisa Summers and Brooke Doxtator (written): 2. The Government Administrative Office is not 
in support of the changes outlined in lines 1487 to 1595 of the redline version that replaces the 
Human Resources Department with Government Administrative Office as this time. 

a. There are several things we would like addressed before proceeding with these changes: 
ii. That the Oneida Business Committee (OBC) makes a determination on next steps 
regarding implementing a functioning Oneida Personnel Commission. 

1. The Commission has not been functioning since 2018. The GAO has 
brought several posting requests and information before the OBC for 
additional guidance and direction. 
2. The OPC has encountered issues finding qualified applicants to apply for 
the Commission, and has had issues with the members completing their 
trainings. 
3. The OPC was placed in “Temporary Closure Status” from April 8, 2020, 
to June 14, 2021, due to the COVID pandemic; however, since reactivating 
the OPC, they have been unable to meet due a lack of members, nor have 
member completed proper training as identified in item #2 above. 

 
Response 
 
The commenters questions what the role of the Oneida Personnel Commission is under the 
proposed amendments to the Law.  
 
Section III.B.2.b of the Law discusses the role of the Oneida Personnel Commission. The Law 
provides that the Oneida Personnel Commission was established to represent the Oneida 
Community-at-large in the selection of employees of the Nation and to shield those employees 
from inconsistent and unfair treatment by protecting against issues of nepotism and enforcing 

152 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 69 of 184 
 

Oneida and Indian preference. The Law then directs the Oneida Personnel Commission to 
participate in the hiring selection process, including job description pre-screens and interviews, to 
ensure compliance with the Nation’s laws and policies regarding the following subject matters: 
 Oneida and Indian preference; 
 Nepotism; 
 Conflicts of interest; 
 Veteran status; and  
 Physical capacity requirements. 

 
Section III.B.2.b of the Law then also directs that the Oneidas Personnel Commission comply with 
the Oneida Personnel Commission Bylaws. Section V.D.3.c.2. then allows an employee to appeal 
the Area Manager’s grievance decision to the Oneida Personnel Commission and provides the 
process and procedures for how the Oneida Personnel Commission handles that grievance. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee consider further clarifying the role 
of the Oneida Personnel Commission in the Law, so that the specific duties and responsibilities of 
the Oneida Personnel Commission is clearly provided. The Legislative Operating Committee may 
also want to consider whether the role the Oneida Personnel Commission played in the past is still 
necessary today. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 96 through 98 – Relationship between the Oneida Personnel Commission and the 
Judiciary: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
3. Grievance 

c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that resulted 
from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work performance shall 
be governed by the following guidelines: 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel Commission (BC Resolution, 3-18-19) 
a) An employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the 
Oneida Personnel Commission by filing a grievance with the 
Government Administrative Office on behalf of the Oneida Personnel 
Commission within ten (10) working days from the employee’s receipt 
of the Area Manager’s decision. 
b) The Government Administrative Office shall notify the Human 
Resources Executive Director of the appeal of the Area Manager’s 
decision within one (1) business day of receipt of the appeal. 

153 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 70 of 184 
 

c) The Government Administrative Office shall collect all 
information the Area Manager used in making the decision to uphold 
or modify the disciplinary action. 
d) The Government Administrative Office shall provide the 
information obtained to the Oneida Personnel Commission members 
selected to serve as the hearing body for the appeal. 
e) The Oneida Personnel Commissioners shall review all the 
information submitted by the employee petitioner and the Government 
Administrative Office to determine if one (1) or both conditions exist; 

i. The decision of the Area Manager is clearly against the 
weight of the evidence; or 
ii. Procedural irregularities were exhibited during the 
appeal process that were harmful to one of the parties to the 
grievance. 

f) If Oneida Personnel Commission members selected to serve as 
the hearing body for the appeal find one (1) or both conditions exist, 
the Government Administrative Office shall convene the Oneida 
Personnel Commission to hear the grievance. 
g) If the Oneida Personnel Commission members find that neither 
condition exists, the Oneida Personnel Commission shall deny the 
appeal for a hearing and affirm the decision of the Area Manager. 
h) Convening a Hearing 

i. The Government Administrative Office shall schedule a 
time and location for the grievance hearing and shall confirm 
the participation of the Oneida Personnel Commission members 
selected to serve as the hearing body for the complaint. 
ii. The Government Administrative Office shall send notice 
of the hearing to the petitioner, respondent, and Oneida 
Personnel Commission members at least five (5) working days 
prior to the hearing date. 
iii. The Government Administrative Office shall provide 
copies of all information on the subject case upon which the 
disciplinary action was upheld or modified by the Area 
Manager to the members of the Oneida Personnel Commission 
at least two (2) working days prior to the appeal date. 
iv. The Government Administrative Office shall allow the 
petitioner and respondent access to this information in the 
Government Administrative Office at least two (2) days prior to 
the appeal date. 

i) Hearing Procedure 
i. The order of presentation for the hearing shall be: 

1. Petitioner’s opening statement; 
2. Respondent’s opening statement; 
3. The Petitioner’s case; 
4. The Respondent’s case; 
5. Petitioner’s closing statement; and  

154 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 71 of 184 
 

6. Respondent’s closing statement. 
ii. The petitioner shall have the right to be represented by 
an advocate, at their own expense. The respondent and/or Area 
Manager who is party to the grievance action shall have access 
to an advocate for consultation and/or representation.  Should 
the petitioner engage outside professional legal representation, 
the respondent and/or Area Manager shall have access to the 
professional legal representation. 

1. Should the petitioner and their representative 
both fail to appear for any scheduled hearing without 
justifiable cause, the decision of the Area Manager shall 
be upheld, and the grievance dismissed. 
2. Should the respondent and their representative 
both fail to appear for any scheduled hearing without 
justifiable cause, the decision of the Area Manager shall 
be overturned. 

iii. If new evidence which was previously unavailable is 
introduced at any point during the hearing process, the Oneida 
Personnel Commission hearing shall be suspended, and the case 
shall be remanded to the Area Manager for reconsideration. 

1. The Area Manager shall reconsider the decision 
in light of the new evidence and issue a decision within 
three (3) working days. 
2. This procedure may be invoked only once. 

iv. Thereafter, the appeal process shall continue to a 
conclusion based on the information originally presented and 
the newly introduced evidence. 

1. If the Area Manager overturns their decision, the 
case shall not come back for a hearing. 
2. If the Area Manager affirms their decision, then 
the case shall come back to the Oneida Personnel 
Commission to complete the hearing. 

v. The Oneida Personnel Commission’s decision shall be 
based solely on the information presented to them before the 
appeal hearing, the record of the prior proceedings, and any 
new evidence if introduced appropriately. 
vi. The Oneida Personnel Commission may: 

1. Uphold the disciplinary action; or 
2. Overturn the disciplinary action and: 

a. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) with 
back pay for any lost time in accordance with the 
Back Pay law; or 
b. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) 
without back pay. 

vii. The Oneida Personnel Commission shall provide 
notification of the final decision within five (5) working days 

155 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 72 of 184 
 

following the hearing.  Notification of the final decision shall 
include; 

1. The final decision; 
2. The reason(s) for the final decision; and 
3. The action to be taken as a result of the final 
decision. 

j) The Government Administrative Office shall keep records of the 
hearing, and provide copies of administrative advocacy rules, 
procedural rules, and time line rules to interested parties. 
k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfil its 
responsibility to hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then 
the employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida 
Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten 
(10) days from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (oral): Also, I have a question. If the Personnel Commission is not, is in place 
and the employee still appeals to the Judiciary, or can the employee still appeal to the Judiciary  
if they're not satisfied with the decision through the Personnel Commission process? 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): QUESTION: Can an employee move onto the Judiciary if they are not 
satisfied with the Personnel Commission decision? 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): QUESTION: If the employee appealing a discipline is not satisfied 
with the decision of the Personnel Commission, can they appeal to the Judiciary? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter first questions what occurs if the Oneida Personnel Commission is not in place, 
and then questions if an employee can appeal the decision of the Oneida Personnel Commission 
to the Judiciary if they are not satisfied with the decision of the Oneida Personnel Commission. 
 
Section V.D.3.c.2.k of the Law provides that if the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to 
fulfill its responsibility to hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then the employee may 
appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the 
Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. So 
if the Oneida Personnel Commission is inactive, then an employee will appeal the decision of the 
Area Manager directly to the Judiciary. 
 
In regard to whether an employee can appeal the decision of the Oneida Personnel Commission to 
the Judiciary if they are not satisfied with the decision of the Oneida Personnel Commission, the 
Law itself is silent as to this matter. The Rules of Appellate Procedure provides that any party to a 
civil action, who is aggrieved by a final judgment or order of the Trial Court or original hearing 
body, may appeal to the Court of Appeals. [8 O.C. 805.5-1]. An original hearing body is defined 
as the administrative agency decision-making panel which heard a contested case under the 
Administrative Procedures Act (or similar law) and from which appeal is permitted by law. [8 

156 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 73 of 184 
 

O.C. 805.3-1(s)]. The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether this should be 
clarified within the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 99 through 102 – Involvement of Affected Entities: 
 
Lisa Summers and Brooke Doxtator (written): The purpose of this correspondence is to provide 
the Government Administrative Office (GAO) comments and concerns regarding the Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments. 
 
Comments and/or Identified Concerns 

1. In the legislative analysis under “affected entities” the Government 
Administrative Office is missing, and it is noted that the GAO was not 
asked to participate in the work meetings held to develop the 
amendments and analysis. Overall, this concern leads to a series of 
questions the GAO has regarding the intent of the amendments, and 
consideration for additional resources which may be needed to 
implement change. Additionally, it is identified through the analysis, 
there appears to be missing data which would provide guidance on the 
type of resources needed to fulfill the responsibilities which accompany 
the proposed change. This concern is detailed further in item #2. 

 
Lisa Rauschenbach (written): Why were managers not included in drafting the amendments 
outside of HRD? 
 
Mark Powless (written): The purpose of this memorandum is to provide written comments 
regarding the proposed Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments. These comments 
are reflective of the views of myself and do not represent the views of my direct reports. Direct 
Reports were asked to provide verbal or written comments as they felt necessary. 
 
General Comments 
• Pertaining to policies and procedures that directly impact departments and staff of the Oneida 
Nation, it is good business practice to either allow those areas to participate in the development of 
said policies and procedures or to gather feedback on the front end. This will help to set an agreed 
upon foundation to move forward from. It will avoid significant time and energy being placed into 
an effort only to learn that the resultant feedback potentially sends the effort back to ‘square one’. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): On December 7, 2022, the 
Legislative Operating Committee released to the public for the first time a draft of comprehensive 
amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures. Neither the Oneida Law Office nor 
any department/division management personnel besides the Human Resources Department were 

157 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 74 of 184 
 

notified about or involved in any work meetings, discussions, drafting, or other development of 
the OPPP amendments. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express that not all managers, directors, or supervisors of the Nation were directly 
involved in the development of the proposed amendments prior to the public meeting. 
 
The Legislative Procedures Act provides a standard process for the development and adoption of 
legislation of the Nation which includes taking into account comments and input collected from 
members and agencies of the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-1, 109.1-2]. The Legislative Procedures Act 
provides that the Legislative Operating Committee is the body responsible for the development of 
laws of the Nation in accordance with this law, other such duties as provided by law and the 
development and maintenance of the Oneida Register. [1 O.C. 109.4-2]. The Legislative 
Procedures Act requires that the Legislative Operating Committee hold a public meeting for the 
purpose of soliciting oral comment and questions, and then hold open a public comment period for 
the submission of written comments and questions. [1 O.C. 109.8]. Under the Legislative 
Procedures Act, the public meeting and public comment period is the opportunity for departments 
or community members to provide their input on proposed legislation to the Legislative Operating 
Committee. 
 
Although not required by Law, the Legislative Operating Committee does typically collaborate 
with affected entities on the development of legislation prior to a public meeting, and uses its 
discretion to determine which affected entities to invite to its work meetings on the development 
of the legislation. The Legislative Operating Committee typically attempts to be as inclusive as 
possible in its early collaborations. In the case of these proposed amendments, the Legislative 
Operating Committee was working under an accelerated timeline in an attempt to present these 
amendments to the General Tribal Council for consideration prior to May 11, 2023, when the 
emergency amendments expire. Additionally, due to the nature of this Law, every employee of the 
Nation is an affected entity, so there is a large breadth of individuals who may have input. 
Therefore, the Legislative Operating Committee collaborated with a much smaller work group 
than typical and instead relied on the public meeting and the public comment period to solicit input 
from all other agencies. The Legislative Operating Committee is pleased by the participation in 
the legislative process exhibited through the comments received for this legislation during the 
public meeting and the public comment period. The desire to participate further in the legislative 
process by many individuals has encouraged the Legislative Operating Committee to be more 
mindful of being as inclusive as possible in its collaboration efforts in the future. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 103 through 106– Administrative Support for the Oneida Personnel Commission: 
 

158 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 75 of 184 
 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
3. Grievance 

c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that resulted 
from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work performance shall 
be governed by the following guidelines: 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel Commission (BC Resolution, 3-18-19) 
a) An employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the 
Oneida Personnel Commission by filing a grievance with the 
Government Administrative Office on behalf of the Oneida Personnel 
Commission within ten (10) working days from the employee’s receipt 
of the Area Manager’s decision. 
b) The Government Administrative Office shall notify the Human 
Resources Executive Director of the appeal of the Area Manager’s 
decision within one (1) business day of receipt of the appeal. 
c) The Government Administrative Office shall collect all 
information the Area Manager used in making the decision to uphold 
or modify the disciplinary action. 
d) The Government Administrative Office shall provide the 
information obtained to the Oneida Personnel Commission members 
selected to serve as the hearing body for the appeal. 
e) The Oneida Personnel Commissioners shall review all the 
information submitted by the employee petitioner and the Government 
Administrative Office to determine if one (1) or both conditions exist; 

i. The decision of the Area Manager is clearly against the 
weight of the evidence; or 
ii. Procedural irregularities were exhibited during the 
appeal process that were harmful to one of the parties to the 
grievance. 

f) If Oneida Personnel Commission members selected to serve as 
the hearing body for the appeal find one (1) or both conditions exist, 
the Government Administrative Office shall convene the Oneida 
Personnel Commission to hear the grievance. 
g) If the Oneida Personnel Commission members find that neither 
condition exists, the Oneida Personnel Commission shall deny the 
appeal for a hearing and affirm the decision of the Area Manager. 
h) Convening a Hearing 

i. The Government Administrative Office shall schedule a 
time and location for the grievance hearing and shall confirm 
the participation of the Oneida Personnel Commission members 
selected to serve as the hearing body for the complaint. 
ii. The Government Administrative Office shall send notice 
of the hearing to the petitioner, respondent, and Oneida 
Personnel Commission members at least five (5) working days 
prior to the hearing date. 

159 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 76 of 184 
 

iii. The Government Administrative Office shall provide 
copies of all information on the subject case upon which the 
disciplinary action was upheld or modified by the Area 
Manager to the members of the Oneida Personnel Commission 
at least two (2) working days prior to the appeal date. 
iv. The Government Administrative Office shall allow the 
petitioner and respondent access to this information in the 
Government Administrative Office at least two (2) days prior to 
the appeal date. 

i) Hearing Procedure 
i. The order of presentation for the hearing shall be: 

1. Petitioner’s opening statement; 
2. Respondent’s opening statement; 
3. The Petitioner’s case; 
4. The Respondent’s case; 
5. Petitioner’s closing statement; and  
6. Respondent’s closing statement. 

ii. The petitioner shall have the right to be represented by 
an advocate, at their own expense. The respondent and/or Area 
Manager who is party to the grievance action shall have access 
to an advocate for consultation and/or representation.  Should 
the petitioner engage outside professional legal representation, 
the respondent and/or Area Manager shall have access to the 
professional legal representation. 

1. Should the petitioner and their representative 
both fail to appear for any scheduled hearing without 
justifiable cause, the decision of the Area Manager shall 
be upheld, and the grievance dismissed. 
2. Should the respondent and their representative 
both fail to appear for any scheduled hearing without 
justifiable cause, the decision of the Area Manager shall 
be overturned. 

iii. If new evidence which was previously unavailable is 
introduced at any point during the hearing process, the Oneida 
Personnel Commission hearing shall be suspended, and the case 
shall be remanded to the Area Manager for reconsideration. 

1. The Area Manager shall reconsider the decision 
in light of the new evidence and issue a decision within 
three (3) working days. 
2. This procedure may be invoked only once. 

iv. Thereafter, the appeal process shall continue to a 
conclusion based on the information originally presented and 
the newly introduced evidence. 

1. If the Area Manager overturns their decision, the 
case shall not come back for a hearing. 

160 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 77 of 184 
 

2. If the Area Manager affirms their decision, then 
the case shall come back to the Oneida Personnel 
Commission to complete the hearing. 

v. The Oneida Personnel Commission’s decision shall be 
based solely on the information presented to them before the 
appeal hearing, the record of the prior proceedings, and any 
new evidence if introduced appropriately. 
vi. The Oneida Personnel Commission may: 

1. Uphold the disciplinary action; or 
2. Overturn the disciplinary action and: 

a. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) with 
back pay for any lost time in accordance with the 
Back Pay law; or 
b. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) 
without back pay. 

vii. The Oneida Personnel Commission shall provide 
notification of the final decision within five (5) working days 
following the hearing.  Notification of the final decision shall 
include; 

1. The final decision; 
2. The reason(s) for the final decision; and 
3. The action to be taken as a result of the final 
decision. 

j) The Government Administrative Office shall keep records of the 
hearing, and provide copies of administrative advocacy rules, 
procedural rules, and time line rules to interested parties. 
k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfil its 
responsibility to hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then 
the employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida 
Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten 
(10) days from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. 

 
Lisa Summers and Brooke Doxtator (written): 2. The Government Administrative Office is not 
in support of the changes outlined in lines 1487 to 1595 of the redline version that replaces the 
Human Resources Department with Government Administrative Office as this time. 

a. There are several things we would like addressed before proceeding with these changes: 
i. HRD to provide an analysis of the work, resources, training, and time required to 
offer this support to the Oneida Personnel Commission. 

 
We respectfully request the Government Administrative Office be removed from the amendments 
until an analysis on the following is completed: 

1. Workload or anticipated workload based on HRD records of activities which would have 
included in the OPC, and 
2. An analysis of the resources needed to fulfill the requirements, and 
3. There is a determination made regarding how the OPC will function moving forward. 

 

161 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 78 of 184 
 

Lisa Liggins (written): I am in full support of the written comments submitted by the OBC Area 
Manager and the BCC Supervisor to the LOC regarding the Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Amendments. I would like this email of support to be accepted by my written 
comments regarding this piece of legislation. Thank you. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1201-1293: This entire 
section references the Government Administrative Office taking over the role of the HRD office 
who currently has all information and all the documentation regarding disciplinary action issued 
to employees. This section states employees who want to appeal an Area Managers decision to the 
Personnel Commission must file a grievance with the Government Administrative Office on behalf 
of the Personnel Commission. It states the Government Administrative Office shall collect all 
information the Area Manager used in making the decision to uphold or modify the disciplinary 
action.  
 
Currently all the confidential information regarding disciplinary action remains at HRD until a 
hearing body requests it. It’s a concern that now another entity (Government Administrative 
Office) will be privy to this confidential information regarding employees of the Nation. How 
many people are in this office, who will all see this confidential information? What is in place to 
ensure this confidential information does not get out in the community before a final decision is 
made by a hearing body?  
 
Why don’t the EEO Officers continue the role they currently doing, the administrative part, and 
not be involved in disciplining employees they do not supervise. Why do they want authority to 
discipline employees they don’t even know or work with? This process being presented gets more 
people involved with seeing confidential information that does not need to be disclosed.  
 
HRD/EEO Officers need to remain neutral and provide assistance/support to all employees, 
whether they are front line, supervisors, managers, directors or general managers. EEO/HRD 
should not take over a supervisor’s job responsibilities. EEO must ensure that the supervisor is 
taking proper corrective measures and advise the decision makers on processes and points of law 
as well as informing them how historical cases have been treated, to ensure consistency. EEO 
should not discipline an employee they do not supervise. This is not within their authority, nor 
should we allow it to be. If EEO is concerned about holding people accountable for their actions 
or inaction, they need to bring that matter to the persons supervisor and allow that supervisor to 
decide what to do. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.3.c.2), Appeal to 
the Oneida Personnel Commission28 
 
Overall, the proposed amendments would not significantly change the law regarding Oneida 
Personnel Commission (OPC) hearings. The current draft would have the Government 
Administrative Office receive and distribute information and organize OPC hearings, rather than 
the Human Resources Department. (See OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1199-1300). This 
proposed change will require training for GAO personnel. 
 

162 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 79 of 184 
 

28 As noted previously in this memo, the Oneida Personnel Commission is not a functioning body 
and, with only one member, it is not certain when they will be able to hear grievance appeals. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern over the proposed revision to section V.D.3.c.2 of the Law which 
removes the Human Resources Department as the body responsible for providing administrative 
assistance to the Oneida Personnel Commission, particularly in regard to assistance with its 
hearing procedures, and instead delegates that authority to the Government Administrative Office. 
 
The decision to replace the Human Resources Department with the Government Administrative 
Office as the body responsible for providing the Oneida Personnel Commission administrative 
assistance, specifically in regard to administrative assistance with it’s hearing procedures, was 
based on the fact that the Government Administrative Office has staff dedicated to boards, 
committees, and commissions of the Nation and already provides administrative assistance to 
boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation.  
 
Whether it be the Human Resources Department or the Government Administrative Office that 
provides administrative assistance to the Oneida Personnel Commission, all employees are 
expected to maintain the highest confidentiality standards and are bound by the Code of Ethics to 
protect the privileged information to which they have access in the course of official duties and be 
prudent in the use of information acquired in the course of their duties. [1 O.C. 103.4-8]. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider who is the most appropriate entity to provide 
administrative assistance to the Oneida Personnel Commission. The Legislative Operating 
Committee may make one of the following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.3.c.2 of the Law should remain as currently drafted, which replaces the 
Human Resources Department with the Government Administrative Office as the body 
responsible for providing administrative assistance to the Oneida Personnel Commission, 
particularly in regard to assistance with its hearing procedures. 

2. Section V.D.3.c.2 of the Law should be revised to revert back to the language currently 
included in the Law, which provides that the Human Resources Department is the body 
responsible for providing administrative assistance to the Oneida Personnel Commission, 
particularly in regard to assistance with its hearing procedures. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 107 – Original Probation: 
 
SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
D. ORIGINAL PROBATION 

163 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 80 of 184 
 

The first three (3) months after an employee's starting date after being hired, transferred, 
or reassigned shall be considered a period of probation.  At the end of six (6) weeks, the 
employee's performance shall be reviewed with them by the supervisor by completing an 
employee evaluation. At the end of the three (3) month probation period, a second 
performance evaluation shall be conducted.  This evaluation shall recommend the end of 
probation and regular status for the employee, an extension of probation, or termination for 
cause. 

1. Status as a Probationary Employee 
a. Probationary employees shall accrue vacation and personal days 
during the probation period and shall receive holiday pay.  
b. Probationary employees may be terminated for cause at any time 
during the probation period.  Cause shall consist of a violation of policies or 
the documented inability of the employee to perform the duties and 
responsibilities of the position. 
c. Termination of an employee for cause during their original 
probationary period shall not be subject to appeal. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section III.D., Original 
Probation 
The proposed language clarifies that an employee will be on probation for 3 months “after being 
hired, transferred, or reassigned” into a position.4 (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 311-313) The 
amendments also permanently remove probationary pay from Oneida law.5 

 
In addition, the proposed amendments permanently remove appeal rights of probationary 
employees who are terminated “for cause,” which “consist[s] of a violation of policies or the 
documented inability of the employee to perform the duties and responsibilities of the position.”6 
(OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 325-326) 
 
4 The Business Committee enacted this amendment on an emergency basis in November 2021 (BC 
Resolution #11-24-21-A) and has subsequently reenacted and extended the amendment. (See BC 
Resolution 05-11-22-A and 11-07-22-A). 
5 Probationary pay is 5% below the posted rate of pay for the position. The Business Committee 
adopted an emergency amendment to the same effect in November 2021 (BC Resolution #11-24-
21-A) and has subsequently reenacted and extended the amendment. (See BC Resolution 05-11-
22-A and 11-07-22-A). 
6 The Business Committee enacted this amendment on an emergency basis in May 2022 (BC 
Resolution #05-11-22-A) and extended the same amendment in November 2022 (See BC 
Resolution 11-07-22-A). 
 
Response 
 
The commenters summarize the proposed revisions to the Law regarding original probation found 
in section III.D of the Law. Other than the summary, the commenters do not provide any comment 
for consideration by the Legislative Operating Committee. There is no action needed by the 
Legislative Operating Committee based on these comments. 
 

164 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 81 of 184 
 

LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 108 through 109 – Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances 
Introductory Language: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES  
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process correcting unacceptable and 
problematic behaviors in employees. Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for 
protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment. In all cases of grievance and 
discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious good sense 
to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives, and handle 
grievances. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V., Employee Relations 
Section V.D., Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances - Introduction 
 
The current OPPP include an introductory paragraph to the Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and 
Grievances section. (OPPP V.D.) This introductory language is frequently cited by the Oneida 
Judiciary when framing employee grievance decisions. (See e.g. Thundercloud v. HRD et al., 20-
EMP-002, p.4 (July 2, 2020); Kriescher v. Suquet, 12-AC-010, p. 6 (Oct. 23, 2012); Oneida Bingo 
& Casino v. Martin, 11-AC-002, p. 3-4, 9 (June 1, 2011); Oneida Bingo & Casino v. Jones, 14 
O.N.R. 36, 41 (Sept. 23, 2008)). Therefore, the introductory language establishes the Nation’s 
employment philosophy regarding Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances. 
 
Currently, OPPP V.D. describes the purposes of the disciplinary process as “provid[ing] a 
systematic process for handling problem employees,” “correct[ing] unacceptable behavior,” and 
“protect[ing] the Nation.” (OPPP V.D.) The proposed amendments condense the express purposes 
for disciplinary action to “provide a systematic process correcting (sic) unacceptable and 
problematic behaviors in employees.” (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 702-3) 
 
The purpose of grievance procedures in the current OPPP is to “provide a systematic process for 
hearing and evaluating job related disputes” and “protect employees from inconsistent and unfair 
treatment.” (OPPP V.D.) The proposed amendments shift the focus of grievance procedures to 
employee protection: 

Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for protecting employees from 
inconsistent and unfair treatment. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 703-4) 

 
As the introductory language is an important signal of the Nation’s employment values and is 
relied upon by Oneida Courts, the language should accurately reflect the Nation’s regard for the 
value of all employees within the organization, front-line through General Managers, in all 
divisions and non-divisional. 

165 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 82 of 184 
 

 
Shannon Stone (written): COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
Line 908 should be changed to problematic behaviors “from” employees. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern that the proposed revisions to the introductory provisions found 
in section V.D. of the Law disrupt the balance these provisions previously provided. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the proposed revisions to the 
introductory language found in section V.D. of the Law should be revised to address the 
commenter’s concerns. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following 
decisions: 

1. The introductory language found in section V.D. of the Law should remain as currently 
drafted.  

2. The introductory language found in section V.D. of the Law should be revised so that there 
is better balance in the protection of the Nation as a whole and the protection of the 
employees. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination then the 
following revision to the Law is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES  
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process correcting unacceptable and 
problematic behaviors from in employees, and protecting the Nation. Grievance procedures 
provide a systematic process for protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair 
treatment. as well as providing a systematic process for hearing and evaluating job related 
disputes . In all cases of grievance and discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common 
sense, discretion and judicious good sense to resolve complaints between employees, 
exercise disciplinary prerogatives, and handle grievances. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 110 – Right to File a Complaint: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process correcting unacceptable and 
problematic behaviors in employees. Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for 
protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment. In all cases of grievance and 
discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious good sense 
to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives, and handle 
grievances. 

1. Complaints 

166 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 83 of 184 
 

a. General 
1) The Nation recognizes that all employees have the right to file a 
complaint against another employee, and that all complaint 
investigations shall be handled with the utmost fairness, respect, and 
equality. 
2) The Nation recognizes there are various levels of severity of 
complaints, and dependent on the severity of the complaint, not all 
complaints shall follow the same process. 
3) An employee found to have given false information or made a 
false claim shall face disciplinary action in accordance with the 
appropriate policies and procedures. 
4) Access to complaint information shall be limited to those who 
have a legitimate need to know. 
5) Retaliation of any form against an employee for filing a 
complaint shall be strictly prohibited. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.1., Complaints 
 
The current OPPP provides a process for employees to file a complaint against another employee 
in Section V.D.1. 

1. Complaints (current OPPP) 
a. Should an employee have a disagreement with another employee, he/she may 
lodge an informal (verbal) or formal (written) complaint with the employee’s 
supervisor. 
b. The supervisor will investigate the complaint and attempt to resolve the 
disagreement. 
c. If the employee lodging the complaint is dissatisfied with the attempted 
resolution, he/she may ask the Area Manager to attempt a resolution. 
d. There is no further appeal of this process. 

 
Currently, an employee files a complaint with the supervisor of the employee who is the subject 
of the complaint. (OPPP V.D.1.a.) The OPPP gives the supervisor discretion in how to investigate 
and the timeline for a resolution and response. (OPPP V.D.1.b.) The complaining employee may 
appeal the supervisor’s response to the supervisor’s supervisor (the area manager), but no further 
appeal is allowed. (OPPP V.D.1.c. and V.D.1.d.) (See e.g. Mays v. Boucher, 15-AC-005, p.5 (July 
29, 2015); and Oneida Compliance Division v. Metoxen, 5 O.N.R. 3-103, 107 (Oct. 25, 1999)). 
The current complaint process is designed to be flexible, allowing supervisors to address issues 
before they erupt in litigation. The proposed amendments drastically expand the complaint 
process, potentially involving Oneida personnel up to the General Manager in complaints that 
begin at any level of the organization. 
 
Section V.D.1.a., General 
Amendments to the OPPP include a new introduction to the Complaint section: 

1. Complaints 
a. General 

167 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 84 of 184 
 

1) The Nation recognizes that all employees have the right to file a 
complaint against another employee, and that all complaint investigations 
shall be handled with the utmost fairness, respect, and equality. 
2) The Nation recognizes there are various levels of severity of complaints, 
and dependent on the severity of the complaint, not all complaints shall 
follow the same process. 
3) An employee found to have given false information or made a false claim 
shall face disciplinary action in accordance with the appropriate policies and 
procedures. 
4) Access to complaint information shall be limited to those who have a 
legitimate need to know. 
5) Retaliation of any form against an employee for filing a complaint shall 
be strictly prohibited. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 709-23) 

 
As written, the introduction language raises some issues. Declaring that “employees have the right 
to file a complaint against another employee” is unnecessary because the Complaint process would 
not be written into the law if employees did not have a right to it. In addition, other basic 
employment processes – receipt of wages, use of accrued vacation or personal time, non-
discriminatory supervision – are not delineated as “rights” in the OPPP. The proposed language of 
OPPP V.D.1.a.1) begs the question: Why should the complaint process be elevated as a “right” 
above other essential employment processes? 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern over the phrase “employees have the right to file a complaint 
against another employee” found in section V.D.1.a.1 of the Law. The commenters feel this 
language is unnecessary and are weary it would cause confusion as other basic employment 
processes are not delineated as rights in the Law. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine if the language “employees have the right to 
file a complaint against another employee” found in section V.D.1.a.1 of the Law is problematic 
and should be removed from the Law. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.1.a.1 of the Law should remain as currently drafted. 
2. Section V.D.1.a.1 of the Law should be revised to remove the language that “employees 

have the right to file a complaint against another employee.” If the Legislative Operating 
Committee makes this determination then the following revision is recommended: 

D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
1. Complaints 

a. General 
1) The Nation recognizes that all employees have the right to file a 
complaint against another employee, and that a All complaint investigations 
shall be handled with the utmost fairness, respect, and equality. 
2) The Nation recognizes there are various levels of severity of 
complaints, and dependent on the severity of the complaint, not all 
complaints shall follow the same process. 

168 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 85 of 184 
 

3) An employee found to have given false information or made a false 
claim shall face disciplinary action in accordance with the appropriate 
policies and procedures. 
4) Access to complaint information shall be limited to those who have 
a legitimate need to know. 
5) Retaliation of any form against an employee for filing a complaint 
shall be strictly prohibited. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 111 – Topic: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process correcting unacceptable and 
problematic behaviors in employees. Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for 
protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment. In all cases of grievance and 
discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious good sense 
to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives, and handle 
grievances. 

1. Complaints 
a. General 

1) The Nation recognizes that all employees have the right to file a 
complaint against another employee, and that all complaint 
investigations shall be handled with the utmost fairness, respect, and 
equality. 
2) The Nation recognizes there are various levels of severity of 
complaints, and dependent on the severity of the complaint, not all 
complaints shall follow the same process. 
3) An employee found to have given false information or made a 
false claim shall face disciplinary action in accordance with the 
appropriate policies and procedures. 
4) Access to complaint information shall be limited to those who 
have a legitimate need to know. 
5) Retaliation of any form against an employee for filing a 
complaint shall be strictly prohibited. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): 
 
The draft amendment also proposes new language regarding release of complaints, as “complaint 
information” would be released to “those who have a legitimate need to know.” The scope of what 
may be released – the “complaint information” in proposed OPPP V.D.1.a.4) – is undefined. Does 

169 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 86 of 184 
 

that refer to only the complaint itself? Or does it mean notes, documents, recordings, and other 
information collected during the supervisor’s investigation? Also left undefined is who will 
determine whether a requester has a “legitimate need to know.” And are there any factors that will 
be balanced against the “legitimate need” or is the requester’s “legitimate need” sufficient to access 
the “complaint information?” These questions lead to uncertainty for supervisors, area managers, 
employees, and those responsible for releasing information. 
 
As written, the amendments potentially allow the employee who is the subject of a complaint to 
receive a copy of it, since the employee who is the subject of a complaint and subsequent 
investigation certainly has a “legitimate need to know.” This directly contradicts established 
Oneida law and caselaw. Both the current OPPP and the proposed amendments address the 
confidentiality of personnel records in Section IX. Current Oneida Law and the proposed 
amendments require an employee’s written consent prior to release of employee records “to any 
person or agent of any organization.”7 (OPPP Section IX.A.) Oneida caselaw emphasizes that a 
complaint will not be released to the employee who is the subject of it. In Somers v. OBC Officers, 
the Oneida Appeals Court determined that an employee’s due process rights were not violated 
when the Business Committee, in their role as Somers’ supervisors, refused to provide her with a 
copy of a complaint they were investigating. (18-AC-007, p. 4 (August 23, 2017)). The Appellate 
Court listed several reasons why a complaint should not be released to the employee who is the 
complaint’s subject, specifically: 

(1) Releasing a complaint to the subject employee “can create more issues between the 
employee, supervisor, and other employees within the organization.” Id. at 3-4.8 
(2) The “supervisor is simply trying to determine if the allegations of the complaints have 
merit and if so, to address them administratively.” Id. at 4. 
(3) “An effective investigator will only disclose details of the complaint that are necessary 
for the inquiry” for the purpose of “elicit[ing] extemporaneous responses that are not just 
responses to the person making the complaint or the accusations in the complaint.” Id. 

 
The proposed amendments may contradict established Oneida Law by allowing disclosure of a 
complaint to the subject employee without written consent. Adopting the amendments as written 
would potentially overturn Oneida caselaw, which is based on long-standing HRD practice and 
advice. The reasons for this proposed change are not apparent from the current draft. 
 
7 OPPP Section IX – Privacy and Confidentiality of Employee Records refers specifically to 
collection and release of employee records by the Human Resources Department. Under the 
proposed amendments, after a supervisor concludes their investigation and resolution of a 
complaint, the supervisor “shall also send the final resolution and all supporting documentation 
used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department for filing and reporting purposes,” thereby 
creating an employee record that is subject to OPPP Section IX. 
8 The Court relied upon testimony from Geraldine Danforth, HRD Area Manager for 16 years, for 
a description of reasons why a complaint should not be released to the subject employee. Ms. 
Danforth “testified on two different occasions that an investigator should never give the complaint 
to the employee.” 18-AC-007, p. 3. 
 
Response 
 

170 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 87 of 184 
 

The commenters express concern that section V.D.1.a.4. does not provide enough clarification as 
to who has access to complaint information or exactly what complaint information means,  which 
creates uncertainty for supervisors, area managers, employees, and those responsible for releasing 
information. The commenters also express concern that established case law does not allow the 
employee who is the subject of a complaint to receive a copy of the complaint, and question 
whether it was intended that this provision of the Law contradict established Oneida Law by 
allowing disclosure of a complaint to the subject employee without written consent. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review this provision of Law and 
revise this provision to include additional information to clarify the questions brought up by the 
commenters such as: who  makes the determination someone has a legitimate need to access the 
complaint information, what exactly does complaint information mean, and should an employee 
who is the subject of the complaint have access to the complaint. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 112 through 113 – Types of Complaints: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
b. Types of Complaints 

1) Employee Disagreements 
a) An employee disagreement occurs when an employee 
alleges they are having problems, misunderstandings, or 
frustrations with another employee. 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An EEO violation occurs when an employee alleges they 
are being bullied, working in a hostile work environment, being 
discriminated against, being harassed, being intimidated, being 
retaliated against, or being sexually harassed. 

i. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome 
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other 
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 

1. submission to such conduct is made either 
explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an 
individual’s employment; 
2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct 
by an individual is used as the basis for 
employment decisions affecting such individuals; 
or 

171 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 88 of 184 
 

3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of 
substantially interfering with an individual’s 
work performance or creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive work environment. 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee 
alleges: 

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, 
bribery, lying under oath, obstruction, or interference 
with a criminal investigation; 
ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession 
of a dangerous or unauthorized material, such as 
explosives or firearms, in the workplace; 
iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or 
possession of an illegal controlled substance; or 
iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of 
property which includes, but is not limited to, theft, 
embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, robbery, 
extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to 
commit such actions. 

4) Additional Complaints 
a) Complaints of alleged workplace violence shall be 
reported and processed in accordance with the Nation’s 
Workplace Violence law.  
b) Complaints of use of prohibited drugs and/or alcohol 
during working hours shall be reported and processed in 
accordance with the Nation’s Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace 
law. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.1.b., Types of 
Complaints 
The amendments break Complaints into three categories: (1) Employee Disagreements; (2) EEO 
Violations; and (3) Illegal Activities.9 Each type of Complaint follows a separate process. 
 
9 By establishing Complaint categories and giving those categories precise definitions, it is likely 
the proposed language will eliminate complaints that could be filed under the more general 
language of the current OPPP. For example, if an employee wishes to complain about another 
employee’s incompetency, incapacity to perform job duties, or failure to perform adequately, those 
complaints do not seem to fit under any proposed Complaint category. Will employees choose not 
to file complaints if they cannot figure out the right category? Or will such Complaints be rejected 
by the EEO? The proposed amendments are silent on this question. 
 
Vanessa Miller (written): Please accept this communication as my public comment regarding the 
amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and procedures being made to address the selection 
process, as well as the complaint, discipline, and grievance procedures. 
 

172 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 89 of 184 
 

I. Complaints 
With these changes, the complaint process will be split into three (3) different pathways: 1. 
Employee disagreement complaints; 2. EEO Violation Complaints; and 3. Illegal Activity 
Complaints. The supervisor investigates pathway one, while EEO investigates pathways 2 and 3. 
 
While these three pathways do seem to distinguish and make separation between complaints so 
that they may be handled accordingly per the proposed processes, it appears that there is still room 
for gray area and overlapping. For instance, an employee disagreement that involves EEO policy 
violation would seem to be overlapping in nature. How would these complaints be vetted through 
to determine which pathway they are to go down, and to ensure that a standardized process is used 
in determining such? In addition, it is not clear what the various EEO violations are or mean as 
they are not defined. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern that the delineation of complaints into three  distinct categories 
may eliminate complaints that could have been filed under the more general language of the Law 
that is currently in effect.  
 
Section V.D.1.b. of the Law provides that there are three (3) categories of complaints that can be 
made against an employee – Employee Disagreements, EEO Violations, and Illegal Activities. An 
employee disagreement occurs when an employee alleges they are having problems, 
misunderstandings, or frustrations with another employee. [OPPP Section V.D.1.b.1]. An EEO 
violation occurs when an employee alleges they are being bullied, working in a hostile work 
environment, being discriminated against, being harassed, being intimidated, being retaliated 
against, or being sexually harassed. [OPPP Section V.D.1.b.2]. An illegal activities violation 
occurs when an employee alleges: they witnessed or have knowledge of arson, bribery, lying under 
oath, obstruction, or interference with a criminal investigation; they witnessed or have knowledge 
of a possession of a dangerous or unauthorized material, such as explosives or firearms, in the 
workplace; they witnessed or have knowledge of the use or possession of an illegal controlled 
substance; or they witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of property which includes, but is not 
limited to, theft, embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, robbery, extortion, racketeering, 
swindling, or conspiracy to commit such actions. [OPPP Section V.D.1.b.3]. 
 
In an effort to avoid a situation where an employee desires to file a complaint against another 
employee, but the topic of the employee does not clearly fit into one of the provided categories, 
the following revision to the Law is recommended: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
b. Types of Complaints 

1) Employee Disagreements General Complaints 
a) An employee disagreement occurs when an employee 
alleges they are having problems, misunderstandings, or frustrations 

173 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 90 of 184 
 

with another employee. A general complain is any complaint that is 
not a EEO Violation or an Illegal Activity.  

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether the general complaints sections 
should include examples of types of general complaints. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 114 – Clarification on Different Complaint Processes: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
b. Types of Complaints 

1) Employee Disagreements 
a) An employee disagreement occurs when an employee 
alleges they are having problems, misunderstandings, or 
frustrations with another employee. 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An EEO violation occurs when an employee alleges they 
are being bullied, working in a hostile work environment, being 
discriminated against, being harassed, being intimidated, being 
retaliated against, or being sexually harassed. 

i. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome 
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other 
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 

1. submission to such conduct is made either 
explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an 
individual’s employment; 
2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct 
by an individual is used as the basis for 
employment decisions affecting such individuals; 
or 
3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of 
substantially interfering with an individual’s 
work performance or creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive work environment. 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee 
alleges: 

174 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 91 of 184 
 

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, 
bribery, lying under oath, obstruction, or interference 
with a criminal investigation; 
ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession 
of a dangerous or unauthorized material, such as 
explosives or firearms, in the workplace; 
iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or 
possession of an illegal controlled substance; or 
iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of 
property which includes, but is not limited to, theft, 
embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, robbery, 
extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to 
commit such actions. 

4) Additional Complaints 
a) Complaints of alleged workplace violence shall be 
reported and processed in accordance with the Nation’s 
Workplace Violence law.  
b) Complaints of use of prohibited drugs and/or alcohol 
during working hours shall be reported and processed in 
accordance with the Nation’s Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace 
law. 

 
Michelle Tipple (oral): Good afternoon. Michelle Tipple with Oneida Comprehensive Health 
Division. Just a comment and this may be in the works, but just to mention that three (3) different 
types of complaints and the different types of appeal processes, it would be helpful, I think to 
supervisors to see that in a maybe like a process map flow process or something that kind of 
illustrates those processes. Because you know, hopefully we're not in those processes often that 
we know them by heart, but that would help if someone has to go through that process. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that that a visual aid be created that illustrates the different complaint 
types and their corresponding procedures.  
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee request that the Human Resources 
Department develop visual aids for the various processes contained in the Law upon adoption of 
any amendments to the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 115 – Oral or Written Complaint: 
 

175 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 92 of 184 
 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with 
another employee may file a complaint with the EEO 
Department. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Employee Disagreements are 
“when an employee alleges they are having problems, misunderstandings, or frustrations with 
another employee.” (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 725-7) The complaint process for an 
Employee Disagreement is described as follows: 

1) Employee Disagreements 
a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee may 
file a complaint with the EEO Department. 
b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint. 

 
It is not clear whether the proposed amendments require an employee to file a written complaint 
or if an oral complaint to the EEO is sufficient. This should be clarified. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request the Legislative Operating Committee clarify whether it is required that a 
written complaint be filed or if an oral complaint is sufficient.  
 
Section V.D.1.c.1. of the Law provides that an employee who alleges they have a disagreement 
with another employee may file a complaint with the EEO Department. Under the current  
Law, both oral and written complaints are allowed. It was not the intent to change current practice 
on this issue. 
 
To clarify the manner in which a complaint is filed, then following revision to the Law is 
recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with 
another employee may file an oral or written complaint with the 
EEO Department. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 

176 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 93 of 184 
 

 
 
 
Comment 116 – Supervisor who Receives a Complaint: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the 
complaint, the EEO Department shall provide the supervisor of 
the employee with the complaint. 
 

Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The proposed amendments 
require the EEO to “provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint.” It is not clear 
which supervisor will be provided the complaint: the supervisor of the employee who made the 
complaint or the supervisor of the employee whose behavior led to the Employee Disagreement. 
If the amendments require the EEO to provide the complaint to the supervisor of the complaining 
employee, that could be problematic if the complainant’s supervisor is the subject of the complaint. 
The proposed amendments should have clearer language in Section V.D.1.c.1) b. regarding which 
supervisor will receive the complaint. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request that the Legislative Operating Committee clarify which supervisor – the 
supervisor of the employee who is the subject of the complaint or the supervisor of the employee 
filing the complaint – is the supervisor the EEO Department provides a submitted complaint to.  
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.b of the Law provides that within two (2) working days of the receipt of the 
complaint, the EEO Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint. 
To clarify which supervisor the EEO Department provides the complaint to, the following revision 
is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, 
the EEO Department shall provide the complaint to the supervisor 
of the employee who is the subject of the complaint. with the 
complaint. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 

177 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 94 of 184 
 

 
 
 
Comment 117 – Definition of Working Day: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 
 

Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): c) The supervisor shall have 
ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve the complaint. 
 
Throughout the amended OPP section regarding Complaints, timelines are counted in “working 
days” but no definition of “working day” is provided in the amendments10. A possible definition 
for “working day” is: Any day that is not a weekend or a recognized Oneida holiday. 
 
10 The phrase “working day” is used throughout the current OPPP and not defined. The 
amendments are an opportunity to define an important term that is central to complaint and 
disciplinary process. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request that the term “working day” be defined in the Law, as this is a term that 
is currently used throughout the Law but is undefined.  
 
Overall, the Law is not organized like other laws of the Nation and thereby lacks a definition 
section that provides a space for terms utilized throughout the document to be clearly defined. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may want to consider bringing the formatting and drafting of 
this Law into compliance with the drafting standards used for all others of the Nation. 
 
In regard to the definition for working day, it is recommended that the Legislative Operating 
Committee include a definition for working day in the Law. Typically, in Laws of the Nation the 
term “business day” is utilized, with a definition that means Monday through Friday between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m., excluding holidays recognized by the Nation. It is the intent that 
the term “working day” be defined differently than business day, and instead be related to the 
program or enterprise in which the pertinent procedures of the Law applies. For example, for 
enterprises in which Saturday and/or Sunday are scheduled working days, all procedures referring 
to working days will include Saturday and/or Sunday as a working day. Working day could be 
defined as any day in which the business unit is regularly operational. The Legislative Operating 
Committee should determine whether they would like to proceed with utilizing the term “working 
day” and include a relevant definition, or revise the Law to utilize the term “business day.” 

178 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 95 of 184 
 

Whatever term the Legislative Operating Committee determines is most appropriate in the Law 
should then be defined in the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 118 – Receipt of Complaint: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 

i. The supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the supervisor receives the complaint 
from the EEO Department. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): i. The supervisor’s ten 
(10) working day timeframe begins the day after the supervisor receives the complaint from the 
EEO Department. 
 
Oneida Courts have further defined what it means for a supervisor or area manager to “receive” 
documents during the grievance appeal process and it would be helpful to include the same 
clarification in the proposed amendments. In Lecker v. Powless, an employee alleged the area 
manager decision was untimely. (22-AC-004, p. 2 (June 7, 2022)). After multiple recusals, 
Lecker’s appeal of her termination was upheld by Area Manager Powless. Id. The Court of Appeals 
determined the Area Manager decision was timely and declined the grievance appeal. Id. The Court 
emphasized it is the Area Manager’s actual receipt of an appeal that starts the timeline. Id. The 
amendments should include language to better align with the Lecker decision, such as: 
 

The Area Manager receives an appeal when they personally receive the grievance, after all 
possible recusals have been resolved. 

 
Response 
 
The commenters express that the Court of Appeals further defined what it means for a supervisor 
or area manager to “receive” documents during the grievance appeal process and it would be 
helpful to include the same clarification in the proposed amendments to the Law. The commenters 
provide that the Court of Appeals emphasized it is the Area Manager’s actual receipt of an appeal 
that starts the timeline, so the Legislative Operating Committee should consider codifying the 
Court’s interpretation into Law. 

179 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 96 of 184 
 

 
Section V.D.1.c.1.c.i of the Law provides that the supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the supervisor receives the complaint from the EEO Department. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether the Law needs further clarification as to 
what receipt of an appeal means. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following decisions: 

1. Section V.D.1.c.1.c.i of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and provide that the 
supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the supervisor receives 
the complaint from the EEO Department. 

2. Section V.D.1.c.1.c.i of the Law should be revised to clarify that the supervisor receives 
an appeal when they personally receive the complaint, after all possible recusals have been 
resolved. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination the following 
revision to the Law is recommended: 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 

i. The supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the supervisor receives the complaint 
from the EEO Department. The supervisor receives an 
appeal when they personally receive the grievance, after all 
possible recusals have been resolved. 
 

If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination, then similar revisions to the Law 
should be made in other relevant sections of the Law when receipt of a complaint or grievance is 
discussed.  

LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 119 – Burden of Meeting Investigations 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 

180 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 97 of 184 
 

ii. The supervisor shall meet with the employee filing 
the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 
 

Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): ii. The supervisor shall meet 
with the employee filing the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 
 
Altogether, the proposed Complaint section places an incredible burden on supervisors, area 
managers, and, in some cases, even General Managers. A part of that burden is found in Section 
V.D.1.c.1)c.ii. and other similarly-worded sections. (See e.g.V.D.1.c.1)e.iv. regarding area 
manager investigation and V.D.1.c.1) f.iv.1.c. regarding General Manager investigation of 
complaints). Under the proposed amendments, supervisors (and area managers and General 
Managers) will be required to meet with the employee who filed the complaint and “all other 
parties mentioned in the complaint.”11 The amendments do not grant the supervisor, area manager, 
or General Manager any discretion in determining which individuals have information relevant to 
the Employee Disagreement. A complaining employee could name numerous individuals in the 
complaint, which would necessitate a supervisor meeting with each and every one of them. In 
addition, use of the term “parties” rather than “employees” means the supervisor would be required 
to meet with individuals outside the organization. The proposed amendments do not provide any 
discretion for supervisors, area managers, or General Managers to conduct an investigation tailored 
to the complaint. 
 
11 It is interesting that the amendments would not require the supervisor to meet with the employee 
who is the subject of the complaint if such employee is not, in fact, named in the complaint. This 
may be an oversight, but it seems essential to creating an effective resolution to an Employee 
Disagreement. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that the Law’s requirement to meet with the employee who filed the 
complaint and all other parties mentioned in the complaint may be burdensome, and does not grant 
the supervisor, area manager, or General Manager any discretion in determining which individuals 
have information relevant to the Employee Disagreement. The commenter also questions why the 
proposed amendments would not require the supervisor to meet with the employee who is the 
subject of the complaint if such employee is not, in fact, named in the complaint. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.c.ii. of the Law provides that during an investigation of a complaint the 
supervisor is required to meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as all other parties 
mentioned in the complaint. The supervisor is required to meet with all individuals named in the 
complaint in order to obtain the most information to base their investigation on. The commenter’s 
interpretation that the proposed amendments to the Law do not require the supervisor to meet with 
the employee that is the subject of the complaint is unclear, since in order to file a complaint 
against an individual you would inherently need to name that employee in the complaint.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether the requirement for a supervisor to 
meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint 

181 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 98 of 184 
 

during a complaint investigation is too burdensome, and if supervisors should be granted discretion 
in determining who to meet with. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.1.c.1.c.ii. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and provide that 
during an investigation of a complaint the supervisor is required to meet with the employee 
filing the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

2. Section V.D.1.c.1.c.ii. of the Law should be revised to provide the supervisor with more 
flexibility in determining which individuals to meet with during a complaint investigation. 
If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination then the following 
revision to the Law is recommended: 

D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
1. Complaints 

c. Complaint Procedures 
1) Employee Disagreements 

c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 

ii. The supervisor shall meet with the employee filing 
the complaint and the employee who is the subject of the 
complaint. The supervisor may also meet with as well as all 
any other parties mentioned in the complaint as determined 
to be relevant to the complaint investigation. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 120 – Defining what it means to be Unavailable to Meet: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 

ii. The supervisor shall meet with the employee filing 
the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 

1. Meetings between the supervisor and 
employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or over the telephone. 
2. The supervisor shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an employee. If the 

182 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 99 of 184 
 

complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the supervisor 
shall move forward with the investigation based 
on the information they have. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): 1. Meetings between the 
supervisor and employees may occur in person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 
2. The supervisor shall document all attempts made to meet with an employee. If the complaining 
employee or the employee being complained about is unavailable, the supervisor shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they have. 
 
The proposed amendment language does not define when or how an employee is “unavailable” to 
meet. The Oneida Judiciary provided guidance on when an employee may be considered 
unavailable to meet. The Oneida Court of Appeals, in Skenandore v. Smith et al., found that a 
supervisor must provide an employee at least 24-hours’ notice prior to a requested meeting for the 
employee’s no-show to count as a refusal to meet. (21-AC-008, p. 4 (April 11, 2022)) (“[P]roviding 
less than 24-hour notice to attend a meeting on a voicemail, especially when the meeting has not 
been confirmed, is not judicious good sense.”). In addition, a supervisor may be required to follow-
up with an employee who does not respond to a meeting request, rather than allowing the meeting 
time to pass and proceeding with discipline. Id. at 5. The proposed amendments do not explain 
why the principles –and the rule of law – of Skenandore have been left out of the OPPP 
amendments. 
 
Also, while the supervisor is permitted to move forward with an investigation if the complaining 
employee or subject employee are unavailable, the amendments do not have similar instructions 
when any “other party” is unavailable. It is unclear whether the supervisor’s attempts to meet with 
“all other parties” must be documented and whether unavailability affects the investigation in any 
way. This topic should be addressed to provide clear guidance to supervisors, area managers, and 
General Managers. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider providing further 
clarification in the Law as to what “unavailable to meet” means, and consider codifying the 
guidance and interpretations the Courts has provided through case law.  
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.c.ii. of the Law provides that the supervisor shall meet with the employee filing 
the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint, and that the supervisor shall 
document all attempts made to meet with an employee. If the complaining employee or the 
employee being complained about is unavailable, the supervisor shall move forward with the 
investigation based on the information they have. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review this provision of the Law to 
provide greater clarification as what it means for an employee to be unavailable to meet. The 
Legislative Operating Committee should discuss and determine how much notice is required for a 
meeting, are follow-ups with an employee who does not respond to a meeting request required, is 

183 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 100 of 184 
 

the supervisor required to document its efforts to meet with any parties other than the employee 
making the complaint and the employee that is the subject of the complaint. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 121 – Filing and Reporting of Complaint Resolutions: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate 
and resolve the complaint. 

vi. The supervisor shall also send the final resolution 
and all supporting documentation used to make the final 
resolution to the EEO Department for filing and 
reporting purposes. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Under the proposed 
amendments, Section V.D.1.c.1)c)vi. requires the supervisor to send the final resolution to the 
EEO Department “for filing and reporting purposes.” It is not clear what reporting is required or 
permitted for resolutions to Employee Disagreement Complaints. As outlined above, OPPP 
Section IX protects personnel records from disclosure absent written permission from the subject 
employee. The amendments should more clearly define – and perhaps limit – reporting of 
Complaint resolutions. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request that the Legislative Operating Committee more clearly define the 
reporting of complaint resolutions.  
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.c.iv. of the Law provides that the supervisor shall also send the final resolution 
and all supporting documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department for 
filing and reporting purposes. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review this section and determine 
what reporting would be necessary for the resolutions of complaints, and who has access to the 
complaint resolutions, and then revise the Law accordingly. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 

184 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 101 of 184 
 

 
 
 
 
Comment 122 – Accountability of the Ten (10) Day Complaint Investigation Timeframe: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
d) If the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and 
resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO 
Department shall send notice to the Area Manager. 

i. The notice shall notify the Area Manager that the 
complaint was not addressed within the allotted ten (10) 
working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the Area Manager that 
the supervisor violated the complaint process by being 
negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and 
failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate 
accountability of the supervisor. 

1. If the Area Manager fails to take 
appropriate action to address the accountability 
of the supervisor, then the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the General Manager level position 
in that chain of command. If the General 
Manager level position was the Area Manager in 
the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send 
the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

iv. The notice shall direct the Area Manager to 
complete the complaint investigation within ten (10) 
working days of receiving the notice from EEO. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

d) If the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within the 
ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice to the Area Manager. 

i. The notice shall notify the Area Manager that the complaint was not addressed 
within the allotted ten (10) working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the Area Manager that the supervisor violated the 
complaint process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties 
and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 

1. If the Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the 
accountability of the supervisor, then the EEO Department shall send notice 

185 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 102 of 184 
 

to the General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the 
General Manager level position was the Area Manager in the complaint, 
then the EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business 
Committee. 

iv. The notice shall direct the Area Manager to complete the complaint investigation 
within ten (10) working days of receiving the notice from EEO. 

 
The proposed amendments add a significant “accountability” process to the Complaint section. If 
a supervisor “fails” to investigate and resolve a complaint within 10 days13, the EEO Department 
is compelled to send notice to the area manager. It is not clear what constitutes a supervisor’s 
failure to investigate and resolve a complaint. Historically, these questions have been examined 
and resolved by an Oneida hearing body, which provides an opportunity for both sides to be heard 
and supplies written decisions that guide future actions of supervisors throughout the organization. 
Such important due process and notice functions will be missed if these determinations are made 
by the EEO Department. 
 
13 Although a supervisor may request an additional five days to resolve a complaint under proposed 
Section V.D.1.c.1)c)iii., the “accountability” process does not recognize any extensions. A 
supervisor failure to investigate and resolve in 10 working days, rather than 15, compels the EEO 
to send notice to the area manager. 
 
In addition, the EEO determination occurs without giving the supervisor an opportunity to explain 
why the deadline was missed. While the proposed amendments provide ample process for 
employees to complain and appeal, supervisors (and area managers and General Managers who 
respond to complaints) are not afforded the same right to be heard. Instead, the EEO unilaterally 
determines both that the supervisor, area manager, or General Manager was “negligent in the 
performance of assigned duties” and assigns “appropriate accountability.” It is unclear from the 
proposed language what might be used to hold the supervisor accountable. Is it discipline? An 
entry in the personnel file of the offending supervisor? As the EEO’s notice will describe the 
supervisor’s actions as “negligence in the performance of assigned duties,” which is an action 
subject to discipline under both the current OPPP and the proposed amendments, it would appear 
that accountability will be in the form of discipline. And the area manager would be required to 
issue the discipline without hearing the supervisor’s perspective. A unilateral finding that an 
employee (here, a supervisor) was negligent in the performance of their duties without granting 
any opportunity for the employee (supervisor) to explain their actions is counter to the remainder 
of the proposed OPPP amendments. 
 
In addition, the proposed amendments remove the area manager’s or General Manager’s discretion 
to address the supervisor’s actions, since the next step is to notify the General Manager of the area 
manager’s failure to address the situation (or at least to address it to the EEO’s satisfaction). It is 
not clear what philosophy supports the removal of discretion from most levels of management. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter expresses concern regarding the process provided in section V.D.1.c.1.d. of the 
Law which addresses what occurs when the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and 

186 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 103 of 184 
 

resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days. The commenter feels that this provision 
does not provide the supervisor a right to be heard, or address why the deadline was missed.  
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review the concerns addressed by 
this comment, and determiner what, if any, clarifications can be added to section V.D.1.c.1.d. of 
the Law 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 123 through 125 – Definition of Sexual Harassment: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
b. Types of Complaints 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An EEO violation occurs when an employee alleges they 
are being bullied, working in a hostile work environment, being 
discriminated against, being harassed, being intimidated, being 
retaliated against, or being sexually harassed. 

i. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome 
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other 
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 

1. submission to such conduct is made either 
explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an 
individual’s employment; 
2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct 
by an individual is used as the basis for 
employment decisions affecting such individuals; 
or 
3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of 
substantially interfering with an individual’s 
work performance or creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive work environment. 
 

Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.1.c.2), EEO 
Violations 
 
The second category of Complaints is EEO Violations, which “occurs when an employee alleges 
they are being bullied, working in a hostile work environment, being discriminated against, being 

187 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 104 of 184 
 

harassed, being intimidated, being retaliated against, or being sexually harassed.” (OPPP 
amendments, Draft 1, lines 728-42). The proposed amendments define “Sexual Harassment” using  
language from current OPPP Section V.D.2.c)5), specifically: 
 

i. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 

1. submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or 
condition of an individual’s employment; 
2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis 
for employment decisions affecting such individuals; or 
3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an 
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
work environment. 

 
Over time, the definition of sexual harassment has expanded beyond what is in the current OPPP 
and proposed for the amendments. Comprehensive amendments to the OPPP provide an 
opportunity to update the scope of prohibited sexually harassing behavior under Oneida law. The 
United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission14 includes in its definition all 
harassment “because of a person’s sex” and “offensive remarks about a person’s sex.” (U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission, Sexual Harassment, last visited 12/22/2022, 
www.eeoc.gov/sexual-harassment). Most importantly, harassment “does not have to be of a sexual 
nature” to be prohibited as sexual harassment. Id. Also, sexual harassment can be perpetrated by a 
man or a woman and the harasser and victim may be of the same sex or opposite sex. Id. The 
amendments should include an updated scope of sexually harassing behaviors. 
 
14 As a federally-recognized Indian tribe, the Oneida Nation is exempt from Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 and not subject to EEOC jurisdiction. EEOC definitions may guide the Nation 
in forming a sexual harassment policy. 
 
Jessica Vandekamp (written): 5. Hostile Work Environment • Add: define hostile work 
environment as a form of sexual harassment. I’ve heard often that employees use the term 
incorrectly when describing an unfriendly work environment. 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): It is very easy for an employee to claim they are working in a hostile 
work environment. It was mentioned in a few of my employee disagreements and investigations 
and was due to the employee being held accountable for their actions. I agree with EEO being 
involved but I disagree that the EEO department being responsible.  
 
Response 
 
The commenter suggests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider updating the 
definition for sexual harassment.  
 
Section V.D.1.b.2.a.i of the Law provides that sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual 
advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 

188 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 105 of 184 
 

1. submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of 
an individual’s employment; 
2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for 
employment decisions affecting such individuals; or 
3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual’s 
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee work with the EEO Department to 
revise and update the definition for sexual harassment to clarify the scope of sexually harassing 
behaviors. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
Comments 126 through 130 – : Oversight and Accountability for EEO Violations Complaint 
Investigations: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with 
the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint 
from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor 
of the employee being complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be 
investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their 
supervisor to ensure accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the 
complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing 
investigative leave while the employee is being investigated for 
an EEO Violation complaint. 

189 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 106 of 184 
 

g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used 
to make the final resolution shall be filed at the EEO 
Department for reporting purposes.  
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The proposed Complaint 
process for EEO violations is as follows: 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve the 
complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the EEO 
Department receives the complaint from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee being 
complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee; 
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 
resolution; and 
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability. 

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as all 
other parties mentioned in the complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave while 
the employee is being investigated for an EEO Violation complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 
mutually determine an appropriate resolution.15 
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 
resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes. 

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, 
lines 896-917) 

 
The most notable aspect of the EEO Violations Complaint process is the lack of oversight, 
especially when this section is compared to the Employee Disagreements Complaint process. 
While supervisors, area managers, and General Managers throughout the organization will be 
found “negligent in the performance of their assigned duties” and be subject to “appropriate 
accountability” if they “fail to complete [an] investigation and resolve the complaint,” the EEO 
Officers have no oversight and no threatened discipline. The proposed amendments are very 
focused on EEO oversight of supervisor, area manager, and General Manager investigations, 
decision-making, and follow-through. But there is a complete lack of oversight for the EEO 
Officers themselves when they are investigating and resolving EEO Violation Complaints. 
 

190 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 107 of 184 
 

15 The proposed Amendments do not state what happens if the EEO and HR Executive Director 
cannot mutually agree. A possible solution is for the Executive Director decision to control in those 
instances. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 900-901: The EEO 
Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the EEO Department received the 
complaint from the employee.  
 
After this step, nothing in the EEO Officers process for investigating and resolution of the 
complaint addresses what happens if the EEO fails to adhere to the timeline during the process. 
There are steps up the chain of command, up to the Business Committee if supervisors, managers, 
and the General Manager fail to adhere to the timeline. If EEO wants supervisor authority to 
discipline, they too need to be held accountable if they miss the timeline. The process needs to be 
fair and consistent to all who are taking action. In the supervisor, area manager and general 
manager sections under complaints it states that if they fail to complete the investigation and 
resolve the complaint within ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice up the 
chain of command, informing them they violated the complaint process by being negligent in the 
performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. This 
same process has to be followed when EEO is negligent. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 913-914: The EEO Office 
shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  
 
Where’s the step after this that says, if the EEO cannot come to a mutual determination with the 
Human Resources Executive Director as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint then the 
EEO shall provide written justification for non-agreement on the resolution to the General 
Manager or Business Committee. In all the complaint processes for the supervisor, Area Manager 
and the General Manager, it states they must provide written justification for non-agreement with 
EEO. If EEO is allowed disciplinary authority, in the event of a disagreement with the Executive 
Director’s decision, the Executive Directors decision shall be final in regard to internal review 
prior to actual litigation before the Judiciary. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1136-1140: For any 
supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures, the EEO Department shall 
send a letter to the Area Manager. The letter shall notify the Area Manager that the supervisor 
violated the disciplinary process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties 
and failure to appropriately discipline an employee.  
 
If EEO Officers are going to be allowed the authority to discipline employees that they don’t work 
with or supervise, what happens when the EEO Officer fails to follow the Nations disciplinary 
procedures? Where is the accountability process for them? They too should have a letter sent to 
their Area Manager informing them the EEO Officer violated the disciplinary process by being 
negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately discipline an 
employee. The process has to be fair and consistent for all. 
 

191 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 108 of 184 
 

Shannon Stone (written): There does not seem to be the same level of accountability for EEO as 
there is for a supervisor in the Complaint and Grievance processes. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that the complaint procedures for EEO Violations found in section 
V.D.1.c.2 of the Law lacks the level of accountability for the EEO officers that is provided for the 
supervisors in the complaint procedures for Employee Disagreements.  
 
Some examples of the commenters concerns include section V.D.1.c.2.g of the Law which 
provides that the EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 
mutually determine an appropriate resolution, but does not provide what occurs if the EEO Officer 
and the Human Resources Executive Director cannot come to a mutual determination. 
Additionally, section V.D.1.c.2 of the Law does not address what occurs if the EEO Officer fails 
to complete the investigation within the timelines provided in the Law. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review the complaint procedures for 
EEO Violations found in section V.D.1.c.2. of the Law to address the accountability of the EEO 
Officers. Specifically, the Legislative Operating Committee should discuss and determine what 
occurs if the EEO Officer and the Human Resources Executive Director cannot come to a mutual 
determination, as provided for in V.D.1.c.2.g of the Law, as well as accountability measures for 
an EEO Officer who does not follow the complaint procedures. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 131 – Clarification on Final Resolution for EEO Violation Investigation: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with 
the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint 
from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor 
of the employee being complained about so they: 

192 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 109 of 184 
 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be 
investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their 
supervisor to ensure accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the 
complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing 
investigative leave while the employee is being investigated for 
an EEO Violation complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used 
to make the final resolution shall be filed at the EEO 
Department for reporting purposes.  
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The proposed amendments 
require the EEO Officer to notify the supervisor of the employee who is the subject of the 
complaint to state, among other things, “the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to 
ensure accountability.” (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 907-908). It is unclear which supervisor 
will receive the “final resolution.” The language may refer to the supervisor of the employee being 
complained about or it may refer to the supervisor’s supervisor (in other words, two levels of 
supervision above the employee being complained about). The language should more clearly 
specify who will receive the final resolution. 
 
In addition, the language declaring the EEO’s resolution of a Complaint as “final” should be more 
clear. If the meaning of “final” is that the EEO’s resolution cannot be appealed to any hearing 
body, such limitation should be explicit. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request that the Legislative Operating Committee clarify which supervisor the 
final resolution shall be sent to as provided for in section V.D.1.c.2.d.iii. of the Law. The 
commenters also request that the Legislative Operating Committee clarify what section V.D.1.c.2.i 
of the Law means when it states that the EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.2.d.iii of the Law provides that the EEO Officer shall notify the immediate 
supervisor of the employee being complained about so they: Are aware that the EEO Officer will 
be investigating their employee; Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the 
final resolution; and Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability. Because the communication is from the EEO Officer to the supervisor of the 
employee who is the subject of the complaint, the provision that “the final resolution shall be sent 

193 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 110 of 184 
 

to their supervisor to ensure accountability” is referencing the supervisor of the supervisor, more 
commonly known as the Area Manager. It is not currently addressed in the proposed amendments, 
but the Legislative Operating Committee may want to ensure that the final resolution is also 
provided to the supervisor of the employee being complained about so that they are aware of the 
final resolution. 
 
Additionally, section V.D.1.c.2.i of the Law provides that the EEO Officer’s resolution shall be 
final. The intent of this provision is that the EEO Officer’s resolution of the complaint be non-
appealable. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee make the following revisions to the 
Law to clarify the above mentioned issues: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

2) EEO Violations 
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with the 
EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins 
the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint from the 
employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of 
the employee being complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating 
their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to the 
supervisor and area manager of the employee who is the 
subject of the complaint their supervisor to ensure 
accountability.  

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final and non-
appealable.  

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 132 – Definition for Illegal Activities: 
 

194 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 111 of 184 
 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
b. Types of Complaints 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee 
alleges: 

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, 
bribery, lying under oath, obstruction, or interference 
with a criminal investigation; 
ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession 
of a dangerous or unauthorized material, such as 
explosives or firearms, in the workplace; 
iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or 
possession of an illegal controlled substance; or 
iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of 
property which includes, but is not limited to, theft, 
embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, robbery, 
extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to 
commit such actions. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.1.c.3), Illegal 
Activities 
The proposed amendments add a new Complaint process centered on employee allegations of 
illegal activities. Illegal activities are defined within the amendments at Section V.D.1.b.3): 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee alleges: 

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, bribery, lying under oath, 
obstruction, or interference with a criminal investigation; 
ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession of a dangerous or 
unauthorized material, such as explosives or firearms, in the workplace;  
iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or possession of an illegal 
controlled substance; or 
iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of property which includes, 
but is not limited to, theft, embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, 
robbery, extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to commit such 
actions. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 743-754) 

 
The OPPP are Oneida law and must be confined to matters over which the Oneida Nation can 
exercise its jurisdiction. For the purpose of employment regulation, this is generally considered to 
include activities that occur within the workplace, activities that are part of an employee’s work 
duties, or activities that substantially affect an employee’s ability to perform their work duties. The 
proposed amendments do not confine the definition of “Illegal Activities” to activities that are 
under the Nation’s jurisdiction, which can pose a problem for enforcement of the Law. Only 
amended Section V.D.1.c.3)a)ii refers to an employee “witness[ing] or hav[ing] knowledge of a 

195 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 112 of 184 
 

possession of a dangerous or unauthorized material . . . in the workplace.” (OPPP amendments, 
Draft 1, lines 747-8) (emphasis added). Similar language should be added to Sections i, iii, and iv. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request the Legislative Operating Committee consider revising section 
V.D.1.3.b.a. of the Law to activities that occur within the workplace, activities that are part of an 
employee’s work duties, or activities that substantially affect an employee’s ability to perform 
their work duties. 
 
Section V.D.1.3.b.a. of the Law provides that an illegal activities violation occurs when an 
employee alleges: 
 They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, bribery, lying under oath, obstruction, or 

interference with a criminal investigation; 
 They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession of a dangerous or unauthorized 

material, such as explosives or firearms, in the workplace; 
 They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or possession of an illegal controlled 

substance; or 
 They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of property which includes, but is not limited 

to, theft, embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, robbery, extortion, racketeering, 
swindling, or conspiracy to commit such actions. 

 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee make the following revision to 
section V.D.1.3.b.a. of the Law to provide a greater connection between the illegal activity and the 
workplace: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
b. Types of Complaints 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee 
alleges they witnessed or have knowledge of an illegal act that: 

i.  occurred within the workplace;  
ii.  occurred as a result of an employee’s work duties; or  
iii.  ssubstantially affects an employee’s ability to perform 
their work duties. 

(b)  An illegal activity may include, but is not limited to, the 
following: 

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, bribery, 
lying under oath, obstrruction, or interference with a 
criminal investigation; 
ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession 
of a dangerous or unauthorized material, such as explosives 
or firearms, in the workplace; 
iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or 
possession of an illegal controlled substance; or 

196 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 113 of 184 
 

iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of 
property which includes, but is not limited to, theft, 
embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, robbery, 
extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to commit 
such actions. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 133 through 135 – Illegal Activities Complaint Process Concerns: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with 
the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint 
from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor 
of the employee being complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be 
investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their 
supervisor to ensure accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the 
complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing 
investigative leave while the employee is being investigated for 
an Illegal Activities complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used 
to make the final resolution shall be filed at the EEO 
Department for reporting purposes.  

197 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 114 of 184 
 

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation of the employee resulted in the conclusion that an 
illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer shall forward the 
complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local 
law enforcement agency. 

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize 
their investigation and accountability processes for the 
complaint. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The proposed amendments also 
describe a process for Illegal Activities Complaints. 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve the 
complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the EEO 
Department receives the complaint from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee being 
complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee; 
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 
resolution; and 
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability. 

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as all 
other parties mentioned in the complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave while 
the employee is being investigated for an Illegal Activities complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 
mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 
resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes. 

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint investigation of the employee 
resulted in the conclusion that an illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer 
shall forward the complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local law 
enforcement agency. 

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize their investigation and 
accountability processes for the complaint. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, 
lines 918-946) 

 
The Illegal Activities complaint process mirrors the EEO Violations complaint process for the 
most part, so the comments are similar. (See EEO Violations, above). In summary, when compared 
to the Employee Disagreement Complaint process, there is a lack of oversight for EEO Officer 
investigation and resolution of Illegal Activities. Also, it is unclear which supervisor will receive 

198 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 115 of 184 
 

“the final resolution” identified in Section V.D.1.c.3)d)iii. Finally, it is not clear what is meant by, 
“The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.” 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Illegal Activities Lines 923-924: 
The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the EEO Department 
receives the complaint from the employee.  
 
Same as mentioned above in EEO violations, nothing in the EEO process addresses if the EEO 
Officer fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within ten (10) working days. 
Nothing states who will send this notice, and who is it sent to, to inform them the EEO violated 
the complaint process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties ad failure to 
appropriately investigate a complaint. If this process exists for supervisors, area managers and the 
General Manager in needs to be in the EEO’s process also. All need to be held accountable in the 
same manner. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 936-937: The EEO Officer 
shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution. 
 
Nothing is stated in this process who the EEO sends their justification to if the EEO Officer and 
Human Resources Executive Director do not come to a mutually determination of an appropriate 
resolution as listed in the supervisor, area manager and General Managers process. Both should 
have to follow the same process to be consistent. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that the complaint procedures for Illegal Activities found in section 
V.D.1.c.3. of the Law lacks the level of accountability for the EEO officers that is provided for the 
supervisors in the complaint procedures for Employee Disagreements.  
 
Some examples of the commenters concerns include section V.D.1.c.3.g of the Law which 
provides that the EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 
mutually determine an appropriate resolution, but does not provide what occurs if the EEO Officer 
and the Human Resources Executive Director cannot come to a mutual determination. 
Additionally, section V.D.1.c.3. of the Law does not address what occurs if the EEO Officer fails 
to complete the investigation within the timelines provided in the Law. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review the complaint procedures for 
Illegal Activities found in section V.D.1.c.3. of the Law to address the accountability of the EEO 
Officers. Specifically, the Legislative Operating Committee should discuss and determine what 
occurs if the EEO Officer and the Human Resources Executive Director cannot come to a mutual 
determination, as provided for in V.D.1.c.2.g of the Law, as well as accountability measures for 
an EEO Officer who does not follow the complaint procedures. 
 
Additionally, the commenters request that the Legislative Operating Committee clarify which 
supervisor the final resolution shall be sent to as provided for in section V.D.1.c.3.d.iii. of the Law. 

199 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 116 of 184 
 

The commenters also request that the Legislative Operating Committee clarify what section 
V.D.1.c.3.i of the Law means when it states that the EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.3.d.iii of the Law provides that the EEO Officer shall notify the immediate 
supervisor of the employee being complained about so they: Are aware that the EEO Officer will 
be investigating their employee; Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the 
final resolution; and Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability. Because the communication is from the EEO Officer to the supervisor of the 
employee who is the subject of the complaint, the provision that “the final resolution shall be sent 
to their supervisor to ensure accountability” is referencing the supervisor of the supervisor, more 
commonly known as the Area Manager. It is not currently addressed in the proposed amendments, 
but the Legislative Operating Committee may want to ensure that the final resolution is also 
provided to the supervisor of the employee being complained about so that they are aware of the 
final resolution. 
 
Additionally, section V.D.1.c.3.i of the Law provides that the EEO Officer’s resolution shall be 
final. The intent of this provision is that the EEO Officer’s resolution of the complaint be non-
appealable. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee make the following revisions to the 
Law to clarify the above mentioned issues: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with 
the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins 
the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint from the 
employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of 
the employee being complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating 
their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to the 
supervisor and area manager of the employee who is the 
subject of the complaint their supervisor to ensure 
accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the 
complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

200 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 117 of 184 
 

f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing 
investigative leave while the employee is being investigated for an 
Illegal Activities complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to 
make the final resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for 
reporting purposes.  
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final and non-
appealable.  
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation of the employee resulted in the conclusion that an 
illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer shall forward the 
complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local law 
enforcement agency. 

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize their 
investigation and accountability processes for the complaint. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 136 – Involvement of the Oneida Law Office in Illegal Activities Complaints: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with 
the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint 
from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor 
of the employee being complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be 
investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their 
supervisor to ensure accountability.  

201 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 118 of 184 
 

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the 
complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing 
investigative leave while the employee is being investigated for 
an Illegal Activities complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used 
to make the final resolution shall be filed at the EEO 
Department for reporting purposes.  
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation of the employee resulted in the conclusion that an 
illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer shall forward the 
complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local 
law enforcement agency. 

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize 
their investigation and accountability processes for the 
complaint. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Proposed Section V.D.1.c.3.g. 
would require the EEO Office to meet with the HR Executive Director to “mutually determine an 
appropriate resolution.” When there is the possibility of illegal activity within an Oneida 
workplace or a crime against the Nation, such discussion should involve an attorney(s) from the 
Oneida Law Office. The Nation’s attorneys both represent the interest of the Nation and directly 
advise the Oneida Business Committee about legal implications of potential illegal activity within 
the organization. 
 
In addition, while the Illegal Activities complaint process requires an EEO Officer to forward 
information to a local law enforcement agency if the Officer reaches a “conclusion that an illegal 
activity did occur,” this requirement falls far short of what is actually needed in these 
circumstances. If grant funds are implicated in any way, grant requirements must be considered 
and a report(s) made to relevant granting agency(ies). In addition, illegal activity typically impacts 
compacts, contracts, memoranda of understanding or agreement, and other intergovernmental 
agreements. The Oneida Law Office is involved in cases of illegal activity to ensure that the 
requirements of all applicable agreements are fulfilled. In almost every case, the matter is reported 
to the Business Committee with the appropriate confidentiality and context. Simply saying that the 
EEO will refer the matter to a local law enforcement agency does not address all the implications 
of an Illegal Activities investigation. This language should be expanded to ensure that the Oneida 
Law Office is involved and all reports are made. 
 
Response 
 

202 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 119 of 184 
 

The commenters request that the Legislative Operating Committee include the Oneida Law Office 
in section V.D.1.c.3. of the Law, since that the Oneida Law Office should be involved in all reports 
of Illegal Activities.  
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee collaborate with the Oneida Law 
Office to determine how best to incorporate the Oneida Law Office into the Illegal Activities 
complaint procedures provided for in section V.D.1.c.3. of the Law, and revise the Law 
accordingly. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 137 – Local Law Enforcement Agencies: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

3) Illegal Activities 
a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with 
the EEO Department. 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the EEO Department receives the complaint 
from the employee. 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor 
of the employee being complained about so they: 

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be 
investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for 
implementing the final resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their 
supervisor to ensure accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the 
complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 
complaint. 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing 
investigative leave while the employee is being investigated for 
an Illegal Activities complaint. 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  

203 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 120 of 184 
 

h) The final resolution and all support documentation used 
to make the final resolution shall be filed at the EEO 
Department for reporting purposes.  
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation of the employee resulted in the conclusion that an 
illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer shall forward the 
complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local 
law enforcement agency. 

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize 
their investigation and accountability processes for the 
complaint. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The Illegal Activities 
Complaint process raises an additional concern. Section V.D.1.c.3)j)i. seems to direct “local law 
enforcement agenc[ies]” to “utilize their investigation and accountability processes for the 
complaint.” Every local law enforcement agency, including the Oneida Police Department, uses 
its discretion to determine an approach to every complaint they receive. It is not necessary to direct 
law enforcement agencies as proposed in the OPPP amendments. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that it is unnecessary for the section V.D.1.c.3.j.i. of the Law to provide 
direction to local law enforcement agencies. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.3.j. of the Law provides that if the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation of the employee resulted in the conclusion that an illegal activity did occur, then the 
EEO Officer shall forward the complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local law 
enforcement agency. The Law then provides that the local law enforcement agency shall utilize 
their investigation and accountability processes for the complaint. 
 
The following revision to the Law is recommended based on this comment: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

3) Illegal Activities 
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint 
investigation of the employee resulted in the conclusion that an 
illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer shall forward the 
complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local law 
enforcement agency. 

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize their 
investigation and accountability processes for the complaint. 

 
LOC Consideration 

204 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 121 of 184 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Comments 138 through 141 – Deviation from Progressive Order of Discipline: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
2. Discipline 

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action.  
1) All disciplinary actions shall commensurate with the seriousness of the 
unsatisfactory performance or violation.   
2) Disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive order.  

a) The progressive order for discipline is as follows, unless 
otherwise noted: 

i. Written warning (W); 
ii. Suspension (S);  
iii. Termination (T). 

b) Deviation from Progressive Order  
i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the supervisor shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the EEO Department.  
ii. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action. 
1) All disciplinary actions shall commensurate18 with the seriousness of the 
unsatisfactory performance or violation. 
2) Disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive order. 

a) The progressive order for discipline is as follows, unless otherwise noted: 
i. Written warning (W); 
ii. Suspension (S); 
iii. Termination (T). 
b) Deviation from Progressive Order 

i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by 
the supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO 
Department. 
ii. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by 
the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and approved by the 
Human Resources Executive Director, or designee. 

 

205 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 122 of 184 
 

The proposed amendments would require a supervisor to obtain EEO approval of any deviation 
from progressive discipline, within the timeline for issuing discipline. The amendments do not 
provide an opportunity to appeal the EEO decision regarding deviation 
 
18 It’s possible Section V.D.2.b.1) is intended to read, “All disciplinary actions shall be 
commensurate with the seriousness of the unsatisfactory performance or violation.” 
 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 963-965: Any deviation 
from the recommended progressive order made by the supervisor shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the EEO Department.  
 
EEO should not have to approve a supervisor’s deviation from the recommended progression. 
They never had in the current process so why change it? I agree the process should remain that 
any deviation from the recommended progression shall be justified in writing, but it should not 
have to have EEO approval, as again, it is the discretion of the supervisor on what level of 
discipline they are going to issue. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 982: unless a deviation is 
sought and approved.  
 
Don’t agree that a supervisor’s decision to deviate from the recommended progression needs EEO 
approval. It never has in the past, why add it now? Again, too much authority to EEO. Supervisors 
are currently required to justify the deviation in writing so why change the process? 
 
Mark Powless (written):  
991 When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall 
992 contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 
993 c.1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO 
994 Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the 
995 supervisor shall provide written justification for non-agreement on the 
996 resolution to both the Area Manager to attempt a resolution and the 
997 Human Resources Executive Director. 
 
1179 i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 
1180 supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO 
1181 Department. 
 
• In both sections the time for the EEO office to respond is not defined. A supervisor has a defined 
timeframe to respond. If the EEO office is not timely it will delay completion of the 
investigation/resolution. 
 
Response 
. 
The commenters provide that overall the discipline timelines do not provide adequate time for the 
supervisor to obtain approval by the EEO Department for any deviation from the progressive order 

206 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 123 of 184 
 

as required by section V.D.2.b.2.b. of the Law. Additionally, the commenters state the section 
V.D.2.b.2.b. of the Law does not allow a supervisor to appeal the decision of the EEO Department. 
The commenters also provide general non-support of this provision of the Law. 
 
Section V.D.2.b.2. of the Law provides that disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive 
order, which is as follows, unless otherwise noted: Written warning (W); Suspension (S);  
Termination (T). Section V.D.2.b.2.b.i. of the Law then provides that any deviation from the 
recommended progressive order made by the supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved 
by the EEO Department. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the disciplinary procedures found in 
section V.D.2. of the Law allow enough time for the requirements of section V.D.2.b.2.b.i. to be 
accomplished. The Legislative Operating Committee may also consider whether a supervisor 
should be able to appeal the decision of the EEO Department regarding the deviation from the 
normal progressive order of discipline. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of 
the following determinations.  

1. Section V.D.2.b.2.b.i. of the Law should remain as currently redrafted and require that any 
deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the supervisor shall be 
justified in writing and approved by the EEO Department. 

2. Section V.D.2.b.2.b.i. of the Law should be redrafted and the Legislative Operating 
Committee should consider whether the approval of the EEO Department is necessary for 
a deviation from the progressive order. If the Legislative Operating Committee decides to 
keep the requirement for the approval of the EEO Department, then the Legislative 
Operating Committee should consider the timeline for the EEO Department to approve the 
deviation, and whether a supervisor be allowed to appeal the decision of the EEO 
Department. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 142 – Accumulated Disciplinary Actions Warranting Termination: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
2. Discipline 

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action.  
 

3) Accumulated Disciplinary Actions Warranting Termination 
a) The following accumulations of disciplinary actions shall 
warrant the termination of an employee: 

i. Three (3) upheld warning notices within any twelve (12) 
month period; 

207 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 124 of 184 
 

ii. Two (2) upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month 
period; or 
iii. Any combination of three (3) upheld warning notices 
and/or upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month period. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

3) Accumulated Disciplinary Actions Warranting Termination 
a) The following accumulations of disciplinary actions shall warrant the 
termination of an employee: 

i. Three (3) upheld warning notices within any twelve (12) month period; 
ii. Two (2) upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month period; or 
iii. Any combination of three (3) upheld warning notices and/or upheld 
suspensions within any twelve (12) month period. 

 
Proposed language regarding accumulated disciplines is substantially similar to language in the 
current OPPP and presents no legal issues. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide a summary of section V.D.2.b.3. of the Law and provide that it is 
substantially similar to current language un the Law and presents no legal issue. There is no action 
needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on this comment.  
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 143 – Definition of Prohibited Drug: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
2. Discipline 
c. Disciplinary Action for Unsatisfactory Work Performance.   

1) A supervisor may initiate disciplinary action for unsatisfactory work 
performance of an employee. 
2) The actions listed below are examples of unsatisfactory work performance and 
do not constitute a comprehensive or exhaustive list. The actions in parentheses are 
the progressive order standards to be used in administering disciplinary actions, 
unless a deviation is sought and approved.  

d) Personal Actions and Appearance 
xiii. The use, possession, selling or purchasing of, or attempt to sell 
or purchase alcohol, and/or prohibited drugs on or about Oneida 
Nation premises while on duty. (S/T) 

208 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 125 of 184 
 

1. Prohibited drug means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, 
amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), hallucinogens, 
methaqualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other 
substances included in Schedules I through V, as defined by 
Section 812 of Title 21 of the United States Code. Prohibited 
drugs also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter 
medicine when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The amendments include lists 
of actions that may constitute unsatisfactory19 work performance, which are substantially similar 
to the lists of actions in the current law. (See OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 983-1066). A 
significant change in the proposed amendments is found in Section V.D.2.c.2)d)xiii., which 
proposes to define “prohibited drug” as follows: 

xiii. The use, possession, selling or purchasing of, or attempt to sell or purchase alcohol, 
and/or prohibited drugs on or about Oneida Nation premises while on duty. (S/T) 
1. Prohibited drug means marijuana,20 cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine 

(PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substances 
included in Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the United 
States Code. Prohibited drugs also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter 
medicine when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 

 
As the laws regarding the legality of marijuana continue to change, it may be advisable to not 
include a list of specific drugs as “prohibited.” To stay current with any potential changes to drug 
laws, proposed Section V.D.2.c.2)d)xiii.1. could state: 
1. Prohibited drug means any substances included in Schedules I through V, as established by 21 
United States Code §812. Prohibited drugs also includes prescription medication or over-the-
counter medicine when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 
 
19 In the current OPPP, the list of actions is referred to as “unacceptable” work performance. See 
OPPP V.D.2.c. 
20 Many states have decriminalized marijuana for medical or recreational use, or both. In 
Wisconsin, where state law maintains criminal penalties, several municipalities have 
decriminalized marijuana possession, including Appleton and Green Bay, though such 
municipalities may permit civil monetary penalties. As a federal grant recipient, the Oneida Nation 
is required to comply with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, which requires “publishing a 
statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person’s workplace and specifying 
the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.” 41 USC 
§701(a)(1)(A). Marijuana is currently included on the federal list of controlled substances. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider revising the definition 
for prohibited drug contained in the Law.  
 

209 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 126 of 184 
 

Section V.D.2.c.2.d.xiii.1. of the Law provides that prohibited drug means marijuana, cocaine, 
opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, barbiturates, 
narcotics, and any other substances included in Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 
of Title 21 of the United States Code. Prohibited drugs also includes prescription medication or 
over-the-counter medicine when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 
 
In an effort to stay current with any potential changes to drug laws, the following revision to the 
Law is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
2. Discipline 
c. Disciplinary Action for Unsatisfactory Work Performance.   

1) A supervisor may initiate disciplinary action for unsatisfactory work performance 
of an employee. 
2) The actions listed below are examples of unsatisfactory work performance and do 
not constitute a comprehensive or exhaustive list. The actions in parentheses are the 
progressive order standards to be used in administering disciplinary actions, unless a 
deviation is sought and approved.  

d) Personal Actions and Appearance 
xiii. The use, possession, selling or purchasing of, or attempt to sell or 
purchase alcohol, and/or prohibited drugs on or about Oneida Nation 
premises while on duty. (S/T) 

1. Prohibited drug means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, 
amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, 
barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substances included in 
Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the 
United States Code21 United States Code §812. Prohibited drugs 
also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter medicine 
when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 144 – Clarify Promptly Meeting with an Employee: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

1) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action 
form within five (5) working days of either:  

210 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 127 of 184 
 

a) the resolution of a complaint from which it has been 
determined that disciplinary action is warranted, or 
b) the determination that disciplinary action is warranted 
based on the unsatisfactory work performance of an employee.  

2) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary 
action form in its entirety and ensure the information contained on the 
form is complete and accurate. The disciplinary action form shall 
include at a minimum the following information:  

a) Statement of the behavior for which the disciplinary 
action is being taken;  
b) The time and date of its occurrence; and  
c) The specific policy section under which action is being 
taken. 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting 
with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the 
employee and identify a  corrective action. 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and 
the employee may occur in person, through video conferencing, 
or over the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall 
discuss the disciplinary action with the employee being 
disciplined to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary 
action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in 
light of the disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued 
unacceptable behavior. 

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action 
form. 

a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss 
the action with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to 
sign the disciplinary action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer 
shall so note this, with date of refusal, on the form. 

5) Within one (1) working day of the conclusion of the meeting with 
the employee, the supervisor or EEO Officer shall provide copies of the 
signed disciplinary action form, or disciplinary action form noting the 
date of refusal, to the: 

a) Employee being disciplined; 
b) Human Resources Executive Director; 
c) Supervisor; 
d) Area Manager; and  
e) Appropriate General Manager level position.  

6) Should a disciplinary action result in the suspension of an 
employee, the following guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Suspensions 

211 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 128 of 184 
 

i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the 
supervisor shall consult with the EEO Officer to 
mutually determine the length of the suspension. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then 
the EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine the length of 
the suspension. 

b) Suspensions shall be limited to a maximum period of 
three (3) weeks. 

i. Suspensions that are overturned in the grievance 
process shall result in the employee receiving back pay 
for the time they were suspended. 

7) Should a disciplinary action result in the termination of an 
employee, the following guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Termination  
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the 
supervisor shall consult with the EEO Officer to 
mutually determine that the termination is the 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then 
the EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine that the 
termination is the appropriate disciplinary action. 

b) Terminations that are overturned in the grievance 
process shall result in the employee receiving back pay for the 
time they were terminated. 

8) The Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary 
action for clear procedural errors. 

a) The EEO Officer may void a disciplinary action taken by 
a supervisor for clear procedural errors.  
b) The Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, 
may void a disciplinary action taken by an EEO Officer for clear 
procedural errors.  
c) Notification of a voided disciplinary action shall be sent 
to the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee which 
identifies the procedural error. 

9) For any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary 
procedures, the EEO Department shall send a letter to the Area 
Manager. 

a) The letter shall notify the Area Manager that the 
supervisor violated the disciplinary process by being negligent 
in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to 
appropriately discipline an employee. 
b) The letter shall address the appropriate accountability of 
the supervisor. 

 

212 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 129 of 184 
 

Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.2.d., Disciplinary 
Procedure 

d. Disciplinary Procedure. The following procedure shall be adhered to by the supervisor 
or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

1) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action form within 
five (5) working days of either: 

a) the resolution of a complaint from which it has been determined that 
disciplinary action is warranted, or 
b) the determination that disciplinary action is warranted based on the 
unsatisfactory work performance of an employee. 

2) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary action form in its 
entirety and ensure the information contained on the form is complete and accurate. 
The disciplinary action form shall include at a minimum the following information: 

a) Statement of the behavior for which the disciplinary action is being taken; 
b) The time and date of its occurrence; and 
c) The specific policy section under which action is being taken. 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with the employee 
to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and identify a corrective 
action. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1067-84) 

 
It is not clear what qualifies as “promptly” meeting with a disciplined employee. Under the 
proposed amendments, the EEO Department can refer a supervisor who “fails to follow the 
Nation’s disciplinary procedures” for discipline. See OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1136-41. 
If an employee (here, a supervisor) is subject to discipline for certain actions or inaction, the 
employer should inform the employee of exactly what behaviors are required to avoid discipline. 
The proposed amendments do not adequately inform supervisors how to avoid discipline by 
promptly meeting with an employee. 
 
Additionally, supervisors have an interest in not having a discipline overturned for procedural 
errors. (See Oneida Bingo and Casino v. Oneida Human Resources Dept., 02-AC-007, 8 O.N.R. 
3-138, 139 (Aug. 12, 2002) (“[T]he supervisor is not presenting this grievance to the Personnel 
Commission in her personal capacity. She is bringing this action as a representative of the Oneida 
Bingo and Casino, which is Mr. Haven’s employer. And the Oneida Bingo and Casino does have 
an interest in upholding Mr. Haven’s suspension from employment. . . . [T]he Bingo and Casino 
as an entity has an interest in maintaining itself and its processes.”) For supervisors to avoid having 
their disciplines overturned, they need to be told the details of the disciplinary process. Requiring 
a “prompt” meeting is not detailed enough. For these reasons, proposed OPPP V.D.2.d.3) should 
include a specific timeline for supervisors and EEO Officers to meet with an employee who is 
being disciplined. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that the requirement of section V.D.2.d.3 of the Law for a supervisor or 
EEO Officer to promptly hold a meeting with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form 
with the employee and identify a corrective action does not provide enough clarification as to what 
promptly means.  

213 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 130 of 184 
 

 
Section V.D.2.d.3 of the Law provides that the supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a 
meeting with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and identify 
a corrective action. A definitive timeline for this action is not provided.  
 
It is recommended that section V.D.2.d.3. of the Law be redrafted to provide a definitive timeline 
for when the supervisor or EEO Officer has to hold a meeting with the employee to discuss the 
disciplinary action form with the employee and identify a corrective action. The Legislative 
Operating Committee should determine an appropriate timeframe and revise the Law accordingly 
as illustrated below: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to by the 
supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with 
the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and 
identify a corrective action within __(add timeframe)__. 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the 
employee may occur in person, through video conferencing, or over 
the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall 
discuss the disciplinary action with the employee being disciplined 
to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in light 
of the disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued 
unacceptable behavior. 

 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 145 – Clarification on What Constitutes Corrective Action: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

214 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 131 of 184 
 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting 
with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the 
employee and identify a  corrective action. 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and 
the employee may occur in person, through video conferencing, 
or over the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall 
discuss the disciplinary action with the employee being 
disciplined to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary 
action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in 
light of the disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued 
unacceptable behavior. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Furthermore, it is not clear what 
is included as a “corrective action” that must be identified during the disciplinary meeting. Is the 
discipline – written warning, suspension, termination – the corrective action? Or would something 
else – a restriction on employee’s authority, a corrective plan, a mitigation agreement – qualify as 
a corrective action? In order to provide notice to the supervisor and to help the supervisor 
implement discipline that will be upheld, the types of “corrective action” need to be identified in 
the Amendments. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that section V.D.2.d.3. of the Law should be revised to provide greater 
clarification as to what constitutes corrective action.  
 
Section V.D.2.d.3 of the Law provides that the supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a 
meeting with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and identify 
a corrective action. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review section V.D.2.d.3. of the Law 
and determine what constitutes corrective action in these circumstances, and then revise the Law 
accordingly. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
Comment 146 – Refusal to Meet: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

215 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 132 of 184 
 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting 
with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the 
employee and identify a  corrective action. 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and 
the employee may occur in person, through video conferencing, 
or over the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall 
discuss the disciplinary action with the employee being 
disciplined to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary 
action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in 
light of the disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued 
unacceptable behavior. 

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action 
form. 

a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss 
the action with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to 
sign the disciplinary action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer 
shall so note this, with date of refusal, on the form. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee may occur in 
person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall discuss the disciplinary action 
with the employee being disciplined to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in light of the disciplinary action; 
and 
iii. Understands the consequences of continued unacceptable behavior. 

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action form. 
a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss21 the action with their 
supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to sign the disciplinary action form, the 
supervisor or EEO Officer shall so note this, with date of refusal, on the form. 

5) Within one (1) working day of the conclusion of the meeting with the employee, the 
supervisor or EEO Officer shall provide copies of the signed disciplinary action form, or 
disciplinary action form noting the date of refusal, to the: 

a) Employee being disciplined; 
b) Human Resources Executive Director; 
c) Supervisor; 
d) Area Manager; and 
e) Appropriate General Manager level position. 

6) Should a disciplinary action result in the suspension of an employee, the following 
guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Suspensions 

216 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 133 of 184 
 

i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the supervisor shall consult 
with the EEO Officer to mutually determine the length of the suspension. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall 
consult with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually 
determine the length of the suspension. 

b) Suspensions shall be limited to a maximum period of three (3) weeks. 
i. Suspensions that are overturned in the grievance process shall result in the 
employee receiving back pay for the time they were suspended. 

7) Should a disciplinary action result in the termination of an employee, the following 
guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Termination 
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the supervisor shall consult 
with the EEO Officer to mutually determine that the termination is the 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall 
consult with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually 
determine that the termination is the appropriate disciplinary action. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1085-1125). 

 
The proposed OPPP Amendments regarding mutual determination of suspension length and of 
termination are substantially similar to the current OPPP and do not present any new legal issues. 
 
21 It is not clear if there is a difference between an employee’s refusal to meet and a “refusal to 
discuss.” Oneida hearing bodies and Courts have created significant precedent regarding an 
employee’s refusal to meet for an investigation or discipline. See e.g. Thundercloud et al. v. 
Skenandore, 21-AC-008 (April 11, 2022). The Amendments should make clear whether such 
precedent holds its value by using the phrase “refuse to meet.” 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that it is not clear if there is a difference between an employee’s refusal 
to meet and a “refusal to discuss” as provided for in section V.d.2.d.4. of the Law, and that Oneida 
hearing bodies and Courts have created significant precedent regarding an employee’s refusal to 
meet for an investigation or discipline. 
 
Section V.d.2.d.4. of the Law provides that the employee being disciplined shall sign the 
disciplinary action form, and that should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss the action 
with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to sign the disciplinary action form, the 
supervisor or EEO Officer shall so note this, with date of refusal, on the form. 
 
The following revision to the Law is recommended based on this comment: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to by the 
supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

217 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 134 of 184 
 

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action 
form. 

a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss the 
action meet with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to 
sign the disciplinary action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer 
shall so note this, with date of refusal, on the form. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 147 through 148 – Conformance with the Back Pay Law: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

6) Should a disciplinary action result in the suspension of an 
employee, the following guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Suspensions 
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the 
supervisor shall consult with the EEO Officer to 
mutually determine the length of the suspension. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then 
the EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine the length of 
the suspension. 

b) Suspensions shall be limited to a maximum period of 
three (3) weeks. 

i. Suspensions that are overturned in the grievance 
process shall result in the employee receiving back pay 
for the time they were suspended. 

7) Should a disciplinary action result in the termination of an 
employee, the following guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Termination  
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the 
supervisor shall consult with the EEO Officer to 
mutually determine that the termination is the 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then 
the EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine that the 
termination is the appropriate disciplinary action. 

218 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 135 of 184 
 

b) Terminations that are overturned in the grievance 
process shall result in the employee receiving back pay for the 
time they were terminated. 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
c) The Area Manager shall take one of the following 
actions: 

i. Uphold the disciplinary action; 
ii. Modify the disciplinary action; or 
iii. Overturn the disciplinary action.  

1.  If a suspension or termination is 
overturned, the employee (petitioner) shall be 
reinstated to the position the employee was 
suspended or terminated from with full back pay. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

b) Terminations that are overturned in the grievance process shall result in the employee 
receiving back pay for the time they were terminated. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1126-7). 

 
Both the suspension and termination sections of the proposed amendments require back pay in the 
event a discipline is overturned. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1115-6 and lines 1126-7). The 
recently-amended Back Pay Law clearly defines eligibility for and calculation of Back Pay. See 2 
O.C. 206, Back Pay. Proposed language in the amendments that requires back pay “for the time 
they were suspended” or “for the time they were terminated” is not very specific. However, the 
Back Pay Law is quite specific about these calculations. The proposed amendments should require 
back pay “in conformance with Oneida Law,” as this is simpler and less confusing. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

c) The Area Manager shall take one of the following actions: 
i. Uphold the disciplinary action; 
ii. Modify the disciplinary action; or 
iii. Overturn the disciplinary action. 

1. If a suspension or termination is overturned, the employee (petitioner) 
shall be reinstated to the position the employee was suspended or 
terminated from with full back pay. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1184-90). 

 
The recently-amended Back Pay Law addresses all requirements for reinstatement and back pay. 
Therefore, it is sufficient in these amendments to state, “If a suspension or termination is 
overturned, reinstatement and back pay will be in conformance with Oneida Law.” 

219 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 136 of 184 
 

 
Response 
 
The commenters express that language discussing reinstatement and back pay provided in sections 
V.D.2.d.6.b.i., V.D.2.d.7.b., V.D.3.c.1.c.iii.1. should be simplified and provide that all 
reinstatement and back pay will be in conformance with the Nation’s Back Pay law. 
 
Section V.D.2.d.6.b.i. of the Law provides that suspensions that are overturned in the grievance 
process shall result in the employee receiving back pay for the time they were suspended. Section 
V.D.2.d.7.b. of the Law provides that terminations that are overturned in the grievance process 
shall result in the employee receiving back pay for the time they were terminated. Section 
V.D.3.c.1.c.iii.1. of the Law provides that if a suspension or termination is overturned, the 
employee (petitioner) shall be reinstated to the position the employee was suspended or terminated 
from with full back pay. 
 
In an effort to ensure compliance with the Nation’s Back Pay law the following revisions to the 
Law are recommended based on these comments: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to by the 
supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

6) Should a disciplinary action result in the suspension of an employee, 
the following guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Suspensions 
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the 
supervisor shall consult with the EEO Officer to mutually 
determine the length of the suspension. 
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the 
EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine the length of the 
suspension. 

b) Suspensions shall be limited to a maximum period of three 
(3) weeks. 

i. If a  suspensions that are is overturned in the 
grievance process any back pay shall comply with the 
Nation’s laws governing back pay result in the employee 
receiving back pay for the time they were suspended. 

7) Should a disciplinary action result in the termination of an 
employee, the following guidelines shall apply: 

a) Consultation on Termination  
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the 
supervisor shall consult with the EEO Officer to mutually 
determine that the termination is the appropriate disciplinary 
action. 

220 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 137 of 184 
 

ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the 
EEO Officer shall consult with the Human Resources 
Executive Director to mutually determine that the 
termination is the appropriate disciplinary action. 

b) If a  terminations that are is overturned in the grievance 
process any reinstatement or back pay shall comply with the 
Nation’s laws governing back pay result in the employee receiving 
back pay for the time they were terminated. 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR Interpretation, 8-
19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
c) The Area Manager shall take one of the following actions: 

i. Uphold the disciplinary action; 
ii. Modify the disciplinary action; or 
iii. Overturn the disciplinary action.  

1.  If a suspension or termination is overturned, 
any reinstatement or back pay shall comply with the 
Nation’s laws governing back pay the employee 
(petitioner) shall be reinstated to the position the 
employee was suspended or terminated from with 
full back pay. 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel Commission 
i) Hearing Procedure 

vi. The Oneida Personnel Commission may: 
1. Uphold the disciplinary action; or 
2. Overturn the disciplinary action and: 

a. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) 
with back pay for any lost time in accordance 
with the Nation’s laws governing back pay 
Back Pay law; or 
b. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) 
without back pay. 

 
It is also important to note that although the Legislative Operating Committee is currently 
developing amendments to the Nation’s Back Pay law, no amendments have yet been adopted.  
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 

221 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 138 of 184 
 

Comments 149 through 151 – Voiding a Disciplinary Action: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

8) The Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary 
action for clear procedural errors. 

a) The EEO Officer may void a disciplinary action taken by 
a supervisor for clear procedural errors.  
b) The Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, 
may void a disciplinary action taken by an EEO Officer for clear 
procedural errors.  
c) Notification of a voided disciplinary action shall be sent 
to the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee which 
identifies the procedural error. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  
8) The Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary action for clear procedural errors. 

a) The EEO Officer may void a disciplinary action taken by a supervisor for clear 
procedural errors. 
b) The Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, may void a disciplinary action 
taken by an EEO Officer for clear procedural errors. 
c) Notification of a voided disciplinary action shall be sent to the supervisor or EEO Officer 
and the employee which identifies the procedural error. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1128-35). 

 
The proposed amendments explicitly permit the EEO Officers to void a disciplinary action 
imposed by a supervisor if there are “clear procedural errors.” However, without a description of 
what constitutes clear procedural error, the amendments do not give supervisors sufficient notice 
of when their disciplines may be overturned. As described above, supervisors have an interest in 
issuing disciplines that will not be overturned. Therefore, the proposed amendments need a clearer 
definition of “clear procedural error.” In addition, the determination of whether a procedural error 
occurred has always been made by either the Personnel Commission or the Oneida Judiciary Trial 
Court. This allows for presentation of evidence by both sides and it provides written opinions that 
other supervisors can use to guide their disciplines in the future. Allowing EEO Officers to simply 
void disciplines eliminates these important due process and notice functions. 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): In addition, the Oneida 
Judiciary Trial Court and Appellate have subject matter and personal jurisdiction over the Nation’s 
employment matters. It is both clumsy and redundant to add an additional layer of what essentially 
amounts to judicial review by inserting EEO ability to void disciplines issued by supervisor and 
potentially upheld by area managers for “clear procedural errors.” Moreover, a “clear procedural 
error” is not the standard the Judiciary is required to use when evaluating whether a discipline 
should be overturned for a procedural irregularity. The Judiciary must consider whether, 

222 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 139 of 184 
 

“[p]rocedural irregularities were exhibited during the appeal process that were harmful to one of 
the parties to the grievance.” OPPP, Section V, 3.C(2)(e)ii. It is the Trial Court who should 
evaluate if there was a deviation of process and, if there was, whether the deviation was significant 
enough to merit overturning the discipline.40 A procedural error alone is not enough for the 
Judiciary to overturn, but is enough for the EEO to void a discipline. To avoid confusion, the 
proposed amendments should maintain the Oneida Judiciary’s jurisdiction over employment 
matters and avoid a costly duplication of services. The Oneida Judiciary should be the only party 
outside of the chain of command that is able to overturn a disciplinary action, whether that be for 
lack of support of the discipline or a failure of process. 
 
40 A statistical review of Oneida Judiciary Trial Court decisions from 2018-2022 shows that 83% 
of the published employee grievance decisions are based, in whole or in part, on issues of 
procedural error. The proposed amendments are not filling a gap in the employee grievance 
process, as the Oneida Trial Court addresses questions of procedural error in almost every one of 
its grievance decisions. The reasons to keep procedural error issues with the Trial Court are 
discussed elsewhere in this memo. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1128-1131: The Human 
Resources Department may void a disciplinary action for clear procedural errors.  
 
Shouldn’t voiding a disciplinary action issued by a supervisor be left up to the Area Manager or 
the Judiciary in the grievance process? At the Judiciary only procedural errors that harmed one of 
the parties are overturned. This states that EEO can void for any clear procedural error. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern regarding the proposed amendments to section V.D.2.d.8. of the 
Law which allows the Human Resources Department to void a disciplinary action for clear 
procedural errors due to the fact that the determination that a clear procedural error is undefined 
in the proposed amendments to the Law, and previously an original hearing body of the Nation – 
such as the Oneida Personnel Commission or Judiciary – has been the entity making the decisions 
as to what constitutes a clear procedural error.  
 
Section V.D.2.d.8. of the Law provides that the Human Resources Department may void a 
disciplinary action for clear procedural errors. An EEO Officer is delegated authority to void a 
disciplinary action taken by a supervisor for clear procedural errors, while the Human Resources 
Executive Director, or designee, is delegated authority to void a disciplinary action taken by an 
EEO Officer for clear procedural errors. Notification of a voided disciplinary action is required to 
be sent to the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee which identifies the procedural error. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider whether the Human Resources Department 
may void a disciplinary action for clear procedural errors. The Legislative Operating Committee 
may make one of the following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.2.d.8. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and provide that the 
Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary action for clear procedural errors. 
If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination then the Legislative 

223 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 140 of 184 
 

Operating Committee should consider adding in greater clarification as to what constitutes 
a clear procedural error.  

2. Section V.D.2.d.8. of the Law should be eliminated, and the Human Resources Department 
should not be able to void a disciplinary action for clear procedural errors. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 152 – Notice and Accountability: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

9) For any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary 
procedures, the EEO Department shall send a letter to the Area 
Manager. 

a) The letter shall notify the Area Manager that the 
supervisor violated the disciplinary process by being negligent 
in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to 
appropriately discipline an employee. 
b) The letter shall address the appropriate accountability of 
the supervisor. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  
9) For any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures, the EEO 
Department shall send a letter to the Area Manager. 

a) The letter shall notify the Area Manager that the supervisor violated the disciplinary 
process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to 
appropriately discipline an employee. 
b) The letter shall address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1136-41). 

 
In Section V.D.2.d.9), the draft amendments appear to replace current accountability measures – 
namely, allowing an area manager or an Oneida Court to overturn a faulty discipline – with 
accountability in the form of more discipline as recommended by the EEO Department. The 
proposed amendments do not identify what “appropriate accountability” will be addressed in the 
letter to the area manager and, further, do not identify consequences if the area manager does not 
follow up as recommended. It is not clear what philosophy prompts the imposition of more 
discipline as an answer to improper discipline. This form of accountability should be reconsidered. 
 
Response 

224 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 141 of 184 
 

 
The commenters express concern that section V.D.2.d.9. of the Law addresses a supervisor’s 
failure to follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures with additional discipline and ask the 
Legislative Operating Committee to reconsider the imposition of discipline as an answer to 
improper discipline. 
 
Section V.D.2.d.9 of the Law provides that for any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s 
disciplinary procedures, the EEO Department shall send a letter to the Area Manager. The letter 
shall notify the Area Manager that the supervisor violated the disciplinary process by being 
negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately discipline an 
employee and address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider a supervisor’s failure to follow the Nation’s 
disciplinary procedures should result in the discipline of that supervisor. The Legislative Operating 
Committee may make one of the following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.2.d.9 of the Law should remain as currently drafted and require that for any 
supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures, the EEO Department 
shall send a letter to the Area Manager notifying that the supervisor violated the 
disciplinary process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and 
failure to appropriately discipline an employee and address the appropriate accountability 
of the supervisor. 

2. Section V.D.2.d.9 of the Law should be eliminated from the Law and the Legislative 
Operating Committee should consider other means of addressing a supervisor who fails to 
follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 153 – Clarifying Notice: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
a. General 

1) An employee who receives a disciplinary action which they 
believe is improper may grieve the action.  
2) The grievance process shall be conducted with utmost 
consideration for due process within the time limits set forth herein but 
will allow and account for recognized holidays of the Nation and 
unforeseen circumstances, such as illnesses, deaths in the immediate 
family of principals.   

b. Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities 
Complaints.  An employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO 

225 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 142 of 184 
 

Violation or Illegal Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by 
filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) days from the 
employee’s receipt of the discipline. 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
a) The employee (petitioner) shall file an appeal in writing 
with the Area Manager and the Human Resources Executive 
Director, or designee, within ten (10) working days from the day 
the employee receives the disciplinary action. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section V.D.3., Grievance 
The proposed amendments divide employee grievance appeals according to the basis for the 
grieved discipline. Disciplines that arise from EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints 
would be appealed directly to the Oneida Judiciary – Trial Court. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, 
lines 1150-53). Disciplines based on Employee Disagreement Complaints and Unsatisfactory 
Work Performance would be appealed to the area manager and then to the Oneida Personnel 
Commission.22 

 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
a. General 

1) An employee who receives a disciplinary action which they believe is 
improper may grieve the action. 
2) The grievance process shall be conducted with utmost consideration for 
due process within the time limits set forth herein but will allow and account 
for recognized holidays of the Nation and unforeseen circumstances, such 
as illnesses, deaths in the immediate family of principals. 

b. Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints. An 
employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal 
Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the 
Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline. 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and Unsatisfactory 
Work Performance. The grievance process for discipline that resulted from an 
employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work performance shall be 
governed by the following guidelines23: (HR Interpretation, 8-19-2011) (HR 
Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
a) The employee (petitioner) shall file an appeal in writing with the 
Area Manager and the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee, within ten (10) working days from the day the employee 
receives the disciplinary action. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1142-62). 

 

226 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 143 of 184 
 

Both employees and management have an interest in clarifying when notice is received, especially 
when the date of receipt determines the timeline for appeal. Opening the OPPP to comprehensive 
amendment provides an opportunity to emphasize that an employee cannot avoid service of a 
disciplinary action (or other notice) by refusing to retrieve or sign for their mail. (See e.g. Oneida 
Bingo & Casino v. Metoxen, 97-EP-0018, 4 O.N.R. 3-1, 2 (January 8, 1998) (“A party cannot 
avoid the time lines set forth in the Blue Book by intentionally refusing to sign for the certified 
letter that serves as notice.”) For example, Section V.D.3.c.1)a) could state that an employee who 
does not retrieve or sign for their mail will be deemed in receipt of the discipline on the date that 
delivery was first attempted.24 

 

22 The Oneida Personnel Commission is not taking grievance appeals at this time. The Oneida 
Nation website shows only 1 active Commissioner. Until the Personnel Commission is prepared 
to exercise hearing authority, all grievance appeals under current OPPP V.D.6 are brought to the 
Oneida Trial Court. See BC Resolution #03-13-19-C. 
23 Although “guidelines” is in the current OPPP, the LOC may want to replace it with 
“requirements” for a stronger statement. 
24 Similar language regarding a timeline that begins upon actual receipt is found at proposed OPPP 
V.D.3.b)2), regarding filing a grievance appeal with the Oneida Personnel Commission. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1488-92). Both sections would benefit from clarification regarding 
when notice is deemed received. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters ask the Legislative Operating Committee to provide greater clarification as to 
when notice is received during the grievance procedures. The commenters express that amending 
the Law will allow the Legislative Operating Committee to address problematic behavior that 
occurs, such as an employee avoiding service of a disciplinary action (or other notice) by refusing 
to retrieve or sign for their mail. The commenters request the Legislative Operating Committee 
consider including language in section V.D.3.c.1.a that provides that an employee who does not 
retrieve or sign for their mail will be deemed in receipt of the discipline on the date that delivery 
was first attempted. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee consider revising the Law to include 
greater clarification as to what constitutes receipt of the disciplinary action. The following 
revisions to the Law are recommended based on these comments: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
b. Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints.  
An employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal 
Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the 
Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline. 

1)  An employee who does not retrieve or sign for their mail will be deemed 
in receipt of the discipline on the date that delivery was first attempted. 

c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 

227 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 144 of 184 
 

resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR Interpretation, 8-
19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
a) The employee (petitioner) shall file an appeal in writing with 
the Area Manager and the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee, within ten (10) working days from the day the employee 
receives the disciplinary action. 

i)  An employee who does not retrieve or sign for their mail 
will be deemed in receipt of the discipline on the date that 
delivery was first attempted. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 154 through 155 – Area Manager Response to a Grievance Appeal: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
b) The Area Manager, for all disciplinary action 
investigations, shall have ten (10) working days from the receipt 
of the employee’s appeal to complete the investigation.  

i. The supervisor shall meet with the following 
individuals during the disciplinary action investigation: 

1. Employee filing the appeal of the 
discipline; 
2. Supervisor who issued the discipline; and  
3. Any other witnesses mentioned in the 
appeal that were not mentioned in the 
disciplinary action. 

ii. Meetings between the Area Manager and the 
employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 
iii. The Area Manager shall document all attempts 
made to meet with an employee. If an employee is 
unavailable to meet within the grievance timelines, the 

228 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 145 of 184 
 

Area Manager shall move forward with the investigation 
based on the information they have. 
iv. One (1) extension of no more than five (5) working 
days may be requested of and granted by the Human 
Resources Executive Director, or designee, at their 
discretion. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

i. The employee may seek the assistance of an advocate at any time after the 
disciplinary action has been issued in order to aid in the resolution of the grievance 
process.25 

b) The Area Manager, for all disciplinary action investigations, shall have ten (10) working 
days from the receipt of the employee’s appeal to complete the investigation. 

i. The supervisor26 shall meet with the following individuals during the disciplinary 
action investigation: 

1. Employee filing the appeal of the discipline; 
2. Supervisor who issued the discipline; and 
3. Any other witnesses mentioned in the appeal that were not mentioned in 
the disciplinary action. 

ii. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur in person, 
through video conferencing, or by telephone. 
iii. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with an employee. 
If an employee is unavailable to meet within the grievance timelines, the Area 
Manager shall move forward with the investigation based on the information they 
have. 
iv. One (1) extension of no more than five (5) working days may be requested of 
and granted by the Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, at their 
discretion. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1163-83). 
 

Under the proposed amendments, the area manager who responds to a grievance appeal must 
follow a process similar to that placed on the supervisor in proposed OPPP V.D.1.c., regarding 
supervisor investigation and resolution of Employee Disagreements. The legal issues presented by 
proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.1)b) are similar to those identified Pages 9-15 this memo. 
 
25 This section is duplicative when compared to proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.2)i)ii. As described in a 
subsequent section of the memo, I proposed deleting V.D.3.c.2)i)ii (which should be renumbered 
in any case, since it uses “i” as both the lowercase letter i and as small Roman Numeral i). 
26 This should probably be “area manager” rather than supervisor. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1169-1170: The supervisor 
shall meet with the following individuals during the disciplinary investigation.  
 
Since this section is about appealing to the Area Manager, as above this sentence is states, “The 
Area Manager for all disciplinary action investigations, shall have ten (10) working days form the 
receipt of the employee’s appeal to complete the investigation. Then in line 1169-1170 it states the 

229 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 146 of 184 
 

supervisor shall meet with the employee, the supervisor and any witnesses. I believe Line 1169 
should state, The area manager shall meet with the following individuals… 
 
Response 
 
The commenters ask the Legislative Operating Committee to consider the concerns shared 
regarding section V.D.1.c of the Law again in reference to section V.D.3.c.1. of the Law. It is 
recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee review these concerns in reference to 
section V.D.3.c.1.b. of the Law.  
 
The commenters also provide that the use of the term “supervisor” in section V.D.3.c.1.b.i of the 
Law should be revised to Area Manager. The following revision to the Law is recommended based 
on this comment: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelinesrequirements: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
b) The Area Manager, for all disciplinary action investigations, 
shall have ten (10) working days from the receipt of the employee’s 
appeal to complete the investigation.  

i. The Area Manager supervisor shall meet with the 
following individuals during the disciplinary action 
investigation: 

1. Employee filing the appeal of the discipline; 
2. Supervisor who issued the discipline; and  
3. Any other witnesses mentioned in the appeal 
that were not mentioned in the disciplinary action. 

ii. Meetings between the Area Manager and the 
employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 
iii. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made 
to meet with an employee. If an employee is unavailable to 
meet within the grievance timelines, the Area Manager shall 
move forward with the investigation based on the 
information they have. 
iv. One (1) extension of no more than five (5) working 
days may be requested of and granted by the Human 
Resources Executive Director, or designee, at their 
discretion. 

 
LOC Consideration 

230 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 147 of 184 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Comment 156 – Accountability of Area Manager in Grievance Process: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
d) The Area Manager shall file their decision with the 
employee and the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee. The decision of the Area Manager shall include:  

i. a reason for the decision; 
ii. an explanation of the decision; and  
iii. the action to be taken as a result of it. 

e) An Area Manager who does not comply with the 
disciplinary action grievance procedure may be subject to 
discipline. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written):  

d) The Area Manager shall file27 their decision with the employee and the Human 
Resources Executive Director, or designee. The decision of the Area Manager shall 
include: 

i. a reason for the decision; 
ii. an explanation of the decision; and 
iii. the action to be taken as a result of it. 

e) An Area Manager who does not comply with the disciplinary action grievance procedure 
may be subject to discipline. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1191-98). 

 
The proposed amendments again suggest disciplinary action for area managers who do not follow 
the grievance process. This raises several concerns, which are addressed on Page 12 of this memo. 
In addition, area managers are entrusted with greater levels of responsibility in the organization. 
A threat of discipline for not following the grievance process seems counter to the level of trust 
otherwise granted to employees at this level of management. It is not clear what philosophy 
underlies this proposed change. 
 
27 Filing documents implies that such documents are deposited with a court or other hearing body. 
Where the area manager is providing copies of their decision to certain individuals, they should be 
required to “send” or “provide” their decision to the employee and HRD Executive Director. 

231 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 148 of 184 
 

 
Response 
 
The commenters express concern with the proposed amendments again suggesting disciplinary 
action for Area Managers who do not follow the grievance process. 
 
Section V.D.3.c.1.e. of the Law provides that an Area Manager who does not comply with the 
disciplinary action grievance procedure may be subject to discipline.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider whether an Area Manager’s failure to follow 
the Nation’s grievance procedures should result in the discipline of that Area Manager. The 
Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.3.c.1.e. of the Law should remain as currently drafted and provide that 
an Area Manager who does not comply with the disciplinary action grievance procedure 
may be subject to discipline  
2. Section V.D.3.c.1.e. of the Law should be eliminated from the Law and the 
Legislative Operating Committee should consider other means of addressing an Area 
Manager who fails to follow the Nation’s grievance procedures. 

 
Additionally, the commenter expresses that the use of the term “filing” in section V.D.3.c.1.d. 
erroneously conveys that such documents are deposited with a court or other hearing body, and 
another word should be used instead. In reference to this comment, the following revision to the 
Law is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR Interpretation, 8-
19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

1) Appeal to the Area Manager 
d) The Area Manager shall file provide their decision with the 
employee and the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee. The decision of the Area Manager shall include:  

i. a reason for the decision; 
ii. an explanation of the decision; and  
iii. the action to be taken as a result of it. 

e) An Area Manager who does not comply with the disciplinary 
action grievance procedure may be subject to discipline. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 

232 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 149 of 184 
 

 
Comment 157 – Right to an Advocate during the Grievance Process: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel 
i) Hearing Procedure 

ii. The petitioner shall have the right to be 
represented by an advocate, at their own expense. The 
respondent and/or Area Manager who is party to the 
grievance action shall have access to an advocate for 
consultation and/or representation.  Should the 
petitioner engage outside professional legal 
representation, the respondent and/or Area Manager 
shall have access to the professional legal representation. 

1. Should the petitioner and their 
representative both fail to appear for any 
scheduled hearing without justifiable cause, the 
decision of the Area Manager shall be upheld, and 
the grievance dismissed. 
2. Should the respondent and their 
representative both fail to appear for any 
scheduled hearing without justifiable cause, the 
decision of the Area Manager shall be overturned. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): At proposed Section 
V.D.3.c.2.i)ii., the amendments retain current OPPP language regarding an employee’s right to an 
advocate. However, this section has caused confusion throughout the grievance process. Since this 
right would be described in proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.1)a)i., the language at V.D.3.c.2.i)ii can be 
deleted. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that section V.D.3.c.2.i.ii. of the Law is duplicative of section 
V.D.3.c.1.a.i. of the Law.  
 
Section V.D.3.c.2.i.ii. of the Law provides that the petitioner shall have the right to be represented 
by an advocate, at their own expense. The respondent and/or Area Manager who is party to the 
grievance action shall have access to an advocate for consultation and/or representation.  Should 
the petitioner engage outside professional legal representation, the respondent and/or Area 

233 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 150 of 184 
 

Manager shall have access to the professional legal representation. Earlier in the Law, section 
V.D.3.c.1.a.i. of the Law provides that the employee may seek the assistance of an advocate at any 
time after the disciplinary action has been issued in order to aid in the resolution of the grievance 
process. 
 
Due to the fact that section V.D.3.c.2.i.ii. of the Law is duplicative of section V.D.3.c.1.a.i. of the 
Law, the following revision to the Law is recommended: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR Interpretation, 8-
19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel 
i) Hearing Procedure 

ii. The petitioner shall have the right to be represented 
by an advocate, at their own expense. The respondent and/or 
Area Manager who is party to the grievance action shall have 
access to an advocate for consultation and/or representation.  
Should the petitioner engage outside professional legal 
representation, the respondent and/or Area Manager shall 
have access to the professional legal representation. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 158 – Oneida Personnel Commission Unable to Perform Duties: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR 
Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel 
k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfil its 
responsibility to hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, 
then the employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to 
the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial 

234 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 151 of 184 
 

Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the 
Area Manager’s decision. 

 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): The amendments would add 
language regarding where grievance appeals shall be filed if the Oneida Personnel Commission is 
not active, specifically: 

k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfill its responsibility to hear an 
appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then the employee may appeal the Area Manager’s 
decision to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court within 
ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1296-1300). 

 
The language of proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.2)k) should reflect the language of BC Resolution #03-
13-19-C regarding the Personnel Commission’s capacity and readiness to hearing grievance 
appeals. Use of the phrase “unable to fulfill its responsibility to hear an appeal” permits filing 
grievance appeals at the Oneida Judiciary-Trial Court outside of the circumstances identified in 
BC Resolution #03-13-19-C. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters request that section V.D.3.c.2.k. of the Law be amended to reflect the language 
of resolution BC-03-13-19-C regarding the Oneida Personnel Commission’s capacity to hear 
grievance appeals.  
 
Section V.D.3.c.2.k. of the Law provides that if the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to 
fulfill its responsibility to hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then the employee may 
appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the 
Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. 
 
Resolution BC-03-13-19-C, Amending Resolution BC-09-26-18-F Rescission of the Dissolution of 
the Oneida Personnel Commission and Related Emergency Amendments in Accordance with 
General Tribal Council’s August 27, 2018 Directive, provides: 
 

“NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in recognition of the time 
necessary to appoint members to the Oneida Personnel Commission and allow 
members to obtain the necessary required training, the Judiciary – Trial Court shall 
continue to hear employee grievance matters until the Oneida Personnel 
Commission is prepared to begin exercising hearing authority. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Judiciary – Trial Court 
shall develop and provide training and/or ensure training is provided to members 
of the Oneida Personnel Commission on hearing processes and procedures. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Oneida Personnel 
Commission shall be prepared to exercise hearing authority over employee 
grievance matters when the Oneida Personnel Commission informs the Oneida 

235 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 152 of 184 
 

Business Committee that the minimum number of Oneida Personnel Commission 
members have been appointed and have obtained all required trainings. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Nation’s Human 
Resources Department shall draft an interpretation of Section V.D. of the Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures which clarifies that in regard to employee 
grievance matters the term “Oneida Personnel Commission” shall be interpreted to 
mean the “Judiciary – Trial Court” until such time that the Oneida Personnel 
Commission informs the Oneida Business Committee that they are prepared to 
begin exercising hearing authority.” 

 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether section V.D.3.c.2.k. of the Law 
should reflect the language used in resolution BC-03-13-19-C. The Legislative Operating 
Committee may make one of the following considerations: 

1. Section V.D.3.c.2.k. of the Law should remain as currently drafted and provide that if the 
Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfill its responsibility to hear an appeal of an 
Area Manager’s decision, then the employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to 
the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) days 
from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. 

2. Section V.D.3.c.2.k. of the Law should be revised to reflect the language that is provided 
for in resolution BC-03-13-19-C. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination then the following revision to the Law is recommended: 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCE 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and 
Unsatisfactory Work Performance.  The grievance process for discipline that 
resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance shall be governed by the following guidelines: (HR Interpretation, 8-
19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 

2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel 
k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission cannot exercise 
hearing authority due to a lacks of the minimum number of 
appointed Oneida Personnel Commission members who have 
obtained all required trainings, is unable to fulfil its responsibility to 
hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then the employee 
may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida Nation 
Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) 
days from the employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 

236 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 153 of 184 
 

Comment 159 – Sections VI through Section IX: 
 
Peggy Van Gheem, Krystal John, Kelly McAndrews (written): Section VI, Safety and Health 
Section VII, Program/Enterprise Rules & Regulations 
Section VIII, Recordkeeping 
Section IX, Privacy and Confidentiality of Employee Records 
 
The proposed amendments to the OPPP do not make any changes to Sections VI through IX. There 
are no outstanding legal issues presented by these sections that require amendment. 
 
Response 
 
The commenters provide that the proposed amendments to the Law do not make any changes to 
sections VI through IX. There is no action needed for consideration by the Legislative Operating 
Committee based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 160 through 161 – Unsatisfactory Work Performance: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process correcting unacceptable and 
problematic behaviors in employees. Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for 
protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment. In all cases of grievance and 
discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious good sense 
to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives, and handle 
grievances 

2. Discipline 
a. Initiation of Disciplinary Action.  

1) Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an immediate 
supervisor for the purpose of correcting unsatisfactory work 
performance or as the resolution of an Employee Disagreement 
complaint investigation.   

 
Tina Jorgensen (oral): With the complaint process, what if a supervisor becomes aware of an 
issue - and it's not really considered a complaint, does it still have to go through EEO? 
 
Tina Jorgensen (written): QUESTION: What if a Supervisor becomes aware of an issue and it 
is not really a complaint but could result in discipline? Does EEO need to be informed? What is 
the role of EEO in these cases? I don’t agree EEO should take on the responsibility of the 
Supervisor. I do agree EEO should be involved as FYI and offer assistance with the investigation. 

237 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 154 of 184 
 

 
Response 
 
The commenter questions if a supervisor has to go through the EEO Department if they become 
aware of an issue, that has not been made through a formal complaint.  
 
Section V.D.2.a.1. of the Law provides that disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an immediate 
supervisor for the purpose of correcting unsatisfactory work performance or as the resolution of 
an Employee Disagreement complaint investigation. Section V.D.2.c.2. of the Law provides a list 
of examples of behaviors that may constitute unsatisfactory work performance, including issues 
with work performance, attendance and punctuality, use of property, and personal actions and 
appearances. Therefore, a supervisor has the authority to address unsatisfactory work performance 
even in the absence of a formal complaint made about the unsatisfactory work performance.  
 
If the supervisor becomes aware of a situation that would fall under the provisions of the Law 
regarding an EEO Violation or an Illegal Activities complaint if a complaint was filed, then the 
responsibility to investigate the complaint would lie with the EEO Department. 
 
There is no action needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
Comment 162 – Adoption by the General Tribal Council: 
 
Racquel Hill (oral): Racquel Hill. My question is in regards to the reason why this needs to go to 
the General Tribal Council for the approval. I know that it's understood that it's always been done 
this way, but does it need to be? Now, this is basically day-to-day business and it's in regards to 
the organization. So, that is the question, and I'm wondering if criteria will be set and the things 
that GTC needs to approve going forward. Thank you. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions why the proposed amendments to the Law need to be adopted by the 
General Tribal Council.  
 
Amendments to the Law have historically been adopted by the General Tribal Council. The 
Nation’s Ten Day Notice Policy requires that any action to over rule previous passed motions or 
resolutions made by the General Tribal Council shall require a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of 
the Oneida General Tribal Council. [1 O.C. 110.3-1(a)(3)]. 
 
There is no action needed by the Legislative Operating Committee based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 

238 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 155 of 184 
 

 
 
 
Comment 163 – Oneida Nation School Board’s Authority to Process Grievances: 
 
Sharon Mousseau (written): Good afternoon,  Having reviewed the Oneida Personnel Policies 
and procedures amendments, I wanted to comment regarding the Oneida Nation School System 
and how our MOA and SOP for Grievance Process may interact with the newly updated process.  
 
While the MOA is old, being signed in March of 1988, although it can not be amended except by 
the Oneida General Tribal Council or at the express direction of the Oneida General Tribal Council 
and shall be effect upon ratification by the Oneida General Tribal Council. This is the first 
attachment.  
 
The second attachment is an updated signed ONSS MOA Grievance Process, which was approved 
by the School Board on Jan. 4, 2021.  
 
On page 13 of the OPPP, section Grievance, should there be a note of the School Board’s authority 
or process with grievances? Or would this process be included with the language included on the 
top of page 14 when there is a reference to the boards, committees and commissions? So when the 
process is replaced by the Government Administrative Office, would the school then have the 
process replaced by the Oneida Nation School Board? 
 
We have worked with the BIE on processes and procedures for the School Board to follow and I 
just don’t want their authority to be taken away until we do change the MOA. Which is long 
overdue to be updated.  
 
Thanks for your time and efforts with the public comment period for the OPPP. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions whether section V.D.3. of the Law should reference the fact that the 
Oneida Nation School Board has a MOA and various standard operating procedures which replace 
section V.D. of the Law. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee conduct a thorough review of the 
attached materials and determine if the Law needs to address the fact that the Oneida Nation School 
Board does not currently utilize section V.D. of the Law. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 164 – Simplification of Language 

239 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 156 of 184 
 

 
Lisa Rauschenbach (written): I do agree with their cut back of wordiness in the policy too. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides support for cutting back on the wordiness of the Law. There is no action 
by the Legislative Operating Committee needed based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 165 – Involvement of the Oneida Business Committee in the Complaint Process: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation 
and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days, the 
EEO Department shall send notice to the General Manager level 
position in that chain of command. If the General Manager level 
position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO 
Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level 
position that the complaint was not addressed within the 
additional ten (10) working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the General Manager 
level position that the Area Manager violated the 
complaint process by being negligent in the performance 
of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 
investigate a complaint. 
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate 
accountability of the Area Manager. 
iv. The notice shall address the General Manager 
level position’s responsibility to complete the complaint 
investigation and reach a resolution. 

1. Investigation Procedure for all General 
Manager Level Positions, not the Oneida Business 
Committee 

a. The General Manager level 
position shall complete the investigation 
and reach a resolution within ten (10) 

240 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 157 of 184 
 

working days of receiving the notice from 
EEO. 
b. The General Manager level 
position’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the General Manager 
level position receives the complaint from 
the EEO Department. 
c. The General Manager level 
position shall meet with the employee 
filing the complaint as well as all other 
parties mentioned in the complaint. 

i. Meetings between the 
General Manager level position 
and the employees may occur in 
person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 
ii. The General Manager level 
position shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an 
employee. If the complaining 
employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, 
the General Manager level position 
shall move forward with the 
investigation based on the 
information they have. 

d. When the General Manager level 
position’s investigation is complete, the 
General Manager level position shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually 
determine an appropriate resolution. 

i. If the General Manager 
level position cannot come to a 
mutual determination with the 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate 
resolution for the complaint, then 
the General Manager level position 
shall provide written justification 
for non-agreement on the 
resolution to the Human Resources 
Executive Director. 

e. The final resolution shall be sent to 
the EEO Department for filing and 
reporting purposes. 

241 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 158 of 184 
 

f. The General Manager level 
position’s resolution of the complaint shall 
be final.  

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida 
Business Committee 

a. When the GM level position of a 
complaint was the Area Manager in the 
complaint, then the Oneida Business 
Committee shall complete the 
investigation and reach a resolution in 
accordance with their standard operating 
procedure regarding complaints. 

 
Lisa Rauschenbach (written): Per the 1932 resolution the Oneida Business Committee shall not 
be involved in day to day business, you are proposing the OBC in the complaint process, this is 
ridiculous. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that the Oneida Business Committee should not be involved in the 
complaint process, as that constitutes involvement in day-to-day business. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.f. of the Law provides that the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation 
and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice 
to the General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the General Manager level 
position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the notice to the 
Oneida Business Committee. Section V.D.1.c.1.f.iv. of the Law provides that the notice shall 
address the General Manager level position’s responsibility to complete the complaint 
investigation and reach a resolution. Section V.D.1.c.1.f.iv.2.a. of the Law then provides that when 
the GM level position of a complaint was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the Oneida 
Business Committee shall complete the investigation and reach a resolution in accordance with 
their standard operating procedure regarding complaints. 
 
The Oneida Business is only included in the complaint procedures found in section V.D.1.c.1 of 
the Law if the Oneida Business Committee when acting in the capacity of serving as the General 
Manager level position in that chain of command. This is a role that the Oneida Business 
Committee already provides as the supervisor of various direct reports. 
 
It is common practice that the Oneida Business Committee oversee and supervise various direct 
reports. Resolution BC-02-08-23-C, Setting Supervision and Management of Direct Reports to the 
Oneida Business Committee and Professional Support Staff, is the most recent resolution to 
identify the various direct reports of the Nation and identify that the Oneida Business Committee 
supervises the various direct reports due to the position, the duties, or the services provided by the 
direct reports. 
 
There is no action by the Legislative Operating Committee required based on this comment. 

242 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 159 of 184 
 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 166 – Use of the Term Area Manager: 
 
Jackie Smith (written): My feedback/comments regarding the proposed amendments to OPPP 
are Below: 
1. Eliminate the use of the term “area manager” in the proposed changes as it created confusion 
between what position/employee is the actual area manager and what position/employee is the area 
manager in the disciplinary process 

a. There was confusion by the court when this term was used in a disciplinary hearing. My 
title and role are area manager; however, the disciplinary process area manager was the 
general manager. 

i. I was requested by the court to attend an appeal hearing as the area manager, but 
mistakenly was named the area manager in the disciplinary process terminology. 
ii. This mistake cost the tribe money as there were duplicate managers required to 
attend an appeal hearing by the Oneida court. 

 
Response 
 
The commenter requests the Legislative Operating Committee consider eliminating the use of the 
term “Area Manager” within in the Law, as it creates confusion with employee positions that have 
the title “Area Manager.” 
 
The term “Area Manager” is used within the Law to mean the supervisor of a supervisor, or an 
individual who is two (2) levels of supervision in the chain of command above the employee. An 
actual definition for the term “Area Manager” is not included in the Law itself. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may consider whether the use of the term “Area Manager” 
creates confusion with employee positions that have the term “Area Manager” in their title, and 
therefore should be replaced with another term. If the Legislative Operating Committee decides to 
continue the use of the term Area Manager, it is recommended that the Legislative Operating 
Committee include a definition for the term.  
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 167 – Organization of HRD: 
 

243 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 160 of 184 
 

Jackie Smith (written): 2. Ensure there is an appropriate and balanced allocation of power to the 
Oneida Human Resource Department (HRD) 

a. HRD in an internal service provider whose purpose is usually to support programs or 
business entities in the delivery of services 
b. HRD executives typically report to a General Manager or CEO 
c. Currently, HRD is treated as a standalone entity in the Oneida with a direct report the 
government. This reduces the overall effectiveness and connection to the function of being 
an internal service provider. 

i. This creates issues as HRD is not directly connected to the needs of the 
organization 

 
Response 
 
The commenter requests the Legislative Operating Committee consider the overall organization 
of the Human Resources Department. The commenter expresses concern that the organization of 
the Human Resources Department as a non-divisional entity, with the Human Resources Executive 
Director as a direct report to the Oneida Business Committee creates separation of the Human 
Resources Department from the rest of the organization.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine if the overall organization of the Human 
Resources Department needs to be addressed. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
Comment 168 – Appeal Rights of Temporary Employees: 
 
SECTION II - RECRUITING 
C. EMERGENCY/TEMPORARY POSITIONS 

3. Recruitment/Selection 
g. Temporary employees that are terminated due to documented cause 
will have the right to the appeal process as outlined in the Personnel Policies 
and Procedures. 

 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): 2) To be consistent in practice 
with probation employees, it is recommended: To remove appeals rights for Temporary 
employees.  

172 Temporary employees can be that are terminated due to documented cause will have 
the 
173 right to the appeal process as outlined in the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
Response 
 

244 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 161 of 184 
 

The commenter requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider removing the right of 
a temporary employee to appeal a termination.  
 
Section II.C.3.g. of the Law provides that temporary employees that are terminated due to 
documented cause will have the right to the appeal process as outlined in the Personnel Policies 
and Procedures. The commenter requests that temporary employees be handled in the same manner 
as employees on their original probation. Section III.D.1. of the Law provides that probationary 
employees may be terminated for cause at any time during the probation period, and that 
termination of an employee for cause during their original probationary period shall not be subject 
to appeal. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether a temporary employee should be 
allowed to appeal a termination. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the 
following determinations: 

1. Section II.C.3.g. of the Law should remain as currently drafted and provide that temporary 
employees that are terminated due to documented cause will have the right to the appeal 
process as outlined in the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

2. Section II.C.3.g. of the Law should be revised to remove the right of a temporary employee 
to appeal a termination. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this determination 
then the following revision is recommended: 
SECTION II - RECRUITING 
C. EMERGENCY/TEMPORARY POSITIONS 

3. Recruitment/Selection 
g. Temporary employees that are terminated due to documented cause 
will shall not have the right to the appeal the termination. process as outlined 
in the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 169 – General Manager Level Position Resolving a Complaint: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation 
and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days, the 
EEO Department shall send notice to the General Manager level 
position in that chain of command. If the General Manager level 
position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO 
Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

245 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 162 of 184 
 

i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level 
position that the complaint was not addressed within the 
additional ten (10) working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the General Manager 
level position that the Area Manager violated the 
complaint process by being negligent in the performance 
of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 
investigate a complaint. 
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate 
accountability of the Area Manager. 
iv. The notice shall address the General Manager 
level position’s responsibility to complete the complaint 
investigation and reach a resolution. 

1. Investigation Procedure for all General 
Manager Level Positions, not the Oneida Business 
Committee 

a. The General Manager level 
position shall complete the investigation 
and reach a resolution within ten (10) 
working days of receiving the notice from 
EEO. 
b. The General Manager level 
position’s ten (10) working day timeframe 
begins the day after the General Manager 
level position receives the complaint from 
the EEO Department. 
c. The General Manager level 
position shall meet with the employee 
filing the complaint as well as all other 
parties mentioned in the complaint. 

i. Meetings between the 
General Manager level position 
and the employees may occur in 
person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 
ii. The General Manager level 
position shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an 
employee. If the complaining 
employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, 
the General Manager level position 
shall move forward with the 
investigation based on the 
information they have. 

246 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 163 of 184 
 

d. When the General Manager level 
position’s investigation is complete, the 
General Manager level position shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually 
determine an appropriate resolution. 

i. If the General Manager 
level position cannot come to a 
mutual determination with the 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate 
resolution for the complaint, then 
the General Manager level position 
shall provide written justification 
for non-agreement on the 
resolution to the Human Resources 
Executive Director. 

e. The final resolution shall be sent to 
the EEO Department for filing and 
reporting purposes. 
f. The General Manager level 
position’s resolution of the complaint shall 
be final.  

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida 
Business Committee 

a. When the GM level position of a 
complaint was the Area Manager in the 
complaint, then the Oneida Business 
Committee shall complete the 
investigation and reach a resolution in 
accordance with their standard operating 
procedure regarding complaints. 

 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 859-895: Should just 
remove the 3rd level for the GM to investigate an employee complaint that EEO was not satisfied 
with how the supervisor or the Area Manager handled. This is too much. Should stick with current 
blue book complaint process of two levels of handling a complaint. A timeline is good to add but 
it shouldn’t keep going up the chain of command and jumping to the General Manager to address 
the complaint. Why is this necessary? 
 
If the purpose is to hold a supervisor or Area Manager or General Manager accountable for failing 
to address a complaint, or not addressing it properly according to EEO, then just state they may be 
held accountable for job negligence. All these steps are unnecessary. 
 
Response 
 

247 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 164 of 184 
 

The commenter provides that a General Manager level position should not be responsible to 
complete the complaint investigation and reach a resolution if the Area Manager fails to complete 
the investigation and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.f. of the Law provides that if the Area Manager fails to complete the 
investigation and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department 
shall send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the General 
Manager level position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send 
the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. Section V.D.1.c.1.f.iv. of the Law provides that the 
notice shall address the General Manager level position’s responsibility to complete the complaint 
investigation and reach a resolution.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider whether a General Manager level position 
should not be responsible to complete the complaint investigation and reach a resolution if the 
Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within the ten (10) 
working days. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following 
determinations: 

1. Section V.D.1.c.1.f. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and provide that if the 
Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within the ten 
(10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice to the General Manager level 
position in that chain of command. 

2. Section V.D.1.c.1.f. of the Law should be revised to remove the provision which requires 
the EEO Department shall send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain 
of command if the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 
complaint within the ten (10) working days. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comments 170 through 171 – Meetings Held through Video Conferencing or By Telephone: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to 
by the supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

1) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action 
form within five (5) working days of either:  

a) the resolution of a complaint from which it has been 
determined that disciplinary action is warranted, or 
b) the determination that disciplinary action is warranted 
based on the unsatisfactory work performance of an employee.  

248 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 165 of 184 
 

2) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary 
action form in its entirety and ensure the information contained on the 
form is complete and accurate. The disciplinary action form shall 
include at a minimum the following information:  

a) Statement of the behavior for which the disciplinary 
action is being taken;  
b) The time and date of its occurrence; and  
c) The specific policy section under which action is being 
taken. 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting 
with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the 
employee and identify a  corrective action. 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and 
the employee may occur in person, through video conferencing, 
or over the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall 
discuss the disciplinary action with the employee being 
disciplined to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary 
action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in 
light of the disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued 
unacceptable behavior. 

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action 
form. 

a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss 
the action with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to 
sign the disciplinary action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer 
shall so note this, with date of refusal, on the form. 

 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1085-1086: The meeting 
between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or over the telephone.  
 
Remove “through video conferencing, or over the telephone” This meeting cannot occur over 
video conferencing or over the phone. How can you go over a discipline form with an employee 
if they can’t see the form and they can’t physically sign the form as required as stated in line 1093. 
The meeting would need to occur in person during a termination notice so the supervisor can 
collect employee badge, keys or any other tribal property the employee has at the time of 
signatures. 
 
Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Line 1093: the employee being 
disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action form.  
 

249 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 166 of 184 
 

It’s required employee sign the discipline form, or they can refuse to sign the form and that’s 
documented on the discipline form. This important step cannot occur if the so-called meeting takes 
place as mentioned in line 1086, “through video conferencing or over the phone.” The meeting to 
issue a discipline to an employee needs to occur in person so the employee can physically sign the 
form or refuse to sign it. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that a meeting between a supervisor or EEO Officer and an employee 
regarding a discussion of the disciplinary action form should not be allowed to occur through video 
conferencing or by telephone as currently allowed in section V.D.2.d.3.a of the Law. The 
commenter expresses concern that an employee can not sign the disciplinary action form if the 
meeting does not occur in person. 
 
Section V.D.2.d.3.a of the Law provides that once a disciplinary action form has been filled out, 
the supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with the employee to discuss the 
disciplinary action form and identify a corrective action. The Law provides that the meeting 
between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or over the telephone. Section V.D.2.d.4. of the Law requires that the employee 
being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action form. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether a meeting with the employee to 
discuss the disciplinary action form may occur in person, through video conferencing, or over the 
telephone. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following determinations: 

1. Section V.D.2.d.3.a of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and provide that once 
a disciplinary action form has been filled out, the supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly 
hold a meeting with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form that occurs in 
person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 

2. Section V.D.2.d.3.a of the Law should be revised so that the meeting between the 
supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form is 
required to occur in person. If the Legislative Operating Committee makes this 
determination the following revision to the Law is recommended: 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

2. Discipline 
d. Disciplinary Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to by the 
supervisor or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

1) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action 
form within five (5) working days of either:  

a) the resolution of a complaint from which it has been 
determined that disciplinary action is warranted, or 
b) the determination that disciplinary action is warranted based 
on the unsatisfactory work performance of an employee.  

2) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary action 
form in its entirety and ensure the information contained on the form is 

250 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 167 of 184 
 

complete and accurate. The disciplinary action form shall include at a 
minimum the following information:  

a) Statement of the behavior for which the disciplinary action 
is being taken;  
b) The time and date of its occurrence; and  
c) The specific policy section under which action is being 
taken. 

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with 
the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and 
identify a  corrective action. 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the 
employee shall may occur in person, through video conferencing, or 
over the telephone. 
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall 
discuss the disciplinary action with the employee being disciplined 
to ensure that the employee: 

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary action; 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in light 
of the disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued 
unacceptable behavior. 

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action 
form. 

a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss the 
action with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to sign the 
disciplinary action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer shall so note 
this, with date of refusal, on the form. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 172 – Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 
a. General 

1) An employee who receives a disciplinary action which they 
believe is improper may grieve the action.  
2) The grievance process shall be conducted with utmost 
consideration for due process within the time limits set forth herein but 
will allow and account for recognized holidays of the Nation and 

251 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 168 of 184 
 

unforeseen circumstances, such as illnesses, deaths in the immediate 
family of principals.   

b. Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities 
Complaints.  An employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO 
Violation or Illegal Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by 
filing a complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) days from the 
employee’s receipt of the discipline. 
 

Lisa Duff on behalf of Gaming Senior Management (written): Grievance Line 1150-1153: 
Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints. An employee may appeal 
a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal Activities complaint to the Oneida 
Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Count within ten (10) days from the employees’ 
receipt of the discipline.  
 
First off, these lines should be removed as EEO Officers should not have authority to discipline 
employees they do not immediately supervise. This is not within EEO’s authority nor is it in their 
job description. HR is not the entity that should be disciplining employees as they are to remain 
neutral. Secondly, why is there no Area Manager to hear this appeal first? If you’re going to allow 
the EEO Officer to take disciplinary action, why does this just jump to the judiciary? Why is the 
Judiciary acting as the area manager? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions why an employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO 
Violation or Illegal Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with 
the Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline. 
 
Section V.D.3.b. of the Law provides that an employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from 
an EEO Violation or Illegal Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a 
complaint with the Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline. 
The determination that appeals of a discipline that resulted from a EEO Violation or Illegal 
Activities complaint be made directly to the Oneida Nation Judiciary, instead of to an Area 
Manager, was made based on the increased severity of the offenses.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider whether section V.D.3.b. of the Law should 
provide that an employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal 
Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court 
within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline, of if a process similar to that 
provided in section V.D.3.c.1. of the Law for the grievance process to an Area Manager for 
discipline that resulted from an employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work 
performance. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 

252 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 169 of 184 
 

 
 
Comments 173 through 174 – Need for Comprehensive Amendments: 
 
Mark Powless (written): Major changes have been proposed. If the organization is opening the 
document for major changes take a comprehensive approach and revise the entire document. 

o This is a great opportunity to change the approach to corrective action. Adopting an 
approach of investing in employee training, mentoring, and coaching will yield better 
results than focusing on how complaints are handled and any subsequent disciplinary 
actions. Generally, preventive efforts produce better long-term results than reactionary 
efforts. Our workforce is our community and our community is our workforce. Increasing 
training and education efforts will create a net benefit for our community. 
o Many sections of the document remained untouched even though they are not followed 
or have become obsolete. These sections should be removed or revised. 

 
Mark Powless (written): Major changes have been proposed. Perhaps a better stepped approach 
(before committing to major changes) is an initial internal procedure change to gather appropriate 
data for sound decision making. Require all employee complaints to be submitted to the Human 
Resources Department (HRD). HRD will route the complaints to the appropriate Supervisor. The 
Supervisor will investigate and follow through with appropriate actions. These results will be 
submitted in a summary report to HRD. After a period of one year the data can be assessed for 
areas of improvement and subsequent policy/procedure changes. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that opening the Law for amendments is a good opportunity to conduct 
a comprehensive review and develop comprehensive amendments to the entire law, instead of only 
addressing certain provisions of the Law. 
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee reconsider its strategy in narrowing 
the focus of the proposed amendments to only a could sections of the Law, and instead consider 
taking the time to conduct an in depth review of the Law so that comprehensive amendments can 
be developed.  
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
Comment 175 – General Comments Regarding the Employee Disagreements Complaints: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
1. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
a. General 
b. Types of Complaints 

253 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 170 of 184 
 

c. Complaint Procedures 
1) Employee Disagreements 

a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee 
may file a complaint with the EEO Department. 

b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the 
complaint. 

c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 
the complaint. 
i. The supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 

the supervisor receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 
ii. The supervisor shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as 

well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 
1. Meetings between the supervisor and employees may occur in 

person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 
2. The supervisor shall document all attempts made to meet with an 

employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the supervisor shall move forward 
with the investigation based on the information they have. 

iii. If the supervisor cannot complete the investigation within the ten (10) 
working day timeframe, the supervisor may request a one (1) time five 
(5) working day extension from the EEO Department. 

iv. When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution. 

1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then 
the supervisor shall provide written justification for non-agreement 
on the resolution to both the Area Manager and the Human 
Resources Executive Director. 

v. The supervisor shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager 
to ensure accountability. 

vi. The supervisor shall also send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO 
Department for filing and reporting purposes. 

d) If the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 
complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the Area Manager. 
i. The notice shall notify the Area Manager that the complaint was not 

addressed within the allotted ten (10) working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the Area Manager that the supervisor violated 

the complaint process by being negligent in the performance of their 
assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 

iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the 
supervisor. 

254 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 171 of 184 
 

1. If the Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the 
accountability of the supervisor, then the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of 
command. If the General Manager level position was the Area 
Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the 
notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

iv. The notice shall direct the Area Manager to complete the complaint 
investigation within ten (10) working days of receiving the notice from 
EEO. 

e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they 
may refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the 
Area Manager. 
i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 

Department shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the 
complaint. 

ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation. 

iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day 
after the Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO 
Department. 

iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint 
as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur 
in person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 

2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with 
an employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they have. 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area 
Manager shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an 
appropriate resolution. 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with 
the EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, 
then the Area Manager shall provide written justification for non-
agreement on the resolution to both the appropriate GM level 
position and the HRD Executive Director. 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO 
Department for filing and reporting purposes. 

vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final.  
f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 

complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall 
send notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of 
command. If the General Manager level position was the Area Manager in 
the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida 
Business Committee. 

255 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 172 of 184 
 

i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level position that the 
complaint was not addressed within the additional ten (10) working 
days. 

ii. The notice shall inform the General Manager level position that the 
Area Manager violated the complaint process by being negligent in the 
performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 
investigate a complaint. 

iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the Area 
Manager. 

iv. The notice shall address the General Manager level position’s 
responsibility to complete the complaint investigation and reach a 
resolution. 

1. Investigation Procedure for all General Manager Level Positions, 
not the Oneida Business Committee 
a. The General Manager level position shall complete the 

investigation and reach a resolution within ten (10) working 
days of receiving the notice from EEO. 

b. The General Manager level position’s ten (10) working day 
timeframe begins the day after the General Manager level 
position receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 

c. The General Manager level position shall meet with the 
employee filing the complaint as well as all other parties 
mentioned in the complaint. 
i. Meetings between the General Manager level position and 

the employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 

ii. The General Manager level position shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an employee. If the complaining 
employee or the employee being complained about is 
unavailable, the General Manager level position shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they 
have. 

d. When the General Manager level position’s investigation is 
complete, the General Manager level position shall contact the 
EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 
i. If the General Manager level position cannot come to a 

mutual determination with the EEO Officer as to an 
appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the General 
Manager level position shall provide written justification for 
non-agreement on the resolution to the Human Resources 
Executive Director. 

e. The final resolution shall be sent to the EEO Department for 
filing and reporting purposes. 

f. The General Manager level position’s resolution of the 
complaint shall be final.  

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida Business Committee 

256 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 173 of 184 
 

a. When the GM level position of a complaint was the Area 
Manager in the complaint, then the Oneida Business Committee 
shall complete the investigation and reach a resolution in 
accordance with their standard operating procedure regarding 
complaints. 

 
Mark Powless (written):  
1) Employee Disagreements 
970 a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee 
971 may file a complaint with the employee’s EEO Department.  
972 a.b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
973 Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint. 
974 b.c) The supervisor will shall have ten (10) working days to investigate the 
975 complaint and attempt to resolve the disagreement complaint. 
 
• This section does not allow for an assessment of merit of complaints. Will a complaint dating 
back 1 year be investigated? Will frivolous complaints be investigated? Additionally, how will 
complaints between employees in different Divisions or different Departments be handled. Will 
the investigating employee address both employees? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides a myriad of questions regarding the application of section V.D.1.c.1. of 
the Law regarding the complaint process for Employee Disagreement complaints. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.1. of the Law provides the process to be used for the investigation of Employee 
Disagreement complaints by a supervisor. Section V.D.1.c.1.c. of the Law provides that the 
supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve the complaint. When the 
supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually 
determine an appropriate resolution for the complaint. During the investigation it may be 
determined by a supervisor that a complaint lacks merit or is frivolous, and the resolution of the 
complaint may reflect such determination. The commenter questions if there is a statute of 
limitations as to when an employee may file a complaint, and currently, the Law is silent in regard 
to this matter.  
 
The commenter also questions how complaints between different employees will be handled under 
the Law. Section V.D.1.c.1.b. of the Law provides that the EEO Department shall provide the 
supervisor of the employee with the complaint. It is the intention of the Law that it is the supervisor 
of the employee that is the subject of the complaint that is responsible for conducting the 
investigation. It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee makes the following 
revision to the Law to clarify Section V.D.1.c.1.b. of the Law: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
2. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
a. General 
b. Types of Complaints 

257 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 174 of 184 
 

c. Complaint Procedures 
1) Employee Disagreements 

a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee may 
file a complaint with the EEO Department. 

b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
Department shall provide the complaint to the supervisor of the employee who 
is the subject of with the complaint. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 176 – Appeal of the Supervisors Resolution for Employee Disagreement 
Complaints: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
3. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
a. General 
b. Types of Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they 

may refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the 
Area Manager. 
i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 

Department shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the 
complaint. 

ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation. 

iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day 
after the Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO 
Department. 

iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint 
as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur 
in person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 

2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with 
an employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they have. 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area 
Manager shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an 
appropriate resolution. 

258 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 175 of 184 
 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with 
the EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, 
then the Area Manager shall provide written justification for non-
agreement on the resolution to both the appropriate GM level 
position and the HRD Executive Director. 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO 
Department for filing and reporting purposes. 

vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final.  
 
Mark Powless (written):  
1022 e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may 
1023 refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area 
1024 Manager. 
 
• Allowing appeals of employee disagreements may be difficult in practice. One reason is because 
frivolous complaints are currently allowed in the proposed amendment. To investigate a frivolous 
complaint twice will be a huge use of time and energy, and reduction in efficiency for management. 
Additionally, it is not uncommon for a supervisor to investigate an employee disagreement and 
not be able to provide full details of the outcome to the complainant. It is a violation of 
confidentiality for a supervisor to share the disciplinary action of one employee with any other 
employee. Therefore, a complainant may simply be told, “The matter was investigated and the 
employee was addressed appropriately.” If it is appealed and the Area Manager provides the same 
response, the complainant may not accept the response leaving everyone feeling as though the 
process was an unnecessary use of time and energy. Recommendations include 1) allow for a 
process to remove frivolous complaints and 2) include the EEO Officer in the process for appeals. 
The EEO Officer can review the corrective measures taken to address an employee(s) and 
determine if an appeal has merit. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter expresses concern with allowing the resolution of a complaint investigation for 
Employee Disagreements by a supervisor to be appealed to the Area Manager.  
 
Section V.D.1.c.1e. of the Law allows an employee who is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final 
resolution, to refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area Manager. 
The law then provides that the Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation. The commenter questions whether this is an efficient use of time.  
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider whether an employee who is not satisfied 
with the supervisor’s final resolution should be able to refile their complaint with the EEO 
Department for resolution by the Area Manager. The Legislative Operating Committee may make 
one of the following determinations. 

1. Section V.D.1.c.1e. of the Law should remain as currently drafted and allows an employee 
who is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, to refile their complaint with the 
EEO Department for resolution by the Area Manager. If the Legislative Operating 

259 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 176 of 184 
 

Committee makes this determination, the Legislative Operating Committee may consider 
whether additional clarifying provisions are needed to create a more efficient system. 

2. Section V.D.1.c.1e. of the Law should be revised so that a supervisor’s resolution of an 
Employee Disagreement complaint is final and non-appealable. If the Legislative 
Operating Committee makes this determination the following revision to the Law is 
recommended: 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
4. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
a. General 
b. Types of Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 
the complaint. 

vii.  The resolution of the supervisor shall be final and non-appealable. 
f) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may 

refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area 
Manager. 

i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
Department shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the 
complaint. 

ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation. 

iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 
the Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 

iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as 
well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur in 
person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 

2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with an 
employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall move forward 
with the investigation based on the information they have. 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area Manager 
shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution. 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with the 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the 
Area Manager shall provide written justification for non-agreement on 
the resolution to both the appropriate GM level position and the HRD 
Executive Director. 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department 
for filing and reporting purposes. 

vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final.  

260 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 177 of 184 
 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 177 – Recusal of EEO Officers: 
 
Mark Powless (written): There is no verbiage around matters where EEO Officers should not be 
involved and required to recuse themselves. For example, an EEO Officer should not be 
investigating or disciplining in a matter involving one of their family members. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that section V.D. of the Law does not address a when an EEO Officer 
should not be involved in the investigation or discipline of an employee and thereby should recuse 
themselves. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may determine whether the Law should address when an 
EEO Officer should recuse themselves from handling the investigation and discipline of an 
employee and revise the Law accordingly. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 178 – Supervisor’s Appeal of an EEO Officer’s Decision: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

2) EEO Violations 
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 

3) Illegal Activities 
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 

 
Mark Powless (written): Will a Supervisor be able to appeal an EEO decision? EEO Officers 
may be involved in favoritism, overlooking key information, missing deadlines, etc. Supervisors 
should have the ability to appeal an EEO decision prior to issuing a disciplinary decision to an 
employee. 
 
Response 

261 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 178 of 184 
 

 
The commenter questions whether a supervisor would be able to appeal a decision of the EEO 
Department. The commenter is not clear as to what decision of the EEO Department he is 
referencing.  
 
In regard to the resolution of a EEO Violation or Illegal Activities complaint, sections V.D.1.c.2.i. 
and V.D.1.c.3.i of the Law provides that the EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. The intent of 
this provision is that the EEO Officer’s resolution of the complaint be non-appealable. 
Additionally, the Law does not provide a process to allow a supervisor to appeal a discipline 
provided by an EEO Officer to an employee. Only an employee who receives a disciplinary action 
which they believe is improper may grieve the action. [OPPP Section V.D.3.a.1.]. 
 
There is no action required by the Legislative Operating Committee needed to address this 
comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 179 – Succession Plans for Internal Postings: 
 
SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 
C. INTERNAL POSITION POSTING - The Oneida Nation encourages movement 
within and among units in order to make the best possible use of human resources to meet 
the Oneida Nation’s goals and objectives.  Supervisors and employees are encouraged to 
work together to create an environment in which employees constantly strive to improve 
their skills and abilities and managers constantly seek to provide challenging and rewarding 
work experiences. 

1. Internal Position Posting and Reassignment Rules. 
a. The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance 
with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding 
procedures for internal position posting and reassignment of employees of the 
Nation. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (written): Regarding internal posting: If a department has a succession plan with 
employees that have been working on obtaining the qualifications of a position, the Supervisor 
should NOT have to post externally. If the position has been offered to all in the department and 
no Oneida enrolled are interested, the Supervisor should be able to hire the other employees based 
on the succession plan. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter provides that if a department has a succession plan with employees that have been 
working on obtaining the qualifications of a position, the Supervisor should NOT have to post 

262 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 179 of 184 
 

externally, and that if the position has been offered to all in the department and no Oneida enrolled 
are interested, the Supervisor should be able to hire the other employees based on the succession 
plan. 
 
The proposed amendments to the Law eliminate much of the process and procedures currently 
contained in the law regarding the transfers and promotions, internal postings, applicant pool, and 
reassignments and instead provides that the HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority 
in accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for 
the internal position posting and reassignment of employees of the Nation. [Section III.C.1]. 
Utilizing the Administrative Rulemaking law for the promulgation of rules regarding internal 
position posting and reassignments instead of including this information in the law itself provides 
greater flexibility to the Human Resources Department to develop rules that best meet the needs 
of the Nation in its current circumstances. Under the proposed amendments to the Law, the 
comments concerns would be best addressed in the administrative rulemaking process.  
 
There is no action needed from the Legislative Operating Committee based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 180 – Timeline for Employee Disagreement Complaint: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (written): When investigating a complaint for an employee disagreement, I have 
noticed that it can take much longer than 10 working days to complete the investigation. I think 
30 days for the investigation is reasonable. Some examples of needing longer: 

o Employees who are involved in the investigation may not be available. 
o Sometimes the employee disagreements between two can require the Supervisor to meet 
with all employees. 
o When the disagreement revolves under lack of understanding a process, a policy may be 
identified as necessary, vetted, created and routed for signature. 

 
Response 
 
The commenters questions whether the ten (10) working day timeframe for a supervisor to 
investigate and resolve an Employee Disagreement complaint is a sufficient amount of time, and 

263 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 180 of 184 
 

requests that the Legislative Operating Committee consider expanding this timeframe to thirty (30) 
days. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.1.c. of the Law provides that the supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee may reconsider whether the ten (10) working day timeframe 
for a supervisor to investigate and resolve an Employee Disagreement complaint is a sufficient 
amount of time. The Legislative Operating Committee may make one of the following 
determinations.  

1. Section V.D.1.c.1.c. of the Law should remain as currently drafted, and provide that the 
supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve the complaint. 

2. Section V.D.1.c.1.c. of the Law should to revised to expand the amount of time provided 
to a supervisor to investigate and resolve a complaint. If the Legislative Operating 
Committee makes this determination then the following revision is recommended: 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
c) The supervisor shall have thirty (30) ten (10) working days 
to investigate and resolve the complaint. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 181 – Appeal of a Complaint Resolution: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 

1. Complaints 
c. Complaint Procedures 

1) Employee Disagreements 
e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final 
resolution, they may refile their complaint with the EEO 
Department for resolution by the Area Manager. 

i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the 
complaint, the EEO Department shall provide the Area 
Manager of the employee with the complaint. 
ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working 
days to complete their investigation. 

264 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 181 of 184 
 

iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day 
timeframe begins the day after the Area Manager 
receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 
iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee 
filing the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned 
in the complaint. 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and 
the employees may occur in person, through video 
conferencing, or by telephone. 
2. The Area Manager shall document all 
attempts made to meet with an employee. If the 
complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the Area 
Manager shall move forward with the 
investigation based on the information they have. 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is 
complete, the Area Manager shall contact the EEO 
Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a 
mutual determination with the EEO Officer as to 
an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then 
the Area Manager shall provide written 
justification for non-agreement on the resolution 
to both the appropriate GM level position and the 
HRD Executive Director. 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution 
and all supporting documentation used to make the final 
resolution to the EEO Department for filing and 
reporting purposes. 
vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final. 

2) EEO Violations 
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 

3) Illegal Activities 
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. 

 
Tina Jorgensen (written): QUESTION: Can an employee move to the Judiciary when not 
satisfied with the outcome of their complaint? 
 
Response 
 
The commenter questions whether an employee can appeal to the Judiciary if not satisfied with 
the outcome of their complaint. 
 
For Employee Disagreement complaints, section V.D.1.c.1.e. of the Law provides that if the 
employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may refile their complaint 
with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area Manager. Section V.D.1.c.1.e.vii. of the Law 

265 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 182 of 184 
 

provides that the Area Manager’s resolution of the complaint will be final. For EEO Violation 
complaints and Illegal Activities Complaints, sections V.D.1.c.2.i. and V.D.1.c.3.i. of the Law 
provides that the EEO Officers resolution of the complaint shall be final. Therefore, the Law does 
not allow an employee to appeal the resolution of their complaint to the Judiciary if they are not 
satisficed with the result of the complaint. 
 
There is no action by the Legislative Operating Committee required based on this comment. 
 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment 182 – Cumulation of Progressive Discipline: 
 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
2. Discipline 

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action.  
1) All disciplinary actions shall commensurate with the seriousness of the 
unsatisfactory performance or violation.   
2) Disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive order.  

a) The progressive order for discipline is as follows, unless 
otherwise noted: 

i. Written warning (W); 
ii. Suspension (S);  
iii. Termination (T). 

b) Deviation from Progressive Order  
i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the supervisor shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the EEO Department.  
ii. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee. 

 
Vanessa Miller (written): J. Discipline 
The legal analysis states that “Previously, the Law provided that the supervisor must consider each 
disciplinary action in progressive order and justify a deviance from that recommended progression. 
The proposed amendments now provide greater clarification on this issue, and provide that 
disciplinary action shall be considered in progressive order (written warning  suspension  
termination), and that any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 
supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO Department, while any deviation 
from the recommended progressive order made by the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing 

266 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 183 of 184 
 

and approved by the Human Resources Executive 284 Director, or designee. [Section 
V(D)(2)(b)(2)]” 
 
My concern with this proposition is there appears to be room for misinterpretation regarding 
“progression discipline.” As written, this analysis states that “the Law provided that the supervisor 
must consider each disciplinary action in progressive order…” In the decision of Appellant Case 
No. 17-AC-008, Dated November 20, 2017 (Falck V. Thumer), the following was ordered: 
 
Thurner also argues that progressive discipline is applicable only for “repeated violations of the 
same type” and Flack erred in progressively disciplining her for unrelated violations. This would 
mean that because Thurner was disciplined for three different type of unacceptable work 
performance….she would be able to have three separate progressive disciplinary tracks ongoing 
for each type of violation. This is a clearly erroneous position and not what V.D.2.a.3) directs 
supervisors to do. The progressive disciplinary process can be cumulative if disciplinary actions 
occur within a certain time frame. 
 
My comment would be to clarify in this amendment the definition of progressive discipline in its 
application so that it is clear that it may be cumulative in nature regarding different types of 
behavior or policy violations. 
 
Response 
 
The commenter expresses concern that section V.D.2.b.2. of the Law still allows for 
misinterpretation regarding the progression of discipline. The commenter references caselaw from 
a decision of the Appellate Court that provides that progressive disciplinary process can be 
cumulative if disciplinary actions occur within a certain time frame. The commenter requests that 
the Legislative Operating Committee consider clarifying this provision of the Law so that it is clear 
that progressive disciplines may be cumulative in nature regarding different types of policy 
violations.  
 
It is recommended that the Legislative Operating Committee revise the Law to address to concerns 
of the commenter. The following revision to the Law is recommended based on this comment: 
SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
2. Discipline 

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action.  
1) All disciplinary actions shall commensurate with the seriousness of the 
unsatisfactory performance or violation.   
2) Disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive order.  

a) The progressive order for discipline is as follows, unless otherwise 
noted: 

i. Written warning (W); 
ii. Suspension (S);  
iii. Termination (T). 

b) Progressive disciplinary action may be cumulative in nature 
amongst varying violations. 

267 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 184 of 184 
 

c) Deviation from Progressive Order  
i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by 
the EEO Department.  
ii. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and approved 
by the Human Resources Executive Director, or designee. 

 
LOC Consideration 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

268 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

1 

 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

ONEIDA NATION 5 

PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 6 

 7 

 8 
 9 

Table of Contents (Last update 12/06/19)__/__/__) 10 

 11 
SECTION I INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................... 2 12 

SECTION II ‐ RECRUITING ...................................................................................................................... 3 13 

SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY........................................................................................................... 6 14 

SECTION IV – COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS .................................................................................... 13 15 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS ................................................................................................... 19 16 

SECTION VI – SAFETY AND HEALTH ..................................................................................................... 28 17 

SECTION VII – PROGRAM/ENTERPRISE RULES & REGULATIONS .......................................................... 29 18 

SECTION VIII ‐ RECORDKEEPING ......................................................................................................... 30 19 

SECTION IX – PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY OF EMPLOYEE RECORDS ............................................. 31 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

 26 

 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

269 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 

r'\. 
=DDDDDD= 

ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

2 

 35 

 36 

SECTION I – INTRODUCTION     37 

Welcome to the Oneida Nation. We are pleased to have you join us as a partner on a team of 38 
individuals dedicated to providing quality service that enhances the quality of life of the Oneida 39 
community. The role you play in your position is important to the overall effort required by your 40 
department to meet the goals and objectives of the Oneida Nation.  We encourage you to take 41 
advantage of the opportunities presented to you, as an employee, to grow and develop both 42 
personally and professionally. 43 

The purpose of this "Employee Manual" is to provide you with a ready source of information about 44 
employee related Oneida Nation policies and procedures. Although we have tried to make this 45 
manual as comprehensive as possible; it does not, and cannot, include policies which address 46 
every situation that may arise. The Oneida Nation reserves the right to modify, alter, change or 47 
cancel existing policies and procedures or adopt new procedures and policies at any time. 48 

The policies and procedures set forth in this manual apply to all employees. As an employee of the 49 
Oneida Nation, you are required to know and abide by these policies and procedures. Oneida 50 
Nation departments may have specific and additional procedures enhancing the general policies 51 
stated in this manual. Each employee is expected to learn his/her department’s procedures and 52 
comply with them. In the event of any conflict between policies in this manual and departmental 53 
procedure, the policies in this manual supersede. Each employee is also expected to conform to 54 
the professional standards of his/her occupation. Questions regarding this manual, or any 55 
employee related policies, should be directed to your supervisor, department head, or to the 56 
Human Resources Department at (920) 496-7900. 57 

The Oneida Nation is proud to have you on our staff and we look forward to a fulfilling and 58 
successful team relationship. 59 

 60 

 61 

 62 

 63 

 64 

 65 

 66 

 67 

 68 

 69 

 70 

 71 

 72 

 73 

 74 

270 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

3 

 75 

 76 

SECTION II - RECRUITING 77 
 78 
 A. RECRUITING 79 

1. Recruiting Strategy 80 
a. The Oneida Nation shall implement a Recruiting Strategy to increase the potential for 81 

hiring the best-qualified and most capable employees possible. 82 
1) The Recruiting Strategy shall target, as the first priority, applicants in accordance 83 

with the Oneida and Indian Preference Policy. 84 
2) The Recruiting Strategy shall have a nationwide focus and will use: 85 

a) The Kalihwisaks (national distribution); 86 
b) The Oneida Higher Education Office's network of post-secondary school 87 

students; 88 
c) Local and regional media and public employment agencies. 89 

2. Applicant Pool 90 
a. The Oneida Nation shall establish and maintain an Applicant Pool consisting of 91 

individuals who have expressed an interest in working for the Oneida Nation. 92 
1) The Applicant Pool will consist of files containing: 93 

a) An Oneida Nation Application Form; 94 
b) A summary of career goals and job preferences. 95 

2) The Applicant Pool will be regularly reviewed to: 96 
a) Update individual files: 97 
b) Remove files where indicated. 98 

3) The Applicant Pool will be cross-referenced by job preferences. 99 
a) Notices of job vacancies and an Application Form will be sent to all Applicant 100 

Pool members as appropriate. 101 
4) All Applicant Pool members shall have the right to review and update their file 102 

upon request. 103 
5) Applicant Pool members shall be apprised of the Nation's Indian Preference 104 

Policy. 105 
 106 

B. LABOR POOLS 107 
1. Supervisors that wish to establish a job classification as a Labor Pool Position will work 108 

with the HRD to establish the job classification. 109 
2. Each Labor Pool Position shall be advertised as on-going recruitment pool. The HRD shall 110 

maintain an updated list of qualified candidates for each Labor Pool Position. 111 
3. The HRD will accept all job applications and verify that each applicant is qualified 112 

according to the established job description.  All qualified applicants will then be placed 113 
in a pool according to the Nation's Oneida and Indian Preference Policy and the date the 114 
application was received.  All applicants will be notified of acceptance into or rejection 115 
from the pool. 116 
a. PRESCREENING OF LABOR POOL POSITIONS   (HR Interpretation 11-13-12) Applicants who 117 

were previously employed by the Oneida Nation and were terminated for reasons of 118 
misconduct or performance issues will be screened out for a period of twelve (12) 119 
months following the date of discharge. 120 

4. The HRD will keep an updated list of qualified applicants for each job position. 121 
5. When a vacancy occurs in a Labor Pool Position, the supervisor will notify the HRD of the 122 

position to be filled.  The HRD Office shall then refer the top three (3) applicants to the 123 

271 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

4 

immediate supervisor.  The top three applicants shall be based first on the Oneida and 124 
Indian Preference Policy and, second, the date an application was received.  The 125 
immediate supervisor will notify the HRD of their selection and the HRD will then offer 126 
the position to the applicant.  After the position is filled, all ranked candidates will move 127 
up on the list.   (HR Interpretation 7-11-13)  128 

6. If the applicant refuses the position, the HRD Office will then offer it to the next applicant 129 
until the position is filled. 130 

7. If the applicant refuses the job, the applicant may withdraw from the Labor Pool or, if he 131 
or she declines to withdraw from the Labor Pool, the date of refusal will be considered 132 
the date the application was received and the applicant will be placed in the Labor Pool 133 
list according to B.3. 134 

8. Indian (Oneida) Preference will be adhered to in all hiring decisions. 135 
 136 
C. EMERGENCY/TEMPORARY POSITIONS 137 

1. The HRD will periodically recruit individuals who are interested in filling temporary 138 
positions which consist of the following classifications: 139 
a. Emergency/Temp 140 
b. Limited Term 141 
c. Seasonal 142 
d. Substitute/Relief 143 
e. Youth Worker 144 
f. Student/Intern 145 

2. Creation of Positions 146 
a. Creation of positions in the above Temporary Employee Classifications will require 147 

that these positions be budgeted for the current fiscal year, or proof through 148 
documentation that the budget is adequate to incorporate these positions. 149 

b. The positions must be developed in conjunction with the HRD; assuring that all 150 
Policies and Procedures are adhered to.  Creation of temporary classification requires 151 
the approval of the Director, Area Manager, and HRD ManagerHuman Resources 152 
Executive Director, or elected official of the Oneida Nation. 153 

c. All newly created temporary positions must be processed through the Wage and 154 
Salary system before a position can be filled with a temporary employee. 155 

3. Recruitment/Selection 156 
a. Recruitment/selection of applicants for all temporary positions requires a completed 157 

Temporary Personnel Requisition form with an updated job description attached. 158 
b. The HRD will provide a list of qualified candidates according to the job descriptions 159 

to the immediate supervisor.  The immediate supervisor will select from the approved 160 
list adhering to Indian Preference. 161 

c. The HRD will contact the selected candidate and offer the position, following the 162 
proper procedures to put the incumbent on payroll. 163 

d. The selected candidate will sign a statement accepting conditions of temporary 164 
employment, and length of employment where applicable. 165 

e. Temporary employees will be paid within the Grade in which the job is classified and 166 
salary will be negotiated within the first three (3) steps of respective grade. 167 
1) Any negotiated salary beyond step three will require written justification and 168 

approval from the respective General Manager.  (H.R. Interpretation, 12-8-16)  169 
f. Temporary employees are welcome to apply for any regular position within the 170 

Nation that becomes available during the term of their employment. 171 
g. Temporary employees that are terminated due to documented cause will have the 172 

right to the appeal process as outlined in the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 173 

272 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

5 

h. All temporary employees are subject to lay-off based upon department job needs 174 
and budgets. (HR Interpretation – 11-25-13) 175 

i. Supervisors are required to do proficient planning within their respective span of 176 
control; as such they must also enforce separation dates and will be monitored by 177 
HRD for compliance. 178 

j. Supervisors must select the most appropriate category of classification for the job. 179 
1) Moving from one classification to another is prohibited. 180 

4. Benefits 181 
a. The following employee classifications will be eligible for benefits as defined in the 182 

section of the Personnel Policies and Procedures as medical, dental, vacation and 183 
personal accrual, holiday pay, premium pay. 184 
1) Limited Term 185 
2) Seasonal 186 

b. The following employee classifications will be eligible for benefits as defined in this 187 
section of the Personnel Policies and Procedures as Mandatory Benefits and Holiday 188 
pay. 189 
1) Emergency/Temporary 190 
2) Substitute/Relief 191 
3) Seasonal Worker (only during their first season) 192 

c. The following employee classifications will be eligible for benefits as defined in this 193 
section of the Personnel Policies and Procedures as Mandatory Benefits. 194 
1) Youth Worker 195 
2) Student/Intern 196 
 197 
 198 

 199 

 200 

 201 

 202 

 203 

 204 

 205 

 206 

 207 

 208 

 209 

 210 

 211 

 212 

 213 

 214 

 215 

 216 

 217 

 218 

273 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

6 

 219 

 220 

SECTION III – SELECTION POLICY 221 
 222 

A. ONEIDA PREFERENCE AND INDIAN PREFERENCE STATEMENT OF POLICY 223 
Federal policy since 1834 accords hiring preference to Indians.  The purpose of this 224 
preference is threefold:  1) to give Indians a greater participation in self-government; 2) 225 
to further the Government's trust obligation; and 3) to increase the positive effect of 226 
having Indians administer matters that affect Indian tribal life. (GTC Resolution – 5-23-11-A) 227 
 228 
More recently, legislation such as the Civil Rights Act (1964) and the Education 229 
Amendments of 1972 (passed after the Equal Employment Opportunity Act) continued 230 
to specifically provide for preferential hiring of Indians by Indian Nations. 231 
 232 
As an employer, the Nation seeks to employ individuals who possess the skills, abilities 233 
and background to meet the employment needs of the Nation. 234 
 235 
As a sovereign Indian Nation and a unique cultural group, the Oneida Nation has 236 
determined that a highly desirable employment characteristic is knowledge of Oneida 237 
culture that can be attained only by membership (or eligibility for membership) in the Oneida 238 
Nation. . Further, the Nation recognizes the unique, shared culture of Native American 239 
Indians and has determined that a desirable employment characteristic is status as a 240 
member of an American Indian Nation.or descendant of a federally recognized tribe.  At a 241 
minimum, the Nation has determined that some knowledge of Indian culture is a 242 
desirable employment characteristic. 243 
 244 
Accordingly, the Oneida Nation establishes the following policy in regard to Indian 245 
Preference for selecting employees to provide services that meet the needs of the 246 
Oneida people.  This Indian Preference policy shall be specific to staffing decisions made 247 
under the Personnel Policies and Procedures and shall not be construed to have an 248 
application outside of these policies and procedures. 249 
 250 
The Oneida Nation is an equal employment opportunity employer and follows non-251 
discriminatory policies and procedures in personnel decisions (HR Interpretation 5-19-14)  252 
However, theThe Oneida Nation exists to serve the needs of the Oneida people and 253 
therefore accords Oneida Preference to enrolled members of the Oneida Nation 254 
Members where such preference is not otherwise prohibited.  All General Managers and 255 
top administrative positions, as defined by HRD in a standard operating procedure, shall 256 
be held by enrolled Tribal members.  of the Oneida Nation. In all other instances, the 257 
Nation applies the following priorities of Indian Preference in staffing decisions: 258 

1 Enrolled members of the Oneida Tribal memberNation; 259 

2 Oneida IndiansIndividuals eligible for enrollment in the Oneida Nation; 260 

3 Documented first generation descendants of the Oneida descendantNation; 261 

4 Other Native American Indian; 262 

4 Members or descendants of a federally recognized tribe; 263 

5 Other (non-Indian). (HR Interpretation – 6-24-11) 264 

274 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

7 

This policy willshall apply in decisions where the basic requirements for employment are 265 

met. 266 

 267 

B. HIRING PROCEDURE 268 

1 Statement of Policy  269 

a. The Oneida Nation is an equal employment opportunity employer and follows 270 

nondiscriminatory policies in hiring. 271 

b. The Oneida Nation is a firm advocate of the 1964 Civil Rights Act (as amended) and 272 

the 1968 Indian Civil Rights Act (as amended) and will make every effort to ensure 273 

compliance with each Act; however: 274 

c. The Oneida Nation follows the principles of Indian Preference in the implementation 275 

of hiring practices (see the Oneida Preference and Indian Preference Statement of 276 

Policy). 277 

2. The membersHiring Guidelines  278 

d. All Supervisors of the Personnel Commission and all Oneida Nation employees who 279 

supervise other Oneida Nation employees shall undergo both training upon hiring 280 

and periodic retraining in EEO and Tribal laws, rules, and regulations.           281 

1) Training will be knowledge - and skills-based 282 

2) All Personnel Commission members and Tribal supervisors will undergo periodic 283 

re-training in EEO and Tribal laws, rules and regulations 284 

e.a. No person shall be recommended for a position if a conflict of interest or 285 

nepotism is created.  Nepotism is created by the following relationships:  (HR 286 
Interpretation 08-13-12)Nation.  287 

a) Father   i)        Father-in-law 288 

b) Mother   j)        Mother-in-law 289 

c) Husband   k)       Brother-in-law 290 

d) Wife   l)        Sister-in-law 291 

e) Brother   m)      Son-in-law  292 

f) Sister   n)       Daughter-in-law  293 

g) Son   o)      Grandparent 294 

h) Daughter   p)       Grandchild 295 

3. Hiring Procedures 296 

a. HRD Office Responsibilities 297 

1) Unless specifically noted, the HRD Office will have responsibility for 298 

implementing the policies and procedures guiding the selection of Tribal 299 

employees. 300 

b. Personnel Commission Role 301 

1) The Oneida Nation established the Personnel Commission to represent the 302 

Oneida Community-at-large in the selection of tribal employees.employees of the 303 

Nation and to shield those employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment by: 304 

a) Protecting against issues of nepotism; 305 

b) Enforcing Oneida and Indian preference. 306 

a)2) The Personnel Commission is directed to: 307 

275 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

8 

i. Seek outParticipate in the best-matched applicants for each available 308 

position; 309 

ii. Consider only job-related factors (such as education, experience, past job 310 

performance, skills and abilities, and compatibility with the position and 311 

potential co-workers) when selecting candidates. 312 

c. Identification of Vacancies and Development of Job Descriptions (Work Standard, 11-16-11) 313 

1) Supervisors may inform the HRD Office of pending vacancies as soon as they are 314 

identified. 315 

2) For existing positions, the HRD Manager (or designate), the supervisor and the 316 

Area Manager (at his/her option) will review the hiring selection process, 317 

including job description pre-screens and interviews, to ensure compliance with: 318 

a) The the Nation’s job structure; 319 

b) The needslaws and requirements of the job. 320 

3) For new positions, the HRD Manager, the appropriate Area Manager, and the 321 

supervisor shall develop the job description. (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16) 322 

a) The new job description shall conform to the Oneida Nation job structure. 323 

b) The new job description will be reviewed by the General Manager. 324 

4) All job descriptions shall contain the following information: 325 

a) Job title, division/department, location, supervisor's title; 326 

b) Posting date, application deadline, preferred starting date, date of job, 327 

description review; 328 

c) Pay level (grade, step, hourly rate); 329 

d) A brief job summary; 330 

e) Duties and responsibilities; 331 

f) Qualifications; 332 

g) Inquiry address; 333 

h) Statement of compliance with EEO and Indian Preference policies. 334 

d. Applications 335 

1) All inquiries for job vacancies will be responded to with an Oneida Nation 336 

Application Form which will consist of: 337 

a) Job vacancy title; 338 

b) Applicant biographical data; 339 

c) A request for a resume (where applicable). 340 

2)i. The Application Form shall be accompanied by a Statement of Policy 341 

regarding Oneida Preference and Indian Preference.the following 342 

subject matters: 343 

3) Hand-delivered applications will be accepted at the HRD Office until 4:30 p.m. on 344 

the deadline date; mailed applications must be postmarked on or before the 345 

deadline date. 346 

4) All applications will be acknowledged. 347 

e. Advertising 348 

1) Position vacancies will be advertised as widely as possible including: 349 

a) The Kalihwisaks; 350 

276 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

9 

b) Statewide, through print and electronic media and public employment 351 

agencies; 352 

c) Through targeted recruiting efforts including: 353 

i. Major metropolitan areas (i.e. Milwaukee, Chicago, Minneapolis, etc.) 354 

ii.1. The Bureau of Oneida and Indian Affairspreference; 355 

iii. The Oneida Higher Education Office. 356 

2. Other postings targeted toward special recruiting categories (such as 357 

professions) shall be carried out at the discretion of the HRD 358 

OfficeNepotism; 359 

3. Conflicts of interest; 360 

4. Veteran status; and  361 

5. Physical capacity requirements. 362 

d) Comply with the advice and consent of the affected department. 363 

2) Unless otherwise prohibited by external grant source or federal law, the first 364 

posting for a position vacancy shall be limited to enrolled Oneida members and 365 

shall be posted for a minimum of seven (7) calendar days. 366 

3) The second posting for a position vacancy shall be posted for a minimum of ten 367 

(10) calendar days and shall be open to the general public, unless the position 368 

must be filled by an enrolled Oneida Nation member.   (HR Interpretation 8-9-11)  369 

4) All vacancies requiring re-posting shall be referred back to B-2.c (Identification of 370 

Vacancies and Development of Job description) to begin the re-posting process. 371 

f. Screening of Applicants  (HR Interpretation 11-16-12)   (HR Interpretation 10-22-12)  372 

1)ii. A Screening Committee consisting of the HRD Manager (or 373 

designate), the position supervisor, the Area Manager (at his/her option), 374 

and a member of the Personnel Commission shall be convened to 375 

conduct the screening of applicants.  The Screening process will begin as 376 

soon as practical following the closing of the position.  This Committee 377 

will:Bylaws. 378 

a) Verify that all applications are complete, are accurateHiring and were 379 

submitted on time. 380 

i. Applications that are incomplete, inaccurate, or were not submitted on 381 

or before the posted deadline date may be screened out. 382 

b) Analyze the job description to establish screening criteria.  These criteria will 383 

include qualifications listed on the job description determined by the 384 

supervisor and Area Manager to be essential to the job.  (T.O.E. WS - 5-6-13)   385 

c) Screen verified applications 386 

d)c. Recommend a list of applicants to be interviewed.Selection Rules.   387 

2) The HRD Office shall notify screened out applicants within five (5) working days 388 

after the initial screening and reserve these applicationsbe delegated rulemaking 389 

authority in the general recruiting pool. 390 

3) The HRD Office will arrange for interviewsaccordance with the listed candidates. 391 

g. Candidate Interviews 392 

277 of 400

--------------

000000 
ONEIDA 

----



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

10 

1) An Interview Committee will be convened and will consist of the members of the 393 

Screening Committee except that the HRD Manager will be replaced with a 394 

second member of the Personnel Commission.  The Interview Committee will: 395 

a) Construct an interview format consisting of: 396 

i. A set of questions related to the screening criteria qualifications; 397 

ii. An interview rating scale designed to objectively evaluate each 398 

candidate's qualifications. 399 

b) Interview candidates and evaluate each individually. 400 

2) The HRD Manager (or designee) will total the evaluation rating scale to rank 401 

order of the candidates. 402 

h. Selection  (HR Interpretation - Disqualification of Applicant 10-24-13) 403 

1) The supervisor shall select one of the top two (2) candidates as ranked through 404 

the rating scale.   (HR Interpretation - 10-17-12) 405 

a) The supervisor may conduct an additional personal interview with the top 406 

two (2) candidates. 407 

b) The Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures 408 

for the hiring and selection decision shall be governed by the Oneida 409 

Preference and Indian Preference Policy.   (HR Interpretation - 6-6-11) 410 

c) The HRD Office will notify the selected candidate and offer the candidate the 411 

job within five (5) working days of the selection decision by the supervisor. 412 

i. Should the supervisor's first choice refuse the offer, the HRD Office will 413 

offer the job to the second ranked candidate. 414 

2) Should both of the top two ranked candidates refuse the job offer, the 415 

supervisor may: 416 

a) Repeat the process outlined in B.2.h.1. above; or 417 

b) Re-post the position. 418 

3) The HRD Office will notify those candidates interviewed but not selected of the 419 

decision to hire the best-qualified candidate. 420 

4)1) All newly hiredof employees will be listed inof the HR newsletterNation. 421 

 422 

C. TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS POLICYINTERNAL POSITION POSTING - The Oneida Nation 423 

encourages transfers and promotionsmovement within and among units in order to make 424 

the best possible use of human resources to meet the Oneida NationNation’s goals and 425 

objectives.  Supervisors and employees are encouraged to work together to create an 426 

environment in which employees constantly strive to improve their skills and abilities and 427 

mangersmanagers constantly seek to provide challenging and rewarding work 428 

experiences. 429 

1. Procedure 430 

a.1. Internal Position Posting and BiddingReassignment Rules. 431 

1) Open positions as determined by a supervisor and his/her Area Manager will be 432 

posted internallyThe HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in 433 

accordance with the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding 434 

278 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

11 

procedures for five (5) working days.  This internal position posting will be 435 

concurrent with the external (public) postingand reassignment of positions. 436 

a) Positions will be posted in prominent locations in each Oneida Nation 437 

building 438 

2)a. Oneida Nation employees may bid for transfers by notifying their immediate 439 

supervisor and submitting an Application Form to the HRD Officeof the Nation. 440 

a) The HRD Manager will inform all affected Area Managers of each transfer 441 

bid. 442 

3) At the end of the five (5) day internal posting period, the HRD Manager will 443 

schedule a conference with the open position's supervisor and the Area 444 

Manager. 445 

a) The conference committee will consist of the supervisor, the Area Manager 446 

and the HRD Manager (or designate) acting as this Committee will: 447 

i. Establish selection criteria; and 448 

ii. Review each bid. 449 

b) The Committee may select the best-qualified applicant but is not required to 450 

choose an applicant to fill the open position from those employees who 451 

have submitted an application for a transfer or promotion. 452 

c) If the Committee does not fill the position from the transfer/promotion 453 

process, the process will continue through the full advertising, screening and 454 

interview steps. 455 

i. Any decision will be governed by the Indian Preference Policy. 456 

4) Employees who are transferred or promoted will not lose any benefits; however: 457 

a) An employee may be required to continue serving in his/her present position 458 

until a replacement can be found; 459 

b) An employee who is transferred to a position lower on the Oneida Nation 460 

Job Structure will be paid at the grade level corresponding to the new 461 

position; 462 

c) An employee must have completed one year of service to the Nation before 463 

being eligible for a promotion or transfer (requests for transfers for 464 

documented medical conditions will be handled on a case by case basis and 465 

only when in the best interests of both the employee and the Nation); 466 

d) The newly transferred or promoted employee shall be required to complete 467 

a three (3) month probation period (all conditions of the Nation's Probation 468 

Policy shall apply). 469 

b. Applicant Pool Process 470 

1) New and vacant positions will be advertised through the Tribal Applicant Pool. 471 

2) The job description will be sent to persons whose applications are maintained in 472 

the Applicant Pool. 473 

a) The Tribal Applicant Pool will consist of open (unspecified) applications from 474 

Tribal members who wish to be considered for employment by the Nation. 475 

b) Advertising through the Tribal Applicant Pool will follow the format and time 476 

conditions set forth in the Hiring Policy. 477 

279 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

12 

2. Reassignments 478 

a. Title Reassignments 479 

1) Title Reassignments may be made by supervisors to: 480 

a) More accurately describe or define an existing job; or 481 

b) Make minor adjustments in jobs within a unit or operating division. 482 

2) Title Reassignments may be made at any time with the approval of the Area 483 

Manager and HRD Manager. 484 

b. Job Reassignments 485 

1) Job Reassignments may be made by supervisors to make more efficient and 486 

effective use of human resources. 487 

2) Job Reassignments may be supervisor-initiated or employee-initiated but must be 488 

made in the best interests of the operating unit. 489 

3) Job Reassignments may be made at any time with the approval of the Area 490 

Manager and after a review of each affected job by the Personnel Evaluation 491 

Committee. 492 

c. Interim Job Reassignments   (Work Standard 7-11-13) 493 

 494 

 495 

D. ORIGINAL PROBATION 496 

1. The first three (3) months after an employee's starting date after being hired, 497 

transferred, or reassigned shall be considered a period of probation.  At the end of six 498 

(6) weeks, the employee's performance shall be reviewed with him/herthem by the 499 

supervisor by completing an employee evaluation. 500 

a.  At the end of the three- (3) month probation period, a second performance evaluation 501 

willshall be conducted.  This evaluation willshall recommend the end of probation and regular 502 

status for the employee, an extension of probation, or termination for cause. 503 

 504 

 505 

2.1. Status as a Probationary Employee 506 

a. Probationary employees will be paid at five percent (5%) below the posted pay rate 507 

for the position. 508 

1) New employees hired under a negotiated salary will receive a salary one step 509 

below the agreed upon salary during the probationary period. 510 

b.a. Probationary employees willshall accrue vacation/ and personal days during the 511 

probation period and willshall receive holiday pay.  512 

c.b. Probationary employees may be terminated for cause at any time during the 513 

probation period.  Cause must shall consist of a violation of policies or the 514 

documented inability of the employee to perform the duties and responsibilities of 515 

the position.  This termination is subject to appeal.  (BC Action 3-20-92) 516 

3. CompletionTermination of Probation Period 517 

a. Satisfactory completion of probation will result in thean employee receiving the 518 

regular salary for the position. 519 

280 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

13 

b. Employees who are terminatedcause during the probationtheir original probationary 520 

period will receive credit for accrued vacation/personal days in their final paycheck. 521 

c. Extensions of probation periods willshall not affect accrual of or use of benefits as 522 

explained under D.2.be subject to appeal  523 

 524 

 525 

 526 

 527 

 528 

 529 

 530 

 531 

 532 

 533 

 534 

 535 

 536 

 537 

 538 

 539 

 540 

 541 

 542 

 543 

 544 

 545 

 546 

 547 

SECTION IV - COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 548 
 549 
A. SALARY 550 

1. Oneida Nation Job and Salary Structure 551 

a. An ongoing plan will be instituted based on standard employee grades and step 552 

levels to assure that a uniform approach is taken to establish equitable salary and 553 

wage levels. 554 

b. Employee performance evaluations will be a resource in determining whether an 555 

employee receives an increase in pay for the upcoming year.  An overall satisfactory 556 

rating must be attained in order to be granted an increase in pay. 557 

c. Merit increase shall be granted upon the recommendation of the supervisor, the 558 

Area Manager, the HRD ManagerHuman Resources Executive Director and the 559 

General Manager.     560 

281 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

14 

2. Workday  (Work Standard, 10‐17‐12)  561 

a. The regular Tribal workday is from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. with an hour for lunch.  The 562 

exception to these hours occurs only if the program/enterprise hours must vary for 563 

the purpose of providing service (such as retail hours beyond 4:30 p.m.).  Shifts will 564 

be developed as needed, and the shift hours will then become the regular workday 565 

for assigned employees for that program/enterprise. 566 

b. Employees are expected to be at work each scheduled work day. 567 

1) Employees who do not report for work because of inclement weather or 568 

unforeseen circumstances will not be paid for that day.  Employees may elect to 569 

use personal day(s) to cover this absence.  (W.S. Closures Multiple/Individual Depts.7-28-2017)       570 
(W.S. Closures Non-Critical Departments/Divisions 7-28-2017) 571 

2) In case of an unavoidable delay or absence, the supervisor must be notified no 572 

later than thirty (30) minutes after the scheduled starting time.  Employees are 573 

encouraged to notify their supervisor before their scheduled starting time. 574 

i. Employees failing to report to their assigned jobs or failing to call in within the 575 

thirty (30) minute time allowed will be subject to disciplinary action. 576 

ii. Permission to leave early must be obtained by the employee from his/her 577 

supervisor. 578 

3. Overtime 579 

a. Any and all overtime will be kept to a minimum and must be approved by the 580 

Supervisor and Area Manager. 581 

1) In the case of potential overtime that may occur at night, on holidays or on 582 

weekends, supervisors will delegate this authority to a specific employee and 583 

outline specific situations and actions that warrant overtime. 584 

b. All overtime must be reported to the supervisor for evaluation. 585 

c. Overtime will be approved only if the program or enterprise budget is capable of 586 

paying it. 587 

d. Overtime will be approved only for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per 588 

week.  Personal/vacation days and holidays will not count toward the forty (40) hour 589 

requirements. 590 

e. Tribal employees are expected to work overtime if required.  Time and one-half will 591 

be paid for this overtime. 592 

f. Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime. 593 

1) The HRD Office will maintain a list of exempt employees. 594 

4. Holidays  (Work Standard, 11-7-14)  595 

a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 596 

1) One-half Day Christmas Eve 597 

2) Christmas Day 598 

3) New Year's Day 599 

4) Memorial Day 600 

5) Veteran's Day 601 

6) Independence Day 602 

7) Labor Day 603 

282 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

15 

8) Indigenous Peoples’ Day 604 

8)9) Thanksgiving Day 605 

9)10) Indian Day (day after Thanksgiving) 606 

10)11) One-half day Good Friday 607 

11)12) Code Talker’s Day (Oneida Day, Friday prior to Memorial Day) 608 
(BC Resolution – 12-11-13A) 609 

b. To be eligible for a paid holiday, employees must work the preceding and following 610 

scheduled work days (except for employees who are on a prescheduled work leave 611 

or an approved extended sick leave.)  Employees who are granted a sick day directly 612 

prior to a holiday must certify that they were capable of working the holiday in order 613 

to qualify for a paid holiday. 614 

c. All regular employees will be given holiday pay for the maximum pay of eight (8) 615 

hours per day. 616 

d. Holidays falling on a Saturday will be observed the preceding Friday; holidays falling 617 

on a Sunday will be observed on the following Monday. (2019 Holiday Observance Calendar)  618 
(2018 Holiday Observance Calendar) 619 

e. The Oneida Nation acknowledges its responsibility to make a reasonable 620 

accommodation to employees who wish time off to observe religious holidays.  621 

Requests for such time off will be granted where possible, based on the scheduling 622 

and staffing needs of affected departments.  Employees wishing to take time off work 623 

for religious observances should inform their supervisor as early as possible.  624 

Employees may use personal time for such requests if eligible; otherwise the time off 625 

will be treated as unpaid leave. 626 

5. Vacation/Personal Days 627 

a. Every Oneida Nation employee, except temporary employees, shall be allowed 628 

personal and vacation days with pay to the extent that personal days and vacation 629 

are accumulated.   630 

b. The amount of personal and vacations days shall be determined by continuous 631 

service for the Nation.  A "lay-off" from Oneida Nation employment shall not be 632 

considered an interruption in continuous service where the lay-off is in accordance 633 

with the Nation's Layoff Policy, nor shall a preapproved leave of absence. (HR 634 
Interpretation, 3-6-12)                                                                                                                                                  635 

c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal days shall be as follows:  636 
(BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F)               637 

1) 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 638 

2) 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 639 

3) 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 640 

4) 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 641 

d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall be as follows: 642 

1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 643 

2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 644 

3) 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 645 

4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 646 

283 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

16 

e. Part-time employees accrue personal and vacation days for time actually worked at a 647 

ratio of a full-time employee. 648 

f. Service is defined as working for Programs/Enterprises which are contracted by the 649 

Nation or specifically sponsored by the Nation. 650 

g. Vacation and personal days shall be capped at 280 hrshours.  An employee shall 651 

cease to accrue vacation and personal hours when he or she has reached 280 total 652 

hours.  Supervisors shall notify their employees when said employees have 653 

accumulated 200 total hours of vacation and personal time. (GTC Resolution, 7-2-12A) 654 

1) An employee may trade back accumulated vacation and personal hours in 655 

accordance with Section IV.A.5.n. below.   (GTC Resolution, 5-23-11-B) 656 

h. Upon termination from Oneida Nation employment, employees will be paid for any 657 

unused personal and/or vacation days. 658 

1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan program will be 659 

required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 660 

2) Employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall not 661 
be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck. 662 

i. Personal Days can be used for any reason so long as the request is approved by the 663 

employee's supervisor at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance (unless the absence 664 

is due to illness or unforeseen circumstances). 665 

1) In the case of illness or unforeseen circumstance, the supervisor shall be notified 666 

no later than fifteen (15) minutes before the scheduled starting time. 667 

2) Programs and enterprises may institute stricter standards of notification.  These 668 

standards will be submitted to and approved by the Personnel Department. 669 

j. An employee shall notify his/her supervisor of an intent to use personal days in the 670 

following ways: 671 

1) Three (3) to five (5) days - one (1) week advance notification 672 

2) Six (6) days or more - two (2) weeks advance notification. 673 

k. An employee shall notify his/her supervisor one (1) day in advance if he/she will take 674 

off one (1) or two (2) days of vacation.  Programs and enterprises may institute 675 

stricter standards of notification. 676 

1) Three (3) to five (5) days of vacation require a one (1) week advance notification. 677 

2) Six (6) or more days of vacation require at least two (2) weeks advance 678 

notification. 679 

l. The burden shall be on the supervisor to show that a denial of a personal day or a 680 

vacation day is based upon interference with the business of the Nation. 681 

m. Personal or Vacation Days can be taken when an employee is on probation. (GTC 682 
Resolution 5-23-11-B, HR Interpretation 5-8-17) 683 

n. Trade-back for Cash - Each fiscal year, the Oneida Business Committee shall analyze 684 

fiscal conditions to determine whether employees may trade back personal and/or 685 

vacation hours for cash that fiscal year. 686 

1) If the Oneida Business Committee approves trade-back for cash, they shall also 687 

determine whether (i) and/or (ii) applies: (See Revision) 688 

284 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

17 

i. All employees will have the opportunity to trade-back hours one time that 689 

year. 690 

1. By August 15, each employee who has accumulated twenty-four (24) 691 

hours or more of vacation and/or personal days may opt to trade in 692 

his/her hours for cash.  693 

2. Employees will receive their trade back on or before September 30 of 694 

that year. 695 

ii. Only those employees who are unable to utilize their personal and/or 696 

vacation time due to working conditions, such as a shortage in staffing, as 697 

determined by the HRD ManagerHuman Resources Executive Director or 698 

designee, will have the opportunity to trade back hours on a quarterly basis. 699 

1. Employees will receive their trade back within sixty (60) days after 700 

opting to trade back hours. 701 

2) When trade-back for cash is approved by the Oneida Business Committee, the 702 

following standards shall apply: 703 

i. Employees must decide which status (vacation or personal or both) from 704 

which their trade back will be drawn.  705 

ii. Employees may not trade for cash more than eighty (80) hours in one year.                              706 
 (GTC Resolution, 5-23-11-B) 707 

o. Additional Duties Compensation 708 

p. Travel Time Compensation (Work Standard , 3-20-13) 709 

 710 

B. INSURANCES (see separate publication) for information on Oneida Nation Insurance plans.   711 

  712 

C. RETIREMENT PLAN (See separate publication for information on Tribal Retirement Plan). 713 
(Separating Employees WS 5-6-13) 714 

D. LEAVES 715 

1. Meeting Attendance 716 

a. Approval for attending any meetings inside normal working hours must be approved 717 

in advance by the employee's immediate supervisor.  (BC Action, 5-16-89) 718 

b. Employees who receive stipends or honoraria in excess of $50.00 for attending 719 

meetings during working hours will forfeit the amount in excess of $50.00 from their 720 

regular paycheck.  Stipends for travel or per diem will not be deducted if 721 

accompanied by receipts for such expenses. 722 

c. Stipends or honoraria for intra-tribal meetings during normal working hours will 723 

results in the employee's paycheck being reduced by the full amount of the stipend. 724 

2. Funeral Leave  (Work Standard, 8-2-11) 725 

a. All regular employees will be given a three (3five (5) day leave without loss of pay for 726 

funeral services for immediate family.  Immediate family includes: 727 

Husband  Mother  Brother Great-grandparent 728 
Wife  Father  Sister  Great-grandchildren 729 
Mother-in-law Son  Grandparent Spouse’s great-grandparents 730 

285 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

18 

Father-in-law Daughter Grandchild Spouse’s grandparents 731 
Daughter-in-law Sister-in-law Brother-in-law     732 

b. Three (3Five (5) day leave for other persons will be given only if the employee is 733 

responsible for making funeral arrangements, subject to prior approval of supervisor. 734 

c. All other funeral leave will be limited to no more than one (1) daythree (3) hours 735 

with pay subject to the notification and approval of the immediate supervisor.(Mgmt 736 
Directive, 12-17-2009) 737 

 Leave of Absence  (Work Standard, 6-10-14)738 

a. A leave of absence without pay may be granted to employees for a justifiable reason 739 

(including caring for a child, spouse or parent with a serious health condition) and 740 

when in the best interest of the Nation.   741 

1) Leaves of absence will not exceed three (3) months. 742 

i. All leaves of absence mustshall be approved by the Supervisor, Area 743 

Manager, HRD Manager and General Manager.  (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16).   744 

ii. Requests mustshall  be documented and submitted to the supervisor with as 745 

much advance notice as possible. 746 

iii. Disposition of requests will be made on the basis of staffing requirements. 747 

2) Upon returning, the employee will be reinstated in the former position with full 748 

status and benefits.  Holiday, vacation, and sick leave will not be accrued during 749 

the leave of absence. 750 

3) No later than fifteen (15) working days prior to the expiration of the leave period 751 

the employee must give notice in writing of his/her intent to return to the 752 

position.  Notice must be presented to the supervisor. 753 

i. Failure to provide written notice will be interpreted to mean that the 754 

employee does not intend to return following the leave.  The position will be 755 

posted and filled through the selection process.  (HR Interpretation, 11-21-11) 756 

4. Maternity Leave 757 

a. Maternity leave will be granted for a period of six (6) weeks without pay. 758 

1) An employee may elect to cover any portion of this time by using accumulated 759 

sick days. 760 

2) Any maternity-related absences for longer than six (6) weeks must be taken as a 761 

medical leave of absence. 762 

5. Military Leave 763 

a. In addition to the following provisions, the Nation's Military Service Protection Act 764 

shall govern Military Leave. 765 

b. A Military Leave of Absence is afforded employees entering active duty without 766 

accumulation of holiday, vacation or personal time during the period of leave.  Any 767 

accumulated benefits prior to leave will be maintained for the employee. 768 

c. Time off for inactive duty training, examinations to determine fitness for duty and 769 

funeral honors duty shall be afforded to employees without the accumulation or loss 770 

of holiday, vacation or personal time.  An employee will receive pay from the Nation 771 

for any hours work that the employee was required to miss due to reservist training. 772 

286 of 400

3. 

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

19 

1) Any pay received for performing any of the above duties shall be deducted from 773 

the employee's pay.  (GTC Resolution, 1-26-08A) 774 

6. Jury Duty 775 

a. During a period of jury duty, an employee will receive pay from the Nation for any 776 

hours of work missed due to jury duty. 777 

1) Jury duty pay will be deducted from the employee's paycheck when determining 778 

the amount of pay 779 

2) No overtime will be allowed in determining employee pay while serving on jury 780 

duty. 781 

7. Educational Leave  (BC Action, 5-4-90) 782 

a. A leave of absence for education purposes will not exceed one (1) year. 783 

8. Parent Policy Leave (BC Action, 3-2-94A)  (Parental Leave Policy, 11-3-17) 784 

a. Employees who are parents, guardians, or those individuals specifically referred to as 785 

“immediate family” as defined in Section IV, page 6 of these Personnel Policies and 786 

Procedures which includes husband, wife, mother, father, brother, sister, son, 787 

daughter, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent and grandchild may request to 788 

participate in their child(ren)’s educationally sanctioned events not to exceed four (4) 789 

hours per employee per month 790 

1) These four (4) hours shall not accumulate. 791 

b. Approval to utilize the four (4) hours must be obtained from the supervisor. 792 

1) An employee shall request his/her supervisor to utilize this leave with a minimum 793 

of twenty-four (24) hours’ notice. 794 

2) The Supervisor may request verification of  795 

i. Guardianship of the child(ren) and/or 796 

ii. The attendance of the employee at their child(ren)'s educationally sanctioned 797 

event. 798 

c. The burden shall be on the supervisor to show that a denial of the Parent Policy 799 

Leave which is based upon interference with the business of the Nation. 800 

d. This leave shall not be paid as overtime. The supervisor may have the option to use 801 

flex time to cover this time off to attend their child(ren)'s educationally sanctioned 802 

events. 803 

e. All employees, except Emergency/Temporary, Youth Workers, Student Interns, and 804 

Seasonal Workers during their first season, and Substitute Reliefs are eligible to 805 

participate in this benefit. 806 

 807 

 808 

 809 

SECTION V – EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 810 
 811 
A. ORIENTATION POLICY 812 
The Oneida Nation reflects the unique culture and character of our Nation.  The Oneida Nation 813 

287 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

20 

recognizes that this may present special problems and difficulties for a new employee.  The 814 
Nation therefore provides an Orientation Program designed to ease the new employee’s 815 
transition into a job and enable the new employee to become effective and productive as 816 
quickly as possible. 817 

1. Orientation Program Outline 818 
a. Overview 819 
b. Tribal Government and Procedures 820 
c. Key Policies and Procedures 821 
d. Benefits 822 
e. Safety, Health and Security 823 
f. Departmental Orientation 824 

2. Responsibilities 825 
a. The HRD Office will administer the General Orientation Program 826 

1) The HRD Office will assist Divisions in administering Departmental Orientation 827 
Programs. 828 

b. The HRD Office will develop and establish an Employee Mentor Program with each 829 
Division. 830 
1) Employee Mentors will be responsible for conducting the Departmental 831 

Orientation. 832 
2) Employee Mentors will assist new employees throughout their probation period 833 

as a source of references and referrals. 834 
c. The HRD Office will annually review the General Orientation Program and each 835 

Departmental Orientation Program to: 836 
1) Evaluate the effectiveness of each Program, 837 
2) Modify programs as necessary. 838 
3) Requirements 839 

a) The HRD Office will provide a copy of the Employee Policy and Procedures 840 
Manual to new employees before (if possible) the scheduled starting date. 841 

b) The General Orientation Program will be completed in appropriate stages 842 
within the first month of the new employee’s starting date. 843 
i. The Departmental Orientation will be completed within the first week of 844 

the starting date. 845 
c) The HRD Office will administer a NEW Employee Reporting Form to provide 846 

information for the purposes of maintaining a Nation-wide skills assessment 847 
inventory and a management succession plan. 848 
 849 

B. EVALUATIONS 850 
1. Evaluation reports will be used in determining all promotions, transfers and salary 851 

adjustments. 852 
2. Annual evaluation reports for each employee will be submitted to the HRD Office by 853 

August 1 of each year. (Work Standard, 6-23-15)  854 
a. Evaluation reports will be retained in each employee’s personnel file. 855 

3. All Oneida Nation employees will be evaluated at least once a year. 856 
a. Employee performance evaluations will be conducted by each employee’s immediate 857 

supervisor.  The Business Committee will conduct the performance evaluation of the 858 
General Manager.  (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16)     859 

b. The supervisor will discuss the evaluation with each employee.  The evaluation will 860 
then be signed by the employee and the supervisor and forwarded to the HRD 861 
Office. 862 

288 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

21 

4. Satisfactory evaluations may result in the employee receiving an increase in pay within 863 
their grade level provided that the employee has not attained the highest step within the 864 
grade. 865 
a. Unsatisfactory evaluations will result in probation status for the employee.  The 866 

supervisor shall provide documentation to the Area Manager and to the employee 867 
detailing the deficiency(s).  A repeat evaluation will be conducted three (3) months 868 
after the unsatisfactory evaluation.  This second evaluation will result in the 869 
employee: 870 
1) Being removed from probation and receiving a salary increase if the second 871 

evaluation results in an overall satisfactory rating; or 872 
2) Receiving appropriate disciplinary actions if the second evaluation also results in 873 

an unsatisfactory rating. 874 
b. Employees may appeal unsatisfactory evaluations to the HRD Manager.  The HRD 875 

ManagerHuman Resources Executive Director.  The Human Resources Executive 876 
Director will consult with the supervisor and the employee to negotiate an 877 
appropriate resolution (Work Standard, 12-8-16) 878 
 879 

C. CAREER DEVELOPMENT 880 
1. Oneida Nation employees are encouraged to develop their skills and abilities by 881 

pursuing education at a local educational institution. (BC Action, 9-9-92) 882 
a. Oneida Nation employees must provide a general Career Development Plan to the 883 

supervisor listing the goals and objectives of the training and education to be 884 
undertaken. 885 

2. Oneida Nation employees may be eligible for assistance for one (1) course per semester.  886 
The employee must attempt to arrange to take the class outside his/her normal working 887 
hours. 888 
a. Where a class conflicts with the employee’s work schedule, the needs of the Tribal 889 

unit take precedence; however, the supervisor shall attempt to accommodate the 890 
employee’s request. 891 

b. In no case shall the accommodation exceed actual class hours plus reasonable travel 892 
time. 893 

c. Employees must obtain the approval of their immediate supervisor to take a course 894 
on work time. 895 

3. The supervisor’s approval and estimated cost must be submitted to the HRD Office, the 896 
Area Manager and the General Manager. (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16)   897 

4. The cost of the books, tuition and fees for the course shall be paid by the Nation through 898 
funds budgeted in programs or through the Higher Education program. 899 
a. Reimbursement for books, tuition and fees is contingent upon the employee 900 

receiving at least a C (2.0 on a 4.0 point scale). 901 
b. Employees who receive less than the required grade point will be required to 902 

reimburse the program for whatever costs were incurred. 903 
 904 

D. COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 905 
Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process for handling problem employees. 906 
Disciplinary procedures serve to correctcorrecting unacceptable behavior and to protect the 907 
Nation. problematic behaviors in employees. Grievance procedures provide a systematic 908 
process for hearing and evaluating job related disputes.  Grievance procedures serve to 909 
protectprotecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment.  In all cases of 910 
grievance and discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and 911 
judicious good sense to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary 912 

289 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

22 

prerogatives, and handle grievances. 913 
(HR Interpretation, 2-4-13)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-14)   914 
1. Complaints 915 

a. ShouldGeneral 916 
1) The Nation recognizes that all employees have the right to file a complaint 917 

against another employee, and that all complaint investigations shall be handled 918 
with the utmost fairness, respect, and equality. 919 

2) The Nation recognizes there are various levels of severity of complaints, and 920 
dependent on the severity of the complaint, not all complaints shall follow the 921 
same process. 922 

3) An employee found to have given false information or made a false claim shall 923 
face disciplinary action in accordance with the appropriate policies and 924 
procedures. 925 

4) Access to complaint information shall be limited to those who have a legitimate 926 
need to know. 927 

5) Retaliation of any form against an employee have a for filing a complaint shall be 928 
strictly prohibited. 929 

b. Types of Complaints 930 
1) Employee Disagreements 931 

a) An employee disagreement with another employee, he/she may lodgeoccurs 932 
when an informal (employee alleges they are having problems, 933 
misunderstandings, or frustrations with another employee. 934 

2) EEO Violations 935 
a) An EEO violation occurs when an employee alleges they are being bullied, 936 

working in a hostile work environment, being discriminated against, being 937 
harassed, being intimidated, being retaliated against, or being sexually 938 
harassed. 939 
i. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests 940 

for sexual favors, and other verbal) or physical conduct of a sexual nature 941 
when: 942 

1. submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a 943 
term or condition of an individual’s employment; 944 

2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as 945 
the basis for employment decisions affecting such individuals; or 946 

3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering 947 
with an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, 948 
hostile, or offensive work environment. 949 

3) formal (written)Illegal Activities 950 
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee alleges: 951 

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, bribery, lying under oath, 952 
obstruction, or interference with a criminal investigation; 953 

ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession of a dangerous or 954 
unauthorized material, such as explosives or firearms, in the workplace; 955 

iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or possession of an illegal 956 
controlled substance; or 957 

iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of property which includes, 958 
but is not limited to, theft, embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, pilfering, 959 
robbery, extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to commit such 960 
actions. 961 

4) Additional Complaints 962 

290 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

23 

a) Complaints of alleged workplace violence shall be reported and processed in 963 
accordance with the Nation’s Workplace Violence law.  964 

b) Complaints of use of prohibited drugs and/or alcohol during working hours 965 
shall be reported and processed in accordance with the Nation’s Drug and 966 
Alcohol Free Workplace law. 967 

c. Complaint Procedures 968 
1) Employee Disagreements 969 

a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee 970 
may file a complaint with the employee’sEEO Department. 971 

a.b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 972 
Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint. 973 

b.c) The supervisor will shall have ten (10) working days to investigate the 974 
complaint and attempt to resolve the disagreementcomplaint. 975 
i. If the employee lodgingThe supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe 976 

begins the day after the supervisor receives the complaint is 977 
dissatisfiedfrom the EEO Department. 978 

ii. The supervisor shall meet with the attempted resolution, 979 
he/sheemployee filing the complaint as well as all other parties 980 
mentioned in the complaint. 981 

1. Meetings between the supervisor and employees may askoccur in 982 
person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 983 

2. The supervisor shall document all attempts made to meet with an 984 
employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 985 
complained about is unavailable, the supervisor shall move forward 986 
with the investigation based on the information they have. 987 

iii. If the supervisor cannot complete the investigation within the ten (10) 988 
working day timeframe, the supervisor may request a one (1) time five 989 
(5) working day extension from the EEO Department. 990 

iv. When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall 991 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 992 

c.1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO 993 
Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the 994 
supervisor shall provide written justification for non-agreement on the 995 
resolution to both the Area Manager to attempt a resolutionand the 996 
Human Resources Executive Director. 997 

d. There is no further appeal of this process. 998 
v. The supervisor shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager to 999 

ensure accountability. 1000 
vi. The supervisor shall also send the final resolution and all supporting 1001 

documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department 1002 
for filing and reporting purposes. 1003 

d) If the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint 1004 
within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice to 1005 
the Area Manager. 1006 
i. The notice shall notify the Area Manager that the complaint was not 1007 

addressed within the allotted ten (10) working days. 1008 
ii. The notice shall inform the Area Manager that the supervisor violated 1009 

the complaint process by being negligent in the performance of their 1010 
assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 1011 

iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 1012 

291 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

24 

1. If the Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the 1013 
accountability of the supervisor, then the EEO Department shall send 1014 
notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of 1015 
command. If the General Manager level position was the Area 1016 
Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the notice 1017 
to the Oneida Business Committee. 1018 

iv. The notice shall direct the Area Manager to complete the complaint 1019 
investigation within ten (10) working days of receiving the notice from 1020 
EEO. 1021 

e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may 1022 
refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area 1023 
Manager. 1024 
i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 1025 

Department shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the 1026 
complaint. 1027 

ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 1028 
investigation. 1029 

iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 1030 
the Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 1031 

iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as 1032 
well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 1033 

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may occur 1034 
in person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 1035 

2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with an 1036 
employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 1037 
complained about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall move 1038 
forward with the investigation based on the information they have. 1039 

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area Manager 1040 
shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate 1041 
resolution. 1042 

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with the 1043 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then 1044 
the Area Manager shall provide written justification for non-1045 
agreement on the resolution to both the appropriate GM level 1046 
position and the HRD Executive Director. 1047 

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 1048 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department 1049 
for filing and reporting purposes. 1050 

vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final.  1051 
f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 1052 

complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send 1053 
notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the 1054 
General Manager level position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then 1055 
the EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 1056 
i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level position that the 1057 

complaint was not addressed within the additional ten (10) working 1058 
days. 1059 

ii. The notice shall inform the General Manager level position that the Area 1060 
Manager violated the complaint process by being negligent in the 1061 

292 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

25 

performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 1062 
investigate a complaint. 1063 

iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the Area 1064 
Manager. 1065 

iv. The notice shall address the General Manager level position’s 1066 
responsibility to complete the complaint investigation and reach a 1067 
resolution. 1068 

1. Investigation Procedure for all General Manager Level Positions, not 1069 
the Oneida Business Committee 1070 
a. The General Manager level position shall complete the 1071 

investigation and reach a resolution within ten (10) working days 1072 
of receiving the notice from EEO. 1073 

b. The General Manager level position’s ten (10) working day 1074 
timeframe begins the day after the General Manager level position 1075 
receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 1076 

c. The General Manager level position shall meet with the employee 1077 
filing the complaint as well as all other parties mentioned in the 1078 
complaint. 1079 
i. Meetings between the General Manager level position and the 1080 

employees may occur in person, through video conferencing, 1081 
or by telephone. 1082 

ii. The General Manager level position shall document all 1083 
attempts made to meet with an employee. If the complaining 1084 
employee or the employee being complained about is 1085 
unavailable, the General Manager level position shall move 1086 
forward with the investigation based on the information they 1087 
have. 1088 

d. When the General Manager level position’s investigation is 1089 
complete, the General Manager level position shall contact the 1090 
EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 1091 
i. If the General Manager level position cannot come to a mutual 1092 

determination with the EEO Officer as to an appropriate 1093 
resolution for the complaint, then the General Manager level 1094 
position shall provide written justification for non-agreement 1095 
on the resolution to the Human Resources Executive Director. 1096 

e. The final resolution shall be sent to the EEO Department for filing 1097 
and reporting purposes. 1098 

f. The General Manager level position’s resolution of the complaint 1099 
shall be final.  1100 

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida Business Committee 1101 
a. When the GM level position of a complaint was the Area Manager 1102 

in the complaint, then the Oneida Business Committee shall 1103 
complete the investigation and reach a resolution in accordance 1104 
with their standard operating procedure regarding complaints. 1105 

2) EEO Violations 1106 
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with the EEO Department. 1107 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 1108 

the complaint. 1109 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the 1110 

EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee. 1111 

293 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

26 

d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee being 1112 
complained about so they: 1113 
i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee;  1114 
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 1115 

resolution; and  1116 
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 1117 

accountability.  1118 
e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as 1119 

all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 1120 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave 1121 

while the employee is being investigated for an EEO Violation complaint. 1122 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 1123 

mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  1124 
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 1125 

resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes.  1126 
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  1127 

3) Illegal Activities 1128 
a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with the EEO 1129 

Department. 1130 
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 1131 

the complaint. 1132 
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the 1133 

EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee. 1134 
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee being 1135 

complained about so they: 1136 
i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee;  1137 
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 1138 

resolution; and  1139 
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 1140 

accountability.  1141 
e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as 1142 

all other parties mentioned in the complaint. 1143 
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave 1144 

while the employee is being investigated for an Illegal Activities complaint. 1145 
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 1146 

mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  1147 
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 1148 

resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes.  1149 
i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  1150 
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint investigation of the employee 1151 

resulted in the conclusion that an illegal activity did occur, then the EEO 1152 
Officer shall forward the complaint resolution and all support documentation 1153 
to a local law enforcement agency. 1154 
i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize their investigation and 1155 

accountability processes for the complaint.  1156 
2. Discipline 1157 

2.a. Initiation of Disciplinary ActionsAction.  1158 
a.1) Disciplinary actions willshall be initiated by an immediate supervisor for 1159 

the purpose of correcting unacceptableunsatisfactory work performance.  The 1160 
supervisor will always discuss or as the action with the employee being 1161 

294 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

27 

disciplined to ensure that the employee:resolution of an Employee Disagreement 1162 
complaint investigation.   1163 

1)i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary action; 1164 
2) Understands the expected work performance in light of the disciplinary action; 1165 

3)i. Understands the consequences of continued unacceptable behavior. 1166 
2) A supervisor Disciplinary actions shall initiatebe initiated by an EEO Officer as the 1167 

resolution of an EEO Violation complaint or an Illegal Activities complaint 1168 
investigation. 1169 

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action.  1170 
1) All disciplinary actions shall commensurate with the seriousness of the 1171 

unsatisfactory performance.   or violation.   1172 
2) Disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive order.  1173 

a) The progressive order for discipline is as follows, unless otherwise noted: 1174 
i. Written warning (W); 1175 
ii. Suspension (S);  1176 
iii. Termination (T). 1177 

b) Deviation from Progressive Order  1178 
i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 1179 

supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO 1180 
Department.  1181 

ii. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 1182 
EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and approved by the Human 1183 
Resources Executive Director, or designee. 1184 

3) Accumulated Disciplinary Actions Warranting Termination 1185 
a) The following accumulations of disciplinary actions shall warrant the 1186 

termination of an employee: 1187 
i. Three (3) upheld warning notices within any twelve (12) month period; 1188 
ii. Two (2) upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month period; or 1189 
iii. Any combination of three (3) upheld warning notices and/or upheld 1190 

suspensions within any twelve (12) month period. 1191 
c. Disciplinary Action for Unsatisfactory Work Performance.   1192 

b.1) A supervisor must consider eachmay initiate disciplinary action in 1193 
progressive order and justify a deviance from that recommended progressionfor 1194 
unsatisfactory work performance of an employee. 1195 

c.2) The actions listed below are examples of unacceptableunsatisfactory work 1196 
performance and do not constitute a comprehensive or exhaustive list.  The 1197 
actions in parentheses are guidelines for a supervisor to use the progressive order 1198 
standards to be used in administering disciplinary actions. (W = written warning; 1199 
S = suspension; T = termination):, unless a deviation is sought and approved. 1200 
1)a) Work Performance 1201 

a)i. Insubordination (including disobedience) or failure/refusal to carry out 1202 
assignments or instructions. (W/S/T) 1203 

b)ii. Loafing, loitering, sleeping or engaging in personal business. (W/S/T) 1204 
c)iii. Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information or records. (S/T) 1205 
d)iv. Falsifying records or giving false information to departments and/or 1206 

employees responsible for Recordkeeping. (S/T) 1207 
e)v. Failure to provide accurate and complete information where such 1208 

information is required by an authorized person. (S/T) 1209 
f)vi. Failure to comply with health, safety and sanitation requirements, rules 1210 

and regulations. (W/S/T) 1211 

295 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

28 

g)vii. Negligence in the performance of assigned duties. (W/S/T) 1212 
2)b) Attendance and Punctuality 1213 

a)i. Failure to report promptly and observe work schedules (such as starting 1214 
time, quitting time, rest and meal breaks) without the specific approval of 1215 
the supervisor. (W/S/T) 1216 

b)ii. A pattern of unexcused or excessive absenteeism and/or tardiness. 1217 
(W/S/T) 1218 

3)c) Use of Property 1219 
a)i. Unauthorized or improper use of Oneida Nation property or equipment 1220 

(for example, Oneida Nation vehicles, telephone, mail services, etc.) 1221 
(W/S/T) 1222 

b)ii. Unauthorized possession, removal or willful destruction of Oneida 1223 
Nation or another employee’s property (including improper use of 1224 
possession of uniforms, identification cards, badges, permits or 1225 
weapons).  (Willful destruction of property may subject the violator to 1226 
applicable liability laws.) (T) 1227 

c)iii. Unauthorized use, lending, borrowing or duplicating of Oneida Nation 1228 
keys. (T) 1229 

d)iv. Unauthorized entry of Oneida Nation property, including unauthorized 1230 
entry outside of assigned hours of work or entry into restricted areas 1231 
without prior supervisory approval. (S/T) 1232 

e)v. Theft orof property shall include theft, embezzlement, cheating, 1233 
defrauding, pilfering, robbery, extortion, racketeering, swindling or any 1234 
of these actions, or conspiracy to commit such actions with Oneida 1235 
Nation employees or other persons against the Nation, its guests, 1236 
employee, members, customers and/or clients while on or about 1237 
Tribalthe Nation’s premises. (S/T)  (BC Action, 12‐2‐88)    1238 

4)d) Personal Actions and Appearance 1239 
a)i. Threatening, attempting, or doing bodily harm to another person. (T) 1240 

b)ii. Intimidating, interfering with or using abusive language toward 1241 
customers, clients, co-workers or others. (S/T) 1242 

c)iii. Making false or malicious statements concerning other employees, 1243 
supervisors or program heads. (W/S/T) 1244 

d)iv. Use of alcohol or illegal controlled substances during work hours. (S/T) 1245 
 (GTC Resolution, 01‐05‐09A)  1246 

e)v. Reporting for work under the influence of alcohol or illegal controlled 1247 
substances. (S/T) (GTC Resolution, 01-05-09A) 1248 

f)vi. Failure to immediately report any work-related injuries to the immediate 1249 
supervisor. (W/S) 1250 

g)vii. Direct involvement in political campaigning during scheduled work 1251 
hours.  Violations include: 1252 

i.1. Use of Oneida Nation employment title in Oneida Nation campaign 1253 
activities. (W/S/T) 1254 
1.a. Political materials include: leaflets, brochures, etc. which solicit 1255 

support for candidates for office. 1256 
2.b. Resolutions or petitions which propose that a political action be 1257 

initiated.   1258 
3.c. Leaflets, newsletters, or other written materials the purpose of 1259 

which is to espouse political views or opinions. 1260 

296 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

29 

h)viii. The acceptance of gifts or gratuities for personal gain in the course of 1261 
official duties. (Customers are allowed to tip Bingo workers, Oneida 1262 
TobaccoRetail Enterprise workers, and Museum Workersworkers.) 1263 
(W/S/T) 1264 

i)ix. Inappropriate dress or personal hygiene which adversely affects the 1265 
proper performance of duties or constitutes a health or safety hazard. 1266 
(W/S) 1267 

j)x. Failure to exercise proper judgment. (W/S/T) 1268 
k)xi. Failure to be courteous in dealing with fellow employees or the general 1269 

public. (W/S/T) 1270 
l)xii. Any of the following acts by employees: Arson, bribery, perjury, 1271 

obstruction or interference with an investigation authorized by the 1272 
Oneida Nation. (S/T) 1273 
(BC Action, 12-2-88) 1274 

 1275 
xiii. The use, possession, selling or purchasing of, or attempt to sell or 1276 

purchase alcohol, and/or controlled substances prohibited drugs on or 1277 
about Oneida Nation premises. while on duty. (S/T) 1278 

m)1. Prohibited drug means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, 1279 
amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, 1280 
barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substances included in 1281 
Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the 1282 
United States Code. Prohibited drugs also includes prescription 1283 
medication or over-the-counter medicine when used in an 1284 
unauthorized or unlawful manner. 1285 
(BC Action, 12‐2‐88) 1286 

n)xiv. Any violation of duly adopted Oneidalaws of the Nation ordinances. 1287 
(W/S/T) (BC Action, 12-2-88) 1288 

5) Sexual Harassment Policy 1289 
It is the Oneida Nation’s Policy that all employees have a right to work in an 1290 
environment free of discrimination which includes freedom from harassment, 1291 
more specifically sexual harassment.  The Oneida Nation considers sexual 1292 
harassment, in whatever form, in the workplace to be a serious violation of an 1293 
individual’s dignity and personal rights.  In all matters, where complaint of sexual 1294 
harassment is lodged against an employee, the Oneida Nation has a duty and 1295 
obligation to conduct a thorough investigation using discretion, good judgment 1296 
and the principles and practice of strict confidentiality.  If sexual harassment has 1297 
been committed, the progressive disciplinary process is as follows (W/S/T). 1298 
 1299 

1. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, 1300 
requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a 1301 
sexual nature when (1) submission to such conduct is made either 1302 
explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s 1303 
employment, (2) submissions to or rejection of such conduct by an 1304 
individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such 1305 
individuals, or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of 1306 
substantially interfering with an individual’s work performance or 1307 
creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 1308 

a) Sexual Harassment (W/S/T) 1309 
i. Procedure 1310 

297 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

30 

a. Should an employee have a complaint, he/she should file a formal 1311 
(written) complaint with the Human Resources Department. 1312 

b. The Human Resources Department is obligated to investigate the 1313 
complaint which is to be held in the strictest confidence.  This 1314 
investigation shall be done within five (5) working days from 1315 
receiving the formal written complaint. 1316 

c. After investigating the complaint and the Human Resources 1317 
Department finds cause to take disciplinary action due to sexual 1318 
harassment violation, the employee will be disciplined accordingly 1319 
by their supervisor.  This disciplinary action shall be initiated within 1320 
five (5) working days from the date the supervisor receives the 1321 
report from the Human Resource Department. (BC Actions, 7-16-93) 1322 

3. Accumulated Disciplinary Actions Warranting Termination (HR Interpretation,1-29-14) (Provided 1323 
that the Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy shall govern disciplinary actions 1324 
warranting termination for drug and alcohol related violations.) (GTC Resolution, 01-05-09A)   1325 
a. The accumulation of three (3) upheld warning notices within any twelve (12) month 1326 

period. (T) 1327 
b. The accumulation of two (2) upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month 1328 

period. (T) 1329 
c. The accumulation of three (3) of any combination of upheld warning notices and/or 1330 

upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month period. (T) 1331 
4. Substance Abuse Disciplinary Procedure - Section was deleted. (GTC Resolution, 01-05-09-A)   1332 

Click here for Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy. 1333 
5.d. Disciplinary Procedure (Disciplinary Flowchart) 1334 

The Procedure.  The following procedure shall be adhered to by the supervisor or 1335 
EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 1336 
1) Supervisor becomes aware of The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a 1337 

disciplinary action form within five (5) working days of either:  1338 
a) the resolution of a complaint from which it has been determined that 1339 

disciplinary action is warranted, or 1340 
a.b) the determination that disciplinary action is warranted based on the 1341 

unsatisfactory work performance or violation.of an employee.  1342 
1) Supervisor investigates through a meeting with the employees and determines 1343 

whether disciplinary action is warranted. 1344 
2) If disciplinary action is warranted, within five (5) working days the The supervisor 1345 

willor EEO Officer shall fill out the five (5) part disciplinary action form statingin its 1346 
entirety and ensure the information contained on the form is complete and 1347 
accurate. The disciplinary action form shall include at a minimum the following 1348 
information:  1349 
a) Statement of the behavior for which the disciplinary action is being taken, 1350 

the;  1351 
b) The time and date of its occurrence,; and the 1352 
b.c) The specific policy section under which action is being taken. 1353 

c.3) The form will be discussedsupervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a 1354 
meeting with the employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the 1355 
employee and identify a  corrective action will be identified. 1356 
a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee may 1357 

occur in person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 1358 

298 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

31 

b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall discuss the disciplinary 1359 
action with the employee being disciplined to ensure that the employee: 1360 
i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary action; 1361 
ii. Understands the expected work performance in light of the disciplinary 1362 

action; and  1363 
iii. Understands the consequences of continued unacceptable behavior. 1364 

d.4) The employee being disciplined willshall sign the disciplinary action form. 1365 
1)a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss the action with 1366 

his/hertheir supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to sign the disciplinary 1367 
action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer shall so note this, with date of 1368 
refusal, on the form and distribute as in 5.e. 1369 

5) Copies will be given to the employee, the HRD Manager, the supervisor, the 1370 
Within one (1) working day of the conclusion of the meeting with the employee, 1371 
the supervisor or EEO Officer shall provide copies of the signed disciplinary action 1372 
form, or disciplinary action form noting the date of refusal, to the: 1373 
a) Employee being disciplined; 1374 
b) Human Resources Executive Director; 1375 
c) Supervisor; 1376 
d) Area Manager; and  1377 
e.e) Appropriate General Manager within twenty-four (24) hours of the 1378 

conference with the employee. (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16) level position.  1379 
f.6) Should a disciplinary action result in the suspension or termination of an 1380 

employee, the following guidelines shall apply: 1381 
a) TheConsultation on Suspensions 1382 

1)i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the supervisor shall consult 1383 
with the HRD ManagerEEO Officer to mutually determine the length of 1384 
the suspension. 1385 

ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall 1386 
consult with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually 1387 
determine the length of the suspension. 1388 

a)b) Suspensions willshall be limited to a maximum period of three (3) weeks. 1389 
i. Suspension/terminationsSuspensions that are overturned in the 1390 

grievance process shall result in the employee receiving back pay for the 1391 
time they were suspended. 1392 

7) Should a disciplinary action result in the termination of an employee, the 1393 
following guidelines shall apply: 1394 
a) Consultation on Termination  1395 

i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the supervisor shall consult 1396 
with the EEO Officer to mutually determine that the termination is the 1397 
appropriate disciplinary action. 1398 

ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall 1399 
consult with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually 1400 
determine that the termination is the appropriate disciplinary action. 1401 

b) Terminations that are overturned in the appealgrievance process shall result 1402 
in the employee receiving back pay for the days he/she was suspended/time 1403 
they were terminated. 1404 

8) The Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary action for clear 1405 
procedural errors. 1406 
a) The EEO Officer may void a disciplinary action taken by a supervisor for clear 1407 

procedural errors.  1408 

299 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

32 

b) The Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, may void a disciplinary 1409 
action taken by an EEO Officer for clear procedural errors.  1410 

c) Notification of a voided disciplinary action shall be sent to the supervisor or 1411 
EEO Officer and the employee which identifies the procedural error. 1412 

9) For any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures, the 1413 
EEO Department shall send a letter to the Area Manager. 1414 
a) The letter shall notify the Area Manager that the supervisor violated the 1415 

disciplinary process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned 1416 
duties and failure to appropriately discipline an employee. 1417 

b) The letter shall address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 1418 
3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart) 1419 

 1420 
a. General 1421 

1) An employee who receives a disciplinary action which he/she believesthey 1422 
believe is unfairimproper may grieve the action.   1423 

2) The Grievancegrievance process (including appeals of disciplinary action) shall be 1424 
conducted with utmost consideration for due process (within the time limits set 1425 
forth herein) but will allow and account for recognized Tribal holidays of the 1426 
Nation and unforeseen circumstances (, such as illnesses, deaths in the immediate 1427 
family of principals, etc.).  The HRD office will make every attempt to ensure that 1428 
grievance procedures are concluded within forty-five (45) workings days; 1429 
however, extensions granted for reasonable unforeseen circumstances (as 1430 
determined by the HRD Manager) may extend the process  The .   1431 

b. Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints.  An employee 1432 
may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal Activities 1433 
complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court 1434 
within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline. 1435 

6.c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and Unsatisfactory Work 1436 
Performance.  The grievance process willfor discipline that resulted from an 1437 
employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work performance shall be 1438 
governed by the following guidelines: (HR Interpretation, 8-19-2011)   (HR Interpretation, 1-29-2014) 1439 

a. For all disciplinary actions, regardless of severity: 1440 
1) Appeal to the Area Manager 1441 

1)a) The employee (petitioner) mustshall file an appeal in writing with the 1442 
Area Manager and the Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, 1443 
within ten (10) working days from the day the employee receives the 1444 
disciplinary action. 1445 

a)i. The employee may seek the assistance of a spokesperson oran advocate 1446 
at any time after the disciplinary action has been issued in order to aid in 1447 
the resolution of the grievance process. 1448 

b) The appeal must be filed with the Area Manager and the HRD Manager (or 1449 
designee) within ten (10) working days from the day the employee receives 1450 
the disciplinary action. 1451 

2)b) The Area Manager, for all disciplinary action investigations, willshall have 1452 
ten (10) working days from the receipt of the employee’s appeal to complete 1453 
the investigation.  One extension of no more than five (5) working days may 1454 
be requested of and granted by the HRD Manager (or designee) at his or her 1455 
discretion. 1456 
i. The supervisor shall meet with the following individuals during the 1457 

disciplinary action investigation: 1458 

300 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

33 

1. Employee filing the appeal of the discipline; 1459 
2. Supervisor who issued the discipline; and  1460 
3. Any other witnesses mentioned in the appeal that were not 1461 

mentioned in the disciplinary action. 1462 
ii. Meetings between the Area Manager will doand the employees may 1463 

occur in person, through video conferencing, or by telephone. 1464 
iii. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet with an 1465 

employee. If an employee is unavailable to meet within the grievance 1466 
timelines, the Area Manager shall move forward with the investigation 1467 
based on the information they have. 1468 

iv. One (1) extension of no more than five (5) working days may be 1469 
requested of and granted by the Human Resources Executive Director, 1470 
or designee, at their discretion. 1471 

3)c) The Area Manager shall take one of the following actions: 1472 
a)i. Uphold the disciplinary action; or 1473 

b)ii. Modify the disciplinary action; or 1474 
iii. Overturn the disciplinary action.  1475 

c)1.  If a suspension or termination is overturned, the employee 1476 
(petitioner) shall be reinstated to the position the employee was 1477 
suspended or terminated from with full back pay. 1478 

d) The Area Manager willshall file atheir decision with the employee and the 1479 
HRD Manager (Human Resources Executive Director, or designee) and will. 1480 
The decision of the Area Manager shall include :  1481 
i. a reason for the decision, ; 1482 
ii. an explanation of the decision; and  1483 

4)iii. the action to be taken as a result of it. 1484 
e) Filing a ComplaintAn Area Manager who does not comply with the 1485 

disciplinary action grievance procedure may be subject to discipline. 1486 
b.2) Appeal to the Oneida Personnel Commission (BC Resolution, 3-18-19) 1487 

1)a) An employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida 1488 
Personnel Commission by filing a complaintgrievance with the Human 1489 
Resources DepartmentGovernment Administrative Office on behalf of the 1490 
Oneida Personnel Commission within ten (10) working days from the 1491 
employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision. 1492 

a) The employee shall file the appeal within ten (10) working days from the 1493 
employee’s receipt of the Area Manager’s decision 1494 

2)b) The Human Resources DepartmentGovernment Administrative Office 1495 
shall notify the Human Resources Department Manager of receiptExecutive 1496 
Director of the appeal of the Area Manager’s decision within one (1) business 1497 
day of receipt of the appeal. 1498 

c. Collection of Information 1499 
1)c) The Human Resources DepartmentThe Government Administrative Office 1500 

shall collect all information the Area Manager used in making the decision to 1501 
uphold or modify the disciplinary action. 1502 

d. Review of the Complaint 1503 
d) The Human Resources DepartmentThe Government Administrative Office 1504 

shall provide the information obtained to the Oneida Personnel Commission 1505 
members selected to serve as the hearing body for the complaint, and the 1506 
appeal. 1507 

301 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

34 

1)e) The Oneida Personnel Commissioners shall review all the information 1508 
submitted by the Petitioneremployee petitioner and the Human Resources 1509 
DepartmentGovernment Administrative Office to determine if one (1) or both 1510 
conditions exist; 1511 

a)i. The decision of the Area Manager is clearly against the weight of the 1512 
evidence; and/or 1513 

b)ii. Procedural irregularities were exhibited during the appeal process that 1514 
were harmful to one of the parties to the grievance. 1515 

2)f) If Oneida Personnel Commission members selected to serve as the hearing 1516 
body for the complaintappeal find one (1) or both conditions exist, the 1517 
Human Resources DepartmentGovernment Administrative Office shall 1518 
convene the Oneida Personnel Commission to hear the grievance. 1519 

3)g) If the Oneida Personnel Commission members find that neither condition 1520 
exists, the Oneida Personnel Commission willshall deny the appeal for a 1521 
hearing and affirm the decision of the Area Manager. 1522 

e.h) Convening a Hearing 1523 
1)i. The Human Resources DepartmentThe Government Administrative 1524 

Office shall schedule a time and location for the grievance hearing and 1525 
shall confirm the participation of the Oneida Personnel Commission 1526 
members selected to serve as the hearing body for the complaint. 1527 

2)ii. The Human Resources DepartmentThe Government Administrative 1528 
Office shall send notice of the hearing to the petitioner, respondent, and 1529 
Oneida Personnel Commission members at least five (5) working days 1530 
prior to the hearing date. 1531 

3)iii. The Human Resources DepartmentThe Government Administrative 1532 
Office shall provide copies of all information on the subject case upon 1533 
which the disciplinary action was upheld or modified by the Area 1534 
Manager to the members of the Oneida Personnel Commission at least 1535 
two (2) working days prior to the appeal date. 1536 

4)iv. The Human Resources DepartmentGovernment Administrative Office 1537 
shall allow the petitioner and respondent access to this information in 1538 
the Human Resources DepartmentGovernment Administrative Office at 1539 
least two (2) days prior to the appeal date. 1540 

f.i) Hearing Procedure 1541 
1)i. The order of presentation for the hearing shall be: 1542 

a)1. Petitioner’s opening statement; 1543 
b)2. Respondent’s opening statement; 1544 
c)3. The Petitioner’s case; 1545 
d)4. The Respondent’s case; 1546 
e)5. Petitioner’s closing statement; and  1547 
f)6. Respondent’s closing statement. 1548 

2)ii. The petitioner shall have the right to be represented by an advocate, at 1549 
his or hertheir own expense.  The respondent and/or area managerArea 1550 
Manager who is party to the grievance action shall have access to an 1551 
advocate for consultation and/or representation.  Should the petitioner 1552 
engage outside professional legal representation, the respondent and/or 1553 
area managerArea Manager shall have access to the professional legal 1554 
representation. 1555 

a)1. Should the petitioner and his or hertheir representative both fail to 1556 
appear for any scheduled hearing without justifiable cause, the 1557 

302 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

35 

decision of the Area Manager shall be upheld, and the grievance 1558 
dismissed. 1559 

b)2. Should the respondent and his/hertheir representative both fail to 1560 
appear for any scheduled hearing without justifiable cause, the 1561 
decision of the Area Manager shall be overturned. 1562 

3)iii. If new evidence which was previously unavailable is introduced at any 1563 
point during the hearing process, the Oneida Personnel Commission 1564 
hearing shall be suspended, and the case willshall be remanded to the 1565 
Area Manager for reconsideration. 1566 

a)1. The Area Manager shall reconsider the decision in light of the new 1567 
evidence and issue a decision within three (3) working days. 1568 

b)2. This procedure may be invoked only once. 1569 
c)iv. Thereafter, the appeal process shall continue to a conclusion based on 1570 

the information originally presented and the newly introduced evidence. 1571 
i.1. If the Area Manager overturns his or hertheir decision, the case 1572 

wouldshall not come back for a hearing. 1573 
ii.2. If the Area Manager affirms his or hertheir decision, then the case 1574 

willshall come back to the Oneida Personnel Commission to complete 1575 
the hearing. 1576 

4)v. The Oneida Personnel Commission’s decision shall be based solely on the 1577 
information presented to them before the appeal hearing, the record of 1578 
the prior proceedings, and any new evidence if introduced 1579 
appropriately. 1580 

5)vi. The Oneida Personnel Commission may: 1581 
a)1. Uphold the disciplinary action; or 1582 
b)2. Overturn the disciplinary action and: 1583 

i.a. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) with full back pay for any lost 1584 
time in accordance with the Back Pay law; or 1585 

ii.b. Reinstate the employee (petitioner) without back pay. 1586 
6)vii. The Oneida Personnel Commission shall provide notification of the final 1587 

decision within five (5) working days following the hearing.  Notification 1588 
of the final decision shall include; 1589 

a)1. The final decision; 1590 
b)2. The reason(s) for the final decision; and 1591 
c)3. The action to be taken as a result of the final decision. 1592 

7)j) The Human Resources DepartmentThe Government Administrative Office 1593 
shall keep records of the hearing, and provide copies of administrative 1594 
advocacy rules, procedural rules, and time line rules to interested parties. 1595 

 1596 

 1597 

 1598 
k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfil its responsibility to hear 1599 

an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, then the employee may appeal the 1600 
Area Manager’s decision to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint 1601 
with the Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the 1602 
Area Manager’s decision. 1603 

 1604 

 1605 

303 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

36 

 1606 

 1607 

 1608 

 1609 

 1610 

 1611 

 1612 

 1613 

 1614 

 1615 

 1616 

 1617 

 1618 

 1619 

 1620 

 1621 

 1622 

 1623 

 1624 

 1625 

 1626 

 1627 

 1628 

 1629 

 1630 

 1631 

 1632 

 1633 

 1634 

 1635 

 1636 

SECTION VI – SAFETY AND HEALTH 1637 

 1638 
A.  POLICY 1639 
The personal safety and health of each employee, customer and client of the Oneida Nation is 1640 
of primary importance. The prevention of injuries and illnesses is of such importance that it will 1641 
take precedence over operating productivity whenever necessary. 1642 
 1643 
The Oneida Nation will maintain a safety and health program conforming to the best practices 1644 
available. To be successful, this program will work to develop the proper attitudes toward on- 1645 
the-job injury and illness prevention on the part of supervisors and employees. This program will 1646 

304 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

37 

strive to develop a high level of cooperation in all safety and health matters between supervisors 1647 
and employees and among employees. 1648 
 1649 
The objective of this program is a safe and healthy environment that will reduce the number of 1650 
job-related injuries and illnesses to an absolute minimum. The Nation's goal is zero  1651 
accidents and illnesses. 1652 
 1653 
B.  PROCEDURES 1654 
The Oneida Nation Safety Committee will adopt and enforce through the Personnel 1655 
Department procedures related to the education of the Nation’s work force in matters 1656 

of safety and health. These procedures will include all education and prevention 1657 
activities, assessments and evaluations, and reporting. 1658 
 1659 

 1660 

 1661 

 1662 

 1663 

 1664 

 1665 

 1666 

 1667 

 1668 

 1669 

 1670 

 1671 

 1672 

 1673 

 1674 

 1675 

 1676 

 1677 

 1678 

 1679 

SECTION VII – PROGRAM/ENTERPRISE RULES & REGULATIONS 1680 

 1681 
A.   Enterprises and programs may establish internal rules and regulations to facilitate the 1682 
       administration of Oneida Nation Personnel Policies and Procedures. 1683 

1.  In no case will these internal rules and/or regulations conflict with or take the 1684 
 place of Oneida Nation Personnel Policies and Procedures. 1685 

2.  Enterprises and programs which establish internal rules and regulations will 1686 
 file a copy of the rules and regulations with the Personnel Department. 1687 

 1688 

 1689 

305 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

38 

 1690 

 1691 

 1692 

 1693 

 1694 

 1695 

 1696 

 1697 

 1698 

 1699 

 1700 

 1701 

 1702 

 1703 

 1704 

 1705 

 1706 

 1707 

 1708 

 1709 

 1710 

 1711 

 1712 

 1713 

 1714 

 1715 

 1716 

 1717 

 1718 

 1719 

 1720 

SECTION VIII – RECORDKEEPING 1721 
 1722 
A.  PERSONNEL OFFICE 1723 
 1. Basic records to be retained include: 1724 
  a.  Reference Data 1725 
  b.  Job Descriptions 1726 
  c.  Resumes and Applications 1727 
  d.  Interview notes/selection information 1728 
  e.  Resignations 1729 
  f.   Employee tax exemption claims 1730 

306 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

39 

  g. Disciplinary action information 1731 
  h. Performance evaluations 1732 
  i. Insurance coverage/changes 1733 
  j. Transfers 1734 
 2. The Personnel Office shall keep and maintain a complete record of each employee 1735 
   throughout his/her term of employment. 1736 
  a. Oneida Nation employees shall have access to their employment file. 1737 
  b. Employment files kept by the Personnel Office shall be considered confidential  1738 
   information.  Release of any information to a third party must have the consent 1739 
   of the employee in writing. 1740 

   1741 
B. ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 1742 
 1. Basic records to be retained include: 1743 
  a. Attendance records 1744 
  b. Employee Time Sheets 1745 
  c. Earnings - in the form of computer printouts 1746 
  d. Travel - in the form of complete travel authorization forms. 1747 
   1) Time sheets and travel reports shall be filled out by every employee for pay 1748 
    period, collected by the program head, and forwarded to the Department. 1749 
 2. The Accounting Department shall retain all records for a period of seven (7) 1750 
   years.  (BC Action, 10-14-09B)  1751 

 1752 

 1753 
 1754 

 1755 

 1756 

 1757 

 1758 

 1759 

 1760 
 1761 

SECTION IX – PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY OF EMPLOYEE RECORDS 1762 

The Human Resources Department of the Oneida Nation collects information from employees in 1763 
order to make decisions regarding personnel actions including hiring, transfers and promotions, 1764 
training, compensation and benefits, disciplinary actions and other job opportunities.  This 1765 
information is maintained by the Human Resources Department in individual files for as long as 1766 
the person is an employee of the Oneida Nation. 1767 

A. STATEMENT OF POLICY 1768 

As a general rule, the Oneida Nation considers all information contained in these files to be 1769 
private and confidential.  No information of any type shall be released to any person or agent of 1770 

307 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



Draft 1 (Redline to Last Permanent)  
2022 12 07 

Personnel Policies and Procedures                                                (BACK TO TOP) 

 
   

40 

any organization without the written consent of the employee except under the conditions 1771 
outlined herein. 1772 

B. EMPLOYEE ACCESS 1773 

In addition, the Oneida Nation recognizes that the information contained in each employee’s 1774 
file is personal and that the lives of its employees are subject to changes.  Therefore, the Oneida 1775 
Nation provides for employee access to his/her personnel file.  Employees are allowed to review 1776 
their file and submit a statement of amendment should their review uncover any inaccurate, 1777 
obsolete or irrelevant information.  Should any information come into dispute, an employee’s 1778 
statement of dispute will be accessed into the file. 1779 

C. RELEASE OF INFORMATION TO THIRD PARTIES 1780 

The Oneida Nation is obligated by law to release certain information to outside parties.  Such 1781 
parties include the State of Wisconsin’s Unemployment Compensation Department and its 1782 
Workers Compensation Division and the United States Social Security Administration.  Any 1783 
additional information released to a third party by the Human Resources Department related to 1784 
employee records shall consist of summary information and will not include any identifying 1785 
personal  information.  (Such information may be total numbers of males and females in the 1786 
workforce, mean, median and average age of the workforce, etc.) 1787 

The Oneida Nation will release personal information on employees when a request is 1788 
accompanied by a written release signed by the employee.  The Human Resources Department 1789 
will make every effort to validate this request by contacting the employee.  In no case shall the 1790 
Oneida Nation release personal information from an employee’s file without this consent. 1791 

 1792 

308 of 400

000000 
ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 12, 2023 
Page 1 of 6 

 

Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov   
 
 

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE 
PUBLIC MEETING 

Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments 
Norbert Hill Center Business Committee Conference Room and Microsoft Teams 

January 12, 2023 12:15 p.m. 
 

Present: Jennifer Webster, Clorissa N. Leeman, Carolyn Salutz, Grace Elliott, Bonnie Pigman, 
Microsoft Teams: Daniel Guzman King, Terri Schiltz, Nicholas Metoxen, Whitney Wheelock, 
Rita Reiter, Lora Danforth. Stefanie Reinke, Wendy Alvarez, Laurel Meyerspooner, Peggy Van 
Gheem, Tina Jorgensen, Chad Fuss, Sidney White, Louise Cornelius, Kelly McAndrews, Lori 
Metoxen, Laura Laitinen-Warren, Karen Smith, Kathe Cornelius, Artley Skenandore, Michelle 
Hill, Melanie Burkhart, Michelle Tipple, Jessica Vandekamp, Kelly Skenandore-Holtz, Reynold 
Danforth, Henrietta Cornelius, Racquel Hill, Gregory Matson, Lavina Cornelius, Lisa 
Rauschenbach, Grace Delgado, Mark Powless, Eric Boulanger, Matthew J. Denny, Debra 
Santiago, Kara Melchert, Debra Danforth, Lori Hill, Kristal Hill, Carrie Lindsey, Todd Vanden 
Heuvel, Trina Schuyler, Gunladunt Webster, Sharon Mousseau, Monica Doxtator, Michelle 
Braaten, Mari Kriescher, Kristen Jorgenson-Dann, Joy Salzwedel, Michelle Demmin, Lucy 
Neville, Danielle White, Mary Graves 
 
Jennifer Webster:  Good Afternoon. The time is 12:15 p.m. and today’s date is Thursday, January 
12, 2023. Do we have any idea why there is such an echo? 
 
I’ll now call to order the public meeting for the proposed amendments to the Oneida Personnel 
Policies and Procedures. 
 
The Legislative Operating Committee is hosting this public meeting to gather feedback from the 
community regarding these legislative proposals. The public meeting is not a question and answer 
period. The LOC will review and consider all comments received during the public comment 
period. The LOC will respond to all comments received in a memorandum, which will be 
submitted in the meeting materials of a future LOC meeting. 
 
All persons who wish to present oral testimony in person need to register on the sign in sheet at 
the back of the room. If you leave an email address on the sign in sheet, we can ensure you receive 
a copy of the public comment review memorandum. Individuals who wish to present oral 
testimony on Microsoft Teams, please raise your hand and you will be called on. If you leave an 
email address in the chat with your name, we can ensure you receive a copy of the public comment 
review memorandum.  
 
Additionally, written comments may be submitted to the Nation’s Secretary’s Office or to the 
Legislative Reference Office in person, by U.S. mail, interoffice mail, e-mail, or fax as provided 

309 of 400

~ 
ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 12, 2023   
Page 2 of 6 

 

on the public meeting notice.  These comments must be received by close of business on Thursday, 
January 19.  [Jenny’s mic mutes]. 
 
Tina Jorgensen: Jenny, you’re muted. 
 
Jennifer Webster: This mic? Okay. The LOC may impose a time limit for all speakers pursuant 
to section 109.8-3(c) of the Legislative Procedures Act. As the presiding LOC member, I am 
imposing a time limit of five (5) minutes per person. This time limit shall be applied equally to all 
persons. 
 
We will now begin today’s public meeting for the proposed amendments to the Oneida Personnel 
Policies and Procedures.  
 
The purpose of the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures is to provide for the Nation’s 
employee related policies and procedures including recruitment, selection, compensation and 
benefits, employee relations, safety and health, program and enterprise rules and regulations, and 
record keeping. Amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures are being made to 
address the selection process, as well as the complaint, discipline, and grievance procedures. 
 
Those who wish to speak please can come to the microphone, or if you’re online you can raise 
your hand. Please state your name when making a comment. We have nobody in person at the 
Norbert Hill Center to speak. Is there anybody online that would like to provide comments? Please 
raise your hand. Calling on Tina Jorgensen, please state your name.  
 
Tina Jorgensen: Tina Jorgensen. I have a couple of questions and then two comments. I want to 
know, well one of, one thing that is not included in the current Personnel Policies and Procedures 
for immediate family definition does not include aunt and uncle. And I believe that as an important 
part of our families. So, I feel this should be added to the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
Also, I have a question. If the Personnel Commission is not, is in place and the employee still 
appeals to the Judiciary, or can the employee still appeal to the Judiciary if they're not satisfied 
with the decision through the Personnel Commission process? 
 
With the complaint process, what if a supervisor becomes aware of an issue - and it's not really 
considered a complaint, does it still have to go through EEO? 
 
And I'd like somewhere I don't know if it's an Indian preference law, probably. But we have a large 
community of members that are not Oneida or not considered Oneida enrolled because they live 
in Canada. And they could be interested in applying for our positions, specifically in Cultural 
Heritage, and I'd like for somehow Haudenosaunee communities or community members to be 

310 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 12, 2023   
Page 3 of 6 

 

considered as part of our Indian preference. Currently, we only can post Oneida enrolled only or 
not. And I would like Oneida enrolled only at least to include those communities, or have the 
ability to post for those to include those communities. Those are my questions and comments. 
 
Jennifer Webster: So Tina, it's not a question and answer today, but what those will be included 
in the memo. So, thank you. 
 
Tina Jorgensen: Thank you. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Is there anybody else online that would like to speak? Louise Cornelius, please 
go ahead.  
 
Louise Cornelius: Good afternoon. My name is Louise Cornelius and I work for the gaming. At 
Oneida Casino as the General Manager and I just have a question, or a comment, we still we still 
can submit written comments until January 19th, correct? 
 
Jennifer Webster: Correct. 
 
Louise Cornelius: Okay, so we just wanted to make sure because I informed the staff, but I wanted 
to confirm that. Thank you. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Mmhm. Written comments can be submitted until close of business day on 
Thursday, January 19th. 
 
Louise Cornelius: Thank you much. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Is there anybody else that would like to speak to this? We'll go ahead and keep 
this open till 12:30 should anybody want to come forward and speak. Artley Skenandore, I see 
your hand. Go ahead. 
 
Artley Skenandore: Uh, just a, a statement relative to reading the executive summary. I did want 
to acknowledge the a, the bereavement expansion from three (3) to five (5)year, uhh three (3) days 
to five (5) days as a, as a very appropriate response to assist in the uh, in the development of our 
community overall. And looking across the country, many, many tribal nations are walking along 
this same path, and it certainly should be something that the rest of corporate America should look 
at relative to offering that opportunity of encouragement to support families. So, I just wanted to 
acknowledge that and make mention of uhh, that's a step in the, in a good direction for our 
community. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Thank you Art. Melanie Burkhart. 

311 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 12, 2023   
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
Melanie Burkhart: Yes, thank you. I just have a, a comment on the complaint area. I disagree 
with having the complaint process included in the law, because then that ties our hands in terms 
of needing to be able to update a process because it's part of a law. So, I don't think that should be 
included in the law. Thank you. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Thank you Melanie. Michelle Tipple. 
 
Michelle Tipple: Good afternoon. Michelle Tipple with Oneida Comprehensive Health Division. 
Just a comment and this may be in the works, but just to mention that three (3) different types of 
complaints and the different types of appeal processes, it would be helpful, I think to supervisors 
to see that in a maybe like a process map flow process or something that kind of illustrates those 
processes. Because you know, hopefully we're not in those processes often that we know them by 
heart, but that would help if someone has to go through that process.  
 
And then the second comment is I support removing the wage deduction from probationary 
employees because of the challenge in recruiting right now for our workforce. Thank you. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Thank you. Is there anybody else that like to come forward and provide 
comment? Kelly Skenandore-Holtz, please go ahead. 
 
Kelly Skenandore-Holtz: Good Afternoon, Kelly Skenandore-Holtz. I have some comments and 
questions about the section where EEO will be initiating disciplinary action in lieu of the 
supervisors in an EEO issue or illegal activity, I believe is the verbiage. My question is, what 
research has been done regarding the implications of this decision? Umm, in the operations of the 
organization. What other alternatives have been explored versus EEO issuing the disciplines?  
 
And then a comment that, there is, it feels as though there is a lot of support for leadership 
development in this organization and this process eliminates umm, the need for leadership 
development. It eliminates the ability for supervisors to take the action. It also eliminates 
supervisors’ authority. And is there a set process of how if EEO is issuing disciplinaries, what it 
will be the process as to how they determine what level of disciplinary action will take place and 
then what will be the appeal process, if anything, for supervisors that don't agree with the level of 
discipline that has been issued. 
 
[Audio from another person’s computer begins playing.] 
 
Jennifer Webster: Okay, I think somebody is listening to the Facebook live, I can hear them. If 
you can turn your mic off unless you are speaking for the public meeting today. Thank you.  
 

312 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 12, 2023   
Page 5 of 6 

 

Thank you Kelly. Racquel Hill, please go ahead. 
 
Racquel Hill: Racquel Hill. My question is in regards to the reason why this needs to go to the 
General Tribal Council for the approval. I know that it's understood that it's always been done this 
way, but does it need to be? Now, this is basically day-to-day business and it's in regards to the 
organization. So, that is the question, and I'm wondering if criteria will be set and the things that 
GTC needs to approve going forward. Thank you. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Thank you Rocky. Tina Jorgensen, please go ahead.  
 
Tina Jorgensen: I was going to submit written comments in addition, but I think I'd like to also 
reiterate what Kelly had said about the complaint process. I disagree with changing the complaint 
process and putting it in the hands of fully of the EEO Department. It appears in reading through 
those flow charts and through the proposed amendments that there is, this is being put in, and this 
is my opinion, that it's being put in place because there's a distrust in the supervisors actually doing 
their duties and responsibilities with the complaint process and holding employees accountable. 
And we have in the past, several times, put things in place because of distrust. And I think instead 
there should be more efforts to educate supervisors, maybe require more leadership development. 
And educate on the process and the responsibilities. And then also for area managers to hold those 
in, those supervisors or managers accountable instead of putting this in the hands of a different 
department. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Thank you Tina. Is there anybody else that like to come forward and provide 
comment from public meeting today? And just a reminder, you can put your name and e-mail 
address in the chat to make sure that you receive a copy of the memorandum in regards to today’s 
public meeting. Louise Cornelius, please go ahead. 
 
Louise Cornelius: I just wanted to add my comments to Kelly Skenandore-Holtz on the umm, on 
the EEO process on the disciplinary action, I don't agree with them issuing the disciplinary action. 
I think again, I concur with her, and it eliminates the supervisor’s authority. They're not familiar 
with what exactly is going on when those type of things are required, but I do, umm I do know that 
they do consult with them before issuing any type of disciplinary action with our employees. So, 
I think that works fine as it is, not to give them that authority. Thank you. 
 
Jennifer Webster: Thank you Louise. We'll keep this open a few more minutes. I know a lot of 
people jumped on late.  
 
Again, the floor is open. If anybody wants to make comments for today's meeting.  
 

313 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

LOC Public Meeting Transcript of January 12, 2023   
Page 6 of 6 

 

Okay, with there being no more speakers, the public meeting for the proposed amendments for the 
Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures is now closed at 12:34 p.m. I do believe we have record 
attendance for a public meeting today at fifty-three (53) participants. I wanna thank you all for, for 
attending and reading through the Policy. Again a reminder, written comments may be submitted 
until close of business days on Thursday, January 19, 2023. Thank you.  
  

-End of Meeting- 
 

314 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



From: Lisa A. Liggins
To: LOC
Cc: Lisa M. Summers; Brooke M. Doxtator
Subject: RE: Comments re: Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments
Date: Thursday, January 19, 2023 4:07:05 PM
Attachments: image001.png

I am in full support of the written comments submitted by the OBC Area Manager and the BCC
Supervisor to the LOC regarding the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments.
 
I would like this email of support to be accepted by my written comments regarding this piece of
legislation.
 
Thank you.
 
Lisa Liggins
Secretary
Oneida Business Committee
 

From: Brooke M. Doxtator <bdoxtat1@oneidanation.org> 
Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 3:55 PM
To: LOC <LOC@oneidanation.org>
Cc: Lisa M. Summers <lsummer2@oneidanation.org>; Lisa A. Liggins <lliggins@oneidanation.org>
Subject: Comments re: Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments
 
Please see the attached comments regarding the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures
Amendments.
 
Yawʌʔkó
 
Brooke Doxtator
Boards, Committees, and Commissions Supervisor
Government Administrative Office (GAO)
 
office 920.869.4452
 

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This message and any included attachments are intended only for the addressee.  This message
may contain privileged, confidential, or proprietary information.  Unauthorized forwarding, printing, copying, distribution, or
use of such information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.  If you have received this message in error, please inform
us promptly by reply e-mail, then delete the e-mail and destroy any printed copy.

 

315 of 400

~ 
=DDDODO 

ONEIDA 

mailto:lliggins@oneidanation.org
mailto:LOC@oneidanation.org
mailto:lsummer2@oneidanation.org
mailto:BDOXTAT1@oneidanation.org



From: Matthew W. Denny
To: LOC
Subject: OPP Proposed ammendments
Date: Thursday, January 12, 2023 11:24:13 AM

In regards to the OPP Amendments…
 
I am against the proposed amendment that allows the EEO office to investigate and issue disciplinary
action. For whatever reason!
 
As it was explained by Matt J Denny, EEO Director, that the purpose of this amendment is because
supervisors do not do or know how to do disciplinary action when it comes to EEO violations and/or
Illegal activities.
 
This is a problem with the training of the supervisor and/or Area Manager. The problem is not solved
by taking this duty away from the supervisor, and giving it to another entity who does not discipline.
The problem gets fixed by training the supervisor, and holding them accountable when they do not
perform their duties correctly, just like any other employee. This seems to be the real issue to the
problem.
 
The EEO office has been designated as an impartial entity in regards to disciplinary actions. They
currently have authority to void disciplinary actions that have clear procedural errors. This office
looks out for employees of the Nation, and the Nation, not just the Nation. Giving them authority to
discipline employee takes away their impartial status in the disciplinary procedure, and makes them
a tool of the Nation only. The proposal also talks about who hears appeals of EEO initiated
disciplines, which is different then any other procedure. This causes confusion and is unnecessary.    
 
By having a properly trained Supervisors and Area Managers, this issue, large or small, will be fixed.
Giving another entity who is not the employee’s supervisor, disciplinary authority, is NOT the
answer, and opens doors that should not be opened. Ignorance and laziness of Supervisors and Area
Managers must be addressed by HRD and the OBC with training.  Proposed solution: Make this issue
an requirement for Supervisors/Area Managers before they can discipline, just like Interview
Training is required before Hiring. Make EEO do the training.
 
Good Day.
 
Matthew W. Denny
Roll #1426

316 of 400

mailto:mdenny1@oneidanation.org
mailto:LOC@oneidanation.org


From: Wendy M. Alvarez
To: LOC
Cc: Todd A. Vanden Heuvel
Subject: OPP feedback on proposed laws
Date: Friday, January 13, 2023 2:17:12 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Good afternoon,
I would like to submit some comments based on the Proposed Amendments to the Oneida Policies
and Procedures.
 
Line 301                                What it the OPC role? Are we going to meet with them to review how this
will look?
Line 661                                If an employee quits in the first 90 days do they received PTO payout?   If
so, can they add “Employees who resign or are terminated during …..”
Line 708                                Additional Duties, there is nothing written .  Should the Work Standard be
referend?
Line 715 to 724                  Meeting attendance – is this the correct place under leaves?
Line 864                                “has not attained the highest step?  We do not have steps in the grades
an longer.  Change step to wage?
Line 898to 903                   Are we reimbursing for classes?  I didn’t think we were doing this any
longer
Line 1725                             What reference data do we retain?
Line 1728                             What interview notes/selection information do we retain?  If it is on this
list, do we have to retain the records for a specified time period?
 
Respectfully,
 
Wendy M Alvarez
Employment & Recruitment Director
920-490-3642
Human Resources
 

 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
 
PO Box 365
Oneida WI 54155
Oneida-nsn.gov
 
Confidential Disclaimer: The information contained within this e-mail is confidential and privileged. If you are not the intended
recipient, please be advised that any unauthorized use, copying or dissemination of this information is prohibited. Please destroy
this e-mail and emmediately notify me of the erromeous transmission.

 

317 of 400

ONEIDA 

mailto:walvarez@oneidanation.org
mailto:LOC@oneidanation.org
mailto:tvandenh@oneidanation.org



From: Sharon A. Mousseau
To: LOC
Cc: Jolene D. Hensberger; Sacheen Lawrence; Peggy A. Van Gheem
Subject: ONSS comments for OPPP
Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 3:59:06 PM
Attachments: ONSS Signed MOA 01 18 23.pdf

image001.png
ONSS MOA Grievance Process SOP_FINAL.pdf

Importance: High

Good afternoon,
Having reviewed the Oneida Personnel Policies and procedures amendments, I wanted to comment
regarding the Oneida Nation School System and how our MOA and SOP for Grievance Process may
interact with the newly updated process.
While the MOA is old, being signed in March of 1988, although it can not be amended except by the
Oneida General Tribal Council or at the express direction of the Oneida General Tribal Council and
shall be effect upon ratification by the Oneida General Tribal Council. This is the first attachment.
The second attachment is an updated signed ONSS MOA Grievance Process, which was approved by
the School Board on Jan. 4, 2021.
On page 13 of the OPPP, section Grievance, should there be a note of the School Board’s authority
or process with grievances? Or would this process be included with the language included on the top
of page 14 when there is a reference to the boards, committees and commissions? So when the
process is replaced by the Government Administrative Office, would the school then have the
process replaced by the Oneida Nation School Board?
We have worked with the BIE on processes and procedures for the School Board to follow and I just
don’t want their authority to be taken away until we do change the MOA. Which is long overdue to
be updated.
Thanks for your time and efforts with the public comment period for the OPPP.
Sheri

Sharon (Sheri) A. Mousseau, Superintendent
Oneida Nation School System
N7125 Seminary Rd.
Oneida, WI
920-869-4623(office)/920-869-1684 (fax)
smoussea@oneidanation.org
www.oneida-nsn.gov

318 of 400

mailto:SMOUSSEA@ONEIDANATION.org
mailto:LOC@oneidanation.org
mailto:jhensber@oneidanation.org
mailto:osb-slaw@oneidanation.org
mailto:pvanghee@oneidanation.org
mailto:smoussea@oneidanation.org
https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.oneida-nsn.gov%2F&data=05%7C01%7CLOC%40oneidanation.org%7C67460ccd5463411e67f708daf99f19f6%7Cc7e7a09730aa485ea37b537c20f88623%7C0%7C0%7C638096759453006938%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7x2qqRjxuXsivBM5J6KTJ%2FyoAEIV2CU3hwigpASlM9w%3D&reserved=0









































319 of 400

~ 
000000= 

ONEIDA 
ONEIDA NATION 
SCHOOL BOARD 

STANDARD OPERATING 
PROCEDURE 

AUTHOR: 
Sharon Mousseau 

DEPARTMENT: School 
System 

DIVISION: Non-Divisional 

EEO REFERENCE 
NUMBER: 

5889 

Page 1 of 5 

1. PURPOSE: 

TITLE: Oneida Nation School System 
MOA Grievance Hearing Process and Panel 

APPROVED~~: Superintendent 

Ji1t1JJ m1 /J, Lff! ()L0412ull 
APPROVED BY: Oneida Nation School 
Board 

OVED BY: School Board Chair 

{}rL,-
REVIEWED BY: EEO Director 

ORIGINATION DATE: 

05/07/11 
REVISION DATE: 
08/16/12; 12/28/20 ··. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
One week after Board 

approval 

DATE: 12/28/20 

DATE: 08/16/12; 
1/04/2021 

DATE: 

DATE: 

1/08/21 

DATE: 

0 t D't.. bll 

1.1 The School Board establishes procedures of the Oneida Nation School System 
("ONSS") related to employee grievances of disciplinary actions taken by the 
School Board, including te1mination. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

2.1 APA-Administrative Procedures Act (Ch.1) of the Oneida Nation. 
2.2 BC - Business Committee 
2.3 Blue Book - the Oneida Nation Personnel Policies and Procedures, formerly 

lmown as the Oneida Tribal Management System. 
2.4 Business days - Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., when the 

governmental and administrative offices of the ONSS are open to the public, 
excluding all Tribal holidays. 

2.5 Cause - a violation of policies, or rules, or an individual employee contract, or 
unprofessional conduct, or the documented inability of the employee to perfmm 
the duties and responsibilities of the position. 

2.6 Chairperson of the School Board - the School Board member responsible for 
ensming that the School Board complies in its charge to the Oneida Nation and the 
ONSS. 

2.7 Contested Case- a proceeding before the ONSS MOA Grievance Hearing Panel 
that provides ONSS employees an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the 

1 



320 of 400

disciplinary actions taken against them by the School Board as approved by the 

MOA Disciplinary Panel. 
2.8 Employees - all individuals employed by the ONSS, including contracted 

employees. 
2.9 Grievant - the ONSS employee filing a written notice of appeal of his or her 

disciplinary action. 
2.10 HRD - Human Resources Depaitment. 
2.11 MOA Disciplinary Panel - created to assist the School Board and School 

Administration in making employee disciplinary decisions. 

2.12 MOA Grievance Hearing Panel- the entity to provide employees a due process 

appeal procedure for ONSS employee disciplinary decisions. 

2.13 ONSS - the Oneida Nation School System, formerly known as the Oneida Tribal 

School. 
2.14 OTJS - the Oneida Tribal Judicial System, also lmown as the Oneida Appeals 

Commission. 
2.15 Personnel Commission - fmmerly lmown as the Oneida Tribal Personnel 

Selection Committee. 
2.16 EEO - Equal Employment Oppo1tunities Officer. 

2.17 Progressive Discipline - increasingly punitive disciplinary actions consisting of 

written warning, suspensions, and dismissal (also known as termination). 

2.18 School Board - the Oneida Nation School Boai·d, formerly lmown as the Oneida 

Education Board or the Oneida Tribal School Board. 

2.19 Superintendent - the person employed by the School Board to administer the 

ONSS Elementai·y School and High School. 
2.20 Verbal warning - a non-disciplinary action that provides the employee with notice 

of improper or unacceptable work conduct, and results in written documentation in 

the employee's file to be considered in future employee disciplinary actions. 

3. WORK STANDARDS/PROCEDURES 

3.1 This SOP, in conjunction with the SOP titled "ONSS MOA Disciplinary Process 

and Panel," hereby replaced the Blue Book policy and procedures at Section V, 

Employee Relations, D. Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances. 

3 .2 The teims, definitions, and procedures described in the AP A for contested cases, 

1.10-1, shall apply to the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel and its proceedings and 

are incorporated by reference herein. 
3 .2.1 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall be an original hearing body 

under the AP A. 
3.3 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall be the "delegated body," APA 1.3-l(e), 

appointed to act in the place of the Board as a whole. 

3.4 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall be the "deliberative body," APA 1.3-1 

(f), that weighs, examines, and consults the reasons for and against a contemplated 

act or course of conduct or a choice of acts or means in order to f01m an opinion. 

3.5 The School Board shall retain the authority to issue "declaratory rnlings," APA, 

1.3-l(d), a written rnling related to ONSS employee personnel matters which 

removes doubts or puts an end to conflicting decisions in regard to what law is in 

relation to a particular matter. 

2 



321 of 400

3.6 Applicability of SOP 
3.6.1 It covers any ONSS employee against whom disciplinary action, including 

te1mination, has been approved by the MOA Disciplinary Panel and taken 

by the ONSS Administration and/or the School Board. 

3.6.2 It does not apply where it conflicts with the terms and conditions of an 

employee contract, other negotiated agreement, or precedential decisions 

issued by the OTJS interpreting the MOA. 

3.7 The membership of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall be that required 

under the MOA: 
3.7.l Three (3) School Board members; and 
3.7.2 Two (2) members of the Oneida Personnel Commission; and 

3.7.3 One (1) EEO 
3. 7.3 .1 The Oneida Personnel Commission members shall be selected by 

the Oneida Personnel Commission. 
3.7.3.2 The EEO shall be a non-voting member of the MOA Grievance 

Hearing Panel and shall assist with questions that arise regarding 

the employee's rights under the appeal procedure. 

3.7.4 The Chairperson of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall be selected 

from and by the three members of the School Board assigned to the MOA 

Grievance Hearing Panel. 
3.7.5 Persons who served on the underlying MOA Disciplinary Panel may not 

serve on the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel. 

3.7.6 The Chairperson of the School Board shall have the authority to assign a 

former School Board member, or members, to the MOA Grievance 

Hearing Panel when circumstances arise such that there are an insufficient 

number of current elected School Board members who are available to 

timely serve on the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel. 

3. 7. 7 The School Board shall have the authority to engage the assistance of legal 

counsel, or other individual as determined appropriate, in serving as a 

Hearing Officer at any hearing and to assist the MOA Grievance Hearing 

Panel with processing the grievance and facilitating the timely conclusion 

of the grievance hearing procedure. 
3.7.7.1 The Hearing Officer shall not be voting member of the MOA 

Grievance Hearing Panel. 
3. 7. 7 .2 The Hearing Officer shall have the authority to issue subpoenas on 

behave of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel. 

3.7.7.3 The Hearing Officer may delegate the authority to decide and take 

action on any pre-hearing motions submitted by either party to the 

contested case. 

Procedure for Grievance Hearing 

3 .8 The grievant shall comply with the following: 
3.8.1 File and appeal in writing with the Administrative Assistant of the School 

Board within ten (10) working days from the day the employee receives 

the disciplinary action. 
3.8.1.l Clearly identify and state the reason(s), or basis, for the appeal. 

3 



322 of 400

3 .8.1.2 Name the Superintendent as the respondent representing the 
School Board in the appeal. 
3.8.1.2.1 In the event that the Superintendent is the grievant, the 

School Board shall be named as the respondent in the 
appeal. 

3.8.1.2.2 Where the School Board is respondent in the appeal, it 
shall be represented at the hearing by at least one 
School Board member from the MOA Disciplinary 
Panel rendering the challenged decision. 

3.8.2 May seek the assistance of a spokesperson or advocate after the 
disciplinary action has been issued in order to aid in the resolution of the 

grievance process. 
3.9 The Administrative Assistant shall immediately notify the Chairperson of the 

School Board that an appeal of a MOA Disciplinary Panel decision has been filed 

and shall assist with managing the appeal, including scheduling meetings of the 

MOA Grievance Hearing Panel. 
3.10 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel may convene by telephone conferencing to 

discuss and decide preliminary, pre-hearing motions and other matters before the 

body. 
3.10.1 A grievant, respondent, or member of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel 

may request preliminary, pre-hearing actions of the Hearing Panel. 

3 .10.2 Preliminary matters before the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel that require 

a meeting may be conducted by telephone conferencing at the discretion 

of the Chairperson or the Hearing Officer. 
3.10.3 A majority of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel (i.e., three members) 

shall be required to take action on preliminary, pre-hearing matters before 

the group. 
3.11 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall have the authority to negotiate a 

settlement of the dispute with the grievant. 
3.11.1 The School Board members assigned to the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel 

may assign one member from their group, another School Board member 

not on the Hearing Panel, or assign a third party, to represent the Board in 

settlement discussions. 
3 .11.2 Any negotiated settlement shall be presented to the School Board as a 

whole, which shall take action to adopt, modify, or deny the recommended 

settlement. The action of the School Board shall be final. 
3 .11.3 Settlement discussions shall be a valid reason for extending the timelines 

associated with a final decision of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel. 

3.12 The proceedings of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall be recorded. The 

Chair of the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall have the discretion to engage a 

comt rep01ter to record the proceedings, as deemed necessary to preserve the 

testimony of the witnesses. 
3 .13 All notices and timelines ( and other requirements) identified in the AP A, 1.10-1., 

shall be complied with. 
3.14 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall affirm, modify, or reverse the decision 

of the MOA Disciplinary Panel. 
3.14.1 The MOA Grievance Hearing Panel shall determine if the MOA 

4 



323 of 400

Disciplinary Panel had sufficient evidence to support its conclusion, 

whether cause existed to discipline the grievant, or if procedural 

in-egularities at issue created harmful error. 

3.14.2 If the MOA Grievance Hearing Panel reverses the disciplinary action of 

the MOA Disciplinary Panel, it may: 

3.14.2.1 Reinstate the grievant with full back pay and any lost time; or 

3.14.2.2 Reinstate the grievant without back pay; or 

3 .14. 3 The decision of the MO A Grievance Hearing Panel shall be final. 

4. RIGHT TO APPEAL 

4.1 The grievant shall have a right to appeal the decision of the MOA Grievance 

Hearing Panel only under the provision of the APA, 1.11-1., Appellate Review of 

Agency or Commission Action, which is incorporated by reference herewith. 

4.2 The Superintendent does not have an independent right to appeal a decision of the 

MOA Grievance Hearing Panel. 

4.3 The School Board as a whole shall have the authority to take action to ratify a 

decision of the MOA Grievance Panel, at its sole discretion and on motion of any 

member of the School Board, and, in the altemative, to take action to appeal a 

decision to the OTJS. 

5. REFERENCES 

5 .1 OTC Resolution # 1-29-77-A. 

5.2 OTC Resolution #7-9-83-A, January 8, 1983. 

5.3 Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), March 21, 1988, between the ONSS School 

Board and the Oneida Business Committee. 

5.4 Oneida Nation School System Board Policies (revision 2006): #2-000, 2-101, 2-

108, 2-109, 2-1 ll, 3-105,3-000, 3-107,3-108,3-113. 

5.5 Orie v. Golinick, 3 O.N.R. 3-16, Dkt. #96-EP-0007 (Feb. 12, 1997) (concluding 

that the Oneida Appeals Commission was granted the authority to interpret the 

MOA, pursuant to its creation by OTC Resolution #8-19-91-A (August 19, 1991). 

5.6 King v. Tribal School Meals/Food Service, DKT. #05-AC-0l 7, November 23, 

2005 (the Oneida Appeals Commission ordered the School Board to provide full 

due process hearings in accordance with the Tribe's Administrative Procedures 

Act when processing an employee grievance). 

5.7 ONSS Standard Operating Procedure titled "Oneida Nation School System MOA 

Disciplinary Process and Panel." 

5 



324 of 400

( 

Oneida Tribe of Indians ot Wisconsin 
Post Offfce Box 365 

Phone: 869-2214 O~elda, WI 54155 
.,...,., 

0

)brong1ng -a• 
h, /bags ot COin IO 
wu111ng1on·s Sll!Mng army 
al Valloy Forge. ahet lht 
co1onrsb had con11s1tn11y 
•elvs..i 10 a,o 1hem 

UGWA OEMOLUM VJ.TE HE 
~eaus~ of 11'\e hC"ID ot rtus 
on~1cui Ch1t11n Cft1ttnllr,9 
a l11enosh1p bel.,~n !ht 
,,. nMrons and lt1e Co1ony 
of Ptnnsylvan,~ a new nb • 
110n the United Shlle$ ""i\$ 
maoe poss1t,1e 

ONEIDA TRIBAL SCHOOL 
}1EM)RANDt.JM OF AGREEMENT 

. . 

WHEREAS, the Oneida General tribal C.ouncil; on January 8, 1983, by 
Resolution, directed that an agreement be reached becween the Oneida 
Business Ccmnittee and the Oneida Tribal School Board regarding the 
autoncmous administration of the Oneida Tribal School which would 
provid~ for full involvement of the Oneida Tribal School Board in 

all personnel matters related ·to all personnel employed in ·the 
operation of the Oneida Tribal School> and 

( WHEREAS, the -Oneida General Tribal C-ouncil further directed that said 

.-

. . 
Meoorandum of Agreement be made consistent with existing policies 
and procedures of the Oneida Tribe as set forth in the Oneida Tribal 

Management System that 'iccounting, I?~6.ha_sing, budget:i.J?g and budget 
. . 

planning of-the Oneida Tribal Schoo.l be consistent with approved 
policies and procedures of the Oneida Tribal Accounting Office, and 

vHEREAS, the Oneida Tribal School Board is an elected body of the Oneida 
General Tribal Cotmcil, any cause against them individually or as a 
body should be consistent with the Oneida R.em:wal Ordinance, and 

WHEREAS, contracts with the federal or state goverrments on behalf of the 
Cbeida Tribal School require endorserrent and apprO\Tal of .the Oneida 

. . 
· Business O:m:nittee and therefore cooperation and close 

coamunications should exist between the· Oneida Tribal School 
Administration> Oneida Business Comnittee and Tribal School Board. ,i. 

. N:JW lREREFORE BE· IT RESOLVED> that the following terms and conditions meet the 
\ . 

/ criteria set forth by the Oneida General Tribal Council for the MEMJRANDUl1 Of 
AGREEMEi~ above described; 

., 



325 of 400

( 

( 

( 

. ONEIBA TRIBAL SOiCOL 

MEM)RANDUM OF AGREEMENI' 

·Page 2 

This MEMJRANDUM OF AGREEM.EN:r is entered into this ti_ day of ( ?!I.~ , l.988, between ch~ Oneida ~usiness Comnittee, hereafter 
re erred to as the CCMMITI'EE, and the Oneida Tribal School Board, 

hereafter referred to as the BOARD,· agree- to abide, respect and follow 

the follom.ng provisions: 

-1. That al_l _hiring, evaluations 1 prorrotions, suspensions/dismissals of 

all personn~l employed in the operation of the Oneiqa Tribai School 

is to be performed by the BOARD: that hiring, pra:rotions, . . 

suspensions/dismissals shall be conducted pu;-suant to the Oneida 

Tribal l:1anag~t System wherein three (3) !l'EJiber of the BOARD and 
one (1) Tribal · School Administrator, shall sit with one (1) · member 

of the Oneida Tribal Personnel Selection Carmittee and the· EID 

Officer, that evaluations of instructional personnel sh~~l be 

Pe+:"for.tred, based upon sotmd educational admtnistration. recognizing 

the contractua~ and school year provisions' for teaching personnel, 
and that the" ·CCMMTITEE shall revise the Oneic4i, Tribal Management ., 
Systa:n approprl.ately to acccmwdate the above. 

A. Where the Oneida Trib.:iJ,. Managerrent System refers to J:'.ersonnel 
Administrator it shall be revised by the CCMMI1TEE to pro~de 

for C.Onsultation with the Tribal School Administrator and 

Chainnan of the BOARD, 
2. Grievances of employees of the Cneida Tribal School are . to be 

processed by ~o (2) members of the Oneida Personnel Selection 

Ccmnittee, three (3) BOARD members and the EEO Officer as per 
grievance procedures outlined in the Oneida Tribal Management 

System. 

3. All contracts, gr~ts and proposals related to ~he operation or 
planning of the Oneida Tribal School shall be first reviewed and 

. endorsed by the BOARD. Such review and endorsemant shall be 

presented in writing to the CCM1ITI'EE at times consistent wit~ 
existing C.neida Tribal Policies and Procedures, The reccmnendations 
of the BOARD shall be followed by the CCMMITI'EE, unless good cause 

. to the contrary is shown, provided that such proposed contracts,. 

grants and proposals are consistent with Oneida Tribal School 

funding cyc~es, 

_( 

( 



326 of 400

( 

( 

( 

CT-.1EIDA 1RIBAL SCHOOL 

MEM)RANDUM OF AGREEMENI' 

Page 3 

A. Disputes between t:J:?.e CCM>fI'ITEE and the BOARD tmder this 

provision shall be negotiated by the parties. 
B. If the matter carmot be resolved, the matter shall be reported 

at the next ireeting of the Oneida General tribal Council or 

special n:eeting called therefore. 

4. ·The BOARD shall submit all minutes of all meetings in writing to the 

CCM-1ITrEE. 

5. 

A. Long and short range planning. of the Cbeida Tribal School shall 
be coordina,ted with the CiliMITI'EE ~ · .. 

B. The BOARD shall make two (2) annual reports in writing . to the 

Oneida General Tribal Cotmcil to be availab.le to the Oneida 
General Tribal Council consi$tent with the anrrual reports _of 

' . 

all other tribal departments and programs to the regular annual 

meeting of the Oneida General Tribal Council. 

The MEM)RANDUM OF AGREF11ENI' shall not be amended except by the 

Oneida Generai Tribal Council or at the express direction of the .. ' 

Cheida General Tribal Cotmcil and shall be effective upon 

ratification by the Oneida General Tribal Cotmcil. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, as Secretary of the Oneida Business Comnittee, hereby, 
certify that the Oneida General Tribal Council in session with a quorum of 
!J_/e_ members present, at a meeting duly called, noticed, and held on the 

~ day of . ,n~ , 19 "iY; that the foregoing resolution was duly . 
adopted at such meeting by a unanirrous vote of those present · and that said 
resolutioq has not been rescinded or amended in- any way. 

~~,as 
~ius, Tribal Secretary 

Oneida Tribe of Tndians ·of Wisconsin 

. •' .... 

. ·. : .. ·. 

. • . · ... 



Feedback from Comprehensive Housing Staff: 
 
Positive Changes: 
Indigenous People Day being added as a paid holiday 
Extending funeral time from 3 days to 5 days.  

 
Other Changes: 
Aunt/Uncle should be included in immediate family. It should also be clear if step-children, grand-
children and parents are included in the immediate family. 
 

- Leave of Absence should also include the Area Manager. There should be more than just a 
Supervisor approval to ensure areas are covered.  

-  
- The Complaint process is taking the majority of the authority away from the Supervisor and 

giving it to the EEO Officers. 
o EEO department currently only has two employees. They are difficult to get ahold of 

currently. 
o The EEO Officers don’t know the day to day operations in departments nor the 

personalities of employees. This is what the Supervisor is for. The majority of a 
Supervisor’s job is to manage employees.  

o The EEO Officer will also have the ability to discipline employees with the approval 
process going to the HRD Executive Director. 

o The EEO Officer will have 10 days to investigate a complaint, allowing interviews of all 
necessary staff. This is a potential disruption thru a department. 

o In the EEO Officer investigation they notify the Supervisor and at the end they meet 
with the Human Resources Executive Director to determine the final resolution and the 
EEO Officer’s resolution is final. 

 
- Ultimately, this is taking the authority away from the Supervisors, crippling them within their 

departments and giving all authority to HRD department. It opens the door for individuals to 
make accusations against co-workers with no documentation, proof/evidence. It provides the 
ability to disrupt departments for investigations and too much room for abuse of power.  
 

- If there is an issue with toxic work environments then the managers/directors should be held 
accountable to make the work conditions better and safe for all their staff. The disciplinary 
process should remain the same.  
 

- I do agree with their cut back of wordiness in the policy too. 
 

• The Blue book is written for employees and supervisors and not EEO.  EEO should remain a 
neutral entity at all times. The Personnel Policies book should be written for supervisors.  

 
• Instead of taking away managers and supervisors authority, why not build them up?  These 

changes affect the authority that supervisors/managers have and give it directly to HRD and the 
EEO officers.  

 
• Per the 1932 resolution the Oneida Business Committee shall not be involved in day to day 

business, you are proposing the OBC in the complaint process, this is ridiculous. 

327 of 400



 
• Why were managers not included in drafting the amendments outside of HRD?  

 
• EEO/HRD should never have the authority to discipline outside of their department.    

 
• These amendments sound like EEO is frustrated with poor management and has decided to take 

away the managers ability to manage. These amendments sound like they would create more 
chaos within an area than help it.  

 
• Supervisors know their frontline staff intimately and are better equipped to handle complaints 

and disciplines. How will an EEO know an employee and their work habits, ethics etc when 
investigating a complaint?  

 
• The EEO should never be responsible party for issuing a discipline.  

 
 

328 of 400



 
 
TO:  Oneida Legislative Reference Office 
FROM: Jackie Smith 
DATE: 01.19.2023 
RE:  Public Comments Proposed Amendments Oneida Personnel 

Policies and Procedures (OPPP) Amendments   
 
My feedback/comments regarding the proposed amendments to OPPP are 
Below: 
 

1. Eliminate the use of the term “area manager” in the proposed changes 
as it created confusion between what position/employee is the actual 
area manager and what position/employee is the area manager in the 
disciplinary process 

a. There was confusion by the court when this term was used in a 
disciplinary hearing. My title and role are area manager; 
however, the disciplinary process area manager was the general 
manager.  

i. I was requested by the court to attend an appeal hearing 
as the area manager, but mistakenly was named the area 
manager in the disciplinary process terminology. 

ii. This mistake cost the tribe money as there were duplicate 
managers required to attend an appeal hearing by the 
Oneida court. 

2. Ensure there is an appropriate and balanced allocation of power to the 
Oneida Human Resource Department (HRD) 

a. HRD in an internal service provider whose purpose is usually to 
support programs or business entities in the delivery of services 

b. HRD executives typically report to a General Manager or CEO 
c. Currently, HRD is treated as a standalone entity in the Oneida 

with a direct report the government. This reduces the overall 
effectiveness and connection to the function of being an internal 
service provider. 

i. This creates issues as HRD is not directly connected to the 
needs of the organization 

3. Reconsider the power and authority of the EEO department in 
managing complaints 

a. It is not recommended that HRD EEO has the ability to 
determine the outcome of an employee in a complaint 
investigation without input and possibly appeal rights of the 
supervisor.  

329 of 400



b. HRD as an overall program hasn’t been held accountable to 
deliver on current HRD laws, it is uncertain how this lack of 
oversight and accountability will be managed in the future.  

330 of 400



 

 

Oneida Nation 
Government Administrative Office 

PO Box 365    Oneida, WI 54155-0365 
oneida-nsn.gov 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

 
 

Memorandum 
TO:  Legislative Operating Committee 
 
FROM:  Lisa Summers, OBC Area Manager 

Brooke Doxtator, BCC Supervisor  
 
DATE:  January 19, 2023 
 
RE:  Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendment Comments  

 

The purpose of this correspondence is to provide the Government Administrative Office 
(GAO) comments and concerns regarding the Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 
Amendments. 
 
Comments and/or Identified Concerns 

1. In the legislative analysis under “affected entities” the Government Administrative 
Office is missing, and  it is noted that the GAO was not asked to participate in the 
work meetings held to develop the amendments and analysis.  

Overall, this concern leads to a series of questions the GAO has regarding the 
intent of the amendments, and consideration for additional resources which 
may be needed to implement change.  Additionally, it is identified through the 
analysis, there appears to be missing data which would provide guidance on 
the type of resources needed to fulfill the responsibilities which accompany 
the proposed change.  This concern is detailed further in item #2.  
 

2. The Government Administrative Office is not in support of the changes outlined 
in lines 1487 to 1595 of the redline version that replaces the Human Resources 
Department with Government Administrative Office as this time.  

a. There are several things we would like addressed before proceeding with 
these changes: 

i. HRD to provide an analysis of the work, resources, training, and 
time required to offer this support to the Oneida Personnel 
Commission. 

ii. That the Oneida Business Committee (OBC) makes a determination 
on next steps regarding implementing a functioning Oneida 
Personnel Commission.  

1. The Commission has not been functioning since 2018. The 
GAO has brought several posting requests and information 
before the OBC for additional guidance and direction.   

331 of 400

LS 
tK) 

r"\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 

 

2. The OPC has encountered issues finding qualified applicants 
to apply for the Commission, and has had issues with the 
members completing their trainings. 

3. The OPC was placed in “Temporary Closure Status” from 
April 8, 2020, to June 14, 2021, due to the COVID pandemic; 
however, since reactivating the OPC, they have been unable 
to meet due a lack of members, nor have members 
completed proper training as identified in item #2 above. 

 
We respectfully request the Government Administrative Office be removed from the 
amendments until an analysis on the following is completed: 

1. Workload or anticipated workload based on HRD records of activities which 
would have included in the OPC, and  

2. An analysis of the resources needed to fulfill the requirements, and  
3. There is a determination made regarding how the OPC will function moving 

forward. 
 
 
cc: Lisa Liggins, Secretary 

332 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

~ 
aoaooD 

ONEIDA 



 

Page 1 of 12 

 

  

 

 
To:   Legislative Operating Committee 
 
From: Gaming Senior Management 
 
Date: January 18, 2023 
 
Re:   Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments – Public Comments 
 
 
Below are public comments submitted on behalf of Gaming Senior Management  
 
regarding the proposed Oneida Personnel Polices and Procedures Amendments.  The  
 
comments are separated in two sections:   
 

• Hiring and Selection  
• Complaints, Disciplinary Actions and Grievance Processes 

 
Please contact Louise Cornelius, Gaming General Manager, regarding any questions you  
 
may have.  She can be reached at extension 3201 or at lcornel3@oneidanation.org 
 
Thank you 
 
 
Hiring and Selection 

1) Remove the following: We do not have steps within grades. 

166                        e.   Temporary employees will be paid within the Grade in which the 
job is classified and 

167                                salary will be negotiated within the first three (3) steps of 
respective grade. 

168                                1)   Any negotiated salary beyond step three will require written 
justification and 

169                                        approval from the respective General Manager.  (H.R. 

Interpretation, 12-8-16) 

2) To be consistent in practice with probation employees, it is recommended: To 
remove appeals rights for Temporary employees. 

172                        Temporary employees can be that are terminated due to 
documented cause will have the 

PO BOX 365 
Oneida WI 54155 
 
 
 
 
 

333 of 400~ 
NEIDA 
CASINO 



 

Page 2 of 12 

 

173                        right to the appeal process as outlined in the Personnel Policies and 
Procedures. 

3) Gaming is requesting the LOC consider a process that gives management (to include 

gaming management) representation and joint rulemaking authority over all rules for 

which HRD is delegated rulemaking authority in the draft OPPP.  Failure to include 

management in this drafting process and the importance of a seat at the table in the 

drafting process should be noted because once documents are made public, certain 

things can be difficult to walk back from. This supports the need for joint authority to 

ensure management’s voice is guaranteed to be incorporated into HRD rules rather than 

merely receiving the opportunity to provide public comment – as is the case in this 

instance.  Please note that the last time employment matters were considered the LOC 

recognized the importance of including management and, at Gaming’s request, included 

2 gaming HRD representatives on the drafting team to provide a perspective from the 

profit centers who rely on these processes to operate businesses that funds the lion’s 

share of the Nation’s operations. 

388                                2) The HRD Office shall notify screened out applicants within five 
(5) working days  

389                                after the initial screening and reserve these applicationsbe 
delegated rulemaking  

390                                authority in the general recruiting pool. 

  4) Clarify the statement to include separations (e.g., quit, job abandonment, etc.). 

661                         2)   Employees who are terminated during their original probation 

period shall not  

662                                         be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in 

their final paycheck 

 

Complaints, Disciplinary Actions and Grievance Processes 

Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments  

Section V- Employee Relations 

Line 704-707:  In all cases of grievance and discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use 

common sense, discretion and judicious good sense to resolve complaints between 

employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives and handle grievances. 

334 of 400



 

Page 3 of 12 

 

Blue book is written for employees and supervisors, not EEO.  EEO should not have 

authority to take disciplinary action on an employee.  EEO is HRD who should remain a 

neutral entity at all times.  

 

 

 

Complaint Procedures 

Line 784-788:  If the supervisor cannot come to mutual determination with the EEO 

Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the supervisor shall 

provide written justification for non-agreement on the resolution to both the Area 

Manager and the Human Resources Executive Director. 

Why?  What is the purpose of this?  The process is long enough without adding another 

step.  It is the discretion of the supervisor as to what they are going to do, not EEO. 

Line 789-790: The supervisor shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager to 

ensure accountability. 

What does this mean, to ensure accountability??? What is area manager supposed to do 

about it? Again, it is the discretion of the supervisor. 

Line 802: The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 

What does this mean?  Line 799-801 already states the notice shall inform the area 

manager that the supervisor violated the complaint process by being negligent and 

failed to properly investigate a complaint, so what does line 802 mean?  This line 

doesn’t seem necessary. 

Line 803-808: If the Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address the 

accountability of the supervisor, then the EEO department shall send notice to the 

General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the General Manager level 

position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the 

notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

So, it’s up to EEO to determine if an Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to 

address the supervisor?  So, if EEO don’t like or agree with what the Area Manager did, 

this goes to the General Manager?  This is too much authority for EEO. First off, in 

335 of 400



 

Page 4 of 12 

 

gaming there are many levels of management and the General Manager may not be the 

appropriate person in the chain of command. Only an immediate supervisor can take 

corrective action with an employee and in most cases the Gaming General Manager is 

not the immediate supervisor of an area manager.  Secondly, why are there so many 

levels now in the complaint process? This is way too much. The Gaming General 

Manager doesn’t need to be involved in, nor do they have the time for front line 

complaints that EEO is not satisfied with how they were handled all the way up the 

chain of command. Does the Business Committee really want to be involved in 

employee complaints that EEO is not satisfied with how they were handled?   The 

current blue book has four (4) sentences on how to handle a complaint.  This new 

complaint process is now five (5) pages. This is way too much. Why is it so long? 

Line 833-837: If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO 

Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the Area Manager shall 

provide written justification for non-agreement on the resolution to both the appropriate 

GM level position and the HRD Executive Director. 

Why? What is the purpose of this, it’s just another step that is unnecessary? It’s up to 

the Area Manager what they are going to do, it’s not up to EEO.  And what if this step 

doesn’t happen, what does this change? 

Line 842-846: If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 

complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice to the 

General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the General Manager level 

position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall send the 

notice to the Oneida Business Committee. 

This is now the third (3rd) step in the complaint process. Why is it necessary to have so 

many levels involved?  The General Manager may not be the supervisor of the Area 

Manager in gaming as there are many levels in the chain of command so why is going to 

the General Manager?  The GM cannot take action on an Area Manager they do not 

supervise.  The process is too long. Should the Oneida Business Committee really be 

involved in day-to-day complaints that employees file, that EEO is not satisfied with how 

they were handled? The current complaint process is short and sweet, easy to follow, 

this recommended process is too lengthy and has too many levels of management 

involved.  

Line 854-855: The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the Area 

Manager. 

It’s not clear as to what this means as prior to this step, the EEO sends a notice to the 

General Manager informing them the Area Manager violated the complaint process by 

336 of 400



 

Page 5 of 12 

 

being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 

investigate a complaint.  Seems another unnecessary step.   

Line 859-895: Should just remove the 3rd level for the GM to investigate an employee 

complaint that EEO was not satisfied with how the supervisor or the Area Manager 

handled.  This is too much. Should stick with current blue book complaint process of two 

levels of handling a complaint. A timeline is good to add but it shouldn’t keep going up 

the chain of command and jumping to the General Manager to address the complaint. 

Why is this necessary?  

If the purpose is to hold a supervisor or Area Manager or General Manager accountable 

for failing to address a complaint, or not addressing it properly according to EEO, then 

just state they may be held accountable for job negligence. All these steps are 

unnecessary.  

EEO Violations:  Agree that EEO violations should be investigated by EEO but they 

should not have the authority to discipline. HRD needs to remain neutral and not be 

involved in disciplining an employee they do not supervise.  EEO should continue to 

submit their recommendation to the immediate supervisor of the employee after they 

have completed their investigation. HR's job is to support the nations employees, 

supervisors, managers etc., not to dictate how they operate or take over their job 

responsibilities.  EEO must ensure that the supervisor is taking proper corrective 

measures and advise the decision makers on processes and points of law as well as 

informing them how historical cases have been treated, to ensure consistency. EEO 

should not be disciplining an employee they do not supervise.  

Line 900-901: The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the 

EEO Department received the complaint from the employee. 

After this step, nothing in the EEO Officers process for investigating and resolution of 

the complaint addresses what happens if the EEO fails to adhere to the timeline during 

the process. There are steps up the chain of command, up to the Business Committee if 

supervisors, managers, and the General Manager fail to adhere to the timeline. If EEO 

wants supervisor authority to discipline, they too need to be held accountable if they 

miss the timeline. The process needs to be fair and consistent to all who are taking 

action. In the supervisor, area manager and general manager sections under complaints 

it states that if they fail to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within 

ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice up the chain of command, 

informing them they violated the complaint process by being negligent in the 

performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a 

complaint.  This same process has to be followed when EEO is negligent.  

337 of 400



 

Page 6 of 12 

 

Line 905-906: Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 

resolution; 

EEO Officer should not be responsible for implementing the final resolution, they should 

send their recommendation to the immediate supervisor of the employee to 

implement.  

Line 913-914: The EEO Office shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 

mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

Where’s the step after this that says, if the EEO cannot come to a mutual determination 

with the Human Resources Executive Director as to an appropriate resolution for the 

complaint then the EEO shall provide written justification for non-agreement on the 

resolution to the General Manager or Business Committee. In all the complaint 

processes for the supervisor, Area Manager and the General Manager, it states they 

must provide written justification for non-agreement with EEO. If EEO is allowed 

disciplinary authority, in the event of a disagreement with the Executive Director’s 

decision, the Executive Directors decision shall be final in regard to internal review prior 

to actual litigation before the Judiciary.  

Illegal Activities 

Lines 923-924: The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after 

the EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee. 

Same as mentioned above in EEO violations, nothing in the EEO process addresses if the 

EEO Officer fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint within ten (10) 

working days. Nothing states who will send this notice, and who is it sent to, to inform 

them the EEO violated the complaint process by being negligent in the performance of 

their assigned duties ad failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. If this process 

exists for supervisors, area managers and the General Manager in needs to be in the 

EEO’s process also. All need to be held accountable in the same manner.  

Line 928-929: Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 

resolution; and; 

EEO should not be responsible for implementing the final resolution (discipline) they 

should be sending their recommendation to the immediate supervisor of the employee.  

EEO should not have discipline authority of employees they do not supervise. 

Line 936-937: The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director 

to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 

338 of 400



 

Page 7 of 12 

 

Nothing is stated in this process who the EEO sends their justification to if the EEO 

Officer and Human Resources Executive Director do not come to a mutually 

determination of an appropriate resolution as listed in the supervisor, area manager and 

General Managers process. Both should have to follow the same process to be 

consistent. 

Discipline 

Line 952-953: Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an EEO Officer as the resolution of 

an EEO Violation complaint or an illegal activities complaint investigation. 

Remove this sentence. Disciplinary procedures should only be initiated by the 

immediate supervisor. EEO keeps record of disciplinary actions on file, they should not 

be issuing them and tracking their own disciplines. EEO needs to remain neutral.  I agree 

EEO can investigate these complaints but send their recommendation to the immediate 

supervisor to address. Giving EEO Officers the ability to discipline employees they do not 

supervise is too much authority, as that is the job of the immediate supervisor, not EEO. 

Line 963-965: Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 

supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO Department. 

EEO should not have to approve a supervisor’s deviation from the recommended 

progression. They never had in the current process so why change it? I agree the 

process should remain that any deviation from the recommended progression shall be 

justified in writing, but it should not have to have EEO approval, as again, it is the 

discretion of the supervisor on what level of discipline they are going to issue.  

Line 982: unless a deviation is sought and approved. 

Don’t agree that a supervisor’s decision to deviate from the recommended progression 

needs EEO approval. It never has in the past, why add it now? Again, too much authority 

to EEO. Supervisors are currently required to justify the deviation in writing so why 

change the process? 

Disciplinary Procedure 

Line 1067-1068:  The following procedure shall be adhered to by the supervisor or EEO 

Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken. 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as they should not have authority to discipline employee’s 

they do not supervise. 

339 of 400



 

Page 8 of 12 

 

Line 1069-1070: The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action from 

within five (5) working days or either: 

Remove “or EEO Officer” from this process.  This should not be within their authority to 

discipline employees they do not supervise.  

The current disciplinary procedure first states “Supervisor becomes aware of 

unsatisfactory work performance or violation. Supervisor investigates through a 

meeting with the employee(s) and determines whether disciplinary action is 

warranted” This is one of the most important steps in the procedure. It clearer written 

the current way than what is written in the new process lines 1071 -1074. 

Line 1071-1074: the resolution of a complaint from which it has been determined that 

disciplinary action is warranted, or the determination that disciplinary action is 

warranted based on the unsatisfactory work performance of an employee.  

Line 1075:   The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary action form… 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as this should not be within their authority as they are not the 

immediate supervisor of the employee.  

Line 1082-1084:  The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with the 

employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and identify a 

corrective action. 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as this should not be within EEO authority, as they need to 

remain a neutral entity.  

Line 1085-1086:  The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee 

may occur in person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone. 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as they should not be disciplining employees they do not 

supervise. Remove “through video conferencing, or over the telephone” This meeting 

cannot occur over video conferencing or over the phone.  How can you go over a 

discipline form with an employee if they can’t see the form and they can’t physically sign 

the form as required as stated in line 1093.  The meeting would need to occur in person 

during a termination notice so the supervisor can collect employee badge, keys or any 

other tribal property the employee has at the time of signatures. 

Line 1087: During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall discuss the disciplinary 

action with the employee… 

340 of 400



 

Page 9 of 12 

 

Remove “or EEO Officer” should not have authority to discipline employees they do not 

supervise as HR needs to remain a neutral entity. 

 

Line 1093: the employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action form.  

It’s required employee sign the discipline form, or they can refuse to sign the form and 

that’s documented on the discipline form. This important step cannot occur if the so-

called meeting takes place as mentioned in line 1086, “through video conferencing or 

over the phone.”  The meeting to issue a discipline to an employee needs to occur in 

person so the employee can physically sign the form or refuse to sign it.  

Line 1095-1096: “or EEO Officer” is mentioned twice and should be removed from the 

procedure as it is not within the EEO Officers authority issue disciplinary action against 

an employee they do not supervise.  

Line 1099: the supervisor or EEO Officer shall provide copies of the signed disciplinary 

action… 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as it should not be within EEO’s authority to issue disciplinary 

action to employees they do not supervise. EEO needs to remain a neutral entity.   

Line 1111-1113: If the EEO Office is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall 

consult with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually determine the length 

of the suspension.  

Remove these lines as EEO should not be disciplining employees they do not supervisor. 

It is not within their authority.   

If allowed, what is the process if they don’t agree to the length of suspension? It should 

be the same as managements process.  

Line 1123-1125: If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO Officer shall 

consult with the Human Resources Executive Director to mutually determine that the 

termination is the appropriate disciplinary action.  

Remove these lines as the EEO Officers should not have the authority to issue 

disciplinary action to employees they do not supervise. EEO Officers at HR need to 

remain neutral, not go against employees.  

341 of 400



 

Page 10 of 12 

 

If allowed, what is the process if they don’t mutually agree to the termination? It should 

be the same process as managements.  

Line 1128-1131: The Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary action for 

clear procedural errors. 

Shouldn’t voiding a disciplinary action issued by a supervisor be left up to the Area 

Manager or the Judiciary in the grievance process?  At the Judiciary only procedural 

errors that harmed one of the parties are overturned.  This states that EEO can void for 

any clear procedural error.  

Line 1132-1133: The Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, may void a 

disciplinary action taken by an EEO Officer for clear procedural errors. 

Remove these lines as EEO Officers should not have authority to issue disciplinary 

actions against employees they do not supervise.   

Line 1134-1135: Notification of a voided disciplinary action shall be sent to the 

supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee which identifies the procedural error. 

Remove “or EEO Officer” as they should not have authority to issue disciplinary action to 

employees they do not immediately supervise. Only the immediate supervisor has 

authority to take action against an employee.  

Line 1136-1140: For any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary 

procedures, the EEO Department shall send a letter to the Area Manager.  The letter 

shall notify the Area Manager that the supervisor violated the disciplinary process by 

being negligent in the performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 

discipline an employee. 

If EEO Officers are going to be allowed the authority to discipline employees that they 

don’t work with or supervise, what happens when the EEO Officer fails to follow the 

Nations disciplinary procedures? Where is the accountability process for them?  They 

too should have a letter sent to their Area Manager informing them the EEO Officer 

violated the disciplinary process by being negligent in the performance of their assigned 

duties and failure to appropriately discipline an employee. The process has to be fair 

and consistent for all.  

Grievance 

Line 1150-1153: Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints. 

An employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal 

342 of 400



 

Page 11 of 12 

 

Activities complaint to the Oneida Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Count 

within ten (10) days from the employees’ receipt of the discipline. 

First off, these lines should be removed as EEO Officers should not have authority to 

discipline employees they do not immediately supervise. This is not within EEO’s 

authority nor is it in their job description. HR is not the entity that should be disciplining 

employees as they are to remain neutral.  Secondly, why is there no Area Manager to 

hear this appeal first?  If you’re going to allow the EEO Officer to take disciplinary action, 

why does this just jump to the judiciary?  Why is the Judiciary acting as the area 

manager?    

Line 1169-1170: The supervisor shall meet with the following individuals during the 

disciplinary investigation. 

Since this section is about appealing to the Area Manager, as above this sentence is 

states, “The Area Manager for all disciplinary action investigations, shall have ten (10) 

working days form the receipt of the employee’s appeal to complete the investigation.  

Then in line 1169-1170 it states the supervisor shall meet with the employee, the 

supervisor and any witnesses.  I believe Line 1169 should state, The area manager shall 

meet with the following individuals… 

 

Line 1201-1293:  

This entire section references the Government Administrative Office taking over the role 

of the HRD office who currently has all information and all the documentation regarding 

disciplinary action issued to employees.   

This section states employees who want to appeal an Area Managers decision to the 

Personnel Commission must file a grievance with the Government Administrative Office 

on behalf of the Personnel Commission.  It states the Government Administrative Office 

shall collect all information the Area Manager used in making the decision to uphold or 

modify the disciplinary action. 

Currently all the confidential information regarding disciplinary action remains at HRD 

until a hearing body requests it. It’s a concern that now another entity (Government 

Administrative Office) will be privy to this confidential information regarding employees 

of the Nation.  How many people are in this office, who will all see this confidential 

information? What is in place to ensure this confidential information does not get out in 

the community before a final decision is made by a hearing body?   

343 of 400



 

Page 12 of 12 

 

Why don’t the EEO Officers continue the role they currently doing, the administrative 

part, and not be involved in disciplining employees they do not supervise.  Why do they 

want authority to discipline employees they don’t even know or work with?   This 

process being presented gets more people involved with seeing confidential information 

that does not need to be disclosed.    

HRD/EEO Officers need to remain neutral and provide assistance/support to all 

employees, whether they are front line, supervisors, managers, directors or general 

managers.  EEO/HRD should not take over a supervisor’s job responsibilities.  EEO must 

ensure that the supervisor is taking proper corrective measures and advise the decision 

makers on processes and points of law as well as informing them how historical cases 

have been treated, to ensure consistency. EEO should not discipline an employee they 

do not supervise. This is not within their authority, nor should we allow it to be.  If EEO 

is concerned about holding people accountable for their actions or inaction, they need 

to bring that matter to the persons supervisor and allow that supervisor to decide what 

to do.  

344 of 400



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

MEMO 

To: Oneida Business Committee 

From: Jessica Vandekamp #2616 

Date: January 17, 2023 

RE:  Written Comments - ONEIDA PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
AMENDMENTS 

1. Floating Holidays 

To propose the Oneida Nation provides up to two (2) floating holidays to each employee 

that will substitute up to two (2) current public paid holidays.  This can promote diversity 

and respect for employees who have different cultures, religious beliefs, or traditions. The 

day the employee decides to take off is at their discretion and approved by the immediate 

supervisor. 

Benefits for Employee: 

1. Allowing employees to celebrate a holiday, religious event or cultural event that has 

meaning to them respects individual’s differences.  (Ex: Oneida ceremonies, 

birthdays, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Hmong New Year, etc.) 

2. Happy employees are productive employees when you allow them to take time off 
that matters to them. 

Benefits for the Nation: 

1. May lower payroll for premium pay when employees choose floating holidays rather 

than work public holidays. 

2. Scheduling may improve in departments and be more flexible in Enterprises & 
Gaming. 

Policy Considerations: 

1. Are not eligible for premium pay. 
2. Employee may choose floating holiday(s) at the beginning of each calendar year. 
3. Must be scheduled and approved in advance by the employee’s immediate 

supervisor. 
4. Will not carry over to the next calendar year. 
5. Cannot be cashed out or paid upon termination of employment. 
6. Floating holidays only count towards religious holidays, cultural holidays, employee 

birthday, state/federal holiday, wedding anniversary, or special occasion mutually 

agreed upon by the employee & supervisor. 

 

 

345 of 400



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

2. Personnel Commission 

Remove any responsibilities of being a hearing body for employment appeals and to 

participate in the hiring process.  I believe this commission has outlived its purpose for the 
Nation’s hiring and it impedes upon a smooth and timely hiring process.  

3. Funeral Leave 

• Agree with 5 days for immediate family.  

• Consider adding: an employee who works the funeral (prepares & serves food, etc.) 

• Add other relationships, such as; step-, adopted, civil unions, life partner. 

 

4. Maternity Leave 

• Add: to allow up to 12 weeks for maternity leave 

5. Hostile Work Environment 

• Add: define hostile work environment as a form of sexual harassment. I’ve heard 

often that employees use the term incorrectly when describing an unfriendly work 
environment. 

6. Paid Time Off 

• Why do we have to separate personal/vacation?   

• Most employees use interchangeably. 

• Combine p/v time to one large amount of PTO, load at the beginning of the year 

rather than accumulate. 

 

 

 

  

346 of 400



 

 
To: Legislative Operating Committee 

 

From: Mark W. Powless, General Manager 

  

Date: January 19, 2022 

Re: Written Comments: Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedure Amendments 

 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide written comments regarding the proposed Oneida 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments. These comments are reflective of the views of myself 
and do not represent the views of my direct reports. Direct Reports were asked to provide verbal or 
written comments as they felt necessary. 
 
General Comments 
 

• Pertaining to policies and procedures that directly impact departments and staff of the Oneida 
Nation, it is good business practice to either allow those areas to participate in the development 
of said policies and procedures or to gather feedback on the front end. This will help to set an 
agreed upon foundation to move forward from. It will avoid significant time and energy being 
placed into an effort only to learn that the resultant feedback potentially sends the effort back 
to ‘square one’. 

• Major changes have been proposed. If the organization is opening the document for major 
changes take a comprehensive approach and revise the entire document. 

o This is a great opportunity to change the approach to corrective action. Adopting an 
approach of investing in employee training, mentoring, and coaching will yield better 
results than focusing on how complaints are handled and any subsequent disciplinary 
actions. Generally, preventive efforts produce better long-term results than reactionary 
efforts. Our workforce is our community and our community is our workforce. 
Increasing training and education efforts will create a net benefit for our community. 

o Many sections of the document remained untouched even though they are not followed 
or have become obsolete. These sections should be removed or revised. 

• Major changes have been proposed. Perhaps a better stepped approach (before committing to 
major changes) is an initial internal procedure change to gather appropriate data for sound 
decision making. Require all employee complaints to be submitted to the Human Resources 
Department (HRD). HRD will route the complaints to the appropriate Supervisor. The Supervisor 
will investigate and follow through with appropriate actions. These results will be submitted in a 
summary report to HRD. After a period of one year the data can be assessed for areas of 
improvement and subsequent policy/procedure changes. 

General Manager 
909 Packerland Dr. 

Green Bay, WI 54303 
920-496-7000 

347 of 400

"' ODDDCX) 

ONEIDA 



 

 
Line Specific Comments 
 
253 The Oneida Nation exists to serve the needs of the Oneida people and 
254 therefore accords Oneida Preference to enrolled members of the Oneida Nation 
255 Members where such preference is not otherwise prohibited. 
 

• Extend Oneida Preference to all members of the Haudenosaunee. We have a shared history, 
culture, and family lines. Our ancestors took great measures to preserve the unity of the 
Haudenosaunee. Our hiring practices should reflect who we are as a people. 

 
596 a. Tribal holidays consist of the following: 
 

• Add Martin Luther King Jr. Day. MLK Day is a Federal holiday. Many area businesses and schools 
close or take time to recognize his accomplishments for people of color. 

 
610 b. To be eligible for a paid holiday, employees must work the preceding and following 
611 scheduled work days (except for employees who are on a prescheduled work leave 
612 or an approved extended sick leave.) Employees who are granted a sick day directly 
613 prior to a holiday must certify that they were capable of working the holiday in order 
614 to qualify for a paid holiday. 
 

• From an administrative perspective this can be cumbersome. Grant the holiday regardless of 
whether or not they work the preceding and following scheduled workdays. 
 

615 c. All regular employees will be given holiday pay for the maximum pay of eight (8) 
616 hours per day. 
 

• Grant holiday pay based on the regularly scheduled hours for that position. If an employee 
works 10-hour shifts, provide holiday pay of 10 hours, when applicable. 

 
636 c. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of personal days shall be as follows: 
637 (BC Resolution – 4-11-13-F) 
638 1) 0-3 years of service - 6 days per year; 
639 2) 4-7 years of service - 8 days per year; 
640 3) 8-14 years of service - 10 days per year; 
641 4) 15+ years of service - 12 days per year; 
642 d. Except as provided for in section g, the accrual of vacation days shall be as follows: 
643 1) 0-3 years of service - 12 days per year 
644 2) 4-7 years of service - 15 days per year; 
645 3) 8-15 years of service - 20 days per year; 
646 4) 15+ years of service - 25 days per year. 
 

• Start to scale back the accrual of personal and vacation days by eliminating the accruals for 15+ 
years of service for both personal and vacation. Prior to Trade Back For Cash in 2022 91 

348 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

employees were maintaining a balance of 250 or more personal/vacation hours. Of those, 73% 
had 15 or more years of service. Additionally, employees are gaining an additional holiday 
(Indigenous People’s Day) with the approval of these amendments.  

 
659 1) Employees who have used the Oneida Nation-sponsored loan program will be 
660 required to honor the terms of the loan agreement. 
 

• This program no longer exists. Strike these lines from the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
696 ii. Only those employees who are unable to utilize their personal and/or 
697 vacation time due to working conditions, such as a shortage in staffing, as 
698 determined by the Human Resources Executive Director or 
699 designee, will have the opportunity to trade back hours on a quarterly basis. 
700 1. Employees will receive their trade back within sixty (60) days after 
701 opting to trade back hours. 
 

• This opportunity no longer exists. Strike these lines from the Personnel Policies and Procedures. 
 
726 a. All regular employees will be given a three (3five (5) day leave without loss of pay for 
727 funeral services for immediate family. Immediate family includes: 
728 Husband Mother Brother Great-grandparent 
729 Wife Father Sister Great-grandchildren 
730 Mother-in-law Son Grandparent Spouse’s great-grandparents 
731 Father-in-law Daughter Grandchild Spouse’s grandparents 
732 Daughter-in-law Sister-in-law Brother-in-law 
 

• Extend the definition of ‘immediate family’ to include Aunts and Uncles 
 
757 4. Maternity Leave 
758 a. Maternity leave will be granted for a period of six (6) weeks without pay. 
759 1) An employee may elect to cover any portion of this time by using accumulated 
760 sick days. 
761 2) Any maternity-related absences for longer than six (6) weeks must be taken as a 
762 medical leave of absence. 
 

• To be reflective of our cultural values and high regard for our women and the family unit, 
provide paid maternity leave. This will help to reduce stress for our families and allow attention 
to focus on the newborn. Our community is our workforce and our workforce is our community. 

 
850 B. EVALUATIONS 
851 1. Evaluation reports will be used in determining all promotions, transfers and salary 
852 adjustments. 
 

349 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

• This section is obsolete. The Oneida Nation does not offer promotions and evaluations are not 
provided when determining transfers. With that being said, areas would like the opportunity to 
view recent evaluations when considering transfers into their department. 

 
880 C. CAREER DEVELOPMENT 
881 1. Oneida Nation employees are encouraged to develop their skills and abilities by 
882 pursuing education at a local educational institution. (BC Action, 9-9-92) 
883 a. Oneida Nation employees must provide a general Career Development Plan to the 
884 supervisor listing the goals and objectives of the training and education to be 
885 undertaken. 
 

• This process is not followed within the Oneida Nation. Either strike these lines from the 
Personnel Policies and Procedures or enforce with all staff. Additionally, these aspects of 
training and education should be an emphasis of the Nation but do not have the funding to 
support. A concerted effort should be placed on improving our policies, procedures, and funding 
of employee training and education. 

 
886 2. Oneida Nation employees may be eligible for assistance for one (1) course per semester. 
887 The employee must attempt to arrange to take the class outside his/her normal working 
888 hours. 
889 a. Where a class conflicts with the employee’s work schedule, the needs of the Tribal 
890 unit take precedence; however, the supervisor shall attempt to accommodate the 
891 employee’s request. 
892 b. In no case shall the accommodation exceed actual class hours plus reasonable travel 
893 time. 
894 c. Employees must obtain the approval of their immediate supervisor to take a course 
895 on work time. 
896 3. The supervisor’s approval and estimated cost must be submitted to the HRD Office, the 
897 Area Manager and the General Manager. (HR Interpretation, 12-8-16) 
898 4. The cost of the books, tuition and fees for the course shall be paid by the Nation through 
899 funds budgeted in programs or through the Higher Education program. 
900 a. Reimbursement for books, tuition and fees is contingent upon the employee 
901 receiving at least a C (2.0 on a 4.0 point scale). 
902 b. Employees who receive less than the required grade point will be required to 
903 reimburse the program for whatever costs were incurred. 
 

• This section is not funded or utilized within the Oneida Nation. Either strike these lines from the 
Personnel Policies and Procedures or fund and utilize. If utilizing I refer back to my previous 
statement of taking the time to improve our policies, procedures, and funding of employee 
training and education. Regarding this specific section I recommend revising to encompass not 
only a course, but also a certificate, training or similar program. 

 
1) Employee Disagreements 
970 a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee 
971 may file a complaint with the employee’s EEO Department. 

350 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

972 a.b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
973 Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint. 
974 b.c) The supervisor will shall have ten (10) working days to investigate the 
975 complaint and attempt to resolve the disagreement complaint. 
 

• This section does not allow for an assessment of merit of complaints. Will a complaint dating 
back 1 year be investigated? Will frivolous complaints be investigated? Additionally, how will 
complaints between employees in different Divisions or different Departments be handled. Will 
the investigating employee address both employees? 

 
991 When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall 
992 contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution. 
993 c.1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the EEO 
994 Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then the 
995 supervisor shall provide written justification for non-agreement on the 
996 resolution to both the Area Manager to attempt a resolution and the 
997 Human Resources Executive Director. 
 
1179 i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 
1180 supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO 
1181 Department. 
 

• In both sections the time for the EEO office to respond is not defined. A supervisor has a defined 
timeframe to respond. If the EEO office is not timely it will delay completion of the 
investigation/resolution. 

 
1022 e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may 
1023 refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area 
1024 Manager. 
 

• Allowing appeals of employee disagreements may be difficult in practice. One reason is because 
frivolous complaints are currently allowed in the proposed amendment. To investigate a 
frivolous complaint twice will be a huge use of time and energy, and reduction in efficiency for 
management. Additionally, it is not uncommon for a supervisor to investigate an employee 
disagreement and not be able to provide full details of the outcome to the complainant. It is a 
violation of confidentiality for a supervisor to share the disciplinary action of one employee with 
any other employee. Therefore, a complainant may simply be told, “The matter was investigated 
and the employee was addressed appropriately.” If it is appealed and the Area Manager 
provides the same response, the complainant may not accept the response leaving everyone 
feeling as though the process was an unnecessary use of time and energy. Recommendations 
include 1) allow for a process to remove frivolous complaints and 2) include the EEO Officer in 
the process for appeals. The EEO Officer can review the corrective measures taken to address an 
employee(s) and determine if an appeal has merit. 

 
1167 2) A supervisor Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an EEO Officer as the 

351 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

1168 resolution of an EEO Violation complaint or an Illegal Activities complaint 
1169 investigation. 
 

• Moving disciplinary actions out of the hands of supervisors and into the hands of EEO Officer will 
create a difficult dynamic in departments. Some of the reasons include: 

o If a supervisor witnesses or receives a report of an employee contributing to a hostile 
workplace or bullying, will the supervisor be able to take immediate action in the 
workplace? Must the issue be reported to the EEO office and work its way through the 
process before being addressed? If so, the result is the inability to address workplace 
issues in a timely manner. 

o This change will send a message that either supervisors are deemed incompetent or not 
trusted to address workplace issues. The result is decreased morale. 

o The EEO officers do not understand the dynamics of departments and the backgrounds 
of workplace relationships. They do not have the depth of understanding that 
supervisors have to address issues. 

o Some supervisors address matters more effectively through coaching and mentoring or 
through mediation. This revised process ignores and stifles those strengths in 
supervisors. 

o There is the potential that different employees under the same supervisor will be 
treated differently for the same violation if their matter is addressed by different EEO 
Officers, leading to inconsistent corrective actions. 

 
• There is no verbiage around matters where EEO Officers should not be involved and required to 

recuse themselves. For example, an EEO Officer should not be investigating or disciplining in a 
matter involving one of their family members. 
 

• Will a Supervisor be able to appeal an EEO decision? EEO Officers may be involved in favoritism, 
overlooking key information, missing deadlines, etc. Supervisors should have the ability to 
appeal an EEO decision prior to issuing a disciplinary decision to an employee. 

352 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



Jo Anne House, PhD  | Chief Counsel 
James R. Bittorf | Deputy Chief Counsel 
Kelly M. McAndrews | Senior Staff Attorney 
 
Carl J. Artman 
Krystal L. John 
Peggy A. Van Gheem 
Lydia M. Witte 

N7210 Seminary Road  ●  P.O. Box 109  ●  Oneida, WI  54155  ●  920.869.4327 
oneida-nsn.gov 

Law Office 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: 
 

Legislative Operating Committee 
CC:  Todd VanDen Heuvel, Human Resources Executive Director 
 

FROM: 
 

Peggy A. Van Gheem, Staff Attorney 
Krystal L. John, Staff Attorney 
Kelly M. McAndrews, Senior Staff Attorney 
 

DATE: 
 

January 19, 2023 

SUBJECT: 
 

Comments on proposed amendments to Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 

 
On December 7, 2022, the Legislative Operating Committee released to the public for the 

first time a draft of comprehensive amendments to the Oneida Personnel Policies and 
Procedures. Neither the Oneida Law Office nor any department/division management personnel 
besides the Human Resources Department were notified about or involved in any work meetings, 
discussions, drafting, or other development of the OPPP amendments.  
 

Establishing the Nation’s Workplace Culture 
A workplace culture is the shared values, belief systems, attitudes and the set of 

assumptions that people in a workplace share. Dr. Pragya Agarwal, How To Create A Positive 
Workplace Culture, Forbes (August 29, 2018). A positive workplace culture values, supports and 
nurtures all the organization’s employees. Id. The importance of carefully crafting a positive 
workplace culture is increasingly a topic among human resources professionals who note, “[a]ll 
leaders have a responsibility to be intentional and systematic about designing the culture they 
want, rather than settling for the culture that is created by chance.” Starner, Tom, 6 Policies to 
Help HR be More Strategic About Culture, Human Resources Executive (September 9, 2021). 
Additionally, experts have noted, “[t]he new remote and hybrid work environments have not 
only made culture more important than ever, but they’ve forced leaders to rethink their strategy 
for building culture.” Id. 

 
The Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures is the primary document responsible for 

setting the Nation’s workplace culture – it defines the Nation’s employment goals and sets 
human resources standards for the Nation. A serious concern related to the proposed 
amendments to the OPPP is the overall tone of the document and how that tone may have a 
negative impact on the workplace culture. The underlying tone of this document communicates 
that the Nation’s supervisors cannot be trusted, that supervisors’ experiences are not valued and 
that the OPPP and HRD are needed to protect “employees.”  This is most glaring in the 
Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances section. For example, the introductory 
paragraph reads:  

353 of 400

r'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 2 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process for handling problem employees 
and correcting unacceptable behavior. Grievance procedures provide a systematic process 
for protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment. In all cases of grievance 
and discipline, supervisors are enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious 
good sense to resolve complaints between employees, exercise disciplinary prerogatives 
and handles grievances. 

 
There are a couple important things to note about this section. First, when compared to the 
current OPPP, the reference to also serving to protect the Nation has been removed. Second, the 
line about protecting employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment really stands out.  When 
put together, it takes the section out of balance.  By reading in between the lines, the organization 
would be sending the message that corrective actions are for “problem employees” and that, if 
left to their own devices, supervisors would treat their employees inconsistently and unfairly.  A 
much simpler drafting of the policy, without reference to “problem employees” or to the need to 
protect employees from supervisors would foster a much more positive workplace culture. For 
example: Disciplinary procedures provide a systematic process for correcting unacceptable 
employment behavior/performance. In all cases of grievance and discipline, supervisors are 
enjoined to use common sense, discretion and judicious good sense. 
 
 This tone is carried throughout proposed Section V.D., to the extent that all these actions 
funnel through the Equal Employment Officer and route disciplines for any EEO and/or illegal 
activities violations exclusively through the EEO Department.  The breadth of illegal activities is 
wide and often implicated when terminating an employee for reasons other than progressive 
discipline.  There is a question as to the capacity of the EEO Department to perform these 
investigations for the Nation’s entire employment body even if only considering time and 
resources.  But it is also an issue of subject matter expertise.  While the EEO has the subject 
matter expertise in human resources policies, the supervisors have critical subject matter 
expertise that cannot be removed from the process without sacrificing the integrity of the 
investigation. For example, supervisors are the subject matter experts related to the interactions 
between the employees involved, the employment standards and expectations for the positions 
involved, and most importantly, the day-to-day operations of their department, including any 
operating systems for access to documents. Removing supervisors from investigations does not 
serve the employees’ or the Nation’s best interests. 
 
 The proposed OPPP amendments fall short of building a positive workplace culture that 
values, supports and nurtures all the organization’s employees when the policy does not value, 
support and nurture the Nation’s management team.  I strongly encourage the drafting team to 
consider workplace culture when setting the tone of the amended-OPPP.  I encourage the Nation 
to consider whether its HRD should be a processor of human resources documents and policies 
(similar to most HRDs) or whether the Nation’s HRD will have decision making authorities on 
behalf of the Nation (which is very uncommon).  It would be helpful to spend some time 
identifying an overall policy and goal of the Nation in terms of employment and to keep that at 
the forefront in each section of the document rather than trying to identify the policy and goals 
section by section – which create internal conflict within the document and creates confusion as 
to the Nation’s employment intentions. 

 

354 of 400

r"°'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 3 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Comments Specific to Each Amendment Section 
 
Throughout OPPP amendments  
The title “HRD Manager” is updated to “Human Resources Executive Director” throughout the 
OPPP. This change presents no legal issues. 
 
Section III, Selection Policy 
Section III.A., Oneida Preference and Indian Preference Statement of Policy 
The proposed amendments update the language of the Oneida Preference and Indian Preference 
Statement of Policy. In this section, updated language does not substantially change the 
underlying policy and does not create any legal issues. 
 
Section III.B., Hiring Procedure 
The proposed amendments eliminate almost all OPPP language regarding recruitment and hiring 
topics, such as identifying vacancies, developing job descriptions, applications, advertising 
vacancies, screening for positions, interviews, and selection of a candidate. In place of such 
language, the proposed amendments delegate rulemaking authority to the Human Resources 
Department as follows: 
 

c. Hiring and Selection Rules.  
1) The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance with 
the Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for the 
hiring and selection of employees of the Nation. (OPPP Amendments (clean 
copy), Draft 1, lines 295-298)  

 
Section III.C. Internal Position Posting (formerly Transfers and Promotions Policy) 
Similarly, the proposed amendments eliminate almost all OPPP language regarding transfers and 
promotions, internal postings, applicant pool, and reassignments and, again, delegate rulemaking 
authority to HRD, specifically: 
 

1. Internal Position Posting and Reassignment Rules 
a. The HRD Office shall be delegated rulemaking authority in accordance with the 

Administrative Rulemaking law to develop rules regarding procedures for internal 
position posting and reassignment of employees of the Nation. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 306-309)  

 
Section III.B.2.b., Personnel Commission Role 
The current OPPP defines the Personnel Commission Role as follows: 

b. Personnel Commission Role 
1) The Oneida Nation established the Personnel Commission to represent the 

Oneida Community-at-large in the selection of employees of the Nation. 
 
The proposed amendments narrow down the Personnel Commission Role: 

b. Personnel Commission Role  

355 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 4 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

1) The Oneida Nation established the Personnel Commission to represent the 
Oneida Community-at-large in the selection of employees of the Nation and to 
shield those employees from inconsistent and unfair treatment by:  

a) Protecting against issues of nepotism;  
b) Enforcing Oneida and Indian preference.1 (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, 
lines 280-284) 

 
In addition, the current OPPP direct the involvement of Personnel Commissioners in particular 
screening and interview processes, specifically as one member of the Screening Committee “to 
conduct the screening of applicants” (OPPP III.B.2.f.2)) and as two members of the Interview 
Committee (OPPP III.B.2.g.1)). The proposed amendments generally direct the Oneida 
Personnel Commission to “participate in the hiring selection process, including job description 
pre-screens and interviews” and “ensure compliance with the Nation’s laws and policies 
regarding . . . 1. Oneida and Indian preference; 2. Nepotism; 3. Conflicts of Interest; 4. Veteran 
status; and 5. Physical capacity requirements.” The Commission is further directed to comply 
with its own bylaws. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 285-294).  
 
While the current OPPP specifies how Personnel Commissioners are involved in screening and 
interview processes, the proposed amendments do not identify any specific duties through which 
the Commission will “participate” and “ensure compliance.” The Commission’s current bylaws 
have similar language2 to the OPPP amendments and, therefore, do not identify specific duties 
for Commissioners in the screening and interview processes. (Oneida Personnel Commission By-
Laws, Article I. Authority, Section 1-3 and 1-5(e)) The Personnel Commission could amend its 
bylaws to describe its participation in the Nation’s hiring processes.3 (See Oneida Personnel 
Commission By-Laws, Article VII. Amendments). If the amended OPPP does not direct the 
Personnel Commissioners’ duties in the screening and interview processes, who has the authority 
to direct them? The authority of and involvement by the Oneida Personnel Commission has 
always been defined by Oneida Law and not through departmental rulemaking. The proposed 
amendments do not state why this change is needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 Language added through the proposed OPPP amendments is identical to language in the Commission’s Bylaws 
describing its authority. See Oneida Personnel Commission By-Laws, Section 1-3(a). 
2 The Personnel Commission bylaws include an additional area of authority under Section 1-3: “(3) Hearing and 
deciding appeals of disciplinary action filed by employees of the Nation.” Section 1-5(e) includes a corresponding 
responsibility to “[c]onduct grievance hearings in accordance with the Oneida Personnel Policies and procedures 
and Oneida Business Committee Resolution BC-03-13-19-C.” Through a series of Business Committee resolutions 
and GTC directives that are not relevant to this legal review, the Personnel Commission was dissolved and then 
reinstated in 2018.  
3 At this time, the Personnel Commission has 1 member; all other seats are vacant. 

356 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 5 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Section III.D., Original Probation 
The proposed language clarifies that an employee will be on probation for 3 months “after being 
hired, transferred, or reassigned” into a position.4 (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 311-313) 
The amendments also permanently remove probationary pay from Oneida law.5  
 
In addition, the proposed amendments permanently remove appeal rights of probationary 
employees who are terminated “for cause,” which “consist[s] of a violation of policies or the 
documented inability of the employee to perform the duties and responsibilities of the position.”6 
(OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 325-326) 
 
Section IV, Compensation and Benefits 
Section IV.A.4., Holidays 
The proposed amendments establish a new holiday – Indigenous Peoples’ Day – for Oneida 
employees. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, line 406)  In the United States, Indigenous Peoples’ 
Day is celebrated on the second Monday of October. 
 
Section IV.A.5., Vacation/Personal Days 
The current OPPP provides that all employees are paid out for unused personal and vacation time 
upon separation from employment. (OPPP Section IV.A.5.h.) The proposed amendments 
disallow payout of personal or vacation time to employees “who are terminated during their 
original probation period.” (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 463-464) The amendments do not 
distinguish between probationary employees who are “terminated” and those who are separated 
for other reasons, such as a quit. It is unclear whether the word “terminated” is used to mean any 
separation of a probationary employee from their employment or if it means, very specifically, 
termination. This should be clarified, perhaps through use of the word “separated” in place of 
“terminated.” 
 
Section IV.D.2., Leaves 
The current OPPP allow regular employees a three-day leave of absence upon the death of an 
immediate family member or, upon approval of a supervisor, upon the death of other persons if 
the employee is responsible for funeral arrangements. (OPPP Section IV.D.2.) The proposed 
amendments extend the length of funeral leave in both cases to five days. (OPPP Amendments, 
Draft 1, lines 527-536) 
 
In all other circumstances, the current OPPP provide up to one day of funeral leave. (OPPP 
IV.D.2.c.) The proposed amendments shorten permissible leave to three hours when the 
employee is neither an immediate family member nor responsible for funeral arrangements of the 

 
4 The Business Committee enacted this amendment on an emergency basis in November 2021 (BC Resolution #11-
24-21-A) and has subsequently reenacted and extended the amendment. (See BC Resolution 05-11-22-A and 11-
07-22-A). 
5 Probationary pay is 5% below the posted rate of pay for the position. The Business Committee adopted an 
emergency amendment to the same effect in November 2021 (BC Resolution #11-24-21-A) and has subsequently 
reenacted and extended the amendment. (See BC Resolution 05-11-22-A and 11-07-22-A). 
6 The Business Committee enacted this amendment on an emergency basis in May 2022 (BC Resolution #05-11-22-
A) and extended the same amendment in November 2022 (See BC Resolution 11-07-22-A). 

357 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 6 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

deceased. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 537-538) Proposed changes to the Leaves section 
of the OPPP present no legal issues. 
 
Section V., Employee Relations 
Section V.D., Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances - Introduction 
The current OPPP include an introductory paragraph to the Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, 
and Grievances section. (OPPP V.D.) This introductory language is frequently cited by the 
Oneida Judiciary when framing employee grievance decisions. (See e.g. Thundercloud v. HRD et 
al., 20-EMP-002, p.4 (July 2, 2020); Kriescher v. Suquet, 12-AC-010, p. 6 (Oct. 23, 2012); 
Oneida Bingo & Casino v. Martin, 11-AC-002, p. 3-4, 9 (June 1, 2011); Oneida Bingo & Casino 
v. Jones, 14 O.N.R. 36, 41 (Sept. 23, 2008)). Therefore, the introductory language establishes the 
Nation’s employment philosophy regarding Complaints, Disciplinary Actions, and Grievances. 
 
Currently, OPPP V.D. describes the purposes of the disciplinary process as “provid[ing] a 
systematic process for handling problem employees,” “correct[ing] unacceptable behavior,” and 
“protect[ing] the Nation.” (OPPP V.D.) The proposed amendments condense the express 
purposes for disciplinary action to “provide a systematic process correcting (sic) unacceptable 
and problematic behaviors in employees.” (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 702-3)  
 
The purpose of grievance procedures in the current OPPP is to “provide a systematic process for 
hearing and evaluating job related disputes” and “protect employees from inconsistent and unfair 
treatment.” (OPPP V.D.) The proposed amendments shift the focus of grievance procedures to 
employee protection: 
 

Grievance procedures provide a systematic process for protecting employees from 
inconsistent and unfair treatment. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 703-4) 

 
As the introductory language is an important signal of the Nation’s employment values and is 
relied upon by Oneida Courts, the language should accurately reflect the Nation’s regard for the 
value of all employees within the organization, front-line through General Managers, in all 
divisions and non-divisional. 
 
Section V.D.1., Complaints 
The current OPPP provides a process for employees to file a complaint against another employee 
in Section V.D.1. 
 
 1. Complaints (current OPPP) 

a. Should an employee have a disagreement with another employee, he/she may 
lodge an informal (verbal) or formal (written) complaint with the employee’s 
supervisor.  
b. The supervisor will investigate the complaint and attempt to resolve the 
disagreement.  
c. If the employee lodging the complaint is dissatisfied with the attempted 
resolution, he/she may ask the Area Manager to attempt a resolution.  
d. There is no further appeal of this process. 

 

358 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 7 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Currently, an employee files a complaint with the supervisor of the employee who is the subject 
of the complaint. (OPPP V.D.1.a.) The OPPP gives the supervisor discretion in how to 
investigate and the timeline for a resolution and response. (OPPP V.D.1.b.) The complaining 
employee may appeal the supervisor’s response to the supervisor’s supervisor (the area 
manager), but no further appeal is allowed. (OPPP V.D.1.c. and V.D.1.d.) (See e.g. Mays v. 
Boucher, 15-AC-005, p.5 (July 29, 2015); and Oneida Compliance Division v. Metoxen, 5 
O.N.R. 3-103, 107 (Oct. 25, 1999)). The current complaint process is designed to be flexible, 
allowing supervisors to address issues before they erupt in litigation. The proposed amendments 
drastically expand the complaint process, potentially involving Oneida personnel up to the 
General Manager in complaints that begin at any level of the organization. 
 
Section V.D.1.a., General 
Amendments to the OPPP include a new introduction to the Complaint section: 
 

1. Complaints  
a. General  

1) The Nation recognizes that all employees have the right to file a 
complaint against another employee, and that all complaint investigations 
shall be handled with the utmost fairness, respect, and equality.  
2) The Nation recognizes there are various levels of severity of 
complaints, and dependent on the severity of the complaint, not all 
complaints shall follow the same process.  
3) An employee found to have given false information or made a false 
claim shall face disciplinary action in accordance with the appropriate 
policies and procedures.  
4) Access to complaint information shall be limited to those who have a 
legitimate need to know.  
5) Retaliation of any form against an employee for filing a complaint shall 
be strictly prohibited. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 709-23) 

 
As written, the introduction language raises some issues. Declaring that “employees have the 
right to file a complaint against another employee” is unnecessary because the Complaint 
process would not be written into the law if employees did not have a right to it. In addition, 
other basic employment processes – receipt of wages, use of accrued vacation or personal time, 
non-discriminatory supervision – are not delineated as “rights” in the OPPP. The proposed 
language of OPPP V.D.1.a.1) begs the question: Why should the complaint process be elevated 
as a “right” above other essential employment processes?  
 
The draft amendment also proposes new language regarding release of complaints, as “complaint 
information” would be released to “those who have a legitimate need to know.” The scope of 
what may be released – the “complaint information” in proposed OPPP V.D.1.a.4) – is 
undefined. Does that refer to only the complaint itself? Or does it mean notes, documents, 
recordings, and other information collected during the supervisor’s investigation? Also left 
undefined is who will determine whether a requester has a “legitimate need to know.” And are 
there any factors that will be balanced against the “legitimate need” or is the requester’s 
“legitimate need” sufficient to access the “complaint information?” These questions lead to 

359 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 8 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

uncertainty for supervisors, area managers, employees, and those responsible for releasing 
information. 
 
As written, the amendments potentially allow the employee who is the subject of a complaint to 
receive a copy of it, since the employee who is the subject of a complaint and subsequent 
investigation certainly has a “legitimate need to know.” This directly contradicts established 
Oneida law and caselaw. Both the current OPPP and the proposed amendments address the 
confidentiality of personnel records in Section IX. Current Oneida Law and the proposed 
amendments require an employee’s written consent prior to release of employee records “to any 
person or agent of any organization.”7 (OPPP Section IX.A.) Oneida caselaw emphasizes that a 
complaint will not be released to the employee who is the subject of it. In Somers v. OBC 
Officers, the Oneida Appeals Court determined that an employee’s due process rights were not 
violated when the Business Committee, in their role as Somers’ supervisors, refused to provide 
her with a copy of a complaint they were investigating. (18-AC-007, p. 4 (August 23, 2017)). 
The Appellate Court listed several reasons why a complaint should not be released to the 
employee who is the complaint’s subject, specifically: 
 

(1) Releasing a complaint to the subject employee “can create more issues between the 
employee, supervisor, and other employees within the organization.” Id. at 3-4.8 

(2) The “supervisor is simply trying to determine if the allegations of the complaints have 
merit and if so, to address them administratively.” Id. at 4. 

(3) “An effective investigator will only disclose details of the complaint that are 
necessary for the inquiry” for the purpose of “elicit[ing] extemporaneous responses 
that are not just responses to the person making the complaint or the accusations in 
the complaint.” Id. 

 
The proposed amendments may contradict established Oneida Law by allowing disclosure of a 
complaint to the subject employee without written consent. Adopting the amendments as written 
would potentially overturn Oneida caselaw, which is based on long-standing HRD practice and 
advice. The reasons for this proposed change are not apparent from the current draft. 
 
Section V.D.1.b., Types of Complaints 
The amendments break Complaints into three categories: (1) Employee Disagreements; (2) EEO 
Violations; and (3) Illegal Activities.9 Each type of Complaint follows a separate process. 

 
7 OPPP Section IX – Privacy and Confidentiality of Employee Records refers specifically to collection and release of 
employee records by the Human Resources Department. Under the proposed amendments, after a supervisor 
concludes their investigation and resolution of a complaint, the supervisor “shall also send the final resolution and 
all supporting documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department for filing and reporting 
purposes,” thereby creating an employee record that is subject to OPPP Section IX.  
8 The Court relied upon testimony from Geraldine Danforth, HRD Area Manager for 16 years, for a description of 
reasons why a complaint should not be released to the subject employee. Ms. Danforth “testified on two different 
occasions that an investigator should never give the complaint to the employee.” 18-AC-007, p. 3. 
9 By establishing Complaint categories and giving those categories precise definitions, it is likely the proposed 
language will eliminate complaints that could be filed under the more general language of the current OPPP. For 
example, if an employee wishes to complain about another employee’s incompetency, incapacity to perform job 
duties, or failure to perform adequately, those complaints do not seem to fit under any proposed Complaint 

360 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 9 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

 
Section V.D.1.c.1), Employee Disagreements 
Employee Disagreements are “when an employee alleges they are having problems, 
misunderstandings, or frustrations with another employee.” (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
725-7) The complaint process for an Employee Disagreement is described as follows: 
 
 1) Employee Disagreements  

a) An employee who alleges they have a disagreement with another employee 
may file a complaint with the EEO Department.  
b) Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
Department shall provide the supervisor of the employee with the complaint.  

 
It is not clear whether the proposed amendments require an employee to file a written complaint 
or if an oral complaint to the EEO is sufficient. This should be clarified. 
 
The proposed amendments require the EEO to “provide the supervisor of the employee with the 
complaint.” It is not clear which supervisor will be provided the complaint: the supervisor of the 
employee who made the complaint or the supervisor of the employee whose behavior led to the 
Employee Disagreement. If the amendments require the EEO to provide the complaint to the 
supervisor of the complaining employee, that could be problematic if the complainant’s 
supervisor is the subject of the complaint. The proposed amendments should have clearer 
language in Section V.D.1.c.1) b. regarding which supervisor will receive the complaint. 
 

c) The supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve the 
complaint.  
 

Throughout the amended OPP section regarding Complaints, timelines are counted in “working 
days” but no definition of “working day” is provided in the amendments10. A possible definition 
for “working day” is: Any day that is not a weekend or a recognized Oneida holiday. 
 

i. The supervisor’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day 
after the supervisor receives the complaint from the EEO 
Department.  

 
Oneida Courts have further defined what it means for a supervisor or area manager to “receive” 
documents during the grievance appeal process and it would be helpful to include the same 
clarification in the proposed amendments. In Lecker v. Powless, an employee alleged the area 
manager decision was untimely. (22-AC-004, p. 2 (June 7, 2022)). After multiple recusals, 
Lecker’s appeal of her termination was upheld by Area Manager Powless. Id. The Court of 
Appeals determined the Area Manager decision was timely and declined the grievance appeal. 
Id. The Court emphasized it is the Area Manager’s actual receipt of an appeal that starts the 

 
category. Will employees choose not to file complaints if they cannot figure out the right category? Or will such 
Complaints be rejected by the EEO? The proposed amendments are silent on this question. 
10 The phrase “working day” is used throughout the current OPPP and not defined. The amendments are an 
opportunity to define an important term that is central to complaint and disciplinary process. 

361 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 10 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

timeline. Id. The amendments should include language to better align with the Lecker decision, 
such as:  

The Area Manager receives an appeal when they personally receive the grievance, after 
all possible recusals have been resolved. 

 
ii. The supervisor shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as 
well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint.  

 
Altogether, the proposed Complaint section places an incredible burden on supervisors, area 
managers, and, in some cases, even General Managers. A part of that burden is found in Section 
V.D.1.c.1)c.ii. and other similarly-worded sections. (See e.g.V.D.1.c.1)e.iv. regarding area 
manager investigation and V.D.1.c.1) f.iv.1.c. regarding General Manager investigation of 
complaints). Under the proposed amendments, supervisors (and area managers and General 
Managers) will be required to meet with the employee who filed the complaint and “all other 
parties mentioned in the complaint.”11 The amendments do not grant the supervisor, area 
manager, or General Manager any discretion in determining which individuals have information 
relevant to the Employee Disagreement. A complaining employee could name numerous 
individuals in the complaint, which would necessitate a supervisor meeting with each and every 
one of them. In addition, use of the term “parties” rather than “employees” means the supervisor 
would be required to meet with individuals outside the organization. The proposed amendments 
do not provide any discretion for supervisors, area managers, or General Managers to conduct an 
investigation tailored to the complaint. 
 

1. Meetings between the supervisor and employees may occur in 
person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone.  
2. The supervisor shall document all attempts made to meet with 
an employee. If the complaining employee or the employee being 
complained about is unavailable, the supervisor shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the information they have.  

 
The proposed amendment language does not define when or how an employee is “unavailable” 
to meet. The Oneida Judiciary provided guidance on when an employee may be considered 
unavailable to meet. The Oneida Court of Appeals, in Skenandore v. Smith et al., found that a 
supervisor must provide an employee at least 24-hours’ notice prior to a requested meeting for 
the employee’s no-show to count as a refusal to meet. (21-AC-008, p. 4 (April 11, 2022)) 
(“[P]roviding less than 24-hour notice to attend a meeting on a voicemail, especially when the 
meeting has not been confirmed, is not judicious good sense.”). In addition, a supervisor may be 
required to follow-up with an employee who does not respond to a meeting request, rather than 
allowing the meeting time to pass and proceeding with discipline. Id. at 5. The proposed 
amendments do not explain why the principles –and the rule of law – of Skenandore have been 
left out of the OPPP amendments.  
 

 
11 It is interesting that the amendments would not require the supervisor to meet with the employee who is the 
subject of the complaint if such employee is not, in fact, named in the complaint. This may be an oversight, but it 
seems essential to creating an effective resolution to an Employee Disagreement. 

362 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 11 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Also, while the supervisor is permitted to move forward with an investigation if the complaining 
employee or subject employee are unavailable, the amendments do not have similar instructions 
when any “other party” is unavailable. It is unclear whether the supervisor’s attempts to meet 
with “all other parties” must be documented and whether unavailability affects the investigation 
in any way. This topic should be addressed to provide clear guidance to supervisors, area 
managers, and General Managers. 
 

iii. If the supervisor cannot complete the investigation within the ten (10) 
working day timeframe, the supervisor may request a one (1) time five (5) 
working day extension from the EEO Department.  
iv. When the supervisor’s investigation is complete, the supervisor shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  

1. If the supervisor cannot come to a mutual determination with the 
EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the complaint, then 
the supervisor shall provide written justification for non-agreement 
on the resolution to both the Area Manager and the Human 
Resources Executive Director.  

v. The supervisor shall send the final resolution to their Area Manager to 
ensure accountability.  
vi. The supervisor shall also send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department 
for filing and reporting purposes.  

 
Sections V.D.1.c.1)c)iii. - vi. of the proposed amendments create additional burdens for 
supervisors when resolving Employee Disagreement Complaints. The current OPPP gives the 
supervisor discretion to “attempt to resolve the disagreement” and, if the resolution is not 
satisfactory to the complaining employee, allows the employee to appeal one time to the area 
manager. (current OPPP V.D.1.b. and c. (See excerpt at p. 4, above)). Under the amended 
process, a supervisor – and an area manager and the General Manager – is no longer trusted to 
resolve complaints that are based on an employee’s frustration or misunderstanding with another 
employee. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 726-7) The supervisor, area manager, and General 
Manager would be required to consult with the EEO to resolve an employee’s frustration or to 
properly address an employee’s misunderstanding.12 It is unclear what has prompted this 
wholesale removal of discretion from supervisors, area managers, and General Managers. The 
foundation for and philosophy behind this change is not explained in the proposed amendments. 
 
Under the proposed amendments, Section V.D.1.c.1)c)vi. requires the supervisor to send the final 
resolution to the EEO Department “for filing and reporting purposes.” It is not clear what 
reporting is required or permitted for resolutions to Employee Disagreement Complaints. As 
outlined above, OPPP Section IX protects personnel records from disclosure absent written 
permission from the subject employee. The amendments should more clearly define – and 
perhaps limit – reporting of Complaint resolutions. 
 

 
12 And, it is important to note at this point, if the supervisor, area manager, or General Manager does not follow 
this process, they may be disciplined. 

363 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 12 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

d) If the supervisor fails to complete the investigation and resolve the complaint 
within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send notice to the 
Area Manager.  

i. The notice shall notify the Area Manager that the complaint was not 
addressed within the allotted ten (10) working days.  
ii. The notice shall inform the Area Manager that the supervisor violated 
the complaint process by being negligent in the performance of their 
assigned duties and failure to appropriately investigate a complaint. 
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the 
supervisor. 

1. If the Area Manager fails to take appropriate action to address 
the accountability of the supervisor, then the EEO Department 
shall send notice to the General Manager level position in that 
chain of command. If the General Manager level position was 
the Area Manager in the complaint, then the EEO Officer shall 
send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee.  

iv. The notice shall direct the Area Manager to complete the complaint 
investigation within ten (10) working days of receiving the notice from 
EEO.  

 
The proposed amendments add a significant “accountability” process to the Complaint section. If 
a supervisor “fails” to investigate and resolve a complaint within 10 days13, the EEO Department 
is compelled to send notice to the area manager. It is not clear what constitutes a supervisor’s 
failure to investigate and resolve a complaint. Historically, these questions have been examined 
and resolved by an Oneida hearing body, which provides an opportunity for both sides to be 
heard and supplies written decisions that guide future actions of supervisors throughout the 
organization. Such important due process and notice functions will be missed if these 
determinations are made by the EEO Department. 
 
In addition, the EEO determination occurs without giving the supervisor an opportunity to 
explain why the deadline was missed. While the proposed amendments provide ample process 
for employees to complain and appeal, supervisors (and area managers and General Managers 
who respond to complaints) are not afforded the same right to be heard. Instead, the EEO 
unilaterally determines both that the supervisor, area manager, or General Manager was 
“negligent in the performance of assigned duties” and assigns “appropriate accountability.” It is 
unclear from the proposed language what might be used to hold the supervisor accountable. Is it 
discipline? An entry in the personnel file of the offending supervisor? As the EEO’s notice will 
describe the supervisor’s actions as “negligence in the performance of assigned duties,” which is 
an action subject to discipline under both the current OPPP and the proposed amendments, it 
would appear that accountability will be in the form of discipline. And the area manager would 
be required to issue the discipline without hearing the supervisor’s perspective. A unilateral 
finding that an employee (here, a supervisor) was negligent in the performance of their duties 

 
13 Although a supervisor may request an additional five days to resolve a complaint under proposed Section 
V.D.1.c.1)c)iii., the “accountability” process does not recognize any extensions. A supervisor failure to investigate 
and resolve in 10 working days, rather than 15, compels the EEO to send notice to the area manager. 

364 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 13 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

without granting any opportunity for the employee (supervisor) to explain their actions is counter 
to the remainder of the proposed OPPP amendments.  
 
In addition, the proposed amendments remove the area manager’s or General Manager’s 
discretion to address the supervisor’s actions, since the next step is to notify the General 
Manager of the area manager’s failure to address the situation (or at least to address it to the 
EEO’s satisfaction). It is not clear what philosophy supports the removal of discretion from most 
levels of management. 
 

e) If the employee is not satisfied with the supervisor’s final resolution, they may 
refile their complaint with the EEO Department for resolution by the Area 
Manager.  

i. Within two (2) working days of the receipt of the complaint, the EEO 
Department shall provide the Area Manager of the employee with the 
complaint.  
ii. The Area Manager shall have ten (10) working days to complete their 
investigation.  
iii. The Area Manager’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day 
after the Area Manager receives the complaint from the EEO Department. 
iv. The Area Manager shall meet with the employee filing the complaint 
as well as all other parties mentioned in the complaint.  

1. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees may 
occur in person, through video conferencing, or by telephone.  
2. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to meet 
with an employee. If the complaining employee or the employee 
being complained about is unavailable, the Area Manager shall 
move forward with the investigation based on the information they 
have.  

v. When the Area Manager’s investigation is complete, the Area Manager 
shall contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an appropriate 
resolution.  

1. If the Area Manager cannot come to a mutual determination 
with the EEO Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the 
complaint, then the Area Manager shall provide written 
justification for non-agreement on the resolution to both the 
appropriate GM level position and the HRD Executive Director.  

vi. The Area Manager shall send the final resolution and all supporting 
documentation used to make the final resolution to the EEO Department 
840 for filing and reporting purposes.  
vii. The Area Manager’s resolution shall be final.  

f) If the Area Manager fails to complete the investigation and resolve the 
complaint within the ten (10) working days, the EEO Department shall send 
notice to the General Manager level position in that chain of command. If the 
General Manager level position was the Area Manager in the complaint, then the 
EEO Officer shall send the notice to the Oneida Business Committee.  

365 of 400

r"°'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 14 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

i. The notice shall notify the General Manager level position that the 
complaint was not addressed within the additional ten (10) working days. 
ii. The notice shall inform the General Manager level position that the 
Area Manager violated the complaint process by being negligent in the 
performance of their assigned duties and failure to appropriately 

 investigate a complaint.  
iii. The notice shall address the appropriate accountability of the Area 
Manager.  
iv. The notice shall address the General Manager level position’s 
responsibility to complete the complaint investigation and reach a 
resolution.  

1. Investigation Procedure for all General Manager Level 
Positions, not the Oneida Business Committee  

a. The General Manager level position shall complete the   
investigation and reach a resolution within ten (10) working 
days of receiving the notice from EEO.  
b. The General Manager level position’s ten (10) working 
day timeframe begins the day after the General Manager 
level position receives the complaint from the EEO 
Department.  
c. The General Manager level position shall meet with the 
employee 868 filing the complaint as well as all other 
parties mentioned in the complaint.  

i. Meetings between the General Manager level 
position and the employees may occur in person, 
through video conferencing, or by telephone.  
ii. The General Manager level position shall 
document all attempts made to meet with an 
employee. If the complaining employee or the 
employee being complained about is unavailable, 
the General Manager level position shall move 
forward with the investigation based on the 
information they have.  

d. When the General Manager level position’s investigation 
is complete, the General Manager level position shall 
contact the EEO Officer to mutually determine an 
appropriate resolution.  

i. If the General Manager level position cannot 
come to a mutual determination with the EEO 
Officer as to an appropriate resolution for the 
complaint, then the General Manager level position 
shall provide written justification for non-agreement 
on the resolution to the Human Resources 
Executive Director.  

e. The final resolution shall be sent to the EEO Department 
for filing and reporting purposes.  

366 of 400

r"°'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 15 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

f. The General Manager level position’s resolution of the 
complaint shall be final.  

2. Investigation Procedure for the Oneida Business Committee  
a. When the GM level position of a complaint was the Area 
Manager in the complaint, then the Oneida Business 
Committee shall complete the investigation and reach a 
resolution in accordance with their standard operating 
procedure regarding complaints. 

 
The proposed amendments significantly and, perhaps, unnecessarily complicate the employee 
complaint process. An Employee Disagreement based on a problem, misunderstanding, or 
frustration may be elevated to the General Manager, which could be as many as five levels of 
supervision above the complaining employee. It is difficult to estimate how many additional 
complaints might require area managers’ and General Managers’ attention under the amended 
process. Of course, it is not just the additional complaints that will become burdensome. The 
Complaint investigation and resolution process itself will bury supervisors, area managers, and 
General Managers. With present labor market conditions and a shortage of workers in most 
Oneida departments, supervisors and area managers are regularly covering work duties and 
filling vacancies. If supervisors are regularly faced with the choice between, on the one hand, 
being disciplined for an untimely response to a complaint or, on the other hand, an unattended 
cashier till, patients who cannot get in for required medical visits, lack of supervision in a Head 
Start classroom, or being unavailable for required testimony in Indian Child Welfare hearings, 
supervisors will simply choose to leave the Oneida organization and go elsewhere. Supervisors, 
including area managers and General Managers, are employees, too. They deserve trust and 
respect in the form of discretion to investigate and resolve employee complaints that are based 
on “frustration and misunderstandings.” 
 
Section V.D.1.c.2), EEO Violations 
The second category of Complaints is EEO Violations, which “occurs when an employee alleges 
they are being bullied, working in a hostile work environment, being discriminated against, being 
harassed, being intimidated, being retaliated against, or being sexually harassed.” (OPPP 
amendments, Draft 1, lines 728-42). The proposed amendments define “Sexual Harassment” 
using language from current OPPP Section V.D.2.c)5), specifically: 
 

i. Sexual Harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests 
for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature 
when:  

1. submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or 
implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s employment;  
2. submissions to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is 
used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such 
individuals; or  
3. such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially 
interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

 

367 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 16 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Over time, the definition of sexual harassment has expanded beyond what is in the current OPPP 
and proposed for the amendments. Comprehensive amendments to the OPPP provide an 
opportunity to update the scope of prohibited sexually harassing behavior under Oneida law. The 
United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission14 includes in its definition all 
harassment “because of a person’s sex” and “offensive remarks about a person’s sex.” (U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Sexual Harassment, last visited 12/22/2022, 
www.eeoc.gov/sexual-harassment). Most importantly, harassment “does not have to be of a 
sexual nature” to be prohibited as sexual harassment. Id. Also, sexual harassment can be 
perpetrated by a man or a woman and the harasser and victim may be of the same sex or opposite 
sex. Id. The amendments should include an updated scope of sexually harassing behaviors. 
 
The proposed Complaint process for EEO violations is as follows: 

2) EEO Violations  
a) An employee may file a EEO Violation complaint with the EEO Department.  
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 
the complaint.  
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the 
EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee.  
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee being 
complained about so they:  

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 
resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as 
all other parties mentioned in the complaint.  
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave while 
the employee is being investigated for an EEO Violation complaint.  
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 
mutually determine an appropriate resolution.15  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 
resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes.  

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final. (OPPP amendments, Draft 
1, lines 896-917) 

 
The most notable aspect of the EEO Violations Complaint process is the lack of oversight, 
especially when this section is compared to the Employee Disagreements Complaint process. 
While supervisors, area managers, and General Managers throughout the organization will be 
found “negligent in the performance of their assigned duties” and be subject to “appropriate 
accountability” if they “fail to complete [an] investigation and resolve the complaint,” the EEO 
Officers have no oversight and no threatened discipline. The proposed amendments are very 

 
14 As a federally-recognized Indian tribe, the Oneida Nation is exempt from Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and not subject to EEOC jurisdiction. EEOC definitions may guide the Nation in forming a sexual harassment policy. 
15 The proposed Amendments do not state what happens if the EEO and HR Executive Director cannot mutually 
agree. A possible solution is for the Executive Director decision to control in those instances. 

368 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

http://www.eeoc.gov/sexual-harassment


 
Page 17 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

focused on EEO oversight of supervisor, area manager, and General Manager investigations, 
decision-making, and follow-through. But there is a complete lack of oversight for the EEO 
Officers themselves when they are investigating and resolving EEO Violation Complaints. 
 
The proposed amendments require the EEO Officer to notify the supervisor of the employee who 
is the subject of the complaint to state, among other things, “the final resolution shall be sent to 
their supervisor to ensure accountability.” (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 907-908). It is 
unclear which supervisor will receive the “final resolution.” The language may refer to the 
supervisor of the employee being complained about or it may refer to the supervisor’s supervisor 
(in other words, two levels of supervision above the employee being complained about). The 
language should more clearly specify who will receive the final resolution. 
 
In addition, the language declaring the EEO’s resolution of a Complaint as “final” should be 
more clear. If the meaning of “final” is that the EEO’s resolution cannot be appealed to any 
hearing body, such limitation should be explicit. 
 
Section V.D.1.c.3), Illegal Activities 
The proposed amendments add a new Complaint process centered on employee allegations of 
illegal activities. Illegal activities are defined within the amendments at Section V.D.1.b.3): 
 

3) Illegal Activities  
a) An illegal activities violation occurs when an employee alleges:  

i. They witnessed or have knowledge of arson, bribery, lying under oath, 
obstruction, or interference with a criminal investigation;  
ii. They witnessed or have knowledge of a possession of a dangerous or 
unauthorized material, such as explosives or firearms, in the workplace; 
iii. They witnessed or have knowledge of the use or possession of an 
illegal controlled substance; or  
iv. They witnessed or have knowledge of a theft of property which 
includes, but is not limited to, theft, embezzlement, cheating, defrauding, 
pilfering, robbery, extortion, racketeering, swindling, or conspiracy to 
commit such actions. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 743-754) 

 
The OPPP are Oneida law and must be confined to matters over which the Oneida Nation can 
exercise its jurisdiction. For the purpose of employment regulation, this is generally considered 
to include activities that occur within the workplace, activities that are part of an employee’s 
work duties, or activities that substantially affect an employee’s ability to perform their work 
duties. The proposed amendments do not confine the definition of “Illegal Activities” to 
activities that are under the Nation’s jurisdiction, which can pose a problem for enforcement of 
the Law. Only amended Section V.D.1.c.3)a)ii refers to an employee “witness[ing] or hav[ing] 
knowledge of a possession of a dangerous or unauthorized material . . . in the workplace.” 
(OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 747-8) (emphasis added). Similar language should be added 
to Sections i, iii, and iv. 
 
The proposed amendments also describe a process for Illegal Activities Complaints. 

3) Illegal Activities  

369 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 18 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

a) An employee may file an Illegal Activities complaint with the EEO 
Department.  
b) The EEO Officer shall have ten (10) working days to investigate and resolve 
the complaint.  
c) The EEO Officer’s ten (10) working day timeframe begins the day after the 
EEO Department receives the complaint from the employee.  
d) The EEO Officer shall notify the immediate supervisor of the employee being 
complained about so they:  

i. Are aware that the EEO Officer will be investigating their employee;  
ii. Know the EEO Officer shall be responsible for implementing the final 
resolution; and  
iii. Know the final resolution shall be sent to their supervisor to ensure 
accountability.  

e) The EEO Officer shall meet with the employee filing the complaint as well as 
all other parties mentioned in the complaint.  
f) The Nation may utilize its laws and policies governing investigative leave while 
the employee is being investigated for an Illegal Activities complaint.  
g) The EEO Officer shall meet with the Human Resources Executive Director to 
mutually determine an appropriate resolution.  
h) The final resolution and all support documentation used to make the final 
resolution shall be filed at the EEO Department for reporting purposes.  

i) The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.  
j) If the EEO Officer’s Illegal Activities complaint investigation of the employee 
resulted in the conclusion that an illegal activity did occur, then the EEO Officer 
shall forward the complaint resolution and all support documentation to a local 
law enforcement agency.  

i. The local law enforcement agency shall utilize their investigation and 
accountability processes for the complaint. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, 
lines 918-946) 

 
The Illegal Activities complaint process mirrors the EEO Violations complaint process for the 
most part, so the comments are similar. (See EEO Violations, above). In summary, when 
compared to the Employee Disagreement Complaint process, there is a lack of oversight for EEO 
Officer investigation and resolution of Illegal Activities. Also, it is unclear which supervisor will 
receive “the final resolution” identified in Section V.D.1.c.3)d)iii. Finally, it is not clear what is 
meant by, “The EEO Officer’s resolution shall be final.”  
 
Proposed Section V.D.1.c.3.g. would require the EEO Office to meet with the HR Executive 
Director to “mutually determine an appropriate resolution.” When there is the possibility of 
illegal activity within an Oneida workplace or a crime against the Nation, such discussion should 
involve an attorney(s) from the Oneida Law Office. The Nation’s attorneys both represent the 
interest of the Nation and directly advise the Oneida Business Committee about legal 
implications of potential illegal activity within the organization. 
 
In addition, while the Illegal Activities complaint process requires an EEO Officer to forward 
information to a local law enforcement agency if the Officer reaches a “conclusion that an illegal 

370 of 400

r"°'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 19 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

activity did occur,” this requirement falls far short of what is actually needed in these 
circumstances. If grant funds are implicated in any way, grant requirements must be considered 
and a report(s) made to relevant granting agency(ies). In addition, illegal activity typically 
impacts compacts, contracts, memoranda of understanding or agreement, and other 
intergovernmental agreements. The Oneida Law Office is involved in cases of illegal activity to 
ensure that the requirements of all applicable agreements are fulfilled. In almost every case, the 
matter is reported to the Business Committee with the appropriate confidentiality and context. 
Simply saying that the EEO will refer the matter to a local law enforcement agency does not 
address all the implications of an Illegal Activities investigation. This language should be 
expanded to ensure that the Oneida Law Office is involved and all reports are made. 
 
The Illegal Activities Complaint process raises an additional concern. Section V.D.1.c.3)j)i. 
seems to direct “local law enforcement agenc[ies]” to “utilize their investigation and 
accountability processes for the complaint.” Every local law enforcement agency, including the 
Oneida Police Department, uses its discretion to determine an approach to every complaint they 
receive. It is not necessary to direct law enforcement agencies as proposed in the OPPP 
amendments. 
 
Another concern is the proposed Amendments would require the EEO Officers to investigate the 
functions, records, systems, and policies of a department that the EEO likely has no experience 
in. Such investigations are currently delegated to supervisors who understand and work directly 
in their departments. Supervisors may request assistance from professional investigators in 
Oneida Internal Security. An EEO Officer’s unfamiliarity with the subject matter and processes 
can increase the time, effort, and resources needed for an investigation. It will also likely affect 
the ability of law enforcement to conduct an effective investigation, if needed. It is not clear why 
this responsibility has been removed from the supervisors. 
 
Section V.D.2., Discipline 
The current OPPP provide a process for direct supervisors to discipline their employees for 
infractions enumerated within the Law. See OPPP V.D.2. Under current law, if anyone other 
than an immediate supervisor uncovers information or performs an investigation that reveals a 
basis for possible discipline, the matter is referred to the direct supervisor to perform the 
discipline. (See e.g. Investigative Leave, 2 O.C. 208.7-3; and OPPP §V.D.5)a)1.c.,Sexual 
Harassment Policy). Throughout the investigation and disciplinary process in place at this time, 
supervisors are given discretion to determine how an investigation is conducted, whether a 
discipline is justified, and the severity of the discipline. Oneida Courts have affirmed supervisor 
discretion, holding, for example, that a supervisor has discretion to not terminate an employee 
who accumulates three disciplinary notices, even though such termination is provided for in the 
OPPP. (Moore v. Skenandore, 15-AC-011, p. 4 (November 10, 2015)) (See also Oneida Bingo & 
Casino, Table Games Dept. v. Hoffman, 09-AC-007, p. 9 (Aug. 19, 2009)) (“It is the discretion 
of the supervisor to determine if a discipline is warranted and if so the severity of the discipline. . 
. . Having found that Ms. Hoffman did not adhere to the attendance and punctuality rules, it is the 
supervisor that should be permitted and has the authority in deciding what if any consequences 
should be applied to their employee’s work performance.”) 
 

371 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 20 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Current law also places certain constraints on the supervisor’s discretion, specifically: (1) any 
deviation from progressive discipline must be justified (OPPP V.D.2.b.)16; (2) five-day timeline 
to issue discipline after supervisor concludes the investigation (OPPP V.D.5.b.); (3) in the event 
of a suspension or termination, supervisor must consult with an EEO Officer to mutually 
determine the discipline (OPPP V.D.5.f.1)).17 In addition to the constraints imposed by the 
OPPP, supervisors’ disciplinary decisions are regularly reviewed by area managers and the 
Courts. It is not clear why the proposed amendments reach even further in constraining 
supervisor and area manager discretion. 
 
Unlike the current OPPP, the proposed amendments would establish a disciplinary process that 
may be initiated by either the direct supervisor or the EEO Officer.  

2. Discipline  
a. Initiation of Disciplinary Action.  

1) Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an immediate supervisor for 
the purpose of correcting unsatisfactory work performance or as the 
resolution of an Employee Disagreement complaint investigation. 
2) Disciplinary actions shall be initiated by an EEO Officer as the 
resolution of an EEO Violation complaint or an Illegal Activities 
complaint investigation. (OPPP amendments, Draft 1, lines 947-953). 

 
The proposed amendments permit discipline by either an employee’s direct supervisor or an 
EEO Officer, depending on the basis for the discipline. In situations where a supervisor “fails to 
investigate and resolve [an Employee Disagreement] complaint,” the EEO will direct the Area 
Manager or, ultimately, the General Manager to “resolve the complaint.” (OPPP amendments, 
Draft 1, lines 794-6 and 856-8). Where supervisor discretion and supervisor-initiated disciplines 
have had long standing in the OPPP and are supported by the Courts, it is not clear what 
philosophy has led to such a change in the proposed amendments. 
 

b. Determination of Disciplinary Action.  
1) All disciplinary actions shall commensurate18 with the seriousness of 
the unsatisfactory performance or violation.  
2) Disciplinary actions shall be considered in progressive order.  

a) The progressive order for discipline is as follows, unless 
otherwise noted:  

i. Written warning (W);  
ii. Suspension (S);  
iii. Termination (T).  

b) Deviation from Progressive Order  

 
16 Justification of deviation from progressive discipline is typically included in the written summary that 
accompanies the Disciplinary Action Form. The justification may then be reviewed by the area manager, in the 
event the employee appeals. 
17 OPPP V.D.5.f.1) requires the supervisor to mutually determine suspensions and terminations with the HRD 
Manager. In practice, this function has been delegated to the EEO Officers. 
18 It’s possible Section V.D.2.b.1) is intended to read, “All disciplinary actions shall be commensurate with the 
seriousness of the unsatisfactory performance or violation.”  

372 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 21 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

i. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the supervisor shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the EEO Department.  
ii. Any deviation from the recommended progressive order 
made by the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and 
approved by the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee.  

 
The proposed amendments would require a supervisor to obtain EEO approval of any deviation 
from progressive discipline, within the timeline for issuing discipline. The amendments do not 
provide an opportunity to appeal the EEO decision regarding deviation.  
 

3) Accumulated Disciplinary Actions Warranting Termination  
a) The following accumulations of disciplinary actions shall 
warrant the termination of an employee:  

i. Three (3) upheld warning notices within any twelve (12) 
month period;  
ii. Two (2) upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) 
month period; or  
iii. Any combination of three (3) upheld warning notices 
and/or upheld suspensions within any twelve (12) month 
period. 
 

Proposed language regarding accumulated disciplines is substantially similar to language in the 
current OPPP and presents no legal issues. 
 
The amendments include lists of actions that may constitute unsatisfactory19 work performance, 
which are substantially similar to the lists of actions in the current law. (See OPPP amendments, 
Draft 1, lines 983-1066).  A significant change in the proposed amendments is found in Section 
V.D.2.c.2)d)xiii., which proposes to define “prohibited drug” as follows: 
 

xiii. The use, possession, selling or purchasing of, or attempt to 
sell or purchase alcohol, and/or prohibited drugs on or about 
Oneida Nation premises while on duty. (S/T)  
1. Prohibited drug means marijuana,20 cocaine, opiates, 

amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), hallucinogens, 

 
19 In the current OPPP, the list of actions is referred to as “unacceptable” work performance. See OPPP V.D.2.c. 
20 Many states have decriminalized marijuana for medical or recreational use, or both. In Wisconsin, where state 
law maintains criminal penalties, several municipalities have decriminalized marijuana possession, including 
Appleton and Green Bay, though such municipalities may permit civil monetary penalties. As a federal grant 
recipient, the Oneida Nation is required to comply with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, which requires 
“publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person’s workplace and specifying the actions that 
will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.” 41 USC §701(a)(1)(A). Marijuana is currently 
included on the federal list of controlled substances. 
 

373 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 22 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

methaqualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other 
substances included in Schedules I through V, as defined 
by Section 812 of Title 21 of the United States Code. 
Prohibited drugs also includes prescription medication or 
over-the-counter medicine when used in an unauthorized or 
unlawful manner. 

 
As the laws regarding the legality of marijuana continue to change, it may be advisable to not 
include a list of specific drugs as “prohibited.” To stay current with any potential changes to drug 
laws, proposed Section V.D.2.c.2)d)xiii.1. could state: 
 

1. Prohibited drug means any substances included in 
Schedules I through V, as established by 21 United 
States Code §812. Prohibited drugs also includes 
prescription medication or over-the-counter medicine 
when used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner. 

 
Section V.D.2.d., Disciplinary Procedure  
 

d. Disciplinary Procedure. The following procedure shall be adhered to by the supervisor 
or EEO Officer whenever disciplinary action is taken.  

1) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out a disciplinary action form within 
five (5) working days of either:  

a) the resolution of a complaint from which it has been determined that 
disciplinary action is warranted, or  
b) the determination that disciplinary action is warranted based on the 
unsatisfactory work performance of an employee.  

2) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall fill out the disciplinary action form in its 
entirety and ensure the information contained on the form is complete and 
accurate. The disciplinary action form shall include at a minimum the following 
information:  

a) Statement of the behavior for which the disciplinary action is being 
taken;  
b) The time and date of its occurrence; and  
c) The specific policy section under which action is being taken.  

3) The supervisor or EEO Officer shall promptly hold a meeting with the 
employee to discuss the disciplinary action form with the employee and identify a 
corrective action. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1067-84) 

 
It is not clear what qualifies as “promptly” meeting with a disciplined employee. Under the 
proposed amendments, the EEO Department can refer a supervisor who “fails to follow the 
Nation’s disciplinary procedures” for discipline. See OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1136-41. 
If an employee (here, a supervisor) is subject to discipline for certain actions or inaction, the 
employer should inform the employee of exactly what behaviors are required to avoid discipline. 
The proposed amendments do not adequately inform supervisors how to avoid discipline by 
promptly meeting with an employee.  

374 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 23 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

 
Additionally, supervisors have an interest in not having a discipline overturned for procedural 
errors. (See Oneida Bingo and Casino v. Oneida Human Resources Dept., 02-AC-007, 8 O.N.R. 
3-138, 139 (Aug. 12, 2002) (“[T]he supervisor is not presenting this grievance to the Personnel 
Commission in her personal capacity. She is bringing this action as a representative of the 
Oneida Bingo and Casino, which is Mr. Haven’s employer. And the Oneida Bingo and Casino 
does have an interest in upholding Mr. Haven’s suspension from employment. . . . [T]he Bingo 
and Casino as an entity has an interest in maintaining itself and its processes.”) For supervisors 
to avoid having their disciplines overturned, they need to be told the details of the disciplinary 
process. Requiring a “prompt” meeting is not detailed enough. For these reasons, proposed OPPP 
V.D.2.d.3) should include a specific timeline for supervisors and EEO Officers to meet with an 
employee who is being disciplined. 
 
Furthermore, it is not clear what is included as a “corrective action” that must be identified 
during the disciplinary meeting. Is the discipline – written warning, suspension, termination – the 
corrective action? Or would something else – a restriction on employee’s authority, a corrective 
plan, a mitigation agreement – qualify as a corrective action? In order to provide notice to the 
supervisor and to help the supervisor implement discipline that will be upheld, the types of 
“corrective action” need to be identified in the Amendments. 
 

a) The meeting between the supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee 
may occur in person, through video conferencing, or over the telephone.  
b) During the meeting the supervisor or EEO Officer shall discuss the 
disciplinary action with the employee being disciplined to ensure that the 
employee:  

i. Understands the reason for the disciplinary action;  
ii. Understands the expected work performance in light of the 
disciplinary action; and  
iii. Understands the consequences of continued unacceptable 
behavior.  

4) The employee being disciplined shall sign the disciplinary action form.  
a) Should an employee being disciplined refuse to discuss21 the action 
with their supervisor or the EEO Officer, or refuse to sign the disciplinary 
action form, the supervisor or EEO Officer shall so note this, with date of 
refusal, on the form.  

5) Within one (1) working day of the conclusion of the meeting with the 
employee, the supervisor or EEO Officer shall provide copies of the signed 
disciplinary action form, or disciplinary action form noting the date of refusal, to 
the:  

a) Employee being disciplined;  
b) Human Resources Executive Director;  
c) Supervisor;  

 
21 It is not clear if there is a difference between an employee’s refusal to meet and a “refusal to discuss.” Oneida 
hearing bodies and Courts have created significant precedent regarding an employee’s refusal to meet for an 
investigation or discipline. See e.g. Thundercloud et al. v. Skenandore, 21-AC-008 (April 11, 2022). The 
Amendments should make clear whether such precedent holds its value by using the phrase “refuse to meet.” 

375 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 24 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

d) Area Manager; and  
e) Appropriate General Manager level position.  

6) Should a disciplinary action result in the suspension of an employee, the 
following guidelines shall apply:  

a) Consultation on Suspensions  
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the supervisor 
shall consult with the EEO Officer to mutually determine the 
length of the suspension.  
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO 
Officer shall consult with the Human Resources Executive 
Director to mutually determine the length of the suspension.  

b) Suspensions shall be limited to a maximum period of three (3) weeks.  
i. Suspensions that are overturned in the grievance process shall 
result in the employee receiving back pay for the time they were 
suspended.  

7) Should a disciplinary action result in the termination of an employee, the 
following guidelines shall apply:  

a) Consultation on Termination  
i. If the supervisor is issuing the discipline, then the supervisor 
shall consult with the EEO Officer to mutually determine that the 
termination is the appropriate disciplinary action.  
ii. If the EEO Officer is issuing the discipline, then the EEO 
Officer shall consult with the Human Resources Executive 
Director to mutually determine that the termination is the 
appropriate disciplinary action. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1085-1125). 

 
The proposed OPPP Amendments regarding mutual determination of suspension length and of 
termination are substantially similar to the current OPPP and do not present any new legal issues. 
 

b) Terminations that are overturned in the grievance process shall 
result in the employee receiving back pay for the time they were 
terminated. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1126-7). 

 
Both the suspension and termination sections of the proposed amendments require back pay in 
the event a discipline is overturned. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1115-6 and lines 1126-
7). The recently-amended Back Pay Law clearly defines eligibility for and calculation of Back 
Pay. See 2 O.C. 206, Back Pay. Proposed language in the amendments that requires back pay 
“for the time they were suspended” or “for the time they were terminated” is not very specific. 
However, the Back Pay Law is quite specific about these calculations. The proposed 
amendments should require back pay “in conformance with Oneida Law,” as this is simpler and 
less confusing. 
 

8) The Human Resources Department may void a disciplinary action for clear 
procedural errors.  

376 of 400

r"°'\ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 25 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

a) The EEO Officer may void a disciplinary action taken by a supervisor 
for clear procedural errors.  
b) The Human Resources Executive Director, or designee, may void a 
disciplinary action taken by an EEO Officer for clear procedural errors.  
c) Notification of a voided disciplinary action shall be sent to the 
supervisor or EEO Officer and the employee which identifies the 
procedural error. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1128-35). 

 
The proposed amendments explicitly permit the EEO Officers to void a disciplinary action 
imposed by a supervisor if there are “clear procedural errors.” However, without a description of 
what constitutes clear procedural error, the amendments do not give supervisors sufficient notice 
of when their disciplines may be overturned. As described above, supervisors have an interest in 
issuing disciplines that will not be overturned. Therefore, the proposed amendments need a 
clearer definition of “clear procedural error.” In addition, the determination of whether a 
procedural error occurred has always been made by either the Personnel Commission or the 
Oneida Judiciary Trial Court. This allows for presentation of evidence by both sides and it 
provides written opinions that other supervisors can use to guide their disciplines in the future. 
Allowing EEO Officers to simply void disciplines eliminates these important due process and 
notice functions. 
 

9) For any supervisor who fails to follow the Nation’s disciplinary procedures, the 
EEO Department shall send a letter to the Area Manager.  

a) The letter shall notify the Area Manager that the supervisor violated the 
disciplinary process by being negligent in the performance of their 
assigned duties and failure to appropriately discipline an employee.  
b) The letter shall address the appropriate accountability of the supervisor. 
(OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1136-41). 

 
In Section V.D.2.d.9), the draft amendments appear to replace current accountability measures – 
namely, allowing an area manager or an Oneida Court to overturn a faulty discipline – with 
accountability in the form of more discipline as recommended by the EEO Department. The 
proposed amendments do not identify what “appropriate accountability” will be addressed in the 
letter to the area manager and, further, do not identify consequences if the area manager does not 
follow up as recommended. It is not clear what philosophy prompts the imposition of more 
discipline as an answer to improper discipline. This form of accountability should be 
reconsidered. 
 
Section V.D.3., Grievance 
The proposed amendments divide employee grievance appeals according to the basis for the 
grieved discipline. Disciplines that arise from EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints 
would be appealed directly to the Oneida Judiciary – Trial Court. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, 
lines 1150-53). Disciplines based on Employee Disagreement Complaints and Unsatisfactory 

377 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 26 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Work Performance would be appealed to the area manager and then to the Oneida Personnel 
Commission.22 
 

3. Grievance (Grievance Flowchart)  
a. General  

1) An employee who receives a disciplinary action which they believe is 
improper may grieve the action.  
2) The grievance process shall be conducted with utmost consideration for 
due process within the time limits set forth herein but will allow and 
account for recognized holidays of the Nation and unforeseen 
circumstances, such as illnesses, deaths in the immediate family of 
principals.  

b. Grievance Process for EEO Violations and Illegal Activities Complaints. An 
employee may appeal a discipline that resulted from an EEO Violation or Illegal 
Activities complaint to the Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the 
Trial Court within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the discipline.  
c. Grievance Process for Employee Disagreement Complaints and Unsatisfactory 
Work Performance. The grievance process for discipline that resulted from an 
employee disagreement complaint or unsatisfactory work performance shall be 
governed by the following guidelines23: (HR Interpretation, 8-19-2011) (HR 
Interpretation, 1-29-2014)  

1) Appeal to the Area Manager  
a) The employee (petitioner) shall file an appeal in writing with the 
Area Manager and the Human Resources Executive Director, or 
designee, within ten (10) working days from the day the employee 
receives the disciplinary action. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1142-62). 

 
Both employees and management have an interest in clarifying when notice is received, 
especially when the date of receipt determines the timeline for appeal. Opening the OPPP to 
comprehensive amendment provides an opportunity to emphasize that an employee cannot avoid 
service of a disciplinary action (or other notice) by refusing to retrieve or sign for their mail. (See 
e.g. Oneida Bingo & Casino v. Metoxen, 97-EP-0018, 4 O.N.R. 3-1, 2 (January 8, 1998) (“A 
party cannot avoid the time lines set forth in the Blue Book by intentionally refusing to sign for 
the certified letter that serves as notice.”) For example, Section V.D.3.c.1)a) could state that an 
employee who does not retrieve or sign for their mail will be deemed in receipt of the discipline 
on the date that delivery was first attempted.24 
 

 
22 The Oneida Personnel Commission is not taking grievance appeals at this time. The Oneida Nation website 
shows only 1 active Commissioner. Until the Personnel Commission is prepared to exercise hearing authority, all 
grievance appeals under current OPPP V.D.6 are brought to the Oneida Trial Court. See BC Resolution #03-13-19-C. 
23 Although “guidelines” is in the current OPPP, the LOC may want to replace it with “requirements” for a stronger 
statement. 
24 Similar language regarding a timeline that begins upon actual receipt is found at proposed OPPP V.D.3.b)2), 
regarding filing a grievance appeal with the Oneida Personnel Commission. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 
1488-92). Both sections would benefit from clarification regarding when notice is deemed received. 

378 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 27 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

i. The employee may seek the assistance of an 
advocate at any time after the disciplinary action 
has been issued in order to aid in the resolution of 
the grievance process.25  

b) The Area Manager, for all disciplinary action investigations, 
shall have ten (10) working days from the receipt of the 
employee’s appeal to complete the investigation.  

i. The supervisor26 shall meet with the following 
individuals during the disciplinary action investigation:  

1. Employee filing the appeal of the discipline;  
2. Supervisor who issued the discipline; and  
3. Any other witnesses mentioned in the appeal that 
were not mentioned in the disciplinary action. 

ii. Meetings between the Area Manager and the employees 
may occur in person, through video conferencing, or by 
telephone.  
iii. The Area Manager shall document all attempts made to 
meet with an employee. If an employee is unavailable to 
meet within the grievance timelines, the Area Manager 
shall move forward with the investigation based on the 
information they have.  
iv. One (1) extension of no more than five (5) working days 
may be requested of and granted by the Human Resources 
Executive Director, or designee, at their discretion. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1163-83). 

 
Under the proposed amendments, the area manager who responds to a grievance appeal must 
follow a process similar to that placed on the supervisor in proposed OPPP V.D.1.c., regarding 
supervisor investigation and resolution of Employee Disagreements. The legal issues presented 
by proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.1)b) are similar to those identified Pages 9-15 this memo. 
 

c) The Area Manager shall take one of the following actions:  
i. Uphold the disciplinary action;  
ii. Modify the disciplinary action; or  
iii. Overturn the disciplinary action.  

1. If a suspension or termination is overturned, the 
employee (petitioner) shall be reinstated to the 
position the employee was suspended or 
terminated from with full back pay. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1184-90). 

 

 
25 This section is duplicative when compared to proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.2)i)ii. As described in a subsequent section 
of the memo, I proposed deleting V.D.3.c.2)i)ii (which should be renumbered in any case, since it uses “i” as both 
the lowercase letter i and as small Roman Numeral i).   
26 This should probably be “area manager” rather than supervisor. 

379 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 28 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

The recently-amended Back Pay Law addresses all requirements for reinstatement and back pay. 
Therefore, it is sufficient in these amendments to state, “If a suspension or termination is 
overturned, reinstatement and back pay will be in conformance with Oneida Law.”  
 

d) The Area Manager shall file27 their decision with the employee 
and the Human Resources Executive Director, or designee. The 
decision of the Area Manager shall include:  

i. a reason for the decision;  
ii. an explanation of the decision; and  
iii. the action to be taken as a result of it.  

e) An Area Manager who does not comply with the disciplinary 
action grievance procedure may be subject to discipline. (OPPP 
Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1191-98). 

 
The proposed amendments again suggest disciplinary action for area managers who do not 
follow the grievance process. This raises several concerns, which are addressed on Page 12 of 
this memo. In addition, area managers are entrusted with greater levels of responsibility in the 
organization. A threat of discipline for not following the grievance process seems counter to the 
level of trust otherwise granted to employees at this level of management. It is not clear what 
philosophy underlies this proposed change. 
 
Section V.D.3.c.2), Appeal to the Oneida Personnel Commission28 
Overall, the proposed amendments would not significantly change the law regarding Oneida 
Personnel Commission (OPC) hearings. The current draft would have the Government 
Administrative Office receive and distribute information and organize OPC hearings, rather than 
the Human Resources Department. (See OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1199-1300). This 
proposed change will require training for GAO personnel.  
 
At proposed Section V.D.3.c.2.i)ii., the amendments retain current OPPP language regarding an 
employee’s right to an advocate. However, this section has caused confusion throughout the 
grievance process. Since this right would be described in proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.1)a)i., the 
language at V.D.3.c.2.i)ii can be deleted. 
 
The amendments would add language regarding where grievance appeals shall be filed if the 
Oneida Personnel Commission is not active, specifically: 

k) If the Oneida Personnel Commission is unable to fulfill its 
responsibility to hear an appeal of an Area Manager’s decision, 
then the employee may appeal the Area Manager’s decision to the 
Oneida Nation Judiciary by filing a complaint with the Trial Court 
within ten (10) days from the employee’s receipt of the Area 

 
27 Filing documents implies that such documents are deposited with a court or other hearing body. Where the area 
manager is providing copies of their decision to certain individuals, they should be required to “send” or “provide” 
their decision to the employee and HRD Executive Director. 
28 As noted previously in this memo, the Oneida Personnel Commission is not a functioning body and, with only 
one member, it is not certain when they will be able to hear grievance appeals. 

380 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 29 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

Manager’s decision. (OPPP Amendments, Draft 1, lines 1296-
1300). 

 
The language of proposed OPPP V.D.3.c.2)k) should reflect the language of BC Resolution #03-
13-19-C regarding the Personnel Commission’s capacity and readiness to hearing grievance 
appeals. Use of the phrase “unable to fulfill its responsibility to hear an appeal” permits filing 
grievance appeals at the Oneida Judiciary-Trial Court outside of the circumstances identified in 
BC Resolution #03-13-19-C. 
 
Section VI, Safety and Health 
Section VII, Program/Enterprise Rules & Regulations 
Section VIII, Recordkeeping 
Section IX, Privacy and Confidentiality of Employee Records 
 
The proposed amendments to the OPPP do not make any changes to Sections VI through IX. 
There are no outstanding legal issues presented by these sections that require amendment. 
 

Proposed Amendments Create Uncertainty and Conflict 
The proposed amendments insert the HRD Director and EEO into the disciplinary 

process in a new way.  The amendments delegate quasi-judicial29 authority to the EEO, vesting 
broad discretion to the EEO.  This delegation of authority is potentially problematic for several 
reasons. 
 

First, the amendments contain vague and undefined language, thereby opening up EEO 
enforcement to subjective criteria.  For example, the proposed EEO violation section indicates an 
“EEO violation occurs when an employee alleges they are being bullied, working in a hostile-
working environment, being discriminated against, being harassed, being intimidated, being 
retaliated against, or being sexually harassed.” Sec. V.D.I.2. As written, a mere allegation 
constitutes a violation. It is unknown if this presumption is intentional in the drafting. Aside from 
“sexual harassment,” the concepts (terms) of “being bullied,” “hostile-working environment,” 
“being discriminated against,” “being harassed,” “being intimidated,” and “being retaliated 
against” are undefined in the proposed amendments and process is lacking.  Although there is no 
federal employment law against “bullying,”30 some of the behaviors that may fall under such a 
label may generally fall under discrimination.  Without highlighting the complexities of 
application of federal and state employment laws to tribal employers, those established laws have 
defined meanings and processes for topics such as discrimination, hostile-work environment, and 

 
29 To describe an activity (as opposed to “ministerial”) is “quasi-judicial” is to say that the activity involves the 
exercise of discretion and judgment in the application of a rule to specific facts. The concept of quasi-judicial 
immunity is a common law concept that may also be codified in law.  Although the contours of quasi-judicial 
immunity remain unsettled, quasi-judicial immunity extends beyond to traditional “judges” to those employees/ 
officials and members of adjudicatory bodies whose duties are functionally equivalent to those of a judge or 
prosecutor.  The caselaw on quasi-judicial and quasi-judicial function (and immunity) is lengthy, but an example 
appears in Wilson v. Ill. Dep’t of Financial and Professional Regulation, 376 F. Supp.3d 849 (March 25, 2019); 
Snyder v. Nolan, 380 F.3d 279 (August 13, 2004). Even agencies, those with functions such as the FTC, have been 
determined to be quasi-judicial agencies.  Morrison v. Olson, 487 U.S. 654, 687 (June 29, 1988). 
30 https://www.stopbullying.gov/resources/laws/federal.gov 

381 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

https://www.stopbullying.gov/resources/laws/federal.gov


 
Page 30 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

retaliation. And, yet, no such definitions or processes have made their way into the proposed 
amendments.  
 

Second, the proposed changes and delegation of quasi-judicial authority may implicate 
liability and premium concerns that are best explored with the Nation’s Risk Management 
Department. The Nation has vigorously defended its employees to both state and federal 
regulatory agencies when external discrimination complaints have been leveled against them and 
when external litigation occurs.  In such instances, the legal defenses31 are generally known.  
With the proposed amendments, the EEO is tasked with making a legal determination that may 
have a legal effect on the Nation, both with the Nation’s court system and potentially with 
external regulatory agencies.  It becomes more complex to defend against an employment or 
external discrimination complaint, for example, when a finding of wrongdoing (“violation”) has 
already occurred or has been predetermined.  This issue also raises questions concerning policy 
coverage and individual liability when there is a “violation” and external litigation occurs. A 
standard immunity defense in external courts requires, generally, that a tribal employee 
(supervisor, for example) be acting within their official capacity and scope of authority.  A quasi-
judicial final determination of a violation by the EEO in these instances may negate the “scope 
authority” argument and, additionally, policy coverage. See for example, Hardin v. White 
Mountain Apache Tribe, 779 F.2d 476 (1985); Landreman v. Martin, 191 Wis. 2d 787, 530 
N.W.2d 62 (Ct. App. 1995); Imperial Granite Co. v. Pala Band of Mission Indians, 940 F.2d 
1269 (1991). 
 

Third, the proposed amendments create at least four types of conflict: (1) conflict 
between the EEO’s responsibilities; (2) conflict between the EEO and supervisors; (3) conflict 
between employees and supervisors; and, (4) conflict between the EEO’s role and the Judiciary’s 
role.32 Currently, the EEOs position themselves as “neutrals” in the discipline process, primarily 
providing process guidance to supervisors while also providing similar process information to 

 
31 By its own terms, Title VII does not apply to Indian tribes.  42. U.S.C. § 2000e(b); Morton v. Mancari, 417 U.S. 535 
(June 17, 1974); www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/policy-statement-indian-preference-under-title-viiian Preference 
under Title VII | U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (eeoc.gov); 
www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/section-2-threshold-issues2 Threshold Issues | U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (eeoc.gov).  
32 The EEO position predates the Judiciary, which was implemented into the Nation’s Constitution in 2017.  The 
proposed amendments seem to be a step backwards by delegating quasi-judicial authority to the EEO—after the 
Nation has so carefully transferred quasi-judicial authority to the Judiciary where  possible. For example BC 
Resolution 09-27-17-E.  The General Tribal Council adopted the Judiciary at its January 7, 2013 meeting by 
resolution GTC-01-07-13-B. Broadly, the Judiciary was established to administer the law and ensure justice through 
the Oneida Nation’s own court system. Formalizing the court system reinforced Oneida Nation’s status as 
sovereign nation evidenced by the exercise of its inherent authority to make, execute, apply, and enforce its own 
laws, and to apply its own customs and traditions in matters affecting the Oneida people. In the spring of 2015, 
through the BIA’s Secretarial Election process, Oneida Nation’s membership voted to amend the Oneida Nation 
Constitution by adopting Article V, Judiciary.  Although the GTC already approved the Judiciary, Article V 
constitutionally established the judiciary as a separate power, existing to exercise the judicial authority of the 
Oneida Nation. Although there was a challenge to the Secretarial Election, the election was upheld and Oneida’s 
constitution was amended.  Genskow v. Midwest Regional Dir., 62 IBIA 155 (02/11/2016).  The General Tribal 
Council confirmed the results of the secretarial election, by adopting resolution GTC-03-19-17-A.  This resolution 
confirmed the Oneida Judiciary in the Oneida Nation Constitution and made a broad authorization of judicial 
authority.   

382 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 

http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/policy-statement-indian-preference-under-title-viiian%20Preference%20under%20Title%20VII%20|%20U.S.%20Equal%20Employment%20Opportunity%20Commission%20(eeoc.gov)
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/policy-statement-indian-preference-under-title-viiian%20Preference%20under%20Title%20VII%20|%20U.S.%20Equal%20Employment%20Opportunity%20Commission%20(eeoc.gov)
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/section-2-threshold-issues2%20Threshold%20Issues%20|%20U.S.%20Equal%20Employment%20Opportunity%20Commission%20(eeoc.gov)
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/section-2-threshold-issues2%20Threshold%20Issues%20|%20U.S.%20Equal%20Employment%20Opportunity%20Commission%20(eeoc.gov)


 
Page 31 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

employees subject to discipline.33  Under the proposed structure, the EEO would continue to 
offer supervisors guidance on the disciplinary process, but the EEO is also inserted into the 
process as an authority that metes out discipline.  Under the proposed structure, the EEO would 
make a final determination (and seemingly discipline) on those newly categorized EEO 
violations against the same supervisors34 the EEO office may be responsible to provide support 
to. The EEO may require a specific disciplinary outcome from supervisors continuing through 
the General Manager level.35 The EEO will absolutely determine negligence occurred if the 
disciplinary timeline is not adhered to.36 The EEO will be inserted the investigation of illegal 
activities.37 And the EEO will void a disciplinary action for a “clear” procedural error. V.D.1. 
and 2. The EEO would no longer be a neutral. Even with this new quasi-judicial authority the 
EEO remains in a position where they are offering guidance to supervisors in the disciplinary 
process. This is a conflict of role that also has the real ability to create conflict between the EEO 
and the supervisors they are advising.38 

 
It is unclear what has necessitated some of the proposed amendments, including the new 

EEO violation section. Certainly, the proposed complaint section containing the new EEO 
violations of the law invites “complaints” from employees to file against other employees. It is 
not far reaching to presume that an employee subject to discipline may feel as if the discipline is 
an act of being “bullied” and may, in turn, file an EEO complaint.  This scenario creates a 
conflict within the EEO role because it creates conflict between the EEO and the supervisor, as 
well as the EEO and the employee.  Additionally, although the EEO has been a neutral witness 
concerning HRD-related processes and interpretations, insertion of the EEO into the quasi-
judicial role may cause confusion at all levels, including the Judiciary, where it may be necessary 
to determine whether EEO is a witness or a party in employment litigation.   

 
Last, in addition to lacking definition, the delegation of quasi-judicial authority to the 

EEO lacks process and potentially delegates unfettered authority.  Not only are undefined but 
specified allegations deemed “violations” when they are alleged, but the law lacks a process that 
is specific enough to allow an accused employee to ask questions, present evidence or otherwise 

 
33 Employees (regardless of Tribal status) subject to discipline also have access to the GTC Legal Resource Center 
for representation on employment matters. See Oneida General Tribal Council, 2nd Reconvened Special Meeting 
from Aug. 10, 2016, Meeting Minutes- Draft, p. 39 (November 14, 2016). 
34 As well as other employees. 
35 This creates questions of structure if the EEO is not in the chain of command or organizational chart.  
Additionally, while the EEO is required to know the employment process, the EEO may not be in the best position 
to understand the nuances of the facts and responsibilities of the position.  
36 Regardless or reason.  
37 It is unclear how the EEO is more suited to perform these investigations over a supervisor with immediate 
knowledge of the facts and operations of a department.  While an “illegal activities” section of the law may be 
helpful for those supervisors performing complex employment investigations with criminal implications (for 
example: embezzlement, theft from an employer, misuse of federal funds, fraud, and computer crimes) by 
providing additional process guidance and potentially extended timeframes, it is not clear that the EEO is in the 
best position to do this.  As drafted, it is also not clear if “illegal activities” are only those few violations listed. Still, 
the EEO would then replace the Supervisor and the EEO “neutral” role would be negated. This has potential to 
cause confusion, particularly at the Judicial level.  
38 And will potentially chill an already difficult disciplinary process. 

383 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 
Page 32 

  
                                                                                                                                                                 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

refute or address any allegations.  Although the EEO is acting in a quasi-judicial capacity, the 
administrative process that tends to exist for quasi-judicial decisions is lacking.39   
 

It is not necessary, in fact it is a duplication of services, to push employee advocacy 
and/or quasi-judicial responsibilities onto the Equal Employment Officer.  EEOs must know the 
Nation’s human resources policies and must be able to inform employees regarding access to 
those policies. However, the EEO should not be providing employees interpretations of policies 
(unless it is a formal interpretation issued in writing by HRD as a whole) and should not be 
advising employees as to potential legal courses of action following a discipline aside from 
providing a referral to the GTC Legal Resource Office.  That is because the Nation is already 
employing an entire office to do just this – the GTC Legal Resource Center is responsible for 
providing legal representation to Oneida Nation employees involved in the disciplinary process 
at no cost.  It is the GTC Legal Resource Center that should provide interpretations of policy for 
employee’s use in their defense and guidance through the employment process.   

 
In addition, the Oneida Judiciary Trial Court and Appellate have subject matter and 

personal jurisdiction over the Nation’s employment matters.  It is both clumsy and redundant to 
add an additional layer of what essentially amounts to judicial review by inserting EEO ability to 
void disciplines issued by supervisor and potentially upheld by area managers for “clear 
procedural errors.” Moreover, a “clear procedural error” is not the standard the Judiciary is 
required to use when evaluating whether a discipline should be overturned for a procedural 
irregularity. The Judiciary must consider whether, “[p]rocedural irregularities were exhibited 
during the appeal process that were harmful to one of the parties to the grievance.” OPPP, 
Section V, 3.C(2)(e)ii.  It is the Trial Court who should evaluate if there was a deviation of 
process and, if there was, whether the deviation was significant enough to merit overturning the 
discipline.40 A procedural error alone is not enough for the Judiciary to overturn, but is enough 
for the EEO to void a discipline.  To avoid confusion, the proposed amendments should maintain 
the Oneida Judiciary’s jurisdiction over employment matters and avoid a costly duplication of 
services. The Oneida Judiciary should be the only party outside of the chain of command that is 
able to overturn a disciplinary action, whether that be for lack of support of the discipline or a 
failure of process. 
 

 
39 Although the Judiciary contains such process, such a process should be available when administrative quasi-
judicial determinations are made.  
40 A statistical review of Oneida Judiciary Trial Court decisions from 2018-2022 shows that 83% of the published 
employee grievance decisions are based, in whole or in part, on issues of procedural error. The proposed 
amendments are not filling a gap in the employee grievance process, as the Oneida Trial Court addresses questions 
of procedural error in almost every one of its grievance decisions. The reasons to keep procedural error issues with 
the Trial Court are discussed elsewhere in this memo. 

384 of 400

~ 
000000 

ONEIDA 



 

 

Governmental Services Division 
Administration 

2640 West Point Road  •  Green Bay, WI 54304 
Mailing Address: PO Box 365  •  Oneida, WI 54115 

www.oneida-nsn.gov 
 

Memo 
To:  LOC 

From:  Tina Jorgensen, Governmental Services Director 

CC:  Mark W. Powless, General Manager 

   

Date: January 19, 2023 

Re: Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments Comments 

Please include the following in the comments for the proposed law 
amendments of the Personnel Policies and Procedures.  
 
Section III – Selection Policy 

• Currently, you can post for Oneida enrolled only or open to all. I would 
like to add the following categories: 

o Six Nations tribal members or Haudenosaunee or Confederacy 
something to that effect 

o All enrolled tribal members from a federally recognized tribe. 
• Additionally, I think our Oneida family members in Canada that are not 

considered “federally recognized” should be considered eligible for 
enrollment and listed somewhere or defined in the policies. 

• I agree with the Personnel Commission ensuring compliance with 
specific processes. I would like that to be the only responsibility of the 
Personnel Commission during hiring. For instance, in the past, the 
Personal Commission scored the applicants during the interview. I do 
not believe this should be a future responsibility of the Personnel 
Commission as they are not the experts on the questions and answers. 
They do not know the dynamics of the department and what type of 
employee the Supervisor is looking for. 

• QUESTION: Can an employee move onto the Judiciary if they are not 
satisfied with the Personnel Commission decision? 

385 of 400

"' ODDDCX) 

ONEIDA 



 

• Regarding internal posting: If a department has a succession plan with 
employees that have been working on obtaining the qualifications of a 
position, the Supervisor should NOT have to post externally. If the 
position has been offered to all in the department and no Oneida 
enrolled are interested, the Supervisor should be able to hire the other 
employees based on the succession plan. 

 
Section IV – Compensation and Benefits 

• QUESTION regarding meeting attendance: If an employee is going to be 
paid honorarium for presenting at a meeting, can they use personal or 
vacation time to receive the honorarium? 

• Funeral leave – Aunts and uncles are considered with high regard in 
families and play a role in a child’s life traditionally. Aunt and Uncle 
should be added to the immediate family list for funeral leave. 

 
Section V – Employee Relations 

• Complaints – Employee disagreements should NOT be submitted to EEO 
department as this removes the responsibility of the Supervisor. I can 
agree that the complaint is CC’d to EEO but not filed with EEO. This 
appears to be recommended to implement due to a lack of trust and 
that Supervisors are not doing their job. I don’t believe a process like this 
should be implemented for that reason. We should train Supervisors and 
work with Area Managers to hold those Supervisors accountable instead 
of taking away their ability to do their job and give it to someone else. 

• When investigating a complaint for an employee disagreement, I have 
noticed that it can take much longer than 10 working days to complete 
the investigation. I think 30 days for the investigation is reasonable. 
Some examples of needing longer: 

o Employees who are involved in the investigation may not be 
available. 

o Sometimes the employee disagreements between two can 
require the Supervisor to meet with all employees. 

o When the disagreement revolves under lack of understanding a 
process, a policy may be identified as necessary, vetted, created 
and routed for signature. 

• QUESTION: What if a Supervisor becomes aware of an issue and it is not 
really a complaint but could result in discipline? Does EEO need to be 
informed? What is the role of EEO in these cases? I don’t agree EEO 

386 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

should take on the responsibility of the Supervisor. I do agree EEO 
should be involved as FYI and offer assistance with the investigation. 

• It is very easy for an employee to claim they are working in a hostile work 
environment. It was mentioned in a few of my employee disagreements 
and investigations and was due to the employee being held accountable 
for their actions. I agree with EEO being involved but I disagree that the 
EEO department being responsible.  

• QUESTION: Can an employee move to the Judiciary when not satisfied 
with the outcome of their complaint? 

• Again, I do not agree with the EEO department having the ability to 
discipline. This takes away from the role of the Supervisor.  

• QUESTION: If the employee appealing a discipline is not satisfied with 
the decision of the Personnel Commission, can they appeal to the 
Judiciary? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

387 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

388 of 400

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
~ 

ONEIDA 



Policy Change Comments 

 

Personnel Commission: 
The Personnel Commission Role is to a) Protecting against issues of nepotism; and b) Enforcing Oneida 
and Indian preference. Lines 301 through 306. However, lines 307 through 362 are inconsistent by 
directing the OPC to ensure compliance with the Nation’s laws and policies in the area of Conflicts of 
Interest, Veteran Status, and Physical Capacity requirement. One would think the Personnel Commission 
would act only within the boundaries of their role. 
 
Finally, it seems strange that the Personnel Policies and Procedures would have authority to direct the 
Personnel Commission to follow their bylaws. This should be a matter of law, not policy. Additionally, 
the Commission’s bylaws should be consistent with the established role to protect against issues of 
nepotism and enforcement of Indian Preference. Activities outside this area would be beyond the scope 
authorized by the GTC.  
 
Accrued Personal and Vacation time: 
 
Lines 661 and 662 state, Employees who are terminated during their original probation period shall not 
be paid for any unused accrued vacation or personal days in their final paycheck. 
 
I don’t understand the need to not pay a terminated employee the compensation they earned. This 
seems contrary to our values and promotes an undesired behavior of not saving time off for 
emergencies. This could create an economic problem in the future if an employee is injured or sick but is 
always keeping their accrual balance at or near zero, and therefore has no safety net to get through the 
emergency. 
 
Leave of Absence: 
 
Line 751 requires 15 working days prior written notice of intent to return to work by the employee. 
There is an interpretation that says one day notice is required for LOAs shorter than 15 working days. 
Overall, the 15-day requirement seems out of date, particularly when the employee and supervisor 
should maintain communications through the period of leave. One day notice should be sufficient and 
earlier notice would be courteous.  
 
The other thought is what constitutes notice of intent to return? If an employee provides a return-to-
work letter from a doctor with a date to return is that intent to return?  
 
COMPLAINTS, DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, AND GRIEVANCES 
 
Line 908 should be changed to problematic behaviors “from” employees. 
 
There does not seem to be the same level of accountability for EEO as there is for a supervisor in the 
Complaint and Grievance processes.  

389 of 400



 

Little Bear Development Center            Tsyunhehkwa Farm                       Land &Conservation Office                           Cannery Oneida Nation Farm 
N7332 Water Circle Place                          N139 Riverdale Drive                               470 Airport Drive                          N7210 Seminary Rd    N6010 Cty Rd C 
Oneida, WI 54155                                            Oneida, WI 54155                                   Oneida, WI 54155                            Oneida, WI 54155 Seymour, WI 54165 

 

Environmental Health, Land & Agriculture Division 

 
TO:  Legislative Operating Committee 

 

FROM: Vanessa Miller 

 

RE:  Amendments to Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures 

 

DATE:  1/19/2023 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please accept this communication as my public comment regarding the amendments to the Oneida 

Personnel Policies and procedures being made to address the selection process, as well as the complaint, 

discipline, and grievance procedures. 

 

I. Complaints 

 
With these changes, the complaint process will be split into three (3) different pathways: 1. Employee 

disagreement complaints; 2.  EEO Violation Complaints; and 3.  Illegal Activity Complaints.  The 

supervisor investigates pathway one, while EEO investigates pathways 2 and 3. 

 

 

While these three pathways do seem to distinguish and make separation between complaints so that 

they may be handled accordingly per the proposed processes, it appears that there is still room for gray 

area and overlapping.  For instance, an employee disagreement that involves EEO policy violation 

would seem to be overlapping in nature. How would these complaints be vetted through to determine 

which pathway they are to go down, and to ensure that a standardized process is used in determining 

such?  In addition, it is not clear what the various EEO violations are or mean as they are not defined.  

 

 

Further, I share concern that during the process of EEO investigations of EEO policy violations, efforts 

in coaching and mentoring being made by the supervisor may be lost when a separate department is 

potentially issuing disciplinary action.  While I recognize that discretion will still certainly be key while 

EEO performs their investigation, supervisor efforts and up close understanding of situations, cultural 

climate, personalities, environmental climate, etc. is necessary if the goal is changed behavior and 

changed work performance.  

 

J. Discipline  

 

The legal analysis states that “Previously, the Law provided that the supervisor must consider each 

disciplinary action in progressive order and justify a deviance from that recommended progression. 

The proposed amendments now provide greater clarification on this issue, and provide that 

disciplinary action shall be considered in progressive order (written warning  suspension  

termination), and that any  deviation from the recommended progressive order made by the 

 
 

 

390 of 400" =DDDDDD= 

ONEIDA 
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



 Page 2 of 2 

supervisor shall be justified in writing and approved by the EEO Department, while any deviation 

from the recommended progressive order made by the EEO Officer shall be justified in writing and 

approved by the Human Resources Executive 284 Director, or designee. [Section V(D)(2)(b)(2)]” 

 

My concern with this proposition is there appears to be room for misinterpretation regarding 

“progression discipline.” As written, this analysis states that “the Law provided that the supervisor must 

consider each disciplinary action in progressive order…”  In the decision of Appellant Case No. 17-AC-

008, Dated November 20, 2017 (Falck V. Thumer), the following was ordered: 

 

Thurner also argues that progressive discipline is applicable only for “repeated violations of the same 

type” and Flack erred in progressively disciplining her for unrelated violations.  This would mean that 

because Thurner was disciplined for three different type of unacceptable work performance….she 

would be able to have three separate progressive disciplinary tracks ongoing for each type of violation.  

This is a clearly erroneous position and not what V.D.2.a.3) directs supervisors to do.  The progressive 

disciplinary process can be cumulative if disciplinary actions occur within a certain time frame.  

 

My comment would be to clarify in this amendment the definition of progressive discipline in its 

application so that it is clear that it may be cumulative in nature regarding different types of behavior or 

policy violations.   

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

  

 
 
 

391 of 400



Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
O Bo      Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

1) Request Date: _____________________________________________________

2) Contact Person(s): ______________________________________

Dept:____________________________  

Phone Number:_________________________ Email: __________________________________

3) Agenda Title:___________________________________________________________________

4) Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC:

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form

1) ________________________________

2) ________________________________

3) ________________________________

4) ________________________________

5) Please list any laws, policies or resolutions that might be affected:

_______________________________________________________________________________

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to:

______________________________________________________________________________

7) Do you consider this request urgent? Yes  No

If yes, please indicate why:

________________________________________________________________

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 
the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Signature of Requester:

__________________________________________________________________________

Please send this form and all supporting materials to:

LOC@oneidanation.org
or

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC)
P.O. Box 365

Oneida, WI 54155
Phone 920-869-4376 

February 22, 2023

Clorissa N. Leeman

Legislative Reference Office (LRO)

(920) 869-4417 cleeman@oneidanation.org

Petition: L. Dallas - Alcohol and Drug Addiction Treatment Assistance

On 2/22/23 the OBC adopted a motion to acknowledge receipt of this
petition and direct that the LRO complete a statement of effect with status
updates to be submitted for the March 22, 2023, OBC meeting agenda.
Materials can be found at the Members Only web page.

Statement of effect is due at the March 22, 2023 OBC meeting.

Clorissa N. Leeman Digitally signed by Clorissa N. Leeman 
Date: 2023.02.22 10:55:05 -06'00'

392 of 400

[i] □ 

" GDDDDO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



D R A F T

Oneida Business Committee Regular Meeting Minutes February 22, 2023
Page 8 of 14

B. OTHER 

1. Defer the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute report to the March 22, 2023, 
regular Business Committee meeting (01:24:21) 
Sponsor:  Marlon Skenandore, Chair/Oneida Youth Leadership Institute 

Motion by David P. Jordan to defer the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute report to the March 22, 
2023, regular Business Committee meeting, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Item XV. was addressed next. 

XIV. GENERAL TRIBAL COUNCIL 

A. Schedule the 2023 semi-annual General Tribal Council meeting (00:44:44) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Jennifer Webster to schedule the 2023 semi-annual General Tribal Council meeting for 
Monday, July 24, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., seconded by David P. Jordan. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Opposed: Marie Cornelius, Kirby Metoxen 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

For the record: Councilwoman Marie Cornelius stated I will not be available on that date, thank you. 

B. Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: Alcohol and Drug 
Addiction Treatment Assistance (00:54:52) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Lisa Liggins to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding 
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Treatment Assistance, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by 
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Lisa Liggins. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct  the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete, 
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to 
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC 
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer 
Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Approve three (3) requested actions - ve three (3) reque ions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: Alcohol and Drug Petiti Linpp ( ) q( ) q
Addiction Treatment Assistance (00:54:52) n Treatment As 00:54
Sponsor:  Lisa Lip isa Liggg ins, Secretarns, Secreta y

Motion by Lisa Liggins to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regardingn by Lisa Liggins to ap ve acknowledge receip of ty gg pp g p p g gy gg p g p
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Treatment Assistancehol and Drug Addiction Tr ment Assistance, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried: seco

Ayes: 
, y

Marie Cornelius, David P. Joe Corn rdan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster Br on Stev

Not Present: Not Pr
,

na Danforth, Daniel Guzman KinTin forth, g

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete andr Webster to direct y p p
submit their administrative impact statements of trative impact sta the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by p p
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Lisa Liggins. Motion carried:, 2023, secon,

Ayes: 
y gg

Marie Cornelius, David P. JoM rdan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct  the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete,y , , g p
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to p y, g , p , p
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC , , g g g
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer g
Webster. Motion carried: 

Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

393 of 400

-

-



Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
O Bo      Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

1) Request Date: _____________________________________________________

2) Contact Person(s): ______________________________________

Dept:____________________________  

Phone Number:_________________________ Email: __________________________________

3) Agenda Title:___________________________________________________________________

4) Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC:

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form

1) ________________________________

2) ________________________________

3) ________________________________

4) ________________________________

5) Please list any laws, policies or resolutions that might be affected:

_______________________________________________________________________________

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to:

______________________________________________________________________________

7) Do you consider this request urgent? Yes  No

If yes, please indicate why:

________________________________________________________________

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 
the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Signature of Requester:

__________________________________________________________________________

Please send this form and all supporting materials to:

LOC@oneidanation.org
or

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC)
P.O. Box 365

Oneida, WI 54155
Phone 920-869-4376 

February 22, 2023

Clorissa N. Leeman

Legislative Reference Office (LRO)

(920) 869-4417 cleeman@oneidanation.org

Petition: L. Dallas - FY-2023 Budget

On 2/22/23 the OBC adopted a motion to acknowledge receipt of this
petition and direct that the LRO complete a statement of effect with status
updates to be submitted for the March 22, 2023, OBC meeting agenda.
Materials can be found at the Members Only web page.

Statement of effect is due at the March 22, 2023 OBC meeting.

Clorissa N. Leeman Digitally signed by Clorissa N. Leeman 
Date: 2023.02.22 09:52:59 -06'00'

394 of 400

[i] □ 

" GDDDDO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



D R A F T

Oneida Business Committee Regular Meeting Minutes February 22, 2023
Page 9 of 14

C. Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: General Tribal 
Council Directive for the Oneida Business Committee to stay out of day-to-day 
business (01:00:23) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding 
the General Tribal Council Directive for the Oneida Business Committee to stay out of day-to-day 
business, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by 
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct  the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete, 
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to 
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC 
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer 
Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

D. Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: FY-2023 Budget 
(01:02:55) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding 
the FY-2023 budget, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by 
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Lisa Liggins. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete, 
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to 
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC 
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer 
Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Approve three (3) requested actions ove three (3) requ ctions etitioner Linda Dallas re: FY-2023 Budget- Petitioner Lindpp
(01:02:55) 2:55) ( )
Sponsor:  Lisa Li:  Lisa ggins, Secretars, Se y

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve acknowledge y Jennifer Web to approve acknowle receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding receiy pp gy pp p
the FY-2023 budget, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried:Y-2023 budget, secon by Kirby Metoxen. Mo on c,

Ayes: s:
y yy
Marie Cornelius, David P. JoMarie Cornelius, David rdan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster ndon S

Not Present: Not
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman KinT anfort g

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete andnifer Webster to directy p p
submit their administrative impact statements of nistrative impact sta the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by p p
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Lisa Liggins. Motion carried:15, 2023, second,

Ayes: es:
y gg

arie Cornelius, David P. JoMar rdan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster Br

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete,y , , g p
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to p y, g , p , p
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC , , g g g
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer g
Webster. Motion carried: 

Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

395 of 400

-



Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
O Bo      Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Request Date: _____________________________________________________

Contact Person(s): ______________________________________

Dept:____________________________

Phone Number:_________________________ Email: __________________________________

Agenda Title:___________________________________________________________________

Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC:

______________________________________________________________________________

_

______________________________________________________________________________

_

______________________________________________________________________________

_

______________________________________________________________________________

_

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form

1) ________________________________

2) ________________________________

3) ________________________________

4) ________________________________

5) Please list any laws, policies or resolutions that might be affected:

_______________________________________________________________________________

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to:

______________________________________________________________________________

7) Do you consider this request urgent? Yes No

If yes, please indicate why:

________________________________________________________________

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 
the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Signature of Requester:

__________________________________________________________________________

Please send this form and all supporting materials to:

LOC@oneidanation.org
or

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC)
P.O. Box 365

Oneida, WI 54155
Phone 920-869-4376 

February 22, 2023

Clorissa N. Leeman

Legislative Reference Office (LRO)

(920) 869-4417 cleeman@oneidanation.org

Petition: L. Dallas -GTC Directive for OBC to Stay Out of Day-to-Day Business

On 2/22/23 the OBC adopted a motion to acknowledge receipt of this
petition and direct that the LRO complete a statement of effect with status
updates to be submitted for the March 22, 2023, OBC meeting agenda.
Materials can be found at the Members Only Webpage.

Statement of effect is due on March 22, 2023

Clorissa N. Leeman Digitally signed by Clorissa N. Leeman 
Date: 2023.02.22 09:46:46 -06'00'

396 of 400

[i] □ 

" GDDDDO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



D R A F T

Oneida Business Committee Regular Meeting Minutes February 22, 2023
Page 9 of 14

C. Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: General Tribal 
Council Directive for the Oneida Business Committee to stay out of day-to-day 
business (01:00:23) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding 
the General Tribal Council Directive for the Oneida Business Committee to stay out of day-to-day 
business, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by 
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct  the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete, 
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to 
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC 
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer 
Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

D. Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: FY-2023 Budget 
(01:02:55) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding 
the FY-2023 budget, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by 
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Lisa Liggins. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete, 
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to 
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC 
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer 
Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Linda Dallas re: General Tribal pp ( ) q
Council Directive for the Oneida Business Committee to stay out of day-to-day
business (01:00:23) ( )
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Linda Dallas regarding y pp g p p g
the General Tribal Council Directive for the Oneida Business Committee to stay out of day-to-day 
business, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried: y

Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete andDirect Rey p p
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by to the Tp p
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried:n. Motion car,

Ayes: 
y y

Marie Cornelius, David P. Jod PP. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,rdan, Lisa L, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster ennife

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman Kinaniel Gu g

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct  the Law, Finaance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete,nce, ence Oy , , g p,
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statemennt, and statement of effect with status updates to t, and statement ith statp y, g , p , p,
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Busieg ness Committee meeting agenda and the first BC s Committee me a and t, , gg g g
meeting of the month thereafter or until the fitil the final documents are submitted, seconded by Jennifer nts are sub byg
Webster. Motion carried: 

Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. JoCornelius, Dav rdan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,dan, L,, ,,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer WebsteStevens  Jennif ster 

Not Present: 
,,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman Kinorth, Daniel Guzma gg

397 of 400



Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

Legislative Operating Committee 
O Bo      Oneida, WI 54155-0365 

Oneida-nsn.gov  

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

1) Request Date: _____________________________________________________

2) Contact Person(s): ______________________________________

Dept:____________________________  

Phone Number:_________________________ Email: __________________________________

3) Agenda Title:___________________________________________________________________

4) Detailed description of the item and the reason/justification it is being brought before the LOC:

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

List any supporting materials included and submitted with the Agenda Request Form

1) ________________________________

2) ________________________________

3) ________________________________

4) ________________________________

5) Please list any laws, policies or resolutions that might be affected:

_______________________________________________________________________________

6) Please list all other departments or person(s) you have brought your concern to:

______________________________________________________________________________

7) Do you consider this request urgent? Yes  No

If yes, please indicate why:

________________________________________________________________

I, the undersigned, have reviewed the attached materials, and understand that they are subject to action by 
the Legislative Operating Committee. 

Signature of Requester:

__________________________________________________________________________

Please send this form and all supporting materials to:

LOC@oneidanation.org
or

Legislative Operating Committee (LOC)
P.O. Box 365

Oneida, WI 54155
Phone 920-869-4376 

February 22, 2023

Clorissa N. Leeman

Legislative Reference Office (LRO)

(920) 869-4417 cleeman@oneidanation.org

Petition: L. Zeise - Uncap All Employee Wages

On 2/22/23 the OBC adopted a motion to acknowledge receipt of this
petition and direct that the LRO complete a statement of effect with status
updates to be submitted for the March 22, 2023, OBC meeting agenda.
Materials can be found at the Members Only web page.

Statement of effect is due at the March 22, 2023 OBC meeting.

Clorissa N. Leeman Digitally signed by Clorissa N. Leeman 
Date: 2023.02.22 09:58:20 -06'00'

398 of 400

[i] □ 

" GDDDDO 

ONEIDA 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 



D R A F T

Oneida Business Committee Regular Meeting Minutes February 22, 2023
Page 10 of 14

E. Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Lloyd Zeise re: Uncap All 
Employee Wages (01:05:07) 
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by David P. Jordan to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Lloyd Zeise regarding 
the Uncap All Employee Wages, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete and 
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by 
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete, 
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect with status updates to 
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Business Committee meeting agenda and the first BC 
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Marie 
Cornelius. Motion carried: 
 Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen, 

Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 
 Not Present: Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Item XV.A.1. was addressed next. 

Approve three (3) requested actions - Petitioner Lloyd Zeise re: Uncap Allpp ( ) q
Employee Wages (01:05:07)p y g ( )
Sponsor:  Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Motion by David P. Jordan to approve acknowledge receipt of the petition from Lloyd Zeise regarding y pp g p p
the Uncap All Employee Wages, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried:p y

Ayes: 
, y
Marie Cornelius, David P. Jordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster 

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman King

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Business Committee Direct Report Offices to complete andy p p
submit their administrative impact statements of the petition to the TribalSecretary mailbox by e Tribap p
Wednesday, March 15, 2023, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried:Motion c,

Ayes: 
y

Marie Cornelius, David P. Joordan, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,rdan, L, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster er Webster 

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman KinGuzman Kingg

Motion by David P. Jordan to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Offices to complete,ance, an efereny , , g p,
respectively, the legal review, fiscal impact statemenement, and statement of effect with status updates to t, ect witp y, g , p , p
be submitted for the March 22, 2023, regular Busisiness Committee meeting agenda and the first BC ness genda , , g g g
meeting of the month thereafter or until the final documents are submitted, seconded by Mariecuments are subm nded bg
Cornelius. Motion carried: 

Ayes: Marie Cornelius, David P. e Corne P. Jo n, Lisa Liggins, Kirby Metoxen,rdan, y Me, ,
Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster don Steven Webs

Not Present: 
,

Tina Danforth, Daniel Guzman Kinanforth, Danie n Kingg

399 of 400

-



1 2/22/2023 9:01 AMLOC

SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2023
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

April 2023March 2023

Feb 27 28 Mar 1 2 3
8:30am LOC Prep 

(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting; 
BC_Conf_Room) - 

9:00am Legislative 
Operating Committee 
Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting; 

1:00pm Furlough & Layoff
law amendments work 
meeting  (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting) - 
Carolyn A. Salutz

10:00am Oneida Higher 
Education Scholarship 
Law  (Microsoft Teams 
Meeting) - Grace L. 
Elliott

6 7 8 9 10
10:00am OLIPP Law Work 

Meeting  (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting) - 
Clorissa N. Leeman

9:30am Investigative 
Leave Policy (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting) - 
Grace L. Elliott

10:30am Personnel 
Commission bylaws 
work meeting 
(Microsoft Teams 

1:30pm LOC Work 
Session (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting) - 
Clorissa N. Leeman

13 14 15 16 17
8:30am LOC Prep 

(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting; 
BC_Conf_Room) - 

9:00am Legislative 
Operating Committee 
Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting; 

20 21 22 23 24
9:00am Clean Air Policy 

Amendments 
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting) - Clorissa N. 
Leeman

9:30am LOC Work Session
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting) - Clorissa N. 
Leeman

27 28 29 30 31
10:00am Oneida 

Language Code Work 
Meeting (Microsoft 
Teams Meeting) - 
Clorissa N. Leeman

9:30am LOC Work Session
(Microsoft Teams 
Meeting) - Clorissa N. 
Leeman

MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY

400 of 400

l I 


	I. Agenda
	II. February 15, 2023 LOC Meeting Minutes
	III.1 Emergency Management Law Amendments CS
	III.1.1 Adoption Memo
	III.1.2 Resolution
	III.1.3 SOE
	III.1.4 Legislative Analysis
	III.1.5 Draft (Redline to Last Permanent)
	III.1.6 Draft (Clean)
	III.1.7 Fiscal Impact Statement

	III.2 Election Law Emergency Amendments CS
	III.2.1 Adoption Memo
	III.2.2 Resolution
	III.2.3 SOE
	III.2.4 Legislative Analysis
	III.2.5 Draft (Redline to Last Permanent)
	III.2.6 Draft (Clean)

	III.3 Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments CS
	III.3.1 Public Comment Review Memo
	III.3.2 Public Meeting Draft (Redline to Last Permanent)
	III.3.3 Public Meeting Transcript
	III.3.4 Written Comments Received
	2022 01 19 Lisa Liggins RE_ Comments re_ Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Amendments
	2023 01 12 Email from Matt W. Denny - OPP Proposed ammendments
	2023 01 13 Email from Wendy Alvarez - OPP feedback on proposed laws
	2023 01 18 Email from Sharon Mousseau - ONSS comments for OPPP
	2023 01 19 Comments from Lisa Rauschenbach - OPPP Amendments
	2023 01 19 Comments Received from Jackie Smith - OPPP Amendments
	2023 01 19 Email  from Brooke Doxtator Lisa Summers Comments re Personnel Policy Procedure Amendments
	2023 01 19 Email Comments from Lisa Duff Gaming Division Public Comments OPPP
	2023 01 19 Email from Jessica Vandekamp Amendment to PPP
	2023 01 19 Email from Mark Powless GM Written Comments Personnel Policies and Procedure Amendements
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2023 01 19 Email from Peggy Van Gheem - Oneida Law Office Public Comments
	2023 01 19 Email from Tina Jorgensen PPP Law Amendment Comments
	2023 01 19 Email Shanon Stone Policy Change Comments
	2023 01 19 Email Vanessa Miller LOC COMMENT


	IV.1.1 Petition L. Dallas - Alcohol and Drug Addiction Treatment Assistance ARF
	IV.1.2 Excerpt from Draft 2023 02 22 OBC Minutes

	IV.2.1 Petition L. Dallas - FY 2023 Budget ARF
	IV.2.2 Excerpt from Draft 2023 02 22 OBC Minutes

	IV.3.1 Petition L. Dallas - GTC Directive for OBC to Stay Out of Day-to-Day Business ARF
	IV.3.2 Excerpt from Draft 2023 02 22 OBC Minutes

	IV.4.1 Petition L. Zeise - Uncap All Employee Wages ARF
	IV.4.2 Excerpt from Draft 2023 02 22 OBC Minutes

	X. Calendar



